
           

TIGARD CITY COUNCIL AND CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING

MEETING DATE AND TIME: December 11, 2012 - 6:30 p.m. Study Session; 7:30 p.m. Business Meeting

MEETING LOCATION: City of Tigard - Town Hall - 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223

PUBLIC NOTICE:

Anyone wishing to speak on an agenda item should sign on the appropriate sign-up sheet(s). If no sheet is available, ask

to be recognized by the Mayor at the beginning of that agenda item. Citizen Communication items are asked to be two

minutes or less. Longer matters can be set for a future Agenda by contacting either the Mayor or the City Manager.

Times noted are estimated; it is recommended that persons interested in testifying be present by 7:15 p.m. to sign in on the

testimony sign-in sheet. Business agenda items can be heard in any order after 7:30 p.m.

Assistive Listening Devices are available for persons with impaired hearing and should be scheduled for Council

meetings by noon on the Monday prior to the Council meeting. Please call 503-639-4171, ext. 2410 (voice) or

503-684-2772 (TDD - Telecommunications Devices for the Deaf).

Upon request, the City will also endeavor to arrange for the following services:

•        Qualified sign language interpreters for persons with speech or hearing impairments; and

•        Qualified bilingual interpreters.

Since these services must be scheduled with outside service providers, it is important to allow as much lead time as

possible. Please notify the City of your need by 5:00 p.m. on the Thursday preceding the meeting by calling:

503-639-4171, ext. 2410 (voice) or 503-684-2772 (TDD - Telecommunications Devices for the Deaf).

 

SEE ATTACHED AGENDA

 

VIEW LIVE VIDEO STREAMING ONLINE:  

http://www.tvctv.org/government-programming/government-meetings/tigard

 

CABLE VIEWERS: The regular City Council meeting is shown live on Channel 28 at 7:30 p.m. The meeting will be

rebroadcast at the following times on Channel 28:

 Thursday       6:00 p.m.

 Friday          10:00 p.m.

            Sunday       11:00 a.m.

            Monday       6:00 a.m.

http://www.tvctv.org/government-programming/government-meetings/tigard


TIGARD CITY COUNCIL AND CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

MEETING DATE AND TIME: December 11, 2012 - 6:30 p.m. Study Session; 7:30 p.m. Business Meeting

MEETING LOCATION: City of Tigard - Town Hall - 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223

             

6:30  PM

 
 

STUDY SESSION
 

A. Administrative Items Reviewed

- Councilor Wilson - Non-Agenda Item

Council Calendar:

December

18     Farewell Meeting - Mayor Dirksen and Councilor Wilson; 6:30 reception; 7:30 special meeting.

25     Christmas Holiday - No meeting - City offices closed.   

January 

 1      New Year's Holiday - No CCDA meeting - City Hall offices closed.

 8      Special Meeting - 6:30 reception, 7:30 swearing-in ceremonies, inaugural Remarks, election of

         council president.

10     Special Meeting - 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. at Fanno Creek House; council groundrules, council liaison

         appointments, 2013 council goal setting.

15     Workshop Meeting - 6:30 p.m.

21     Martin Luther King Jr. Day - City Hall offices closed.

22     Business Meeting - 6:30 p.m. Study Session; 7:30 p.m. Business Meeting.

February

12     Special Meeting, Tigard to host a joint meeting with the City of Beaverton (time to be determined).

18     Presidents Day - City Hall offices closed.

19     Workshop Meetting, 6:30 p.m.

26     Business Meeting - 6:30 p.m. Study Session; 7:30 p.m. Business Meeting.
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: The Tigard City Council may go into Executive Session. If an Executive Session is

called to order, the appropriate ORS citation will be announced identifying the applicable statute. All discussions

are confidential and those present may disclose nothing from the Session. Representatives of the news media are

allowed to attend Executive Sessions, as provided by ORS 192.660(4), but must not disclose any information

discussed. No Executive Session may be held for the purpose of taking any final action or making any final

decision. Executive Sessions are closed to the public.
 



             

7:30 PM
 

1. BUSINESS MEETING - DECEMBER 11, 2012
 

A. Call to Order
 

B. Roll Call
 

C. Pledge of Allegiance
 

D. Council Communications & Liaison Reports

Council President Buehner - Liaison Report
 

E. Call to Council and Staff for Non-Agenda Items

 
 

2. CITIZEN COMMUNICATION (Two Minutes or Less, Please)

7:35 p.m. - time is estimated
 

A. Follow-up to Previous Citizen Communication
 

B. Tigard High School Student Envoy (Note to Council President:  Megan Risinger (rice-n-grrr) might be

unable to attend; if not, she will attempt to find a substitute.)
 

C. Tigard Area Chamber of Commerce - (Note to Council President:  No report this evening; CEO Debi

Mollahan will give a report at the next available business meeting, which will be January 22, 2013.)
 

D. Citizen Communication – Sign Up Sheet
 

3.   PROCLAIM DECEMBER 9-15 AS HUMAN RIGHTS WEEK

7:45 p.m. - time is estimated

(Note to Council President:  Tigard's Assistant Police Chief Jim de Sully will be present for this

proclamation representing the Human Rights Council of Washington County)
 

4. CONSENT AGENDA: (Tigard City Council and City Center Development Agency) These items are

considered routine and may be enacted in one motion without separate discussion. Anyone may request

that an item be removed by motion for discussion and separate action. Motion to:

7:50 p.m. - time is estimated
 

A.   Approve City Council Meeting/City Center Development Agency Meeting Minutes for:

1.  September 25, 2012

2.  October 2, 2012
 

B.   Receive and File:

 

 1.  Official November 6, 2012 Election Results-Electing a Mayor, Two City Councilors, and a Charter

Amendment "Vote Required to Use Certain Funds for Light Rail Construction." 

2.  Council Calendar 

3.  Council Tentative Agenda for Future Meeting Topics
 



C.   Appoint Melody Graeber, Don Fisher and Cathy Hearn to the Budget Committee and Appoint Melanie

Boekee as an Alternate Member - Resolution

RESOLUTION NO. 12-46 - A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MELODY GRAEBER, DON

FISHER AND CATHY HEARN TO THE BUDGET COMMITTEE AND APPOINTING

MELANIE BOEKEE AS AN ALTERNATE MEMBER.
 

D.   Appoint Peter Hedgecock to the Audit Committee - Resolution

RESOLUTION NO. 12-47 - A RESOLUTION APPOINTING PETER HEDGECOCK TO THE

AUDIT COMMITTEE, BEGINNING ON JANUARY 1, 2013
 

E.   Reappoint Matthew Muldoon and Appoint Timothy L. Gaschke and Brian K Feeney as Voting Members

to the Planning Commission - Resolution

RESOLUITON 12-48 - A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING MATTHEW MULDOON AND

APPOINTING TIMOTHY L. GASCHKE AND BRIAN K. FEENEY AS VOTING MEMBERS TO

THE PLANNING COMMISSION
 

F.   Appoint Laura Fisher, Tamera Slack and Paul Miller as Voting Members and Carine Arendes and

Hemendra Mathur as Alternates to the City Center Advisory Commission - Resolution

RESOLUTION NO. 12-49 - A RESOLUTION APPOINTING LAURA FISHER, TAMERA SLACK

AND PAUL MILLER AS VOTING MEMBERS OF THE CITY CENTER ADVISORY

COMMISSION AND APPOINTING CARINE ARENDES AND HEMENDRA MATHUR AS

ALTERNATES TO THE CITY CENTER ADVISORY COMMISSION
 

G.   Appoint Jennifer Stanfield, Donald Schmidt, Evelyn Murphy Mark Bogert and George Hetu as Voting

Members to the Tigard Transportation Advisory Committee - Resolution

RESOLUTION NO. 12-50 - A RESOLUTION APPOINTING JENNIFER STANFIELD, DONALD

SCHMIDT, EVELYN MURPHY, MARK BOGERT, AND GEORGE HETU AS VOTING

MEMBERS OF THE TIGARD TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE (TTAC)
 

H.   Approve the Purchase of the Rankin Property and Authorize the City Manager to Complete the Property

Purchase - Resolution 

RESOLUTION NO. 12-51 - A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF THE RANKIN

PROPERTY, (TAX LOT 2S1 04DA 03500) AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO

TAKE ALL NECESSARY ACTION TO COMPLETE THE PROPERTY PURCHASE ON BEHALF

OF THE CITY
 

I.   Amend City Manager's Employment Agreement
 

Consent Agenda - Items Removed for Separate Discussion:  Any items requested to be removed from the Consent Agenda for

separate discussion will be considered immediately after the Council/City Center Development Agency has voted on those items

which do not need discussion.
 



             

5.   LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARING - TIGARD CITY COUNCIL CONSIDERATION OF AN

ORDINANCE ADOPTING COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT CPA 2012-00002 TO

AMEND THE TIGARD COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP TO INCLUDE LAND USE

DESIGNATIONS FOR THE RIVER TERRACE COMMUNITY PLAN AREA BASED ON

RECOMMENDED LAND USES FOUND IN WASHINGTON COUNTY’S WEST

BULL MOUNTAIN CONCEPT PLAN AND AMEND THE CURRENT TIGARD

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN GOAL 14: URBANIZATION POLICIES

7:55 p.m. - time is estimated

Proposal:  To amend the current Tigard Comprehensive Plan Map to include map designations for the

River Terrace Community Plan area based on recommended land uses found in Washington County's

West Bull Mountain Concept Plan; to amend current Tigard Comprehensive Plan Goal 14; Urbanization

goals, polices, and recommendation actions.

Applicant:  City of Tigard, Oregon, 13125 SW Hall Boulevard, Tigard, Oregon 97223

Location:  River Terrace Community Plan Area

Applicable Review Criteria:  Development Code Chapters 18.380 and 18.390; Comprehensive Plan Goals

1, 2, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14; Metro Functional Plan Title 11; and Statewide Planning Goals 1, 2,

5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14. 

Open Public Hearing

Review Hearing Procedures: City Attorney

Declarations or Challenges: Does any Council member wish to declare or discuss a conflict of

interest or abstention.

Staff Report: Community Development Department

Public Testimony 

Proponents

Opponents

Rebuttal

Staff Recommendation

Council Questions

Close Public Hearing

Council Consideration: Ordinance

ORDINANCE NO. 12-12 - AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

AMENDMENT CPA 2012-00002 TO AMEND THE TIGARD COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP

TO INCLUDE LAND USE DESIGNATIONS FOR THE RIVER TERRACE COMMUNITY PLAN

AREA BASED ON RECOMMENDED LAND USES FOUND IN WASHINGTON COUNTY’S

WEST BULL MT. CONCEPT PLAN AND AMEND THE CURRENT TIGARD

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN GOAL 14: URBANIZATION POLICIES
 

6.   LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARING FOR TIGARD CITY COUNCIL CONSIDERATION OF

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT CPA 2012-00001

AND DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENT DCA 2012-00002 TO AMEND THE CITY OF

TIGARD 2035 TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN AND TIGARD DEVELOPMENT CODE

CHAPTERS 18.370, 18.610, AND 18.810 TO IMPLEMENT STREET CONNECTIVITY AND

DESIGN STANDARDS FROM THE DOWNTOWN TIGARD CONCEPTUAL CONNECTIVITY

PLAN 

8:30 p.m. - time is estimated

Proposal:  To amend the City of Tigard 2035 Transportation System Plan and Tigard Development Code

(Title 18) Chapters 18.370, 18.610 and 18.810 to implement the street connectivity and design standards



recommended to the Downtown Tigard Conceptual Connectivity Plan.

Applicant:  City of Tigard, 13125 SW Hall Boulevard, Tigard, Oregon 97223

Location:  Downtown Mixed Use Central Business District

Zoning:  MU-CBD

Comp Plan:  Mixed Use Central Business District

Applicable Review Criteria:  Community Development Code Chapters 18.380 and 18.390;

Comprehensive Plan Goals 1, Citizen Involvement; 2, Land Use Planning, 9, Economic Development;

11, Public Facilities and Services; 12, Transportation; 13, Energy Conservation; and 15, Special Planning

Areas: Downtown; Metro Urban Growth Management Functional Plan Title 6, Metro Regional

Transportation Functional Plan Titles 1, 2 and 5; Oregon Administrative Rules Chapter 660, Division 12;

Statewide Planning Goals 1, 2, 9, 11, 12 and 13.

  

Open Public Hearing

Review Hearing Procedures: City Attorney

Declarations or Challenges: Does any Council member wish to declare or discuss a conflict of

interest or abstention.

Staff Report: Community Development Department

Public Testimony 

Proponents

Opponents

Rebuttal

Staff Recommendation

Council Questions

Close Public Hearing

Council Consideration: Ordinance

ORDINANCE NO. 12-13 - AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

AMENDMENT CPA 2012-00001 AND

DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENT DCA 2012-00002 TO AMEND THE CITY OF

TIGARD 2035 TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN AND TIGARD DEVELOPMENT CODE

CHAPTERS 18.370, 18.610, AND 18.810 TO IMPLEMENT STREET CONNECTIVITY AND

DESIGN STANDARDS FROM THE DOWNTOWN TIGARD CONCEPTUAL CONNECTIVITY

PLAN
 

7. COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS
 

8. NON AGENDA ITEMS
 

A.   NAME THE SUMMER CREEK PROPERTY THE "DIRKSEN NATURE PARK" IN HONOR OF

TIGARD MAYOR CRAIG DIRKSEN.
 

9. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  The Tigard City Council may go into Executive Session. If an Executive

Session is called to order, the appropriate ORS citation will be announced identifying the applicable

statute. All discussions are confidential and those present may disclose nothing from the Session.

Representatives of the news media are allowed to attend Executive Sessions, as provided by ORS

192.660(4), but must not disclose any information discussed. No Executive Session may be held for the

purpose of taking any final action or making any final decision. Executive Sessions are closed to the

public.
 



10. ADJOURNMENT

9:30 p.m. - time is estimated
 



AIS-1067       3.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 12/11/2012

Length (in minutes): 5 Minutes  

Agenda Title: Proclaim Human Rights Week

Prepared For: Joanne Bengtson Submitted By: Joanne Bengtson, City

Management

Item Type: Update, Discussion, Direct Staff Meeting Type: Proclamation

Public Hearing: No Publication Date: 

Information

ISSUE 

Should Mayor Dirksen proclaim December 9-15 as Human Rights Week?

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

Mayor Dirksen received a request from the Washington County Human Rights Council to issue a proclamation from

the City of Tigard in honor of Human Rights Week 2012.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

The General Assembly of the United Nations approved the Universal Declaration of Human Rights on December 10,

1948, declaring the "recognition of the inherent dignity and of the equal and inalienable rights of all members of the

human family is the foundation of freedom, justice and peace in the world."

Each year, the international community recommits to the broader achievement of human rights.  Numerous

community, civic, religious and non-profit organizations and individuals work to ensure equal rights and protections for

all residents.

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

Not issue the proclamation.

COUNCIL GOALS, POLICIES, APPROVED MASTER PLANS

DATES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

Mayor Dirksen issued a proclamation for Human Rights in December 2011.

Attachments

Human Rights Week



 

Human Rights Week 
 
WHEREAS, The General Assembly of the United Nations approved the Universal Declaration 
of Human Rights on December 10, 1948, declaring the “recognition of the inherent dignity and 
of the equal and inalienable rights of all members of the human family is the foundation of 
freedom, justice and peace in the world;” and 
 
WHEREAS, A recommitment by the United States to the principles and ideals of the Universal 
Declaration is essential for its promise to ensure equality and justice; and 
 
WHEREAS, The basic human rights addressed in the Universal Declaration include economic, 
social, and cultural rights, as well as civil and political rights, all considered to be equally 
important in fostering human dignity and freedom; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Universal Declaration calls for all people and governments to promote and 
respect recognized rights, while providing standards of achievement for governments 
throughout the world; and 
 
WHEREAS, Each year, the international community commemorates this event and recommits 
itself to the broader achievement of human rights; and 
 
WHEREAS, Numerous community, civic, religious and non-profit organizations, such as the 
Human Rights Council of Washington County and other organizations and individuals work to 
ensure equal rights and protections for all residents; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Tigard and the Human Rights Council of Washington County share this 
commitment to civil and human rights for all. 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT WE, the City Council of the City of Tigard, 
Oregon do hereby proclaim,  

 

December 9-15, 2012 to be HUMAN RIGHTS WEEK, and 
December 10, 2012 as HUMAN RIGHTS DAY 

 
and encourage the citizens of Tigard to join me in celebrating the inalienable rights of all 
citizens to freedom, justice and peace in the world. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the City of 
Tigard to be affixed. 
 
 
          
   
 Craig E. Dirksen, Mayor 
 City of Tigard 
Attest: 
 
 
  
City Recorder 



AIS-1112       4. A.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 12/11/2012

Length (in minutes): Consent Item  

Agenda Title: Approve City Council Meeting Minutes

Submitted By: Cathy Wheatley, Administrative Services

Item Type: Motion Requested Meeting Type: Consent Agenda

Public Hearing: Publication Date: 

Information

ISSUE 

Approve City Council meeting minutes. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

Approve minutes as submitted.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

Minutes for the September 25, 2012 council meeting and the October 2, 2012 council/CCDA meetings are attached. 

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

N/A

COUNCIL GOALS, POLICIES, APPROVED MASTER PLANS

N/A

DATES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

N/A

Attachments

Council Minutes for September 25, 2012

Council-CCDA Minutes for October 2, 2012



 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL/CCDA MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 25, 2012 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 | 503-639-4171 | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 1 of 14 
 

      
       
 

City of Tigard  
Tigard City Council Meeting Minutes 
September 25, 2012 

      
      
• STUDY SESSION 
 
Council President Buehner called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. 
 

   Name    Present   Absent 
  Mayor Dirksen       
   Council President Buehner  
  Councilor Henderson  
  Councilor Wilson  
  Councilor Woodard  

 
Staff present:  City Manager Wine, Assistant City Manager Newton, Public Works Director 
Koellermeier, City Engineer Stone and City Recorder Wheatley. 
 
Track 1 
A.        Discuss Legislative Agenda for the Upcoming 2013 Session  
 
 Assistant City Manager Newton facilitated the discussion on the city’s legislative priorities 

for the upcoming legislative session.  Background information was provided in the agenda 
item summary submitted in the council meeting packet.  Ms. Newton distributed a copy of 
the 2011 City of Tigard State Legislative Agenda and she reviewed issues that might be 
carried over to the 2013 session. 

 
 Council President Buehner said she has concerns about state revenue sharing as this funding 

source might be affected due to financial crises in a couple of Oregon counties.  The 
Department of Revenue will then be required to fund certain services provided by counties 
in default.  This situation could threaten the state revenue sharing funding to other 
government agencies.  

 
 Assistant City Manager Newton reviewed the agenda item summary list of legislative topics 

for council’s consideration.  These items were separated into two lists, one is from the 
League of Oregon Cities Legislative Action Agenda and the second is an itemized list of 
topics of ongoing interest to the City of Tigard.   

 

Agenda Item No. _____________ 
Meeting of __________________ 



 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL/CCDA MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 25, 2012 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 | 503-639-4171 | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 2 of 14 
 

 Councilor Wilson said the only issue he was concerned about was the “reset at sale” 
proposal on assessed value for property – this would represent a significant tax increase.  He 
would prefer the citizens have an opportunity to vote on this.  Assistant City Manager 
Newton noted the “reset at sale” is not a proposal being recommended in the city’s 
legislative topic list.  Councilor Wilson said he would be interested in learning what the 
disparities are in the City of Tigard.  Council President Buehner advised this was brought up 
in committee as an option and for the Legislature to start having a discussion about it. 

 
 Consensus of the City Council was that the proposed list is acceptable to bring forward for 

final Council review and consideration on October 23, 2012. 
  
B.        Briefing on the Status of the Tigard Street Trail Project  
 
 City Engineer Stone presented the staff report.  There does not appear to be any opposition 

by Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) Rail Division to the City of Tigard 
securing the 50-foot wide railroad right of way that runs parallel to Tigard Street from Main 
Street to Tiedeman Avenue.  He noted the process for acquiring the right of way.  
Abandonment of the right of way by Portland and Western Railroad (PWRR) would be the 
easiest method and it was believed to be progressing this way in December 2010; however, 
the easement abandonment was never finalized for an unknown reason.  ODOT Rail 
Division personnel suggested the City of Tigard restart the abandonment process and 
PWRR is also willing to start the process again.   

 
 In response to a question from Councilor Henderson, City Engineer Stone said the City of 

Tigard could buy or lease the properties.  If the city leases the property, the ODOT rail 
could take it back at any time.  The abandonment process is required to begin the process 
whereby the city could eventually purchase the right of way. 

 
 Track 2 
 City Engineer Stone said the final determination as to whether the property is surplus is 

made by the Rail Administrator who reports to Matt Garrett of ODOT.  There is some 
concern about gaining the Rail Administrator’s approval because there will still be an active 
train.  There was discussion about requirements associated with abandonment; i.e., Tigard 
maintaining liability insurance.   

 
 City Engineer Stone advised abandonment, for eventual City of Tigard purchase of the right 

of way, appears to be a viable course.  Abandonment and purchase will take at least nine 
months to a year to complete. 

 
Track 3 
C.        Briefing on an Intergovernmental Cooperative Agreement Regarding an Emergency Water 

Supply (Intertie)  
 
 Public Works Director Koellermeier facilitated the discussion on this agenda item.  The 

proposal is to update the Intergovernmental Agreement between the South Fork Water 
Board, the City of Lake Oswego, the City of West Linn and the City of Tigard regarding an 



 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL/CCDA MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 25, 2012 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 | 503-639-4171 | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 3 of 14 
 

emergency water supply.  The original IGA has been in place since the 1970s.  In 2008, 
when the City of Tigard became partners with the City of Lake Oswego, the IGA was in 
need of an update.   As the treatment plant permit process proceeds before the West Linn 
Planning Commission, the proposed amendment to the IGA will help demonstrate the 
benefits for granting approval of the plant expansion permit, which would be the ability to 
provide West Linn with an emergency water source through 2041.   

 
 In response to a question from Councilor Wilson, Public Works Director Koellermeier 

explained an intertie already exists; however, there are plans to change the intertie location 
and there is no ability to provide emergency water to West Linn (plant is at capacity) in the 
summer. 

 
 In response to an observation by Councilor Woodard, Public Works Director Koellermeier 

said that if this intertie was unavailable to West Linn and they had to build alternative 
systems for a back-up, it would cost them $11.4 million.  The proposal would allow West 
Linn to avoid this investment.   

 
 City Manager Wine reported there were some concerns on West Linn’s part about how 

much the underlying IGA would change.  It was their desire that some of the historical 
language be maintained even though the agreement was being updated.  Public Works 
Director Koellermeier said West Linn was hesitant about signing an updated IGA while the 
hearing process was active.  Lake Oswego approved the proposed amendment to the IGA 
last week and City of Tigard is considering it tonight.  At a minimum, Public Works Director 
Koellermeier said “we could report that this is sitting on a West Linn future docket – a date 
of their choice – and we have delivered what we promised to do, which was to modernize.”  
City Manager Wine said this is one of the three things the partnership committed to when 
we took a “pause” on our plant permit application.  The other commitments included 
consolidating the pipeline and water treatment plant application and re-engaging the 
community in a dialogue about concerns raised. 

 
 Public Works Director Koellermeier confirmed for Councilor Wilson that prior to this IGA, 

there was no promise of a certain amount of water supply to West Linn per day for an 
emergency.  Further, Public Works Director Koellermeier advised he could not envision an 
emergency that would have the treatment plant capacity reduced to less than the needs of 
Lake Oswego, Tigard and West Linn.  By our model, this plant will be operational through a 
9.0 earthquake.   

 
 Councilor Woodard expressed that he would have preferred that the benefits and costs to be 

stated more clearly.  After discussion, it was noted that the costs for the plant expansion are 
being paid for by Tigard and Lake Oswego equally.  

 
 In response to an observation by Councilor Henderson, there was discussion about having 

this item on the Consent Agenda this evening.  City Manager Wine said this matter could be 
pulled from the Consent Agenda for separate consideration.  After brief discussion, the item 
will remain on the Consent Agenda.                                         



 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL/CCDA MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 25, 2012 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 | 503-639-4171 | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 4 of 14 
 

The following items were reviewed with the City Council: 
 
D.      Dates to Schedule (staff will be following up with City Council members): 

• Joint Meeting with Lake Oswego (Tigard's turn to host):  November 20 or December 11 
(Both dates are Tuesdays -- can hold time aside for City of Tigard business before or 
after the joint meeting, if needed.) 

• All-day session for Council Goal Setting and Council Groundrules 
Discussion:  December 4 (Tues.), 7 (Fri.), 14 (Fri.) or 17 (Mon.).  City Manager Wine 
asked for the City Council to consider having the Department Heads observe the goal-
setting process. 

 
Council Calendar: 
• October 2  - CCDA/Council Meeting - 6:30 p.m. - Red Rock Creek Conference Room 
• October 9 - Council Business Meeting Canceled 
• October 16 - Council Workshop Meeting - 6:30 p.m. - Town Hall 
• October 23 - Council Business Meeting -- 6:30 p.m. Study Session in Red Rock; 7:30 

Business Meeting in Town Hall 
• November 6 - CCDA Meeting Canceled - Election Day 
• November 13 - Council Business Meeting -- 6:30 p.m. Study Session in Red Rock; 7:30 

Business Meeting in Town Hall 
• November 20 - Council Workshop Meeting - 6:30 p.m. - Town Hall 
• November 27 - Council Business Meeting -- 6:30 p.m. Study Session in Red Rock; 7:30 

Business Meeting in Town Hall 
 

• EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Not held. 
 
Study Session concluded at 7:19 p.m. 
 
1.      BUSINESS MEETING  
 
A.       Council President Buehner called the meeting to order at 7:33 p.m. 
  
B.      Roll Call 
 

   Name    Present   Absent 
  Mayor Dirksen       
   Council President Buehner  
  Councilor Henderson  
  Councilor Wilson  
  Councilor Woodard  

 
C.      Pledge of Allegiance  
  



 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL/CCDA MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 25, 2012 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 | 503-639-4171 | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 5 of 14 
 

D.      Council Communications & Liaison Reports 
 

• Report from Council President Buehner - Water Issues 
 
   Council President Buehner noted she serves on the Tigard/Lake Oswego Partnership 

Oversight Committee.  At the Committee’s September 10 meeting, there was discussion 
on a proposed Intergovernmental Agreement amendment with Lake Oswego and West 
Linn.  The proposed amendment would provide West Linn with emergency water when 
the new plant is built.  The proposal is on tonight’s Consent Agenda. 

 
 The Committee discussed the status of various projects.  As of early September, all of the 

permits needed for the Gladstone portion of the intake and pipe construction were 
approved.  All but two of the easements for the pipeline in Lake Oswego were approved.  
The easement to place the pipe under the Willamette River should be approved within 60 
days.  The water plant conditional use application for the process in West Linn is still 
underway. 

 
 Council President Buehner reported there have been a number of discussions with the 

State of Oregon regarding environmental permits in Mary S. Young Park.  Senator 
Burdick wrote a letter to the Department of Justice giving some background on the 
request for a portion of the pipeline that will traverse through the park.   

 
   At the most recent Intergovernmental Water Board meeting, the Portland water 

fluoridation issue was discussed.  Mayor Dirksen sent a letter to Portland indicating 
Tigard’s concern about the lack of notification for consideration of fluoridation.  A letter 
was sent by the Tigard Water District also. 

 
> Statement from Council President Buehner: 
 
 “I have a brief statement to make that relates to the article that was in last Friday’s 

Oregonian… 
 
 ‘After getting home from the hospital last Saturday morning, I received a distressed 

phone call from my client, Marsha Lancaster, who owns property that is immediately 
adjacent to Area 64.  She referred me to the article that was in Friday’s newspaper.  As I 
had been in the hospital, I hadn’t seen Friday’s paper.  I then read the article.  I went back 
and reviewed the tape of the meeting and found that I had omitted making the disclosure 
into Tuesday’s night’s meeting.”   

 
 Council President Buehner recounted some personal circumstances causing her to be 

distracted at the meeting; although, she acknowledged she should have made the 
disclosure that she represents Marsha Lancaster who owns 42 acres that abuts  
immediately west of Area 64 of River Terrace.   

 



 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL/CCDA MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 25, 2012 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 | 503-639-4171 | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 6 of 14 
 

 Council President Buehner recalled that the discussion last Tuesday was an update of the 
status of the process of the Community Plan the city is getting ready to start.  There was 
no discussion on the merits; no decisions were made.  This issue has been discussed by 
the council in the past five to six years numerous times and she says she has always 
disclosed that Mrs. Lancaster is her client.  Unfortunately, Council President Buehner said 
she did not disclose this on Tuesday night.  When the matter comes to the City Council in 
about 18 months in a public hearing, she will recuse herself and will not participate in the 
discussion nor will she cast a vote because doing so would be inappropriate since she has 
a client in the area.   

 
 Council President Buehner noted her efforts in the past to disclose any conflict of interest 

she might have.  She said she took no part in the Concept Planning process that the 
county operated over a two-year period because she did not want anyone to say that she 
had a potential conflict of interest.  She said she attended the Planning Commission 
meeting at the county when they were asked to approve the plan and she testified in her 
capacity as Mrs. Lancaster’s attorney about her concerns with the process.  Council 
President Buehner said her concerns were echoed by the members of the Planning 
Commission and, in fact, they did not vote to approve the plan and sent it to the County 
Commission with no approval or denial recommendation because the Planning 
Commission felt they had been cut out of the process as well. 

 
 Council President Buehner referred to the recent newspaper article and advised she was 

misquoted.  On Thursday, when she was contacted by a newspaper representative, she 
was driving herself to the hospital and could not remember whether or not she had made 
the disclosure.  The article inferred that she had intent not to disclose and the same 
inference was raised in the article because of her attendance at the County Planning 
Commission meeting.  Had the paper checked the minutes of either the Planning 
Commission meeting or the previous Tigard City Council meetings where the issues have 
come up, they would have found that she disclosed each time. 

 
 Council President Buehner advised she has spent many years in public service trying to 

look for the best for City of Tigard and has never knowingly failed to not to disclose any 
interest that she might have in any matter coming before the council.  Because the item 
last Tuesday was only a staff process presentation, disclosure probably wasn’t necessary, 
but following her own standards, she said she probably should have made a disclosure 
because she always does. 

 
E.      Call to Council and Staff for Non-Agenda Items:  None. 
   
    
2.      CITIZEN COMMUNICATION  
 
 Cleon Cox, III, 13580 SW Ash Avenue, Tigard, OR 97223, advised he was present to register a 

complaint.  Several years ago the city placed a street maintenance fee on the water bill.  He 
questioned and complained about this.  Subsequently, the city placed a tax on gasoline.  Now, 
he sees there is another tax that will be added to the PGE utility.  He said he also understands 



 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL/CCDA MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 25, 2012 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 | 503-639-4171 | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 7 of 14 
 

the City Council is interested in talking with Metro and others to extend MAX out Barbur 
Boulevard and down Pacific Highway.  He said he does not know why we should entertain 
such an idea since we do not have the demographics to utilize light rail for at least 100 years.  
“To top it all off, we’re going to let TriMet run it.”   He referred to California where cities are 
going bankrupt – “nobody watched the hen house, they just kept growing…”  He brings 
“these things up” because it keeps “coming out of my wallet and that’s what bothers me.” 
Now is the time to take care of only what we need to take care of.   

 
 Mr. Cox recalled the Tigard City Council was in favor of the WES commuter rail and he 

registered his opposition.  He said some people seemed to think WES was going to revitalize 
downtown Tigard and he had no idea why anyone thought that.  He then talked about the 
Burnham Street improvements. 

 
 Mr. Cox said that the administrators within the cities or councils for any government bodies – 

the schools, counties, state – they come in and say what needs to be done.  “But none of us 
come in here to ask questions or anything and you are stuck to vote on it.  What I find that 
they do is they always come up with more projects, which keeps them employed and 
sometimes growing the departments – which we haven’t been doing lately.  So, we have to be 
looking closer at what’s going on.  We need more citizen people involved and that come from 
you coming out and checking with people.  Every time I turn around though, it seems there is 
more money being taxed out of my wallet.” 

 
 Council President Buehner commented to Mr. Cox that the city has a large number of citizen 

committees and commissions and he was more than welcome to apply to be on one of those 
committees.  She said we take very seriously the recommendations that our committees make 
and, unless there are financial problems, we generally follow the recommendations of our 
citizen members.  She said that as far as adding staff, there was almost a 5 percent cut in staff 
this year and there are about 10 percent fewer employees at the city than there were three years 
ago.  The city has been very cautious and frugal. 

 
Item No 4 was heard at this time; the agenda was rearranged by Council President Buehner. 
 
   Council President Buehner reviewed the items on the Consent Agenda: 
3.      CONSENT AGENDA: (Tigard City Council/Local Contract Review Board)   
 

A.      Tigard City Council/Local Contract Review Board:  
 

1.         Authorize the Mayor to Execute an Intergovernmental Cooperative 
Agreement Regarding an Emergency Water Supply (Intertie) -- Tigard City 
Council Resolution 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 12-36 -- A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 
MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT REGARDING AN EMERGENCY 
WATER SUPPLY (INTERTIE)  

 



 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL/CCDA MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 25, 2012 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 | 503-639-4171 | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 8 of 14 
 

 Motion by Councilor Wilson, seconded by Councilor Woodard, to approve the Consent 
Agenda. 

 
 The motion was approved by a unanimous vote of City Council present. 

  
Mayor Dirksen   Absent 
Council President Buehner Yes 
Councilor Henderson  Yes 
Councilor Wilson  Yes 
Councilor Woodard  Yes 

 
The agenda was rearranged; this item was heard before the Consent Agenda. 
    
4.        RECOGNITION OF CITY EMPLOYEES JONNY GISH AND ED LENIGER 
 
 Council President Buehner asked City Employees Jonny Gish and Ed Linger to come 

forward.  Council President Buehner gave some background on Mr. Gish and Mr. Leniger 
with regard to their employment in the Public Works Department for the City of Tigard.   

 
On July 16, 2012, city employees Jonny Gish and Ed Leniger came to the aid of a co-worker 
who was having a medical emergency. 
 
Jonny Gish, Ed Leniger and co-worker John Sager were cleaning a sewer line in the backyard 
of a private home when Mr. Sager collapsed of an apparent heart attack and began sliding 
into a manhole. Mr. Leniger held on to Mr. Sager and radioed Mr. Gish, who was working at 
the front of the house. Together, Mr. Gish and Mr. Leniger assessed the situation, called 911 
and, when Mr. Sager stopped breathing, administered CPR until paramedics arrived. 
 
Mr. Sager was transported to the hospital and underwent surgery the following day.  As of 
September 24, Mr. Sager returned to work part-time on light duty.   
 
Lieutenant Boothby from the city’s Police Department conducts CPR and AED training for 
Public Works Department employees every three years. Jonny and Ed had just completed 
CPR/AED training in May. 
 
Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue Battalion Chief Allen Kennedy and Battalion Chief Mark 
Charleston came forward to say a few words about the lifesaving efforts by Mr. Gish and 
Mr. Leniger.  Chief Kennedy noted last year the fire district responded to more than 1000 
cardiac-related emergency calls.  Studies have shown that early intervention – access to 911 
and hands-on CPR – means that a patient’s survival chances are doubled.   Chief Charleston 
said “this is an amazing day to be here and to be part of this.”    He thanked Mr. Gish and 
Mr. Leniger for the opportunity to recognize them for their actions.  He presented Mr. Gish 
and Mr. Leniger each with a “Challenge Coin” given by the fire district to recognize their 
efforts in the “chain of survival” for “to save a life is to save all of mankind.” 
 



 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL/CCDA MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 25, 2012 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 | 503-639-4171 | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 9 of 14 
 

Public Works Director Koellermeier spoke words of appreciation and presented a plaque to 
Mr. Gish and Mr. Leniger.  Mr. Koellermeier said, “I can’t thank you guys enough…” 
 
Council President Buehner commended the actions by these two employees and 
recommended that everyone take the time to learn CPR. 
 
Mr. Leniger thanked the senior staff for implementing improvements to the communication 
equipment for the public works employees who work in the field, which gives them the 
ability to contact emergency services and/or supervisory personnel quickly.  Mr. Gish added 
that because of this state-of-the art equipment, they were able to respond to this emergency 
because they could communicate with each other to begin CPR and get the help required to 
save Mr. Sager’s life. 

 
    
5.        PRESENT THE COUNCIL WITH THE NATIONAL AMERICAN PUBLIC WORKS 

ASSOCIATION'S PROJECT OF THE YEAR AWARD FOR THE BURNHAM STREET 
RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT 
 

 Engineering Manager McMillan presented the staff report and gave a short history of the 
Burnham Street project and the awards the project has received: 

 
• The American Council of Engineering Companies Engineer’s Excellence Honors Award 
• The Asphalt Pavement Association Excellence in Paving, First Place for Urban Streets 

Award 
• APWA Oregon Chapter Project of the Year for Transportation Projects between $5 and 

$25 Million 
 

She presented the City Council with the Plaque representing the National American Public 
Works Association’s Project of the Year Award for the Burnham Street Reconstruction 
Project.  The Burnham Street project cost $9.2 million and Ms. McMillan said it is “truly a 
green street.”  She thanked the City Council for its support of the project throughout its 
construction. 

   
   Council President Buehner said that Engineering Manager McMillan was an integral part 

of that project and referred to all of the work and outreach Ms. McMillan implemented for 
the project, which helped to move the project along. 

 
   Councilor Wilson said this gives the city the opportunity to celebrate this project.  He 

echoed Council President Buehner’s words of appreciation to Ms. McMillan.  He recalled 
work done several years ago to make this a special project for the downtown.  The street is 
not finished yet – it lacks context.  The big sidewalks were built, not only for what is there 
now, but for what will come in the future.   

 



 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL/CCDA MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 25, 2012 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 | 503-639-4171 | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 10 of 14 
 

   Councilor Henderson called attention to the fact that the project design and 
construction team, which included OTAK Engineers, Kodiak Pacific Construction and WH 
Pacific were acknowledged and won this award. 

  
     
6.         PUBLIC HEARING - SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2013 

ADOPTED -- RESOLUTION 
 

   Council President Buehner introduced this agenda item and opened the public hearing. 
 
   Finance and Information Services Department Director LaFrance presented the staff 

report. 
 

A first quarter supplemental budget amendment to the FY 2013 Adopted Budget 
is requested. The purpose of the supplemental budget is to account for revenues and 
expenses that were unknown at the time of budget adoption. The following issues are 
addressed in the amendment: 
 
A. Carryforwards in Public Works, and the Capital Improvement Program (CIP)  
B. Grant Revenues and Expenses  
C. CIP Budget Adjustments  
D. Budget Adjustments in Public Works Sanitary Sewer, Stormwater, and 

Fleet/Property Management Operations.  
 
The total proposed supplemental budget amendment will increase the FY 2013 Adopted 
Budget by about $2.6 million.  This will move the total appropriations from about $115.2 
million to $117.8 million.  The majority of the adjustments are in the capital improvement 
areas, not in operations.   For the most part, the adjustments come with additional resources 
to pay for the items.   
 
Finance and Information Services Department Director LaFrance summarized the proposed 
adjustments.  All 14 of the affected items are in the Agenda Item Summary and listed on 
Exhibit A of the proposed resolution. 
 
Finance and Information Services Department Director LaFrance referred to Attachment 1 
to the Agenda Item Summary, which clarifies the impacts of the proposed adjustments to all 
funds within the city. 
 
Council members expressed appreciation for the information and clarity provided in 
Attachment 1 after Finance and Information Services Department Director LaFrance’s 
verbal report.  Discussion followed on several details regarding the transfers among funds. 
 
No one signed in to testify on this matter. 
 
Council President Buehner closed the public hearing. 



 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL/CCDA MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 25, 2012 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 | 503-639-4171 | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 11 of 14 
 

Motion by Councilor Woodard, seconded by Councilor Wilson, to approve Resolution No. 
12-37. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 12-37 -- A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT A SUPPLEMENTAL 
BUDGET AMENDMENT TO FY 2013 TO ACHIEVE THE FOLLOWING: 
CARRYFORWARDS OF BUDGET ITEMS, GRANT REVENUES AND EXPENSES, 
BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS IN PUBLIC WORKS, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, 
COMMUNITY SERVICES, POLICY AND ADMINISTRATION, AND THE CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM  
 
The motion was approved by a unanimous vote of City Council present. 

 
Mayor Dirksen   Absent 
Council President Buehner Yes 
Councilor Henderson  Yes 
Councilor Wilson  Yes 
Councilor Woodard  Yes 

      
   City Council meeting recessed 
   City Center Development Agency meeting convened. 
 
7.         PUBLIC HEARING - SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET AMENDMENT TO FY 2013 CITY 

CENTER DEVELOPMENT AGENCY ADOPTED BUDGET - RESOLUTION 
 

   Name    Present   Absent 
  Chair Dirksen     
   Director Buehner  
  Director Henderson  
  Director Wilson  
  Director Woodard  

 
    Director Buehner opened the public hearing. 

 
 A first quarter supplemental amendment to the FY 2013 Adopted Budget for the City 

Center Development Agency (CCDA) is requested. The purpose of the supplemental budget 
is to account for revenues and expenses that were unknown at the time of budget adoption. 

 
 City Center Development Agency Chief Financial Officer LaFrance presented the staff 

report.  One item is before the board, which is a carryforward of $42,000.  This will allow 
the CCDA to have an additional $40,000 to be used for the Façade Improvement Program 
and $2,000 to be used for the completion of the Downtown Marketing Implementation 
Plan. 

 
 There was brief discussion on the proposal. 
 



 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL/CCDA MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 25, 2012 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 | 503-639-4171 | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 12 of 14 
 

 There was no public testimony. 
 

 Director Buehner closed the public hearing. 
 
 Motion by Director Wilson, seconded by Director Henderson, to approve CCDA 

Resolution No. 12-03. 
 
CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT AGENCY RESOLUTION NO. 12-03 -- A 
RESOLUTION TO ADOPT A SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET AMENDMENT TO FY 
2013 CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT AGENCY BUDGET  
 

Chair Dirksen   Absent 
Director Buehner  Yes 
Director Henderson  Yes 
Director Wilson  Yes 
Director Woodard  Yes 

      
City Center Development Agency Meeting Adjourned 
City Council Meeting Reconvened 
 
    
8.      CONSIDER EXTENDING INCENTIVES FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION 
 
 City Manager Wine advised Agenda Item No. 8 will be rescheduled. 
 
    
9.      COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS 
 
 Councilor Wilson reported on the SW Corridor High Capacity Transit Steering Committee 

meeting, which he attended for Mayor Dirksen: 
• The committee approved a problem statement and an opportunities and constraints paper. 
• Councilor Wilson said he took the opportunity to explain the City of Tigard’s proposed 

charter amendment to be considered by the voters in November.  He said this was the 
council’s attempt to respond to the initiative petition attempted by Mr. Art Crino, which 
failed for lack of just a few signatures.  The council felt it agreed with a major portion of 
the initiative petition to give the community an opportunity to weigh in on any large 
expenditure for any future light rail project.  The council also did not feel that it was a 
good idea to prevent the city from representing the citizens of Tigard “at the table.” 

• Councilor Wilson said he explained to the committee that the city administered a scientific 
public opinion poll; the poll showed 60 percent support for light rail in Tigard, 25 percent 
opposed and 15 percent undecided. 

• After the committee meeting, there was an opportunity for citizen comment.  There was a 
person there who took issue with Tigard’s scientific poll and indicated that everyone he 
has talked to is opposed to light rail.   



 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL/CCDA MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 25, 2012 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 | 503-639-4171 | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 13 of 14 
 

• Councilor Wilson reported the committee’s work is now at a point where it is not only 
about rail – it is much broader and includes transit-related projects as well as every project 
in the corridor that all communities collectively have on their capital improvement list and 
transportation system plans.   Information is being collected on all of these projects and 
they are being categorized into short term (one to five years), medium term (five to fifteen 
years), and long term (anything beyond fifteen years).  The committee is at a point to begin 
determining the criteria for screening projects for short and medium terms. 

 
Council President Buehner requested information from staff about when and if there is a 
need for Tigard to update its transportation plan. 

•   Councilor Woodard reported he attended the Vision Action Network Conference on 
September 21, 2012.  He advised of this agency’s work for Washington County Aging and 
Veterans’ Services Goals and Strategies to bring people together to communicate in ways 
that make use of the non-profit entities.  They work toward coordination of volunteers 
who can help communicate the services needed by the aging communities.  He referred to 
some county statistics: 

o In 2020 the number of people over the age of 85 is expected to increase 1.5 
percent (an increase of 10,000 people in this age bracket). 

o Between 2005 and 2010, the number of people of the ages between 45 and 64, will  
increase by 14,000. 

  He talked about the economic contributions made by senior citizens.  Seniors also provide 
173,620 hours of volunteer work each year, which equates to about $3 million. 

 
  Councilor Woodard suggested information about this growing section of the population 

could be useful as the City of Tigard looks to formulate land use designations, economic 
development, city recreation and transportation.  Organizations such as the Vision Action 
Network and AARP could be helpful in assembling the tools needed to make the best use 
of resources offered by the senior citizen community/demographic. 

 
•   Council President Buehner reported she went on the tour given by the Clackamas 

River Water Consortium last Saturday.  She said they visited all of the major treatment 
plants in Clackamas County.  She had an opportunity to talk to elected members from 
each of the various water boards as well as some city representatives.  Council President 
Buehner said she came back with a suggestion to Tigard that, as a new member of the  
board, Tigard should send a councilor representative to attend the consortium board 
meetings.  She proposed this be considered when the City Council reviews its board and 
committee liaison assignments.  
 

10.      NON AGENDA ITEMS  
 
 City Manager Wine updated the council on staff’s conversations with the Park Street 

Neighbors regarding the Fairhaven Homes establishment.    Assistant City Manager 
Newton facilitated a meeting between the operators of Fairhaven Homes and neighbors.  The 



 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL/CCDA MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 25, 2012 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 | 503-639-4171 | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 14 of 14 
 

neighbors submitted their questions and concerns in advance of the meeting.  The owners of 
the establishment responded to the questions during the meeting.  Last Sunday, the Fairhaven 
owners held an open house and invited the neighbors to attend to meet residents and the 
resident mentor.  The questions and answers discussed during the meeting were assembled 
and forwarded to the broader neighborhood for their information.  Assistant City Manager 
Newton said seven neighbors attended the meeting.  She reported that distributing the 
questions/answers reviewed during the meeting helped many of the neighbors understand the 
operations at Fairhaven.  However, she reported some people are still concerned. 

 
 Councilor Henderson responded to the report that there are only two residents currently at 

this establishment and whether additional residents would cause concerns.  Assistant City 
Manager Newton said she understands that there are now three residents and the home could 
accommodate up to eight.  The owners are careful in screening who is allowed to stay at the 
home.  City Manager Wine noted similar questions came up during the meeting.  It is 
envisioned that each of the residents will have a long-term stay; i.e., up to a year.  This is a 
“clean and sober home” and it is intended that the residents are not using alcohol or drugs.  
The owners have given the neighborhood residents names and telephone numbers to call 
with any concerns. 

 
11.      EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Not held. 
 
    
12.      ADJOURNMENT – 8:48 p.m. 
 
 Motion by Councilor Woodard, seconded by Councilor Wilson, to adjourn the meeting. 
 
 The motion was approved by a unanimous vote of City Council present. 

  
Mayor Dirksen   Absent 
Council President Buehner Yes 
Councilor Henderson  Yes 
Councilor Wilson  Yes 
Councilor Woodard  Yes 

 
 
        
 Catherine Wheatley, City Recorder 
Attest: 
 
 
    
Mayor, City of Tigard 
 
Date:    

 
 



   
     
    City of Tigard  
    Council/CCDA Meeting Minutes   

 

TIGARD CCDA/CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – OCTOBER 2, 2012 
 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    |    www.tigard-or.gov   Page 1 of 7 
 
 

 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL/CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT AGENCY  
MEETING DATE/TIME: October 2, 2012 – 6:30 p.m.   
MEETING LOCATION:        Red Rock Creek Conference Room, 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR    
 
 
1.   COUNCIL MEETING 
 

A. At 6:32 p.m. Mayor Dirksen called the meeting of the Tigard City Council to order. 
 

B. Deputy City Recorder Krager called the roll: 
       Present    Absent   

Council President Buehner     
Mayor Dirksen        
Councilor Henderson      
Councilor Wilson        
Councilor Woodard      

 
Staff Present:  City Manager Wine, Assistant City Manager Newton, Redevelopment Project 

 Manager Farrelly,  Deputy City Recorder Krager and for Agenda Item No. 2 only: 
 Administrative Services Manager Robinson and City Recorder Wheatley 

 
CCAC Commissioners Present: Alex Craghead and Elise Shearer 
 
C. Call to Council and Staff for Non-Agenda Items 

  
2. NON AGENDA ITEMS – Assistant City Manager Newton announced that Deputy 

Recorder Krager received her CMC (Certified Municipal Clerk) designation.  Deputy 
Recorder Krager thanked her supervisors, Administrative Services Manager Robinson and 
City Recorder Wheatley and the city for their support. 

 
3. CONSIDERATION OF EXTENDING INCENTIVES FOR VOLUNTARY 

ANNEXATION 
 
 City Manager Wine summarized council discussion held last month on phasing taxes for the 

River Terrace Annexation property owners. She said council considered extending those 
same incentives to the areas known as Area 63 and Roy Rogers West.  There was consensus 
for extending the incentives to all three areas and payment of city taxes would begin after the 
River Terrace Community Plan is completed.  An ordinance and a resolution are on the 
agenda tonight for council consideration. 



   

    
 

TIGARD CCDA/CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – OCTOBER 2, 2012 
 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    |    www.tigard-or.gov   Page 2 of 7 
 
 
 

 In response to a question from Councilor Henderson regarding taxes, City Manager Wine 
said it is structured so that through the fiscal year 2014, no properties in these areas would 
have city tax levied.  The phase-in would start in next fiscal year.  She said by approving 
these two actions council is directing the county assessor to send tax statements to these 
properties at a differential rate, subject to those dates. Council President Buehner noted that 
Oregon statutes require any changes affecting the next tax year to be completed and enacted 
by March 31.  City Manager Wine said that Council is reviewing this now because 
Washington County is poised to send out property tax statements.  Absent this action by 
Council, Area 64 and Area 63 (when annexed into the city) would be treated differently.   

 
 City Manager Wine said foregone revenue will be due to taxes not being levied but it is likely 

to be a shorter time period than staff’s estimation of fiscal year 2016.  Councilor Wilson 
asked about street lighting district taxes. Council President Buehner said these areas are 
undeveloped and there is only a small portion near Scholls Ferry Road that is in the lighting 
district. City Manager Wine said she will verify this and report to council. 

 
 Council President Buehner moved for approval of Resolution 12-38 and Councilor Wilson 

seconded the motion.  Deputy Recorder Krager read the number and title of the resolution. 
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 12-38 – A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 07-13 

AND ESTABLISHING ADDITIONAL INCENTIVES FOR CERTAIN VOLUNTARY 
ANNEXATION OF UNINCORPORATED LANDS INTO THE MUNICIPAL CITY 
LIMITS 

  
 There being no further discussion, a vote was taken. The motion passed unanimously. 
 

       Yes  No   
Council President Buehner     
Mayor Dirksen        
Councilor Henderson      
Councilor Wilson        
Councilor Woodard      

 
 Council President Buehner moved for approval of Ordinance No. 12-07 and read the 

number and title. Councilor Wilson seconded the motion.  In response to a question from 
Councilor Henderson, Deputy City Recorder Krager noted that Resolution No. 12-38, which 
was just approved, will be listed by number in several places in this ordinance.  A roll-call 
vote was conducted and Ordinance No. 12-07 was adopted unanimously. 

 
 ORDINANCE NO. 12-07 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE  
 NO. 11-07 RETROACTIVELY ESTABLISHING A NEW RATE OF TAXATION   

FOR CERTAIN ANNEXATION TERRITORY AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY 

 



   

    
 

TIGARD CCDA/CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – OCTOBER 2, 2012 
 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    |    www.tigard-or.gov   Page 3 of 7 
 
 
 

        Yes  No   
Council President Buehner     
Mayor Dirksen        
Councilor Henderson      
Councilor Wilson        
Councilor Woodard      
 

 
  At 6:50 p.m. Mayor Dirksen adjourned the City Council and called the City Center 

Development Agency to order.  Deputy Recorder Krager called the roll. 
 

       Present  Absent   
Director Buehner      
Chair Dirksen        
Director Henderson      
Director Wilson        
Director Woodard      

 
 
4. RECEIVE UPDATE ON DOWNTOWN EVENTS AND MARKETING 
 
 Consultant Bridget Bayer from BAM (Business Association Management) presented a report 

on downtown events.  Redevelopment Project Manager Farrelly said Ms. Bayer was hired to 
advise and provide technical assistance to downtown businesses, particularly with events. 

 
 Consultant Bayer showed slides of various 2012 events.   
 
 Tigard Night Out is held each month on the third Friday.  She said increased sales started 

slowly but are building.  Most activities are held on Main Street but some businesses along 
Commercial Street participate and remain open later too, including Razz ma Tazz, the Eagles 
Club and the Ballroom Dance business.  Businesses that hosted an activity received the most 
customers.  

  
 Ms. Bayer said more networking and training are needed, especially to give owners 

promotion skills.  She said there is a lack of merchandising and marketing that could be 
addressed with regular, monthly trainings.  Chair Dirksen asked if most downtown 
businesses were members of the Chamber of Commerce.  Chamber Executive Officer 
Mollahan said they are seeing an increase in the number of downtown businesses joining but 
that a good percentage are not. Chair Dirksen said if this kind of training program was 
offered in partnership with the Chamber it would be an incentive to join and make it easier 
for them to coordinate events.  

 



   

    
 

TIGARD CCDA/CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – OCTOBER 2, 2012 
 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    |    www.tigard-or.gov   Page 4 of 7 
 
 
 

 Tigard Street Fair – Consultant Bayer said the street fair was “over the top,” and there were 
great sponsors and in-kind support.  Many business owners had an activity that attracted 
people.  She said there were a few thousand people and lots of movement from one end of  

 Main Street to the other, as well as down Burnham Street to the Skate Park. She said, “We 
didn’t spend a lot of money and we didn’t make a lot of money, so it was kind of a wash.” 
She said there were quite a lot of advertising impressions through all the promotions and she 
tracks these on the internet and through discussions with advertising representatives.  

 
 Consultant Bayer said the marketing committee is really an events committee that meets 

monthly and she recommends this schedule continue. She suggested sixteen activities during 
the year for downtown businesses: eight Third Friday events, four networking trainings and 
four seasonal trainings. Director Buehner said she heard a request not to hold a Third Friday 
event around the date of the Tigard Street Fair. 

 
 Upcoming Events in 2012 – Ms. Bayer said two events in the planning stages are the 

downtown Trick or Treat night on October 31 and the Tree Lighting in December. 
 
 Ms. Bayer said the suggestion for the Chamber to handle event management is an excellent 

idea and she has approached them about this.  Chamber Chief Executive Officer Mollahan 
agreed to take this on and said it is advantageous to have involvement from an organization 
with local presence on Main Street.  Ms. Bayer said she will coach and advise as needed.   

  
 Other recommendations: 
 

 Develop more shared outdoor gathering spaces such as the outdoor seating area 
 around the fountain in front of Tigard Liquor. A list of areas is in her PowerPoint. 
 Promote and incentivize anchor businesses. 
 Be aware that experts use the mall mentality of 10-10-10 and say it works (that is, 
 having 10 restaurant options, 10 destination retail shops, and 10 places for late 
 shopping - open after 6:00 p.m.)  Tigard is short on restaurants and locations open 
 after 6:00 p.m. 
 Use interpreters with business owners that do not speak English.   
 CCDA and staff need to get to know who and what is in downtown Tigard so they 
 can recommend these businesses to friends and neighbors. 

  
 Executive Director Wine asked what the training would consist of and Ms. Bayer responded 

that merchandising techniques would be taught, including on-line promotions and Google 
ads.  She said statistics demonstrate increased curb appeal has a huge effect on sales.  She 
said she knows of many professionals through the Main Street Network that would be 
available to provide training. 

  
 Ms. Bayer said she compiled some statistics and handed these out to council.  A copy of this 

has been added to the packet for this meeting.  Ms. Bayer recommended networking  



   

    
 

TIGARD CCDA/CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – OCTOBER 2, 2012 
 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    |    www.tigard-or.gov   Page 5 of 7 
 
 
 

 meetings but said the downtown business owners did not want them so they held very few. 
She said networking meetings are important because business owners get to know and rely 
upon each other, stimulating business for the district.  Director Wilson asked if it was her 
opinion that the networking did not go as well as expected because owners felt they did not 
have enough in common.  Ms. Bayer said they tried meeting at different times during the 
day, but it could be that everyone is busy and just beginning to know each other. She 
commented that their priority was events so that became her focus.    

 
 Chair Dirksen said it would be difficult to evaluate progress from just one year of downtown 

events; it takes time.  Director Wilson said the vendors won’t come unless there are people 
but the people won’t come unless there are vendors. Ms. Bayer said the business owners 
loved the Street Fair, and she said it is what Tigard’s Third Thursday’s should look like. 
Director Woodard said he believes the events will work but Tigard is just not there yet.  

 Director Buehner suggested it would take three years to gauge the success of events.  
 
 Ms. Bayer said business owners told her that the Trick or Treat event is very popular 

ongoing event and they expect many attendees.  Chamber of Commerce CEO Mollahan 
agreed, and said phone calls about the event will start coming in to them in a week. Ms. 
Bayer suggested adding vendor areas to keep people around longer during this event would 
boost sales. Director Buehner suggested closing part of Main Street because of traffic issues 
during trick or treating.  Chamber of Commerce Executive Mollahan said Main Street 
business owners would not be in favor.  Consultant Bayer said the Tigard Police said they 
will handle traffic this year as in the past. 

 
 Director Woodard suggested banners would be helpful to advertise events and Ms. Bayer 

agreed, saying they need to be long and high enough to cross over the street.  
Redevelopment Project Manager Farrelly said as part of the Main Street Green Street project 
there will be street poles installed that can be used for banners.  Director Woodard suggested 
the use of LED lighting as an attraction. 

  
 Director Henderson commented that Ms. Bayer did a great job.  He noted that she said the 

words, “If we change” a lot and asked if she thought downtown Tigard had not changed.  
She said that was not what she meant and believes things are definitely getting better in the 
downtown. She said she is looking forward to the Main Street Green Street project.   

 
 Redevelopment Project Manager Farrelly said staff is working with Ms. Bayer and the 

Chamber of Commerce to put together potential scopes of works and contracts.  When 
more information is ready it will be discussed at CCDA to make sure members are on board.    

 
  
 
 
 
 



   

    
 

TIGARD CCDA/CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – OCTOBER 2, 2012 
 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    |    www.tigard-or.gov   Page 6 of 7 
 
 
 

5. RECEIVE UPDATE ON URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS 
 
 Redevelopment Project Manager Farrelly updated the CCDA on several projects. 
 

 Burnham Street Parking Lot – This project will be going out to bid soon and 
construction should begin in a month. He noted that there was an appeal on the land 
use decision from the neighboring property owner Scott Hookland. The city attorney 
is advising staff. 
 

 Tennant Improvement Program – The request for proposals was issued.  All owners 
and agents of vacant properties, brokers specializing in restaurants, and specific 
restaurants have received a copy. Director Buehner suggested Mr. Farrelly talk to 
employees at the Oregon State Bar offices to see what type of restaurants they would 
like as lunch options. There are many employees working there. 
 

 New Business – There is a new business of about 40 employees moving into the new 
Harris-McMonagle building on Scoffins Street.  The business manages supermarket 
and grocery store marketing.  Mr. Farrelly gave them a copy of the Tennant 
Improvement RFP as they are familiar with food-related companies and this is a 
targeted business for downtown. 
 

 Mr. Farrelly said that Pacific Paint has plans to move into the front section of the 
vacant A-Boy building, which would leave a storefront available on Main Street.  
Director Wilson expressed dismay that this high visibility space in the A-Boy 
building would become unavailable for a coffee shop or restaurant.  Chair Dirksen 
suggested the possibility of the city leasing the front part of the building to keep it 
available for a targeted business. Director Buehner said that if that did not happen, 
and the back part of the property became a restaurant space, it could have large 
windows and doors opening onto Fanno Creek Park.  CCDA Executive Director 
Wine said leasing space is new territory for the CCDA; further discussions need to 
be held.  

 
 Director Buehner requested time to give a detailed report at a future meeting on an easement 

seminar she attended that was largely focused on private/public partnerships.  She will copy 
CCDA members with some of the information.   Executive Director Wine said this could 
potentially be scheduled for the October 16 workshop. 

   
  
6. EXECUTIVE SESSION   
 At 7:35 Chair Dirksen announced that the Tigard CCDA would be entering into an 

Executive Session to conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing body 
to negotiate real property transactions.  CCAC Members Craghead and Shearer were present 
at the invitation of the CCDA.  The Executive Session ended at 8:08 p.m. 

  



   

    
 

TIGARD CCDA/CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – OCTOBER 2, 2012 
 City of Tigard    |    13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223    |    www.tigard-or.gov   Page 7 of 7 
 
 
 

 
7. NON AGENDA ITEMS  
 Chair Dirksen reminded everyone of the tour of the Fields property at 5:30 p.m. on 

Thursday, October 4, 2012. 
 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT  
 At 8:09 p.m. Director Wilson moved for adjournment.   Director Buehner seconded and the 

motion passed unanimously. 
 
 

       Yes  No 
Director Wilson      
Director Buehner      
Chair Dirksen       
Director Henderson        
Director Woodard      

 
     
             
       _______________________________   
       Carol A. Krager, Deputy City Recorder 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Mayor, City of Tigard 
 
Date:____________________________ 



AIS-1110       4. B.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 12/11/2012

Length (in minutes): Consent Item  

Agenda Title: Receive and File: Election Results, Council Calendar and Council Tentative Agenda

Submitted By: Cathy Wheatley, Administrative Services

Item Type: Receive and File Meeting Type: 

Consent - Receive

and File

Public Hearing: No Publication Date: 

Information

ISSUE 

Receive and file the official election results for the November 6, 2012, City of Tigard election for a Mayor and two City

Councilors and for a Charter Amendment "Vote Required to Use Certain Funds for Light Rail Construction."

 

Receive and file the Council Calendar and the Tentative Agenda for future Council meetings.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

No action requested; this is a receive and file summary for information purposes.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

When the City Recorder canvasses the votes as required by the Washington County Elections Division, a copy is

filed with the City Council to officially  "receive and file" the information.

As detailed in the Abstract of Votes, the following are the results of the election for the City of Tigard: 

Mayor:  John Cook  (January 1, 2013 - December 31, 2014)

City Councilors (top two):  Marland Howard Henderson and Jason Snider (January 1, 2013 - December 31,

2016)

Ballot Measure 34-203  Vote Required to Use Certain Funds for Light Rail Construction - Approved (82%

yes; 18% no)

Attached are election results by precinct and a City of Tigard Precinct Map.  Voter turnout for Washington

County was 82%; voter turnout for the City of Tigard was 83%.

 Also attached are the Council Calendar and the Tentative agenda for future Council meetings. 

 

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

N/A

COUNCIL GOALS, POLICIES, APPROVED MASTER PLANS

Long-Term Council Goals:  Continue pursuing opportunities to reduce traffic congestion.

 

DATES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

N/A - Receive and File Items

Attachments



November 6, 2012, City of Tigard General Election Results Report and Precinct Map

Three-Month Council Calendar

Tentative Agenda



































 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

 
TO: Honorable Mayor & City Council/City Center Development Agency Board   
 
FROM: Cathy Wheatley, City Recorder 
 
RE: Three-Month Council/CCDA Meeting Calendar 
 
DATE:  December 3, 2012 
 
December 
4 Tuesday Council Meeting and City Center Development Agency Meeting – Town Hall – 
  6:30 p.m. 
11*  Tuesday  Council Business Meeting –6:30 p.m., Town Hall  
18* Tuesday Council Meeting – Mayor’s Farewell Reception, Remarks and Blue Ribbon Task 

Force Report – 6:30 p.m., Town Hall 
25*  Tuesday  Christmas – City Hall offices closed 
 
 
January 
1 Tuesday  New Year’s Day – City Hall offices closed  
8* Tuesday Council Meeting -  Reception, Oath of Office Ceremony, State of the City, Elect 

Council President – 6:30 p.m., Town Hall 
10 Thursday Council Groundrules Review; Goal Setting Meeting – Fanno Creek House, 9 a.m. – 

5 p.m. 
15* Tuesday Council Workshop Meeting—6:30 p.m., Town Hall 
21 Monday Martin Luther King, Jr. Day – City Hall offices closed 
22 Tuesday Council Business Meeting –6:30 p.m., Town Hall 
 
 
February 
5 Tuesday  City Center Development Agency – 6:30 p.m.,  Red Rock Creek Conference Room 
12* Tuesday Special Meeting- Joint Meeting with City of Beaverton City Council – 6:30 p.m., 

Town Hall 
18 Monday President’s Day – City Hall offices closed. 
19* Tuesday  Council Workshop Meeting – 6:30 p.m., Town Hall 
26*  Tuesday  Council Business Meeting – 6:30 p.m., Town Hall 
 
 
Regularly scheduled Council meetings are marked with an asterisk (*). 
 
I:\adm\city council\council calendar\3-month calendar for c mtg 121211.doc 
 

Agenda Item  No.   
For Agenda of  December 11, 2012 
  
   



Key:   
Meeting Banner  Business Meeting          
Study Session   Special Meeting  
Consent Agenda   Meeting is Full  
Workshop Meeting  

City Council Tentative Agenda 
12/3/2012 10:40 AM - Updated 

 

i:\adm\carol\tentatv ag\2012\december 3 2012.docx 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Form 
# 

Meeting 
Date 

Submitted 
By 

Meeting 
Type 

---------------------Title---------------------------- Department 

Inbox or  
Finalized 

827 12/11/2012 Carol Krager AAA Meeting Date: 12/11/2012 | Absences to Note: Councilor 
Woodard 

   

  
1001 12/11/2012 Liz Lutz ACONSENT Consent Item - Appoint Budget Committee Members Financial and 

Information 
Services 

Newton L, 
Assistant City 
Manager 

 

1080 12/11/2012 Doreen 
Laughlin 

ACONSENT Consent Item - Appoint Three Voting Members to the 
Planning Commission 

Community 
Development 

11/20/2012  

1081 12/11/2012 Sean 
Farrelly 

ACONSENT Consent Item - Appoint members to City Center Advisory 
Commission 

Community 
Development 

Newton L, 
Assistant City 
Manager 

 

1096 12/11/2012 Liz Lutz ACONSENT Consent Item - Appoint Audit Committee Member Financial and 
Information 
Services 

Newton L, 
Assistant City 
Manager 

 

1100 12/11/2012 Judith Gray ACONSENT Consent Item - Appoint Members to the Tigard 
Transportation Advisory Committee - Resolution 

Community 
Development 

Newton L, 
Assistant City 
Manager 

 

1105 12/11/2012 Loreen Mills ACONSENT Consent Item - Consider Approving the Purchase of the 
Rankin Property and Authorizing the City Manager to 
Complete the Property Purchase 

City Management Mills L, Asst to 
City Manager 

 

1106 12/11/2012 Sandy 
Zodrow 

ACONSENT Consent Item - Amendment to City Manager Employment 
Agreement 

City Management Newton L, 
Assistant City 
Manager 

 

http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=12&beg_meetyr=2012&end_meetmth=03&end_meetyr=2013&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=12&beg_meetyr=2012&end_meetmth=03&end_meetyr=2013&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=12&beg_meetyr=2012&end_meetmth=03&end_meetyr=2013&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=12&beg_meetyr=2012&end_meetmth=03&end_meetyr=2013&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=12&beg_meetyr=2012&end_meetmth=03&end_meetyr=2013&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=12&beg_meetyr=2012&end_meetmth=03&end_meetyr=2013&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=12&beg_meetyr=2012&end_meetmth=03&end_meetyr=2013&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_filecab.cfm?formid=AG_MEMO&appl=AGENDA&fp=CABINETA&mt=&rpt_mt=Y&orig=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&dept=ALL&rpt_dept=Y&div=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_inbox=Y&cg=ALL&agarea=ALL&agsuba=ALL&beg_meetmth=12&beg_meetyr=2012&end_meetmth=03&end_meetyr=2013&fr_seq=&to_seq=&sstr=&rpt_title=Y&doctype=ALL&attexpirefr=&attexpireto=&numLines=ALL&formaction=Go
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=827&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1001&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1080&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1081&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1096&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1100&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1105&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1106&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1


Key:   
Meeting Banner  Business Meeting          
Study Session   Special Meeting  
Consent Agenda   Meeting is Full  
Workshop Meeting  

City Council Tentative Agenda 
12/3/2012 10:40 AM - Updated 

 

i:\adm\carol\tentatv ag\2012\december 3 2012.docx 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
1067 12/11/2012 Joanne 

Bengtson 
CCBSNS 1  5 Minutes - Proclaim Human Rights Week City Management 10/29/2012  

1063 12/11/2012 Darren Wyss CCBSNS 2  40 Minutes - Public Hearing - River Terrace 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

Community 
Development 

Newton L, 
Assistant City 
Manager 

 

1022 12/11/2012 Sean 
Farrelly 

CCBSNS 3  60 Minutes - Legislative public hearing for Downtown 
Connectivity Plan Code Amendments 

Community 
Development 

Newton L, 
Assistant City 
Manager 

 

 Total Time: 105 of 110 minutes have been scheduled  
  

828 12/18/2012 Carol Krager AAA December 18, 2012 – Mayor Dirksen Farewell Mtg    
  

1031 12/18/2012 Liz Newton CCWKSHOP 60 Minutes - Farewell reception for Mayor Dirksen City Management   
1032 12/18/2012 Liz Newton CCWKSHOP 45 Minutes - Mayor's Blue Ribbon Task Force Report 

followed by 20 minutes – Farewell Speech – Mayor Dirksen 
City Management   

 Total Time: 125  of 180 minutes have been scheduled 
  

1037 01/08/2013 Cathy 
Wheatley 

AAA January 8, 2013 – Inaugural Remarks; Oaths; Photos, 
Elect Council President 

   

  
1066 01/10/2013 Cathy 

Wheatley 
CCSPEC City Council Groundrules Discussion and 2013 Goal Setting 

Meeting - 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. - Fanno Creek House 
Administrative 
Services 

  

    

http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1067&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1063&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1022&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=828&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1031&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1032&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1037&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1066&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1


Key:   
Meeting Banner  Business Meeting          
Study Session   Special Meeting  
Consent Agenda   Meeting is Full  
Workshop Meeting  

City Council Tentative Agenda 
12/3/2012 10:40 AM - Updated 

 

i:\adm\carol\tentatv ag\2012\december 3 2012.docx 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1038 01/15/2013 Cathy 
Wheatley 

AAA January 15, 2013 - Council Workshop Meeting    

  
1053 01/15/2013  CCWKSHOP 1  15 Minutes - Annual Police Department Temporary Holding 

Facility Tour and Inspection 
Police 11/08/2012  

1097 01/15/2013 Liz Lutz CCWKSHOP 2  60 Minutes - Joint Meeting-Budget Committee and City 
Council 

Financial and 
Information 
Services 

  

1086 01/15/2013 Greer 
Gaston 

CCWKSHOP 3  10 Minutes - Briefing on a Local Agency Agreement to 
Partially Fund Main Street Improvements between the Railroad 
Corridor and Scoffins Street 

Public Works McMillan K, 
Engineering 
Manager 

 

1088 01/15/2013 Greer 
Gaston 

CCWKSHOP 4 10 Minutes - Briefing on a Local Agency Agreement 
Amendment with ODOT to Partially Fund Main Street 
Improvements from Pacific Highway to the Railroad Corridor 

Public Works McMillan K, 
Engineering 
Manager 

 

1094 01/15/2013 Greer 
Gaston 

CCWKSHOP 5  15 Minutes - Briefing on the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 
Prioritization Process 

Public Works Gaston G, Conf 
Executive Asst 

 

1102 01/15/2013 Greer 
Gaston 

CCWKSHOP 6  10 Minutes - A Briefing on a Cooperative Improvement 
Agreement Regarding the Pacific Highway/Gaarde 
Street/McDonald Street Intersection Improvements 

Public Works Gaston G, Conf 
Executive Asst 

 

1104 01/15/2013 Loreen 
Mills 

CCWKSHOP 7  60 Minutes - Executive Session  11/28/2012  

 Total Time: 180 of 180 minutes have been scheduled 
    

http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1038&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1053&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1097&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1086&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1088&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1094&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1102&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1104&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1


Key:   
Meeting Banner  Business Meeting          
Study Session   Special Meeting  
Consent Agenda   Meeting is Full  
Workshop Meeting  

City Council Tentative Agenda 
12/3/2012 10:40 AM - Updated 

 

i:\adm\carol\tentatv ag\2012\december 3 2012.docx 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1039 01/22/2013 Cathy 
Wheatley 

AAA January 22, 2013 Council Business Meeting    

  
1084 01/22/2013 Greer 

Gaston 
ACCSTUDY 10 Minutes - Executive Session on Real Property Transactions  11/28/2012  

1101 01/22/2013 John 
Goodrich 

ACCSTUDY 10 Minutes - Providing New Type of Service to Residential Customers - 
Backflow Assembly Testing 

Public 
Works 

Gaston G, Conf 
Executive Asst 

 

1107 01/22/2013 Sandy 
Zodrow 

ACCSTUDY 25 Minutes - Executive Session - Labor Relations  Wheatley C, City 
Recorder  

 

 Total Time: 45 of 45 minutes have been scheduled    
  

1087 01/22/2013 Greer 
Gaston 

ACONSENT Consent Item - Approve a Local Agency Agreement with ODOT to 
Partially Fund Main Street Improvements between the Railroad Corridor 
and Scoffins Street 

Public 
Works 

Gaston G, Conf 
Executive Asst 

 

1089 01/22/2013 Greer 
Gaston 

ACONSENT Consent Item - Approve a Local Agency Agreement Amendment with 
ODOT to Partially Fund Main Street Improvements from Pacific Highway 
to Scoffins Street 

Public 
Works 

Gaston G, Conf 
Executive Asst 

 

1091 01/22/2013 Kristie 
Peerman 

ACONSENT Consent Item - Approve a Cooperative Improvement Agreement 
Regarding the Pacific Highway/Gaarde Street/McDonald Street 
Intersection Improvements 

Public 
Works 

Gaston G, Conf 
Executive Asst 

 

    

http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1039&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1084&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1101&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1107&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1087&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1089&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1091&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1


Key:   
Meeting Banner  Business Meeting          
Study Session   Special Meeting  
Consent Agenda   Meeting is Full  
Workshop Meeting  

City Council Tentative Agenda 
12/3/2012 10:40 AM - Updated 

 

i:\adm\carol\tentatv ag\2012\december 3 2012.docx 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

705 01/22/2013 Cheryl 
Caines 

CCBSNS 20 Minutes - Annexation Hearing for River Terrace 
Phase II (UGB Area 63 & Roy Rogers West) 

Community 
Development 

Caines C, Assoc 
Planner 

 

1090 01/22/2013 Greer 
Gaston 

CCBSNS 10 Minutes - Consider a Resolution Approving the 
Purchase of the Bagan Property and Authorizing the 
City Manager to Complete the Property Purchase 

Public Works Gaston G, Conf 
Executive Asst 

 

1093 01/22/2013 Cathy 
Wheatley 

ACCSTUDY 20 Minutes - Clean Water Services District Plan 
Update 

Community 
Development 

Floyd J, Associate 
Planner 

 

1103 01/22/2013 Carissa 
Collins 

CCBSNS 15 Minutes - Public Hearing - Supplemental Budget 
Amendment to FY 2013 Adopted Budget 

Financial and 
Information Services 

Collins C, Sr Mgmt 
Analyst (Fin Adm) 

 

 Total Time: 45 of 110 minutes have been scheduled 
  

1040 02/05/2013 Cathy 
Wheatley 

AAA February 5, 2013 City Center Development Agency 
Meeting 

   

  
1076 02/05/2013 Sean 

Farrelly 
CCDA 60 Minutes - Report on Developer Interviews Community 

Development 
Farrelly S, Redev 
Project Manager 

 

 Total Time: 60 of 110 minutes have been scheduled  
  

1041 02/12/2013 Cathy 
Wheatley 

AAA February 12, 2013 Joint Meeting with Beaverton 
City Council 

   

    

http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=705&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1090&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1093&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1103&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1040&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1076&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1041&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1


Key:   
Meeting Banner  Business Meeting          
Study Session   Special Meeting  
Consent Agenda   Meeting is Full  
Workshop Meeting  

City Council Tentative Agenda 
12/3/2012 10:40 AM - Updated 

 

i:\adm\carol\tentatv ag\2012\december 3 2012.docx 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1042 02/19/2013 C Wheatley AAA February 19, 2013 Council Workshop Meeting    
  

1083 02/19/2013 Kent Wyatt CCWKSHOP 45 Minutes - Social Gaming Discussion City Management Mills L, Asst to City Manager  
1085 02/19/2013 Greer Gaston CCWKSHOP 15 Minutes - Review Draft Sustainability Plan Public Works Wright, M., PW Business 

Manager 
 

1098 02/19/2013 Nadine 
Robinson 

CCWKSHOP 20 Minutes - Tigard Municipal Court Annual 
Report 

Administrative 
Services 

Robinson N, Admin. Svcs. 
Manager 

 

 Total Time: 80 of 180 minutes have been scheduled 
  

1043 02/26/2013 Cathy 
Wheatley 

AAA February 26, 2013 City Council Business 
Meeting 

   

  
1108 02/26/2013 Sandy Zodrow ACCSTUDY 30 Minutes – Executive Session – Labor Neg  Wheatley C, City Recorder   

 Total Time: 30 of 45 minutes have been scheduled 
  

1044 03/05/2013 Cathy 
Wheatley 

AAA March 5, 2013 City Center Development 
Agency Meeting 

   

  
1045 03/12/2013 Cathy 

Wheatley 
AAA March 12, 2013 City Council Business Meeting    

  
1046 03/19/2013 C Wheatley AAA March 19, 2013 Council Workshop Meeting    

  
1047 03/26/2013 Cathy 

Wheatley 
AAA March 26, 2013 City Council Business Meeting    

 

http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1042&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1083&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1085&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1098&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1043&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1108&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1044&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1045&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1046&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1
http://agendas.tigard-or.gov/frs/agenda/agenda_memo.cfm?seq=1047&rev_num=0&sstr=&agsuba=ALL&appl=AGENDA&doctype=ALL&orig=ALL&dept=ALL&attexpireto=&SORTBY=meetings.meeting_dt,agt.meeting_type&attexpirefr=&REQLOC=ALL&numLines=ALL&inbox=ALL&rpt_mt=Y&beg_meetmth=12&mt=&fr_seq=&FINALFROM=&end_meetmth=03&formid=AG_MEMO&rpt_title=Y&beg_meetyr=2012&rpt_inbox=Y&agarea=ALL&div=ALL&rpt_orig=Y&cg=ALL&to_seq=&rpt_dept=Y&end_meetyr=2013&HARTKEYWORDS=&fp=CABINETA&StartRow=1


AIS-1001       4. C.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 12/11/2012

Length (in minutes): Consent Item  

Agenda Title: Appoint Budget Committee Members

Prepared For: Toby LaFrance

Submitted By: Liz Lutz, Financial and Information

Services

Item Type: Resolution Meeting Type: Consent Agenda

Public Hearing: No Publication Date: 

Information

ISSUE 

There are three vacancies on the budget committee, beginning January 1, 2013 and one vacancy for an alternate

member of the budget committee.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

Approve the recommended appointments to the Budget Committee.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

Dan Goodrich and Melody Graeber's Budget Committee term expires on December 31, 2012.  Christopher Henn's

Budget Committee term expires on December 31, 2013, but he has moved out of the City of Tigard. As a result, the

Appointments Advisory Committee recently conducted interviews with several citizens who applied to become

members of the Budget Committee.

The Appointments Advisory Committee interviewed 7 citizen candidates.  Incumbents Melody Graeber applied for

another term whereas Dan Goodrich did not reapply. The committee is recommending that the City Council appoint

Melody Graeber and Cathy Hearn each to a three-year term beginning January 1, 2013.  Additionally, the committee

recommends the appointment of Don Fisher to carry out the remaining term of Christopher Henn, ending on

December 31, 2013.  Lastly, the committee recommends that the City Council appoint Melanie Boekee as an alternate

for a one-year term beginning January 1, 2013.

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

None

COUNCIL GOALS, POLICIES, APPROVED MASTER PLANS

City will maximize the effectiveness of the volunteer spirit to accomplish the greatest good for our community.

DATES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

NA

Attachments

Resolution

Committee bios



RESOLUTION NO. 12-       
Page 1 

CITY OF TIGARD, OREGON 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION NO. 12-    
 
A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MELODY GRAEBER, DON FISHER AND CATHY HEARN TO 
THE BUDGET COMMITTEE AND APPOINTING MELANIE BOEKEE AS AN ALTERNATE 
MEMBER. 
  
 
WHEREAS, three positions are open on the city’s budget committee due to Dan Goodrich and Melody 
Graeber completing their established terms and Christopher Henn moving out of the City of Tigard; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor’s Appointments Advisory Committee conducted interviews of several individuals on 
November 19, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Appointments Advisory Committee has recommended that Melody Graeber, Cathy Hearn 
and Don Fisher be appointed to the city’s Budget Committee. In addition, the committee has recommended 
that Melanie Boekee be appointed as an alternate member. 
 . 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tigard City Council that:   
 
SECTION 1:    Melody Graeber and Cathy Hearn are appointed to a three-year term on the City of Tigard’s 

Budget Committee beginning January 1, 2013. 
 
SECTION 2 : Don Fisher is appointed to finish out Christopher Henn’s three-year term on the City of 

Tigard’s Budget Committee beginning January 1, 2013 and ending on December 31, 2013. 
 
SECTION 3:  Melanie Boekee is appointed to a one-year term as an alternate member on the City of 

Tigard’s Budget Committee beginning January 1, 2013. 
 
SECTION 4 : This resolution is effective immediately upon passage. 
 
 
 
 
PASSED: This   day of   2012. 
 
 
 
    
  Mayor - City of Tigard 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
City Recorder - City of Tigard 



BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

 

CATHY HEARN:  

Ms. Hearn has a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration-Finance. She has worked in 
Administration for many years, mainly in the high tech industry. She is fairly new to Tigard, but plans to 
make the city her long-term residence.   

 

MELANIE BOEKEE: 

Ms. Boekee has a BS in Business Finance from PSU.  She is the Vice President of Accounting at 
AngelVision Technologies.  She is a newcomer to Tigard, having only lived here for 6 months.  
Additionally, she volunteers at the City of Tigard Library. 

 

DON FISHER: 

Mr. Fisher has a degree in Economics and Political Science from Linfield College.  He is the Technology 
Director for the Democratic Party of Oregon.  He has been a Tigard resident for five years and feels 
Tigard is a unique community.   



AIS-1096       4. D.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 12/11/2012

Length (in minutes): Consent Item  

Agenda Title: Appoint Audit Committee Member

Prepared For: Liz Lutz Submitted By: Liz Lutz, Financial and

Information Services

Item Type: Resolution Meeting Type: 

Consent Agenda - Approve

Minutes

Public Hearing: No Publication Date: 

Information

ISSUE 

City Council passed Resolution 12-26 on June 26, 2012, to establish an Audit Committee, made up of one Councilor or

Mayor, one or two current or prior members of the Budget Committee, and, if only one member is from the Budget

Committee, a citizen at large should serve as well.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

Approve the recommended appointment to the Audit Committee.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

The Appointments Advisory Committee met on November 19, 2012 to recommend new members for the Budget

Committee. They selected one candidate from the budget committee interviews that they deemed a good match for the

newly formed Audit Committee. Peter Hedgecock would serve beginning on January 1, 2013 and serve for three years.

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

None

COUNCIL GOALS, POLICIES, APPROVED MASTER PLANS

City will maximize the effectiveness of the volunteer spirit to accomplish the greatest good for our community.

DATES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

NA

Attachments

Resolution

Audit Committee Bio



RESOLUTION NO. 12-       
Page 1 

CITY OF TIGARD, OREGON 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION NO. 12-    
 
A RESOLUTION APPOINTING PETER HEDGECOCK TO THE AUDIT COMMITTEE, 
BEGINNING ON JANUARY 1, 2013. 
 
  
 
WHEREAS, three positions are open on the city’s audit committee, formed by Resolution 12-26. 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor’s Appointments Advisory Committee conducted interviews of several individuals on 
November 19, 2012 for the Budget Committee; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Appointments Advisory Committee has recommended that Peter Hedgecock be appointed to 
the city’s Audit Committee.  
 . 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tigard City Council that:   
 
SECTION 1:    Peter Hedgecock is appointed to a three-year term on the City of Tigard’s Audit Committee 

beginning January 1, 2013. 
 
SECTION 2 : This resolution is effective immediately upon passage. 
 
 
 
 
PASSED: This   day of   2012. 
 
 
 
    
  Mayor - City of Tigard 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
City Recorder - City of Tigard 



AUDIT COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

 

PETER HEDGECOCK:  

Mr. Hedgecock received his BS in Actuarial Science from Brigham Young University and works as an 
Actuary at Cambia Health Solutions.  He has lived in Tigard for three years. He has been active in his 
professional organization, Portland Actuarial Club, as President, Vice President and Treasurer.  

 



AIS-1080       4. E.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 12/11/2012

Length (in minutes): Consent Item  

Agenda Title: Reappoint Matthew Muldoon and Appoint Timothy L. Gaschke and Brian K

Feeney as Voting Members to the Planning Commission

Prepared For: Doreen Laughlin Submitted By: Doreen Laughlin,

Community

Development

Item Type: Resolution Meeting Type: Consent Agenda

Public Hearing 

Newspaper Legal Ad Required?: No 
 

Public Hearing Publication

Date in Newspaper: 

Information

ISSUE 

Should Council reappoint Matthew Muldoon and appoint Timothy L. Gaschke and Brian K. Feeney as voting

members of the Tigard Planning Commission?

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

Approve a resolution reappointing Matthew Muldoon and appointing Timothy L. Gaschke and Brian K. Feeney as

voting members of the planning commission for terms that expire on December 31, 2016.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

There are currently three voting positions on the Planning Commission that will expire on December 31, 2012. 

Incumbent Matthew Muldoon fills one of the voting positions and was appointed to the Planning Commission in

December, 2008. His first full term expires December 31, 2012. 

 

Matthew Muldoon, Timothy L. Gaschke, and  Brian K. Feeney applied for Planning Commission seats. The Mayor’s

Appointment Advisory Committee interviewed applicants and recommended Matthew Muldoon be reappointed

and Timothy L. Gaschke and Brian K. Feeney be appointed to fill the current voting member vacancies on the Tigard

Planning Commission.

Attachment 1 is a Resolution implementing these recommended appointments.

See Attachment 2 for biographical information on all three recommended appointees.

 

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

None

COUNCIL OR CCDA GOALS, POLICIES, MASTER PLANS

Tigard City Council Long Range Objectives:

Tigard citizens are involved in the community and participate effectively.

DATES OF PREVIOUS CONSIDERATION

N/A



N/A

Attachments

Resolution

PC Biographical Information



RESOLUTION NO. 12-       
Page 1 

CITY OF TIGARD, OREGON 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION NO. 12-    
 
A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING MATTHEW MULDOON  AND APPOINTING TIMOTHY L. 
GASCHKE AND BRIAN K. FEENEY AS VOTING MEMBERS TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
  
 
WHEREAS, there currently exist three vacancies for voting members on the Tigard Planning Commission; and  
 
WHEREAS, Matthew Muldoon was appointed as a Planning Commissioner in December, 2008 to serve his 
first full term that expires December 31, 2012 and is eligible for reappointment to the Planning Commission; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Timothy L. Gaschke and Brian K. Feeney applied for appointments to the Planning Commission; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor's Appointment Advisory Committee recommends that Council reappoint Matthew 
Muldoon and appoint Timothy L. Gaschke and Brian K. Feeney as voting members of the Planning 
Commission for terms that expire December 31, 2016. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tigard City Council that:   
 
SECTION 1:    Matthew Muldoon is reappointed and Timothy L. Gaschke and Brian K. Feeney are 

appointed to the Tigard Planning Commission for terms that expire December 31, 2016. 
 
SECTION 2: This resolution is effective immediately upon passage. 
 
 
 
PASSED: This   day of   2012. 
 
 
 
    
  Mayor - City of Tigard 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
City Recorder - City of Tigard 



Attachment 2 

PLANNING COMMISSION  
RECOMMENDED APPOINTEES 
BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION 

 
On December 11, 2012, Tigard City Council will consider a Resolution to appoint Timothy 
L. Gaschke and Brian K. Feeney, and to reappoint Matthew Muldoon, as voting members of 
the Tigard Planning Commission.   
 
Timothy L. Gaschke has been a Tigard resident for 16 years. He was initially appointed to 
the Planning Commission as an alternate beginning in January 2009.  He was appointed to a 
voting position beginning in January 2010 and served 9 months in good standing before 
leaving the Commission, and the country, to work in Australia for approximately 2 years.  
Tim has a degree (BSE) in Civil Engineering from Arizona State University, and a 
professional background as a principal civil engineer. 
 
Brian K. Feeney has been a resident of Tigard for nine years. He is a licensed Civil 
Engineering Project Manager and has over 14 years of experience with multi-discipline 
consulting and development expertise. Brian has volunteered in the Tigard Community for 
the past six years coaching youth sports for his children – having been involved with Tigard 
Basketball Associated (TBA), Tigard Little League (TLL), and Southside Soccer (SSC). He 
also volunteers at his children’s schools – Mary Woodward and Fowler Middle School. He 
holds a Bachelors of Science Degree in Civil Engineering (BSCE) from Portland State 
University.  
 
Matthew Muldoon has been a Tigard resident for 22 years. He has an MBA in Finance 
from Portland State University and a BA from the University of Chicago. He has been on 
the Tigard Planning Commission for the past 4 years. Matt is a small business owner 
(President of Muldoon Enterprises, Inc.) as well as a Senior Economist for the Public Utility 
Commission of Oregon in Salem. In addition, he works as Executive Director of 
Acceleration Transportation Rate Bureau, Inc. in Tigard. 
 



AIS-1081       4. F.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 12/11/2012

Length (in minutes): Consent Item  

Agenda Title: Appoint Laura Fisher, Tamera Slack and Paul Miller as Voting Members and Carine Arendes

and Hemendra Mathur as Alternates to the CCAC 

Submitted By: Sean Farrelly, Community Development

Item Type: Resolution Meeting Type: Consent Agenda

Public Hearing: No Publication Date: 

Information

ISSUE 

Should Council appoint Laura Fisher, Paul Miller and Tamera Slack to the City Center Advisory Commission as voting

members and appoint Carine Arendes and Hemendra Mathur as alternate members of the City Center Advisory

Commission?

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

Adopt the attached resolution appointing Laura Fisher, Paul Miller and Tamera Slack to the City Center Advisory

Commission as voting members and appointing Carine Arendes and Hemendra Mathur as alternate members of the

City Center Advisory Commission.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

The City Center Advisory Commission (CCAC) is the advisory body to the City Center Development Agency on urban

renewal issues. As of January 1, 2013 there will be three vacancies for voting members and two vacancies for alternate

members.

The Mayor’s Appointment Advisory Committee interviewed candidates and recommended appointing Laura Fisher,

Paul Miller and Tamera Slack to the City Center Advisory Commission as voting members and appointing Carine

Arendes and Hemendra Mathur as alternate members.

The terms of Laura Fisher, Paul Miller and Tamera Slack will expire December 31, 2015. The terms of Carine Arendes

and Hemendra Mathur will expire December 31, 2013.

Attachment 1 is a Resolution implementing these recommended appointments. See Attachment 2 for biographical

information on the recommended appointees. 

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

COUNCIL GOALS, POLICIES, APPROVED MASTER PLANS

Tigard City Council Long Range Objectives: Tigard citizens are involved in the community and participate effectively.

DATES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

N/A

Attachments

Resolution 

CCAC Biographies





RESOLUTION NO. 12 -       
Page 1 

CITY OF TIGARD, OREGON 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION NO. 12-    
 
A RESOLUTION APPOINTING LAURA FISHER, TAMERA SLACK AND PAUL MILLER AS 
VOTING MEMBERS OF THE CITY CENTER ADVISORY COMMISSION AND APPOINTING 
CARINE ARENDES AND HEMENDRA MATHUR AS ALTERNATES TO THE CITY CENTER 
ADVISORY COMMISSION 
  
 
WHEREAS, the City Center Advisory Commission (CCAC) consists of nine members and two alternate 
members appointed by City Council to act as an advisory body to the City Center Development Agency, the 
Urban Renewal Agency for the City of Tigard; and  
 
WHEREAS, as of January 1, 2013 there will be  three voting member vacancies and two alternate member 
vacancies on the City Center Advisory Commission; and 
 
WHEREAS the Mayor’s Appointment Advisory Committee interviewed candidates and recommended 
appointing Laura Fisher, Paul Miller and Tamera Slack to the City Center Advisory Commission as voting 
members and appointing Carine Arendes and Hemendra Mathur as alternate members. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tigard City Council that:   
 
SECTION 1:  Laura Fisher, Paul Miller and Tamera Slack shall be appointed to the City Center Advisory  
                       Commission as voting members to fill terms which expire December 31, 2015. 
 
SECTION 2: Carine Arendes and Hemendra Mathur shall be appointed to the City Center Advisory  
                       Commission as alternate members to fill terms which expire December 31, 2013. 
 
SECTION 3:  This resolution is effective immediately upon passage. 
 
 
 PASSED: This   day of   2012. 
 
 
    
  Mayor - City of Tigard 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
City Recorder - City of Tigard 



Attachment 2 

CITY CENTER ADVISORY COMMISSION  
RECOMMENDED APPOINTEES 
BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION 

 
On December 11, 2012, Tigard City Council will consider a Resolution to appoint Laura 
Fisher, Paul Miller and Tamera Slack as voting members of the City Center Advisory 
Commission(CCAC) and to appoint Carine Arendes and Hemendra Mathur as alternate 
members of the CCAC. 
 
Laura Fisher has been a Tigard resident for five years. She is currently a social studies 
teacher at Inez R. Wood Middle School. She has volunteer experience with the Tualatin 
Library.  
 
Paul Miller has been a Tigard resident for sixteen years. He owns the property that is home 
to the Tigard Main Street Cleaners. He is a board member of the Rotary Club of Tigard, 
where he has been a member for thirty-five years 
 
Tamera Slack has been a Tigard resident for twelve years. She has a background  
professional sales and hospitality. She has volunteer experience with family law issues.  
 
Carine Andres has been a Tigard resident for seven years. She is currently obtaining her 
Masters in Urban and Regional Planning at Portland State University. She has extensive 
community volunteer experience with SOLV, Friends of Trees, Tualatin Valley Gleaner and 
the Friends of Spring Garden Park Committee. 
 
Hemendra Mathur has been a Tigard resident for twenty-one years. He worked as an 
engineer and project leader for over thirty years. His community experience includes being a 
member of the architectural committee for Benchview Home Owners association and a 
volunteer with East Bull Mountain Park. 



AIS-1100       4. G.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 12/11/2012

Length (in minutes): Consent Item  

Agenda Title: Appoint Jennifer Stanfield, Donald Schmidt, Evelyn Murphy Mark Bogert and George Hetu to

the Tigard Transportation Advisory Committee

Submitted By: Judith Gray, Community Development

Item Type: Resolution Meeting Type: Consent Agenda

Public Hearing: No Publication Date: 

Information

ISSUE 

Should Council reappoint Jennifer Stanfield, Donald Schmidt, and Evelyn Murphy; and appoint George Hetu and Mark

Bogert as voting members of the Tigard Transportation Advisory Committee? 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

Approve a resolution reappointing Jennifer Stanfield, Donald Schmidt, and Evelyn Murphy; and appointing George

Hetu and Mark Bogert as voting members of the Tigard Transportation Advisory Committee for terms that expire on

December 31, 2015.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

The Tigard Transportation Advisory Committee (TTAC) is comprised of 11 voting positions, including eight citizen

representatives and three business representatives. 

Three current TTAC members are serving terms expiring December 31, 2012. Three of those members (Jennifer

Stanfield, Donald Schmidt, and Evelyn Murphy) have applied for another term. All are eligible. 

One current member (Basil Christopher) is completing a term expiring December 31, 2012 and did not apply for an

additional term, leaving one vacancy for a citizen representative. 

Mark Bogert has served as a TTAC alternate through 2012; he is also a member of the Pedestrian Bicycle

Subcommittee. Mark has applied to serve as a citizen representative on TTAC and is eligible. 

Two of the three business representative positions were vacant through 2012. George Hetu, general manager of Tigard

Fred Meyer, has applied to serve as a business representaitve on TTAC and is eligible. 

The Mayor’s Appointment Advisory Committee interviewed applicants and recommended that Council reappoint

Jennifer Stanfield, Donald Schmidt, and Evelyn Murphy; and appoint Mark Bogert, and George Hetu to full terms

expiring December 31, 2015.

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

n/a

COUNCIL GOALS, POLICIES, APPROVED MASTER PLANS

City Council Long Range Objectives:

Tigard citizens are involved in the community and participate effectively.



DATES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

n/a

Attachments

Resolution

Bios



 

RESOLUTION NO. 12 -       
Page 1 

CITY OF TIGARD, OREGON 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION NO. 12-         
 
A RESOLUTION APPOINTING JENNIFER STANFIELD, DONALD SCHMIDT, EVELYN 
MURPHY, MARK BOGERT, AND GEORGE HETU AS VOTING MEMBERS OF THE 
TIGARD TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE (TTAC) 
  
 
WHEREAS, Jennifer Stanfield, Donald Schmidt, and Evelyn Murphy served partial terms expiring 
December 31, 2012, creating three vacancies for citizen representatives, for which they are eligible and 
have applied for reappointment; and 
 
WHEREAS, Basil Christopher served a partial term expiring December 31, 2012, creating one vacancy 
for a citizen representative; and  
 
WHEREAS, Mark Bogert served as an alternate in 2012 and has applied for appointment as a citizen 
representative; and  
 
WHEREAS, two positions for business representatives are currently vacant and George Hetu, general 
manager of Tigard Fred Meyer, has applied for appointment as a business representative; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor’s Appointment Advisory Committee recommends that Council appoint 
Jennifer Stanfield, Donald Schmidt, Evelyn Murphy, Mark Bogert, and George Hetu to full terms.  
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tigard City Council that:   
 
SECTION 1: Jennifer Stanfield, Donald Schmidt, Evelyn Murphy, and Mark Bogert are 

appointed as voting citizen representatives of the Tigard Transportation Advisory 
Committee (TTAC) with terms expiring December 31, 2015.  

SECTION 2: George Hetu is appointed as a voting business representative of the Transportation 
Advisory Committee with a term expiring December 31, 2015. 

 
 
PASSED:  This _ _ day of  ____ 2012. 
 
    
  Mayor - City of Tigard 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
City Recorder - City of Tigard 



Tigard Transportation Advisory Committee  
Biographies of Recommended Appointees 

 
 

On December 11, 2012 the Tigard City Council will consider a resolution appointing voting 
members to the Tigard Transportation Advisory Committee (TTAC).  
 
Following are brief biographies for the individuals recommended for appointment:  
 
Jennifer Stanfield is an incumbent on TTAC and has been on the committee since its 
inception in 2009. She has lived in Tigard since 2008 after moving here from Portland’s 
Bethany area.  Jennifer has a Master’s Degree in Industrial Engineering and has been 
employed with Intel in Hillsboro for 11 years.    
 
Donald Schmidt was appointed to the TTAC in January 2011.  He also serves as a member 
of the Planning Commission. Don graduated from the University of Arkansas with a B.A. in 
Architecture.  He has been working in the Portland area for the past 14 years.  He is a 
member of the American Institute of Architects and Cascadia Green Building Council.   
 
Evelyn Murphy has been a Tigard resident for 17 years and previously lived in the Metzger 
area. Her past community volunteer activities include the Community Partners for 
Affordable Housing. Evelyn is a medical professional in the field of ICU and 
Maternal/Child nursing and has worked for her current employer for 24 years. Evelyn is also 
a current member of the TTAC.   
 
Mark Bogert has lived in Tigard for 50 years. Mark has a Bachelor of Science Degree from 
Oregon State University.  He has served as a volunteer for the Tigard Chapter of St Vincent 
de Paul. Mark is a retired UPS driver. Mark has served as an alternate on the TTAC since fall 
2011 and is currently a member of the Pedestrian Bicycle Subcommittee. He has applied to 
become a permanent voting member for the term beginning in 2013. 
 
George Hetu is store director for the Tigard Fred Meyer and has applied to fill one of the 
voting business representative positions on TTAC.  George has a B.A. in Business/HR and 
has been employed with Fred Meyer for 14 years.  He is a member of the non-profit 
community choir, Voice of Hope from Tualatin.   
 
 
 



AIS-1105       4. H.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 12/11/2012

Length (in minutes): Consent Item  

Agenda Title: Consider Approving the Purchase of the Rankin Property and Authorizing the City

Manager to Complete the Property Purchase

Prepared For: Loreen Mills Submitted By: Loreen Mills, City

Management

Item Type: Resolution Meeting Type: Consent Agenda

Public Hearing 

Newspaper Legal Ad Required?: No 
 

Public Hearing Publication

Date in Newspaper: 

Information

ISSUE 

Shall the council consider a resolution: 

Approving the purchase of the Rankin property as outlined in the purchase and sale agreement with a

post-closing occupancy agreement?

Authorize the city manager to take all necessary action to complete the property purchase on behalf of the city?

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

Staff recommends council approve the resolution.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

The city owns and maintains a sanitary sewer line along Summer Creek in the area of SW Gallin Court.  Between 2002

and 2004, the City undertook slope stabilization measures to protect the sewer line.

The city has identified a problem in this same area where the sanitary sewer line may be exposed again unless soil

stabilization and related work is completed.  A city capital improvement construction project is planned to repair the

slopes, protect the sewer line and make other improvements, however, in order to complete the project, it is necessary

for the City to acquire the property at 13001 SW Gallin Court.

The city and the property owner have now reached an agreement on the purchase/sale of the property and the

agreement is subject to City Council approval no later than December 14, 2012.

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

The council could chose to not approve the resolution and could provide staff with direction on some other course of

action to preserve the City's sewer line along Summer Creek.  However, the council has given direction to staff to

proceed with this property purchase over the last few months.

COUNCIL OR CCDA GOALS, POLICIES, MASTER PLANS

Preserving the public infrastructure is a basic core of business which council supports. 

DATES OF PREVIOUS CONSIDERATION

Council discussed this and related pending litigation in executive session on the following dates: 



Council discussed this and related pending litigation in executive session on the following dates: 

November 22, 2011

December 13, 2011

March 27, 2012

July 24, 2012

November 13, 2012

Fiscal Impact

Cost: $515,000

Budgeted (yes or no): Yes*

Where Budgeted (department/program): Sanitary Sewer and Water Quality/Quantity funds

Additional Fiscal Notes:

* The 2012-17 Capital Improvement Plan and adopted FY 2012-13 Budget contain $1.8 million in project costs,

including property purchase.  The purchase must be made before the project can occur.

Attachments

Resolution Rankin Property

Purchase Agreement & Post-Closing Occupancy Agreement



RESOLUTION NO. 12-       
Page 1 

CITY OF TIGARD, OREGON 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION NO. 12-    
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF THE RANKIN PROPERTY, (TAX LOT 2S1 
04DA 03500) AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO TAKE ALL NECESSARY ACTION 
TO COMPLETE THE PROPERTY PURCHASE ON BEHALF OF THE CITY 
  
 
WHEREAS, between 2002 and 2004, the City of Tigard undertook slope stabilization measures to protect a 
sanitary sewer line within the utility easement along Summer Creek in the area of 13001 SW Gallin Court; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city has identified a problem at in this same area where the sanitary sewer line may be exposed 
again unless soil stabilization and related work is completed; and 
 
WHEREAS, a city capital improvement construction project is planned to repair the slopes, protect the sewer 
line and make other improvements; and  
 
WHEREAS, in order to complete the capital improvement construction project, it is necessary for the City to 
acquire the Rankin property 
 
WHEREAS, the city and the property owner have reached an agreement on the purchase/sale of the property; 
this agreement is subject to City Council approval no later than December 14, 2012. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tigard City Council that: 
 
SECTION 1:  The City Council agrees to the terms of the Purchase Agreement, Escrow Instructions and 

Post-Closing Occupancy Agreement (Attachment A), including the purchase price of 
$515,000 for the Rankin property. 

 
SECTION 2:  The City Council authorizes the city manager to take all necessary action to complete the 

Rankin property purchase on behalf of the city.  This includes, but is not limited to, the 
execution of a purchase agreement, post-closing occupancy agreement and closing 
documents. 

 
SECTION 3: This resolution is effective immediately upon passage. 
 
 
PASSED: This   day of   2012. 
 
 
 
    
  Mayor - City of Tigard 
ATTEST: 
 
  
City Recorder - City of Tigard 
 



 

 

Page 1 -  PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS    
  50014-71176 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB/12/3/2012 

PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

AND 

ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS 

RECITALS 

A. Seller owns certain real property in the city of Tigard, county of Washington, 

Oregon, commonly known as 13001 SW Gallin Court, Tigard, OR 97223, further identified as 

Tax Lot 3500 and Assessor’s Map No. 2S104DA03500, which is more fully described on the 

attached and incorporated Exhibit A (the “Property”). 

B. Seller desires to sell the Property, and Purchaser desires to purchase the Property 

pursuant to the terms set forth in this Agreement. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as set forth below. 

ARTICLE 1 

DEFINED TERMS 

1.1 Cash.  The term “Cash” means (i) United States currency, (ii) a check currently 

dated and payable to Escrow Holder, or (iii) U.S. funds credited by wire transfer into Escrow 

Holder’s bank account. 

1.2 Closing.  The process described in Article 9 of this Agreement. 

1.3 Closing Date.  Closing shall occur no later than forty-five (45) days after the 

Effective Date, or on such other date as the parties may agree upon in writing.  

1.4 Contingency Period.  The period that ends thirty (30) days after the Effective 

Date.   

1.5 Deed.  A statutory warranty deed in the form of Exhibit B attached hereto which 

shall be used to convey the Property from Seller to Purchaser. 

1.6 Earnest Money.  The cash payable to Seller pursuant to Section 2.2 of this 

Agreement in the amount of Five Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($5,000.00), plus all interest 

which accrues thereon.  

BETWEEN: Richard C. and Rose A. Rankin 

 

(collectively, “Seller”) 

And: City of Tigard,  

 a Municipal corporation 

  

(“Purchaser”) 

DATED:    ,   , 2012 (“Effective Date”) 

 



 

 

Page 2 -  PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS    
  50014-71176 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB/12/3/2012 

1.7 Environmental Laws.  Any federal, state, or local laws, ordinances, codes, 

statutes, regulations, administrative rules, policies and orders, and other authority existing now or 

in the future that classify, regulate, list, or define Hazardous Materials. 

1.8 Escrow Holder.  First American Title, located at 9200 SE Sunnybrook Blvd, 

Suite 400, Clackamas, Oregon, 97015, Phone: (503) 659-0069. 

1.9 Escrow.  The escrow opened by Escrow Holder pursuant to this Agreement. 

1.10 Hazardous Materials.  Any toxic or hazardous substance, material, waste, 

pollutant, contaminant, or infectious or radioactive material, including but not limited to those 

substances, materials, waste, chemicals, or mixtures that are (or that contain any) substances, 

chemicals, compounds, or mixtures regulated, either now or in the future, under any law, rule, 

regulation, code or ordinance. 

1.11 Post-Closing Occupancy Agreement.  The agreement identified in Exhibit C. 

1.12 Property.  The term “Property” as defined in this Agreement, includes land 

described in Exhibit A, together with all improvements, rights, privileges, servitudes and 

appurtenances thereunto belonging or appertaining, including all right, title, and interest of 

Seller, if any, in and to the streets, alleys, and rights-of-way adjacent to the land, which will be 

transferred to Purchaser at Closing.   

1.13 Property Documents.  Any and all documents relating to or affecting the 

Property, including without limitation, conditional use permits, land use approvals, land use 

applications, permits, licenses, any agreements related to the Property that will survive Closing, 

maps, development agreements, surveys and studies relating to the Property prepared by third 

parties.   

1.14 Purchase Price.  Cash in the amount of Five Hundred Fifteen Thousand and 

No/100 Dollars ($515,000.00). 

ARTICLE 2 

EARNEST MONEY AND PURCHASE PRICE 

2.1 Sale of Property.  Subject to the terms and conditions in this Agreement, Seller 

agrees to sell the Property to Purchaser, and Purchaser agrees to buy the Property from Seller.   

2.2 Earnest Money.  Within five (5) business days after the opening of Escrow as set 

forth in Section 3.1, Purchaser shall deposit the Earnest Money into Escrow.  Escrow Holder 

shall hold the Earnest Money in a non interest-bearing account that is FDIC insured, unless the 

parties approve holding the Earnest Money in an interest bearing account.  The Earnest Money 

shall be refundable to Buyer until the Contingency Period (defined in Section 1.4) expires or the 

conditions precedent to Closing set forth in Section 4 of this Agreement are waived in writing by 

Purchaser; thereafter, the Earnest Money shall not be refundable except in the event of a Seller 

default.  The Earnest Money shall be applicable to the Purchase Price at closing. 



 

 

Page 3 -  PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS    
  50014-71176 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB/12/3/2012 

2.3 Purchase Price.  The Purchase Price shall be paid by Purchaser in Cash to Seller 

at the Closing, subject to any withholdings required pursuant to this Agreement.   The Earnest 

Money shall be applied to the Purchase Price.   

ARTICLE 3 

DELIVERIES TO ESCROW HOLDER 

3.1 Opening of Escrow.   

3.1.1 Within five (5) business days after the Effective Date, Purchaser and 

Seller shall open Escrow by depositing with Escrow Holder the Earnest Money and a fully 

executed photocopy of this Agreement for use as escrow instructions.  Escrow Holder shall 

execute the Consent of Escrow Holder which appears at the end of this Agreement and deliver a 

fully executed consent to Purchaser and Seller.   

3.1.2 Purchaser and Seller hereby authorize Escrow Holder to take necessary 

steps for the Closing of this transaction pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

3.1.3 Purchaser and Seller may jointly or separately prepare additional escrow 

instructions.  Escrow Holder may also provide general instructions.  If there is any inconsistency 

between the provisions of any of these instructions and this Agreement, the provisions of this 

Agreement shall control. 

3.2 Purchaser’s Deliveries.  At or before Closing, Purchaser shall deposit into 

Escrow (i) the Earnest Money as provided in Section 2.2, (ii) the Purchase Price, (iii) an 

executed and acknowledged counterpart acceptance of the Deed, (iv) an executed counterpart of 

the Post-Closing Occupancy Agreement, and (v) all other documents and instruments reasonably 

requested by Escrow Holder for Closing. 

3.3 Seller’s Deliveries.  At or before Closing, Seller shall deliver into Escrow (i) an 

executed and acknowledged counterpart of the Deed, (ii) an executed Certificate of Non-Foreign 

Status, pursuant to Section 1445(b)(2) of the United States Internal Revenue Code, (iii) an 

executed counterpart of the Post-Closing Occupancy Agreement, and (iv) all other documents 

and instruments reasonably requested by Escrow Holder for Closing.  At Closing, Seller shall 

deliver possession of the Property to Purchaser, subject to the Post-Closing Occupancy 

Agreement. 

ARTICLE 4 

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO CLOSING 

4.1 Purchaser’s Right to Analyze Property Documents.  Within ten (10) days after 

the Effective Date, Seller shall deliver all Property Documents in Seller’s possession or control 

to Purchaser.  During the Contingency Period, Purchaser shall have the right to analyze the 

Property Documents and determine, in Purchaser’s sole, absolute and arbitrary discretion, 

whether the Property is suitable for Purchaser’s intended use.     

4.2 Purchaser’s Right to Analyze Property.  During the Contingency Period, 

Purchaser shall have the right to analyze the Property and determine, in Purchaser’s sole, 



 

 

Page 4 -  PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS    
  50014-71176 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB/12/3/2012 

absolute and arbitrary discretion, whether the Property is suitable for Purchaser’s intended use 

(the “Study Period”).  During the Contingency Period, Purchaser, or its agents shall have the 

right to enter onto the Property upon one (1) days’ notice to Purchaser, to conduct any and all 

tests, investigations, and inspections deemed necessary by Purchaser, including without 

limitation a Level I environmental site assessment, a geotechnical assessment or any other 

assessments or inspections related to the drainage improvement project Purchaser is currently 

designing for the Property.  Such investigations and/or studies shall be conducted by Purchaser at 

its sole expense. If the transactions contemplated in this Agreement fail to close for any reason other 

than a breach of this Agreement by Seller,  Purchaser shall promptly restore the Property to substantially 

the condition the Property was in prior to Buyer’s performance of any inspections or work.  Purchaser 

shall defend, indemnify and hold Seller harmless for, from, and against any claim, loss, or 

liability, or any claim of lien or damage which arises in connection with any entry on the 

Property by Purchaser or any activities on the Property by Purchaser, its agents, employees, and 

independent contractors; provided, however, that Purchaser shall have no obligation to 

indemnify, defend, or hold harmless Seller from any condition of the Property discovered by 

Purchaser, or from any loss of marketability of the Property as a consequence of such discovery. 

4.3 Notice of Termination; Failure to Notify.  If Purchaser determines, in 

Purchaser’s sole, absolute, and arbitrary discretion, the Property is not suitable, Purchaser may 

terminate this Agreement and cancel Escrow by delivering written notice of termination to Seller 

prior to the expiration of the Contingency Period, in which case this Agreement shall 

immediately terminate and Escrow Holder shall immediately return the Earnest Money to 

Purchaser.   

4.4 Review of Preliminary Report.  Within ten (10) days after the Effective Date, 

Seller shall provide Purchaser with a preliminary title report issued by the Escrow Holder, 

describing title to the Property, and including legible copies of all recorded documents described 

in the preliminary report and plotted easements (collectively, the “Preliminary Report”).  On or 

before ten (10) days after Purchaser’s receipt of the Preliminary Report, Purchaser shall deliver 

written notice of approval or disapproval of matters disclosed in the Preliminary Report, which 

approval or disapproval shall be in Purchaser’s sole and absolute discretion.  Failure of Purchaser 

to deliver notice of disapproval of any matters disclosed in the Preliminary Report within such 

ten (10) day period shall be deemed rejection of all such matters.  Unless a disapproved item is 

waived pursuant to Section 4.6, the approved matters disclosed in the Preliminary Report along 

with the standard printed exceptions on a form of title insurance policy, shall be the “Permitted 

Exceptions” included as exceptions in the Title Policy, defined in Section 4.7. 

4.5 Right to Cure Disapproval of Preliminary Report.  If Purchaser delivers notice 

of disapproval pursuant to Section 4.4 above, Seller may elect in writing, within five (5) days 

thereafter, to agree to remove or otherwise cure, to Purchaser’s reasonable satisfaction, any 

disapproved item(s) prior to Closing.  Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the 

contrary, Seller shall be obligated to remove any deeds of trust and other monetary liens (other 

than liens for non-delinquent taxes and assessments). 

4.6 Failure to Cure Disapproval of Preliminary Report.  If Seller fails to agree to 

cure a disapproved item, or agrees to cure and thereafter fails to cure a disapproved item prior to 

Closing, Purchaser shall have the right to (i) terminate this Agreement and receive a full refund 



 

 

Page 5 -  PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS    
  50014-71176 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB/12/3/2012 

of the Earnest Money or (ii) waive in writing its prior disapproval of such item and accept title 

subject to such previously disapproved item, by delivering written notice of Purchaser’s election 

to Seller prior to Closing.   

4.7 Title Policy.  Seller shall be unconditionally committed to procure from Escrow 

Holder upon the Closing, an ALTA standard coverage owner’s policy of title insurance for the 

Property, with a liability limit in the amount of the Purchase Price, and insuring fee title vests in 

Purchaser subject only to the Permitted Exceptions (collectively, the “Title Policy”).  At 

Purchaser’s option, Purchaser may elect to have the Title Policy issued with endorsements and/or 

in an ALTA extended coverage form, provided that Purchaser pays any additional costs 

associated with issuance of such policy and pursuant to section 8.4 of this Agreement. 

4.8 Approval of Leases; No Tenancies.   

4.8.1 Leases.  Within ten (10) days of the Effective Date, Seller will provide to 

Purchaser copies of all current leases affecting the Property, and copies of any and all documents 

other than leases which provide for or discuss any matters affecting the occupancy of the 

Property by tenants, including but not limited to options to lease, relocation rights, termination 

rights, and/or expansion or contraction rights (collectively, the “Lease Documents”).  Purchaser 

may terminate this Agreement at any time during the Contingency Period if Purchaser shall 

determine in the exercise of its sole discretion that the documents described in Section 4.1 or the 

Lease Documents are not satisfactory. 

4.8.2 No Tenancies.  At least five (5) days prior to the Closing Date, Seller 

shall have terminated any tenancy provided for in the Lease Documents and rendered the 

Property free of any occupants whatsoever.   

4.9 Council Approval.  This Agreement is contingent upon approval from the City 

Council of the City of Tigard.  If such approval is not received by December 14, 2012, Purchaser 

shall have the right to terminate this Agreement and receive a full refund of the Earnest Money. 

4.10 Statutory Disclosure Statement.  Within ten (10) days after the Effective Date, 

Seller shall deliver to Purchaser a completed statutory property disclosure statement 

(“Statement”).  During the Contingency Period, Purchaser shall analyze the statement and 

determine, in Purchaser’s sole, absolute and arbitrary discretion, whether the Property is suitable 

for Purchaser’s intended use. 

4.11 Settlement Agreement.  The parties acknowledge that the Purchaser is 

purchasing this Property as part of a settlement of Seller’s tort claims related to the Property.  

Purchaser’s obligation to purchase the Property is expressly conditioned on the parties entering 

into a settlement agreement resolving Seller’s tort claims (“Settlement Agreement”).  If the 

parties have not entered into such Settlement Agreement by the expiration of the Contingency 

Period, this Agreement shall automatically terminate and the Earnest Money shall be returned to 

Purchaser. 

4.12 Contingency Failure.  In the event any of the contingencies set forth in Section 4 

are not timely satisfied or waived, this Agreement and the rights and obligations of the Purchaser 



 

 

Page 6 -  PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS    
  50014-71176 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB/12/3/2012 

and the Seller shall automatically terminate, and the Earnest Money shall immediately be 

returned to Purchaser. 

ARTICLE 5 

COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

5.1 Damage or Destruction; Eminent Domain.  If, prior to the Closing, all or a part 

of the Property is damaged or destroyed, or taken or appropriated by any public or quasi-public 

authority under the power of eminent domain or such an eminent domain action is threatened 

pursuant to a resolution of intention to condemn filed by any public entity, Purchaser may either 

(i) terminate this Agreement and receive a refund of the Earnest Money, or (ii) elect to receive an 

assignment from Seller in lieu of the part of the Property that has been so damaged or taken of all 

of Seller’s rights to any award and/or proceeds  attributable to said damaged or taken part of the 

Property, and the parties shall proceed to Closing pursuant to this Agreement. 

5.2 Seller Indemnification; Insurance. 

5.2.1 Seller shall defend (with counsel reasonably acceptable to Purchaser), 

indemnify, and hold harmless Purchaser and its officers, managers, representatives, employees, 

and agents (collectively, the “Indemnified Persons”) from and against any and all claims, 

demands, actions, suits, damages, liabilities, injury to persons or property, costs, penalties, fines 

or expenses (including reasonable attorney, engineering, and other professional or expert fees) 

which, in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, arise from or are in any way connected with 

Seller’s ownership of the Property prior to Closing. However, this indemnity obligation does not 

apply to any claims that arise from, are connected with or are in any way related to flooding, 

landslides or erosion that has and continues to occur and which is the subject of the Settlement 

Agreement.  Seller will hold Purchaser harmless from any claims by consultants Seller hired to 

deal with the flooding/landslide/erosion issue. 

5.2.2 From the Closing Date through the expiration or earlier termination of the 

Post-Closing Occupancy Agreement described in Section 5.3 below, Seller shall maintain a 

policy of commercial general liability insurance, in an amount of not less than One Million Two 

Hundred Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($1,200,000.00) combined single limit, from a company 

reasonably acceptable to Purchaser. Seller shall provide Purchaser with certificates of insurance 

which, among other things, shall show Purchaser and it’s officers, directors, and employees 

named as an additional insured in such policy and shall provide Seller with a copy of the 

insurance company’s endorsement to the liability policy adding such additional insureds or other 

evidence that Purchaser and the Indemnified Persons as additional insureds as provided in this 

Section.  Seller’s liability shall not be limited to the policy limits of the above-required 

insurance.  

5.2.3 The provisions of this Section 5.2 will survive Closing. 

5.3 Post-Closing Occupancy Agreement.  At Closing, Purchaser and Seller shall 

sign the Post-Closing Occupancy Agreement, the form of which is attached hereto as 

Exhibit C and incorporated herein by this reference.  After Closing, the Seller shall be entitled 

to remain on the Property without any obligation to pay rent to Purchaser pursuant to the terms 



 

 

Page 7 -  PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS    
  50014-71176 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB/12/3/2012 

of the Post-Closing Occupancy Agreement.  The provisions of this Section 5.3 shall survive 

Closing. 

ARTICLE 6 

SELLER’S REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS 

6.1 Representations and Warranties of Seller.  Seller represents, warrants, and 

covenants that, as of the Effective Date, the end of the Contingency Period, and the Closing, that 

all of the representations and warranties contained in this Agreement are and shall be true and 

correct, and shall survive Closing for a period of one (1) year.  Each of Seller’s representations 

and warranties is material to and is being relied upon by Purchaser and the continuing truth 

thereof shall constitute a condition precedent to Purchaser’s obligations hereunder.  Seller 

represents and warrants to Purchaser as follows: 

6.1.1 Proof of Authority.  Seller has authority and authorization to enter into 

this Agreement and consummate the transaction contemplated by it, and shall deliver such proof 

of the power and authority of the persons executing and/or delivering any instruments, 

documents, or certificates on behalf of the Seller to act for or bind the Seller, as may be 

reasonably required by the Escrow Holder and/or the Purchaser. 

6.1.2 Title to the Property.  Seller has sole legal and beneficial fee title to the 

Property, and has not granted any person or entity any right or interest in the Property except as 

set forth in this Agreement and in the Preliminary Report.  Seller agrees to transfer to Purchaser, 

via Deed, the Property, subject only to the Permitted Exceptions.  

6.1.3 Property Documents, Lease Documents; No Defaults.  To Seller’s 

knowledge, the Property Documents and Lease Documents delivered by Seller to Purchaser are 

true, correct and complete copies and there are no other documents or instruments that would 

constitute Property Documents or Lease Documents that have not been delivered by Seller or 

otherwise made available to Purchaser.  Seller is not in default under any Property Documents or 

Lease Documents and to Seller’s knowledge, no other party to the Property Documents or Lease 

Documents is in default under such documents.  Seller warrants that the services associated with 

the Property Documents and Lease Documents, have been, or will be, paid for by Seller no later 

than Closing. 

6.1.4 Pending Transactions, Suits or Proceedings.  Except for the tort claims 

referenced in Section 4.11 of this Agreement, there are no transactions, suits, proceedings, 

litigation (including zoning or other land use regulation proceedings), condemnation, or 

investigations pending or to Seller’s knowledge, threatened against or affecting the Property or 

Seller as the owner of the Property in any court at law or in equity, or before or by any 

governmental department, commission, board, agency or instrumentality. 

6.1.5 Defects.  Except as set forth in the Statement, to the best of Seller’s 

knowledge, there are no latent or other defects or conditions on or about the Property that would 

cause injury or damage to persons or property, or that would have a material adverse effect on 

lawful uses of the Property. 



 

 

Page 8 -  PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS    
  50014-71176 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB/12/3/2012 

6.1.6 No Further Encumbrances.  As long as this Agreement remains in force, 

Seller will not lease, transfer, option, mortgage, pledge, or convey its interest in the Property or 

any portion thereof nor any right therein, nor shall Seller enter into any agreement granting to 

any person or entity any option to purchase or rights superior to Purchaser with respect to the 

Property or any part thereof. 

6.1.7 Hazardous Materials.  To Seller’s knowledge, no Hazardous Materials 

have been generated, disposed of, deposited or released (or caused to be generated, disposed of 

or released) on, within, under, about or from the Property.  To Seller’s knowledge, no other party 

or person has used, stored, transported, generated, disposed of or released on, within, under, 

about or from the Property any Hazardous Materials.  Without limiting the foregoing, neither 

Seller nor, to Seller’s knowledge, any other party, has installed, operated or maintained any 

underground storage tanks on or adjacent to the Property, and the Property is not now, and has 

never been, in violation and is not currently under investigation for the violation of any 

Environmental Laws.  To Seller’s knowledge, there is no asbestos or lead paint on the Property.  

Seller hereby assigns to Purchaser as of the Closing, to the extent assignable, all claims, 

counterclaims, defenses or actions, whether at common law or pursuant to any other applicable 

federal or state or other laws, if any, that Seller may have against third parties to the extent 

relating to the existence of Hazardous Materials in, at, on, under or about the Property.   

6.1.8  Access; Possession.  The Property has legal and physical access to a 

publicly-dedicated street or road.  Except as reflected in the Lease Documents, there are no 

leases or tenancies in effect on the Property and possession thereof can and will be delivered to 

Purchaser upon Closing. 

6.1.9 Construction or Other Liens.  Seller warrants that, at the time of 

Closing, no work, labor or materials have been expended, bestowed or placed upon the Property, 

adjacent thereto or within any existing or proposed assessment district which will remain unpaid 

at Closing or upon which a lien may be filed. 

6.1.10 No Option or Right of First Refusal to Acquire Property.  Seller 

represents that no person or entity has any right of first refusal or option to acquire any interest in 

the Property or any part thereof. 

6.1.11 Conduct Pending Closing; Covenants.   

6.1.11.1 Conduct of Property.  Seller hereby agrees that Seller will 

not modify, cancel, extend or otherwise change in any material manner any of the terms, 

covenants or conditions of the Property Documents or Lease Documents, nor enter into any 

additional leases as to the Property without Purchaser’s prior written consent, nor enter into any 

other agreements having a material effect on the Property without the prior written consent of 

Purchaser, which Purchaser shall not unreasonably withhold. 

6.1.11.2 Binding Effect of Documents.  This Agreement and the 

other documents to be executed by Seller hereunder, upon execution and delivery thereof by 

Seller, will have been duly entered into by Seller, and will constitute legal, valid and binding 

obligations of Seller.  To Seller’s actual knowledge, neither this Agreement nor anything 



 

 

Page 9 -  PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS    
  50014-71176 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB/12/3/2012 

provided to be done under this Agreement violates or shall violate any contract, document, 

understanding, agreement or instrument to which Seller is a party or by which it is bound. 

6.1.11.3 No Alterations.  Seller will not make any material 

alterations to the Property prior to the Closing.   

6.1.11.4 Condition of the Property Through Closing.  Seller 

shall, between the Effective Date and the Closing Date: (i) maintain the Property in substantially 

the same condition as it was on the Effective Date, with no tree cutting, timber harvesting or 

altering of the Property in any way, (ii) keep all existing insurance policies affecting the Property 

in full force and effect, (iii) make all regular payments of interest and principal on any existing 

financing, (iv) pay all real property taxes and assessments against the Property prior to 

delinquency, (v) comply with all government regulations, and (vi) keep Purchaser timely advised 

of any repair or improvement required to keep the Property in substantially the same condition as 

it was on the Effective Date.   

ARTICLE 7 

PURCHASER’S REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

7.1 Purchaser’s Representation and Warranties.  Purchaser represents and 

warrants that, as of the Effective Date, the end of the Contingency Period, and Closing, all of the 

representations and warranties of Purchaser contained in this Agreement are and shall be true and 

correct, and shall survive Closing for a period of one (1) year.  Each of Purchaser’s 

representations and warranties is material to and is being relied upon by Seller and the 

continuing truth thereof shall constitute a condition precedent to Seller’s obligations hereunder.  

Purchaser represents and warrants to Seller as follows: 

7.1.1 Authority.  The execution and delivery of this Agreement has been duly 

authorized and approved by all requisite action of Purchaser, and the consummation of the 

transactions contemplated hereby will be duly authorized and approved by all requisite action of 

Purchaser, and no other authorizations or approvals will be necessary in order to enable 

Purchaser to enter into or to comply with the terms of this Agreement. 

7.1.2 Binding Effect of Documents.  This Agreement and the other documents 

to be executed by Purchaser hereunder, upon execution and delivery thereof by Purchaser, and if 

approved by City Council subject to Section 4.9 of this Agreement, will have been duly entered 

into by Purchaser, and will constitute legal, valid and binding obligations of Purchaser.  To 

Purchaser’s actual knowledge, neither this Agreement nor anything provided to be done under 

this Agreement violates or shall violate any contract, document, understanding, agreement or 

instrument to which Purchaser is a party or by which it is bound.   

ARTICLE 8 

PRORATED FEES AND COSTS 

8.1 Tax Prorations.  Escrow Holder will prorate between the parties, based on the 

latest information available to Escrow Holder, all taxes, bonds and assessments (“Taxes”) for the 

Property, except as provided in Section 8.2 below.  If, after the Closing, either party receives a 



 

 

Page 10 -  PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS    
  50014-71176 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB/12/3/2012 

bill for any Taxes, the parties agree that the Taxes shall be prorated between the parties to the 

Closing Date.  The party receiving the bill for the Taxes shall notify the other party in writing of 

the amount of such Taxes and the party receiving that notice shall pay its prorated share of such 

Taxes within thirty (30) days of demand therefore, but not later than ten (10) days prior to 

delinquency.  The parties’ obligations under this Section shall survive Closing. 

8.2 Penalties.  Any penalties that would be due as a result of removal of the Property 

from any tax deferral program shall be charged to Seller as though the Property were removed 

from such program on the day prior to the Closing Date.  Seller’s obligations under this Section 

shall survive Closing. 

8.3 Seller’s Fees and Costs.  If the collective cost of the items set forth in Section 8.4 

(i), (ii), (iii), and (v) exceeds $5,000, Seller shall pay the remainder of the amount owed. 

8.4 Purchaser’s Fees and Costs.  Subject to Section 8.3, Purchaser shall pay (i) the 

Escrow Holder’s escrow fee, (ii) all recording charges; (iii) the costs for the Title Policy, if 

requested by Purchaser, (iv) any extended coverage and endorsements for the Title Policy; and 

(v) any transfer taxes.  Purchaser’s obligation to pay for items (i), (ii), (iii) and (v) shall not 

exceed $5,000. 

8.5 Other Costs.  Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, each party shall 

bear and pay the expense of its own attorneys, accountants and other professionals incurred in 

negotiating this Agreement.  Seller will pay their own moving and relocation expenses. 

ARTICLE 9 

CLOSING 

9.1 Closing.  Escrow Holder shall close Escrow by (i) recording the Deed; 

(ii) confirming execution of all documents necessary for Closing and (iii) delivering funds and 

documents as set forth herein, when and only when all terms and conditions of this Agreement 

have been met and each of the conditions set forth below have been satisfied: 

9.1.1 Funds and Instruments.  All funds and instruments required pursuant to 

this Agreement have been delivered to Escrow Holder. 

9.1.2 Satisfaction of Conditions Precedent.  Each of the conditions precedent 

set forth in the Agreement have been either satisfied or waived. 

9.1.3 Liens and Encumbrances.  All liens and encumbrances required to be 

paid by Seller have been paid and satisfied at Seller’s sole expense, including without limitation 

any trust deed or mortgage affecting the Property.  The Property shall be conveyed free of 

encumbrances, except for the Permitted Exceptions and those expressly accepted or waived by 

Purchaser pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

9.1.4 Assignment of Lease Documents.  Seller shall have executed the 

Assignment of Leases attached and incorporated to this Agreement as Exhibit D, if any 

(“Assignment of Leases”). 



 

 

Page 11 -  PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS    
  50014-71176 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB/12/3/2012 

ARTICLE 10 

RECORDATION AND DISTRIBUTION OF FUNDS AND DOCUMENTS 

10.1 Recorded Documents.  Escrow Holder shall cause the County Recorder of 

Washington County to mail the Deed to Purchaser.   

10.2 Conformed Copies.  Escrow Holder shall at Closing deliver to Seller and 

Purchaser (i) a copy of the Deed, conformed to show recording date, and conformed copies of 

each document recorded to place title in the condition required by this Agreement, (ii) a copy of 

each non-recorded document received hereunder by Escrow Holder, and (iii) copies of all 

documents deposited into Escrow to the parties herein. 

10.3 Payment of Funds at Closing.  Escrow Holder shall deliver at Closing all 

amounts as set forth in the final, approved closing statement. 

10.4 Original Documents.  Escrow Holder shall at Closing deliver to Purchaser the 

Original Assignment of Leases. 

ARTICLE 11 

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

11.1 Purchaser’s Default.  If Purchaser breaches this Agreement, which breach 

Purchaser fails to cure within thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice thereof from Seller, 

Purchaser shall be in default hereunder and Seller is entitled, as Seller’s sole and exclusive 

remedy, to liquidated damages pursuant to this Article.  If Escrow fails to close due to 

Purchaser’s default, Purchaser shall pay all Escrow cancellation charges. 

11.2 Seller’s Remedies.  In the event of Purchaser’s default under this Agreement, the 

Earnest Money shall be forfeited by Purchaser and retained by Seller as liquidated damages.  

Such amount has been agreed by the parties to be reasonable compensation and the exclusive 

remedy for Purchaser’s default, since the precise amount of such compensation would be 

difficult to determine.  Seller shall have no right to any other damages, claims or actions against 

Purchaser.  By initialing this provision in the spaces below, Seller and Purchaser each 

specifically affirm their respective agreement to this liquidated damages provision as Seller’s 

sole and exclusive remedy for Purchaser’s default, and agreement that the sum is a reasonable 

sum. 

_____________________ _____________________ 

Purchaser’s Initials  Seller’s Initials 

11.3 Seller’s Default.  If Seller breaches this Agreement, which breach Seller fails to 

cure within thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice thereof from Purchaser, Seller shall be 

in default of this Agreement.  If Escrow fails to close due to Seller’s default, Seller shall pay all 

Escrow cancellation charges. 

11.4 Purchaser’s Remedies.  In the event of Seller’s default under this Agreement, 

Purchaser shall have the right to either (i) terminate this Agreement, and upon such event the 

Earnest Money shall be immediately refunded to Purchaser, or (ii) seek an action for specific 



 

 

Page 12 -  PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS    
  50014-71176 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB/12/3/2012 

performance in order to enforce Purchaser’s rights hereunder.  No provision of this Agreement 

shall be construed as waiving any of Purchaser’s rights regarding eminent domain. 

ARTICLE 12 

ASSIGNMENT 

12.1 Assignment by Purchaser.  Purchaser may not assign or otherwise transfer any 

of its rights or obligations under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 13 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

13.1 Attorneys Fees.  If any action is instituted between Seller and Purchaser in 

connection with this Agreement, the party prevailing in such action shall be entitled to recover 

from the other party all of its costs of action, including, without limitation, attorneys’ fees and 

costs as fixed by the court therein. 

13.2 Construction of Agreement.  The agreements contained herein shall not be 

construed in favor of or against either party, but shall be construed as if both parties prepared this 

Agreement. 

13.3 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 

parties hereto pertaining to the subject matter hereof and all prior and contemporaneous 

agreements, representations, negotiations and understandings of the parties hereto, oral or 

written, are hereby superseded and merged herein.  The foregoing sentence shall in no way affect 

the validity of any instruments executed by the parties in the form of the exhibits attached to this 

Agreement. 

13.4 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed under the 

laws of the State of Oregon. 

13.5 Joint and Several Liability.  If any party consists of more than one person or 

entity, the liability of each such person or entity signing this Agreement shall be joint and 

several.   

13.6 Modification.  No modification, waiver, amendment, discharge, or change of this 

Agreement shall be valid unless the same is in writing and signed by all signatories hereto. 

13.7 Real Estate Brokerage Commission.  Purchaser and Seller represent and 

warrant that no real estate agent or broker was involved in negotiating the transaction 

contemplated herein.  In the event any claims for real estate commissions, fees or compensation 

arise in connection with this transaction, the party so incurring or causing such claims shall 

indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other party from any loss or damage, including 

attorneys’ fees, that said other party suffers because of said claims.  The obligations of the parties 

in the prior sentence shall survive Closing or the termination of this Agreement. 

13.8 Notice and Payments.  Any notice or document to be given pursuant to this 

Agreement must be delivered either in person, deposited in the United States mail duly certified 



 

 

Page 13 -  PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS    
  50014-71176 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB/12/3/2012 

or registered, return receipt requested with postage prepaid, by electronic mail, or by Federal 

Express or other similar overnight delivery service marked for next business day delivery.  

Notices shall be effective upon receipt if delivered personally, upon confirmation of receipt if 

sent by electronic mail, on the next day if sent by overnight courier, or two (2) days after deposit 

in the mail if mailed.  Any party listed below may designate a different address, which shall be 

substituted for the one specified below, by written notice to the others. 

If to Seller: Richard and Rose Rankin 

 13001 SW Gallin Court,  

 Tigard, OR 97223 

 E-mail:   

 

with a copy to:  David P. Morrison 

Cosgrave Vergeer Kester LLP 

888 SW 5th Ave., Ste. 500 

Portland OR  97204 

 E-mail: morrison@cosgravelaw.com 

 

If to Purchaser: City of Tigard 

Attn: City Manager 

 City Hall 

 13125 SW Hall Blvd 

 Tigard OR 97223 

 E-mail: marty@tigard-or.gov 

 

with a copy to : Jeff Bennett 

Jordan Ramis PC 

Two Centerpointe Drive, 6th Floor 

Lake Oswego, OR  97035 

 Fax:  (503) 598-7373 

13.9 Remedies Cumulative.  Except as specifically set forth herein, all rights and 

remedies of Purchaser and Seller contained in this Agreement shall be construed and held to be 

cumulative. 

13.10 Severability.  In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, section, 

article or other portion of this Agreement shall become illegal, null or void or against public 

policy, for any reason, or shall be held by any court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, null 

or void or against public policy, the remaining portions of this Agreement shall not be affected 

thereby and shall remain in force and effect to the fullest extent permissible by law. 

13.11 Successors and Assigns.  Subject to limitations expressed in this Agreement, 

each and all of the covenants and conditions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and 

shall be binding upon the successors-in-interest, assigns, and representatives of the parties 

hereto.  As used in the foregoing, “successors” shall refer to the parties’ interest in the Property 

and to the successors to all or substantially all of their assets and to their successors by merger or 

consolidation. 



 

 

Page 14 -  PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS    
  50014-71176 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB/12/3/2012 

13.12 Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of each and every provision of this 

Agreement. 

13.13 Legal Representation.  Seller acknowledges that this is a legal document and 

that Seller has been advised to obtain and has obtained the advice of legal counsel in connection 

with its review and execution of this Agreement.  Seller covenants that it will not deny the 

enforceability of this Agreement on the basis that Seller elects not to obtain legal counsel to 

review and approve this Agreement. 

13.14 Waiver.  No waiver by Purchaser or Seller of a breach of any of the terms, 

covenants or conditions of this Agreement by the other party shall be construed or held to be a 

waiver of any succeeding or preceding breach of the same or any other term, covenant or 

condition herein contained.  No waiver of any default by Purchaser or Seller hereunder shall be 

implied from any omission by the other party to take any action on account of such default if 

such default persists or is repeated, and no express waiver shall affect a default other than as 

specified in such waiver.  The consent or approval by Purchaser or Seller to or of any act by the 

other party requiring the consent or approval of the first party shall not be deemed to waive or 

render unnecessary such party’s consent or approval to or of any subsequent similar acts by the 

other party. 

13.15 Negation of Agency and Partnership.  Any agreement by either party to 

cooperate with the other in connection with any provision of this Agreement shall not be 

construed as making either party an agent or partner of the other party. 

13.16 Calculation of Time.  All periods of time referred to herein shall include 

Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays in the State of Oregon, except that if the last day of any 

period falls on any Saturday, Sunday or such holiday, the period shall be extended to include the 

next day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or such holiday. 

13.17 Statutory Disclaimer.  THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN THIS 

INSTRUMENT MAY NOT BE WITHIN A FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT PROTECTING 

STRUCTURES.  THE PROPERTY IS SUBJECT TO LAND USE LAWS AND 

REGULATIONS THAT, IN FARM OR FOREST ZONES, MAY NOT AUTHORIZE 

CONSTRUCTION OR SITING OF A RESIDENCE AND THAT LIMIT LAWSUITS 

AGAINST FARMING OR FOREST PRACTICES, AS DEFINED IN ORS 30.930, IN ALL 

ZONES.  BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRUMENT, THE PERSON 

TRANSFERRING FEE TITLE SHOULD INQUIRE ABOUT THE PERSON’S RIGHTS, IF 

ANY, UNDER ORS 195.300, 195.301 AND 195.305 TO 195.336 AND SECTIONS 5 TO 11, 

CHAPTER 424, OREGON LAWS 2007, SECTIONS 2 TO 9 AND 17, CHAPTER 855, 

OREGON LAWS 2009 AND SECTIONS 2 TO 7, CHAPTER 8, OREGON LAWS 2010.  

BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRUMENT, THE PERSON ACQUIRING 

FEE TITLE TO THE PROPERTY SHOULD CHECK WITH THE APPROPRIATE CITY OR 

COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT TO VERIFY THAT THE UNIT OF LAND BEING 

TRANSFERRED IS A LAWFULLY ESTABLISHED LOT OR PARCEL, AS DEFINED IN 

ORS 92.010 OR 215.010, TO VERIFY THE APPROVED USES OF THE LOT OR PARCEL, 

TO VERIFY THE EXISTENCE OF FIRE PROTECTION FOR STRUCTURES AND TO 

INQUIRE ABOUT THE RIGHTS OF NEIGHBORING PROPERTY OWNERS, IF ANY, 



 

 

Page 15 -  PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS    
  50014-71176 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB/12/3/2012 

UNDER ORS 195.300, 195.301 AND 195.305 TO 195.336 AND SECTIONS 5 TO 11, 

CHAPTER 424, OREGON LAWS 2007, SECTIONS 2 TO 9 AND 17, CHAPTER 855, 

OREGON LAWS 2009 AND SECTIONS 2 TO 7, CHAPTER 8, OREGON LAWS 2010. 

13.18 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which, 

when taken together, shall constitute fully executed originals.   

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective 

Date. 

SELLER 

 

 

 

 

By:   

     Richard C. Rankin 

By:   

     Rose A. Rankin 

PURCHASER 

City of Tigard, an Oregon municipal 

corporation 

 

By:   

Name:   

Its:   

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

By:        

       City Attorney 

 

Exhibit A - Property 

Exhibit B – Deed 

Exhibit C – Post-Closing Occupancy Agreement 

Exhibit D – Assignment of Leases 



 

CONSENT OF ESCROW HOLDER  
 50014-71176 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB/12/3/2012 

CONSENT OF ESCROW HOLDER 

The undersigned Escrow Holder hereby agrees to (i) accept the foregoing Agreement, 

(ii) be the Escrow Holder under said Agreement, and (iii) be bound by said Agreement in the 

performance of its duties as Escrow Holder; provided, however, the undersigned shall have no 

obligations, liability or responsibility under this Consent or otherwise unless and until said 

Agreement, fully signed by the parties, has been delivered to the undersigned. 

DATED:      , 2012.   

By:  

Name:     

Title:     



 

Exhibit A  50014-71176 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB/12/3/2012 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 

 



 

Exhibit B, Page 1 of 4  
50014-71176 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB12/3/2012 

EXHIBIT B 

 

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 

City of Tigard 

Attn: City Manager 

City Hall 

13125 SW Hall Blvd 

Tigard OR 97223 

 

UNTIL A CHANGE IS REQUESTED 

SEND TAX STATEMENTS TO: 

_________________________ 

_________________________ 

_________________________ 

 

 This space is reserved for recorder’s use. 

STATUTORY WARRANTY DEED 

 

Richard and Rose Rankin, collectively, Grantor, whose address is: 13001 SW Gallin Court, 

Tigard, OR 97223, conveys and warrants to CITY OF TIGARD, an Oregon municipal 

corporation, Grantee, whose address is: 13125 SW Hall Blvd, Tigard OR 97223, the following 

described real property free of encumbrances except as specifically set forth herein: 

The true consideration for this conveyance is Five Hundred Fifteen Thousand and no/100 

($515,000.00).  This conveyance is made subject to the matters set forth on Exhibit A attached 

hereto. 

BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRUMENT, THE PERSON 

TRANSFERRING FEE TITLE SHOULD INQUIRE ABOUT THE PERSON’S RIGHTS, 

IF ANY, UNDER ORS 195.300, 195.301 AND 195.305 TO 195.336 AND SECTIONS 5 TO 

11, CHAPTER 424, OREGON LAWS 2007, SECTIONS 2 TO 9 AND 17, CHAPTER 855, 

OREGON LAWS 2009, AND SECTIONS 2 TO 7, CHAPTER 8, OREGON LAWS 2010.  

THIS INSTRUMENT DOES NOT ALLOW USE OF THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN 

THIS INSTRUMENT IN VIOLATION OF APPLICABLE LAND USE LAWS AND 

REGULATIONS.  BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRUMENT, THE 

PERSON ACQUIRING FEE TITLE TO THE PROPERTY SHOULD CHECK WITH 

THE APPROPRIATE CITY OR COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT TO VERIFY 

THAT THE UNIT OF LAND BEING TRANSFERRED IS A LAWFULLY 

ESTABLISHED LOT OR PARCEL, AS DEFINED IN ORS 92.010 OR 215.010, TO 



 

Exhibit B, Page 2 of 4  
50014-71176 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB12/3/2012 

VERIFY THE APPROVED USES OF THE LOT OR PARCEL, TO DETERMINE ANY 

LIMITS ON LAWSUITS AGAINST FARMING OR FOREST PRACTICES, AS 

DEFINED IN ORS 30.930, AND TO INQUIRE ABOUT THE RIGHTS OF 

NEIGHBORING PROPERTY OWNERS, IF ANY, UNDER ORS 195.300, 195.301 AND 

195.305 TO 195.336 AND SECTIONS 5 TO 11, CHAPTER 424, OREGON LAWS 2007, 

SECTIONS 2 TO 9 AND 17, CHAPTER 855, OREGON LAWS 2009, AND SECTIONS 2 

TO 7, CHAPTER 8, OREGON LAWS 2010. 

DATED this ______ day of ______________ , 20 . 

  

        Richard C. Rankin 

 

 

  

        Rose A. Rankin 

 

STATE OF OREGON ) 
 ) ss. 
County of  ) 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on _______ ____, 20 , by 

Richard C. Rankin. 
 
 

  
NOTARY PUBLIC FOR OREGON 
My Commission Expires:  
 

STATE OF OREGON ) 
 ) ss. 
County of  ) 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on _______ ____, 20 , by Rose A. 

Rankin . 
 
 

  
NOTARY PUBLIC FOR OREGON 
My Commission Expires:  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Exhibit B, Page 3 of 4  
50014-71176 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB12/3/2012 

ACCEPTED: 

GRANTEE 

CITY OF TIGARD, an Oregon municipal corporation 

By:   

Name:   

Its:   

 

STATE OF OREGON ) 
 ) ss. 
County of  ) 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on ________ ____, 20 , by 

_______________________ as ____________________ of the City of Tigard, an Oregon 

municipal corporation. 
 

  
NOTARY PUBLIC FOR OREGON 

      My Commission Expires:    



 

Exhibit A  
50014-36804 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB/12/3/2012 

Exhibit A 

 

 

 



 

Exhibit C – Post-Closing Occupancy Agreement 

Page 1 of 6  50014-36804 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB 

Exhibit C 

Post-Closing Occupancy Agreement 

 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

 

This Lease Agreement (“Lease”) is entered by and between the City of Tigard, Oregon 

(“Landlord”) and Richard and Rose Rankin (“Tenant”) on __________ ___, 2012 (“Effective 

Date”).  Landlord and Tenant may be referred to as “Party” or collectively be referred to as the 

“Parties”.   

RECITALS 

 

A. Landlord and Tenant entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement with an 

Effective Date of      , 2012 (“Sale Agreement”) through which Tenant agreed to 

sell certain real property to Landlord located at 13001 SW Gallin Court, Tigard, OR 97223 (the 

“Property”).  The Sale Agreement contained a condition (the “Closing Condition”) which 

provided that upon closing the transaction, Landlord agreed to lease the entire Property back to 

Tenant under the terms of a post-closing occupancy agreement.  This Lease is the instrument 

which, upon full execution by Landlord and Tenant, constitutes satisfaction of the Closing 

Condition.  

 

AGREEMENT 

 

The Parties agree as follows: 

1. PROPERTY.  Landlord hereby leases the entire Property to Tenant pursuant to 

the terms of this Lease. 

2. LEASE TERM.  The lease term will start on the Effective Date and unless it is 

terminated earlier as provided in this Lease, will expire on the date that is one hundred twenty 

(120) days after the Effective Date of the Sale Agreement (the “Expiration Date”).  The time 

between the Effective Date and the Expiration Date shall be the “Lease Term”. 

3. LEASE PAYMENTS. 

3.1 Monthly Base Rent.  Tenant shall not be obligated to pay to Landlord any 

monthly base rent for the Property during the Lease Term.   

3.2 Holdover Rent.  Notwithstanding Section 3.1, because time is of the 

essence for Landlord in obtaining complete possession and control of the entire Property on the 

Expiration Date, in the event Tenant continues to possess all or any portion of the Property after 

the Expiration Date, Tenant shall be obligated to pay Landlord holdover rent in the amount of 

fifty and No/100 Dollars ($50.00) per day from the Expiration Date until the date the entire 

Property has been returned to Landlord free of any possession by or possessory interest of 

Tenant.      



 

Exhibit C – Post-Closing Occupancy Agreement 

Page 2 of 6  50014-36804 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB 

3.3 Additional Rent.  Additional Rent shall consist of all sums of money that 

shall become due from and payable by Tenant to Landlord under this Lease.    

4. SECURITY DEPOSIT.  None.  

5. AS IS, WITH ALL FAULTS CONDITION.  As the previous owner of the 

Property, Tenant is fully informed of all its physical conditions, and the physical condition of all 

buildings, structures, and building systems.  In addition, Tenant has inspected or had the 

opportunity to inspect the Property, the fixtures, the grounds, building and improvements and 

acknowledges that the Property is in acceptable condition, and is habitable.  If at any time during 

the Lease Term, in Tenant’s opinion, the conditions change, Tenant shall promptly provide 

reasonable notice to Landlord.  Tenant shall take possession of the Property and all of its 

improvements in an “AS IS CONDITION, WITH ALL FAULTS” basis.  If this Lease required 

Landlord to make any representations or warranties, express or implied, relating to the condition 

of the Property or any improvements or building systems located on or in it, or to accept any 

liability with respect to the physical condition of the Property, Landlord would have required 

Tenant to pay monthly base rent.   

6. DEFAULTS.  If Tenant fails to perform or fulfill any obligation under this Lease, 

including without limitation, its obligation to vacate the Property on or before the Expiration 

Date, or shall abandon the Property for a period of more than thirty (30) consecutive days, 

Tenant shall be in default of this Lease.  Subject to any statute, ordinance or law to the contrary, 

Tenant shall have seven (7) days from the date of notice of default by Landlord to cure the 

default unless a longer cure period is required by Oregon statute.  In the event Tenant does not 

cure the default, Landlord may terminate the Lease, effective upon written notice to Tenant.  In 

the event of default, Landlord may also, as permitted by law, re-enter the Property and re-take 

possession of the Property.  The remedies set forth in this Section 6 shall not prevent Landlord 

from pursuing any other remedy available at law or in equity. 

7. QUIET ENJOYMENT.  Tenant shall be entitled to quiet enjoyment of the 

Property, and Landlord will not interfere with that right, as long as Tenant timely performs all of 

its obligations under this Lease.  

8. POSSESSION AND SURRENDER OF PROPERTY.  Tenant shall be entitled 

to possession of the Property on the Commencement Date.  At the Expiration Date or earlier 

termination of the Lease, Tenant shall remove all personal property and peaceably surrender the 

Property to Landlord in good condition as it was at the Effective Date, reasonable wear and tear 

excepted. 

9. USE OF PROPERTY.  Tenant shall only use the Property as a personal 

residence.  The Property shall not be used to carry on any type of business or trade, without prior 

written consent of the Landlord, which may be withheld in Landlord’s reasonable discretion.  

Tenant will comply with all laws, rules, ordinances, statutes and orders regarding the use of the 

Property. 

10. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLEASE.  Tenant shall not be permitted to assign its 

interest under this Lease nor shall Tenant be allowed to sublease any portion of the Property. 

 



 

Exhibit C – Post-Closing Occupancy Agreement 

Page 3 of 6  50014-36804 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB 

11. DANGEROUS OR HAZARDOUS MATERIALS.  Tenant shall not keep or 

have on or around the Property (i) any item of a dangerous, flammable or explosive character 

that might unreasonably increase the risk of fire or explosion on or around the Property, or (ii) 

any item that might be considered a (A) hazardous or toxic substance, material or waste, or (B) 

pollutant, under any federal, state, regional or local statute, law, regulation or order. 

12. UTILITIES AND SERVICES.  Tenant will be responsible for obtaining and 

paying for all expenses related to Tenant’s possession of the Property, including but not limited 

to all utilities and services required on the Property. 

13. ALTERATIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS; TENANT’S REMOVAL 

RIGHTS.  Tenant agrees not to make any improvements, alterations, or changes to the Property 

without prior written consent of the Landlord.  If any alterations, improvements or changes are 

made to or built on or around the Property, with the exception of fixtures and personal property 

that can be removed without damage to the Property, they shall become the property of Landlord 

and shall remain at the expiration of the Lease. 

14. DAMAGE TO PROPERTY TERMINATES LEASE.  If the Property or part 

of it is damaged or destroyed by fire or other casualty during the Lease Term, then this Lease 

shall terminate as of the date of the casualty.    

15. TENANT TERMINATION.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease, 

Tenant may terminate this Lease, prior to the Expiration Date, by providing thirty (30) days prior 

written notice to Landlord. 

16. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR.  In consideration of the fact that this Lease is 

entered into as a sale and leaseback transaction for consideration negotiated and paid on the 

purchase, Tenant shall maintain the Property, and all buildings, improvements, fixtures, 

appliances, equipment and building systems thereon, and effect, at Seller’s expense, all repairs, 

replacement or maintenance required to maintain the habitability of the Property under Oregon 

law, including mowing, watering and otherwise maintaining the yard.  Tenant shall maintain the 

Property in at least as good a condition as the Property was in on the Commencement Date of 

this Lease.  Tenant shall promptly notify Landlord of any damage to, or destruction of the 

Property. 

17. RIGHT OF INSPECTION.  Tenant agrees to make the Property available to 

Landlord or Landlord’s agents for the purposes of inspection or in case of emergency.  Except in 

case of emergency, Landlord shall give Tenant twenty-four (24) hours written notice of intent to 

enter.  Tenant shall not, without prior notice to Landlord, add, alter or re-key any locks to the 

Property.  At all times Landlord shall be provided with a key or keys capable of unlocking all 

such locks and gaining entry.  Tenant further agrees to notify Landlord in writing if Tenant 

installs any alarm system, including instructions on how to disarm it in case of emergency entry. 

18. LANDLORD RIGHT OF ENTRY; INDEMNIFICATION.  During the Lease 

Term, Landlord, or its agents, shall have the right to enter onto the Property upon one (1) days 

notice to Tenant, to conduct any and all tests, investigations, assessments and inspections 

deemed necessary by Landlord, or to do any site work on the Property related to the Project.  

These tests, investigations, inspections, assessments and site work are collectively referred to as 



 

Exhibit C – Post-Closing Occupancy Agreement 

Page 4 of 6  50014-36804 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB 

“Work”. The Work shall be conducted by Landlord or its agents at Landlord’s sole expense.  

Landlord shall defend, indemnify and hold Tenant harmless for, from, and against any claim, 

loss, or liability, or any claim of lien or damage (collectively, “Claims”) which arises in 

connection with any entry on the Property by Landlord or any activities on the Property by 

Landlord, its agents, employees, and independent contractors; provided, however, that Landlord 

shall have no obligation to indemnify, defend, or hold harmless Seller for any Claim that, in 

whole or in part, directly or indirectly, arises from or is in any connected with Tenant’s prior 

ownership of the Property. 

19. ABANDONMENT.  If Tenant abandons the Property or any personal property 

during the term of this Lease, Landlord may at its option enter the Property by any legal means 

without liability to Tenant and may at Landlord’s option terminate the Lease.  Abandonment is 

defined as absence of the Tenant from the Property, for at least thirty (30) consecutive days 

without notice to Landlord.  Tenant agrees that if it vacates or abandons the Property and leaves 

thereon any personal property, Landlord may deem the personal property to have been 

abandoned by Tenant, in which case Landlord may treat this Lease as a bill of sale regarding 

such personal property and dispose of such abandoned personal property in its sole discretion. 

20. SECURITY.  Tenant understands that Landlord does not provide any security 

alarm system or other security for Tenant or the Property.  In the event any alarm system is 

installed, Tenant understands that such alarm system is not warranted to be complete in all 

respects or to be sufficient to protect Tenant or the Property.  Tenant releases Landlord from any 

loss, damage, claim or injury resulting from the failure of any alarm system, security or from the 

lack of any alarm system or security. 

21. SEVERABILITY.  If any part or parts of this Lease shall be held unenforceable 

for any reason, the remainder of this Lease shall continue in full force and effect. If any 

provision of this Lease is deemed invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent 

jurisdiction, and if limiting such provision would make the provision valid, then such provision 

shall be deemed to be construed as so limited. 

22. INSURANCE:   

22.1 Property Insurance.  Landlord and Tenant shall each be responsible to 

maintain appropriate insurance for their respective interests in the Property and any personal 

property located on the Property.  Tenant understands that Landlord will not provide any 

insurance coverage for Tenant's property interests.   Landlord will not be responsible for any loss 

of Tenant's property, whether by theft, fire, riots, strikes, acts of God, or otherwise.    

22.2 Liability Insurance.  Tenant, at its sole cost and expense, shall maintain 

at all times during the Lease Term, Commercial General Liability Insurance covering the insured 

against claims of bodily injury, personal injury and property damage arising out of Tenant's use 

of the Property, including a Commercial General Liability endorsement covering the insuring 

provisions of this Lease and the performance by Tenant of the indemnity agreements set forth in 

Section 23 of this Lease with a combined single limit of not less than One Million Two Hundred 

Thousand ($1,200,000) aggregate limit.  Tenant shall provide Landlord with a certificate of 

insurance which, among other things, shall show Landlord and its officers, directors, and 

employees named as an additional insured in such policy as provided in this Section.  Such 



 

Exhibit C – Post-Closing Occupancy Agreement 

Page 5 of 6  50014-36804 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB 

liability insurance shall be primary and not contributing to any insurance available to Landlord 

and Landlord’s insurance shall be in excess thereto.  The limits of such insurance shall not limit 

the Tenant’s liability.  Tenant shall provide Landlord with a certificate of insurance obtained as 

required by this section of the Lease.   

22.3 Waiver of Subrogation.  All insurance required of Tenant under this 

Lease shall contain a clause pursuant to which the insurance carriers waive all rights of 

subrogation against Landlord or Tenant with respect to losses payable under such policies.  

Tenant and Landlord each waives any and all right of recovery against the other for loss of or 

damage to such waiving party or its property, if and to the extent that such loss or damage is 

insured against under any casualty insurance policy in force at the time of such loss or damage, 

or which is to be insured against under the terms of this Lease.     

23. TENANT’S INDEMNIFICATION.  Except as provided for in Section 18, and 

except to the extent of damage resulting from the negligence or willful misconduct of Landlord, 

Tenant agrees to protect, defend (with counsel reasonably acceptable to Landlord) and hold the 

Landlord harmless and indemnify the Landlord from and against all liabilities, damages, claims, 

losses, judgments, charges, and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees, costs of court and 

expenses necessary in the prosecution or defense of any litigation including the enforcement of this 

provision) arising from or in any way related to, directly or indirectly, (i) Tenant's use of the 

Property, (ii) from any activity, work or thing done, permitted or suffered by Tenant in or about the 

Property, (iii) in any way connected with the Property or with the improvements or personal 

property therein, including, but not limited to, any liability for injury to person or property of 

Tenant or third party persons, and/or (iv) Tenant's failure to perform any covenant or obligation of 

Tenant under this Lease.  Tenant's agreement to indemnify Landlord pursuant to this Section 23 

is not intended and shall not relieve any insurance carrier of its obligations under policies 

required to be carried by Tenant pursuant to the provisions of this Lease.  Tenant agrees that the 

obligations of Tenant herein shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease. 

24. BINDING EFFECT.  The covenants and conditions contained in the Lease shall 

apply to and bind the Parties and the heirs, legal representatives, successors and any permitted 

assigns of the Parties. 

25. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE.  Time is of the essence in this Lease.  Tenant 

acknowledges that Landlord intends to undertake a significant drainage improvement project on 

the Property (“Project”), and that it is crucial for Tenant to promptly surrender the Property upon 

expiration or earlier termination of this Lease. 

26. COMPLIANCE WITH RESIDENTIAL LANDLORD AND TENANT ACT.  
This Lease is intended to comply with the provisions of the Residential Landlord and Tenant 

(“Act”), ORS 90.100–90.840, in effect on the date first written above. If a court determines that 

any provision in the Lease conflicts with the Act, the provisions of the Act shall control. This 

Lease shall be deemed to be amended to comply with any statutory changes in the Act if such 

changes apply retroactively to existing leases, but not otherwise. 

27. ATTACHMENTS.  The attached Smoke Detector Acceptance, Carbon 

Monoxide Detector Acceptance and Lead-Based Paint Disclosure are made a part of this Lease. 



 

Exhibit C – Post-Closing Occupancy Agreement 

Page 6 of 6  50014-36804 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB 

28. SMOKE DETECTOR AND CARBON MONOXIDE ALARM.  Tenant 

acknowledges the presence of a smoke detector and a carbon monoxide alarm in fully 

operational conditions in the dwelling unit on the Property.  Instructions have been provided 

about how to test the smoke detector and carbon monoxide alarm.  Tenant has been instructed to 

test the devices at least every six months and replace the batteries as needed and has been made 

aware Landlord is not liable for loss or damage due to the failure of the smoke detector or carbon 

monoxide alarm to operate.  Tenant is required to immediately notify Landlord in writing of any 

malfunction of the smoke detector or carbon monoxide alarm.  Tenant shall not remove or 

tamper with a properly functioning smoke detector or carbon monoxide alarm, including 

removing any working batteries. 

29. SMOKING POLICY.  Pursuant to ORS 479.305, smoking is allowed on the 

Property.  Landlord is not responsible for any damage to person or property caused by smoking 

on the Property, unless such damage is directly caused by Landlord. 

30. GOVERNING LAW.  This Lease shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon. 

31. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Lease constitutes the entire agreement between 

the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes any prior understanding or 

representation of any kind preceding the date of this Lease.  There are no other promises, 

conditions, understandings or other agreements, whether oral or written, relating to the subject 

matter of this Lease.  This Lease may be modified in writing and must be signed by both 

Landlord and Tenant. 

32. NOTICE.  Any notice required or otherwise given pursuant to this Lease shall be 

in writing and mailed certified return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or delivered by 

overnight delivery service, if to Tenant, at the Property and if to Landlord: at the Tigard City 

Hall Attn: City Manager, City Hall, 13125 SW Hall Blvd, Tigard, OR 97223.  Either party may 

change such address from time to time by providing notice as set forth above. 

33. CUMULATIVE RIGHTS.  Landlord’s and Tenant’s rights under this Lease are 

cumulative, and shall not be construed as exclusive of each other unless otherwise required by 

law. 

34. WAIVER.  The failure of either Party to enforce any provisions of this Lease 

shall not be deemed a waiver or limitation of that Party's right to subsequently enforce and 

compel strict compliance with every provision of this Lease.  

35. LEGAL FEES.  In the event of any legal action by the parties arising out of this 

Lease, the non-prevailing party shall pay the prevailing party reasonable attorneys' fees and costs 

in addition to all other relief at trial and on any appeal therefrom. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Exhibit C – Post-Closing Occupancy Agreement 

Page 7 of 6  50014-36804 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB 

36. COUNTERPARTS.  This Lease may be executed in counterparts, each of which, 

when taken together, shall constitute fully executed originals. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Lease to be executed the day and year 

first above written. 

 

 

LANDLORD: 

 

___________________________________________________ 

City of Tigard 

 

 

TENANT: 

 

____________________________________________________ 

Richard C. Rankin 

 

 

____________________________________________________ 

Rose A. Rankin 

 

 

 



 

 
50014-36804 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB/12/3/2012 

RESIDENTIAL LEASE 

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON LEAD-BASED PAINT 
OR LEAD-BASED PAINT HAZARDS 

 

Lead Warning Statement 

 

Housing built before 1978 may contain lead-based paint.  Lead from paint, paint chips and dust can pose health 

hazards if not managed properly.  Lead exposure is especially harmful to young children and pregnant women.  

Before renting pre-1978 housing, landlords must disclose the presence of known lead-based paint and/or lead-

based paint hazards in the dwelling.  Tenants must also receive a federally approved pamphlet on lead poisoning 

prevention. 

 

Landlord's Disclosure 

 

(a) Presence of lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards (Check (i) or (ii) below): 

 

(i) _____ Known lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards are present in the housing (explain):  

______________________________________________  

 

(ii) ____ Landlord has no knowledge of lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards in the housing. 

 

(b) Records and reports available to the landlord (Check (i) or (ii) below): 

 

(i) _____ Landlord has provided the tenant with all available records and reports pertaining to lead-based 

paint and/or lead-based paint hazards in the housing (list documents): 

______________________________________________   

 

(ii)____ Landlord has no reports or records pertaining to lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards 

in the housing. 

 

Tenant's Acknowledgment (initial) 

 

(c) _____ Tenant has received copies of all information listed above. 

 

(d) _____ Tenant has received the pamphlet Protect Your Family From Lead In Your Home. 

 

Certification of Accuracy 

 

The following parties have reviewed the information above and certify, to the best of their knowledge, that the 

information they have provided is true and accurate. 

 

—————————  ————————— 

Landlord  Date     

 

—————————  ————————— ————————— ————————— 

Tenant   Date   Tenant   Date



 

 46796-38565 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB12/3/2012 

CARBON MONOXIDE ALARM DISCLOSURE 

The rental Property at 13001 SW Gallin Court, Tigard, OR 97223is equipped with one or more 

 battery-operated  hard-wired (indicate which) carbon monoxide alarm(s) (hereinafter 

“carbon monoxide alarm”). 

If the carbon monoxide alarm is battery-operated, the battery is a 10-year battery. 

Landlord or agent (hereinafter “landlord”) has tested the carbon monoxide alarm prior to this 

tenancy and has determined that it is working properly, and the battery has power, as of 

_______________. 

Tenant is responsible for testing the carbon monoxide alarm no less than every six months.  The 

manufacturer of the carbon monoxide alarm recommends testing every _________________.  To 

test, tenant should press and hold the test button briefly.  If the alarm does not sound, tenant must 

notify landlord in writing immediately. 

If available, the manufacturer’s carbon monoxide alarm instructions are located    

              

Tenant is responsible for replacing dead batteries, and must use only 10-year batteries. 

Dated:     

      

Landlord or Agent 

      

Landlord’s or Agent’s Name (typed or 

printed) 

Acknowledged by:      

Tenant 

      

Tenant’s Name (typed or printed) 

 
NOTE:  ORS 479.300 states, in relevant part:  “No person shall remove or tamper with a properly functioning carbon monoxide 

alarm * * *.  This prohibition includes removal of working batteries.”



 

 46796-38565 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB12/3/2012 

SMOKE ALARM DISCLOSURE 

The rental Property at 13001 SW Gallin Court, Tigard, OR 97223is equipped with one or more  

battery-operated  hard-wired (indicate which) smoke alarm(s) (hereinafter “smoke alarm”). 

If the smoke alarm is battery-operated, the battery is a 10-year battery. 

Landlord or agent (hereinafter “landlord”) has tested the smoke alarm prior to this tenancy and has 

determined that it is working properly, and the battery has power, as of _______________. 

Tenant is responsible for testing the smoke alarm no less than every six months.  The manufacturer of 

the smoke alarm recommends testing every _________________.  To test, tenant should press and 

hold the test button briefly.  If the alarm does not sound, tenant must notify landlord in writing 

immediately. 

If available, the manufacturer’s smoke alarm instructions are located     

              

Tenant is responsible for replacing dead batteries, and must use only 10-year batteries. 

Dated:     

      

Landlord or Agent 

      

Landlord’s or Agent’s Name (typed or printed) 

Acknowledged by:      

Tenant 

      

Tenant’s Name (typed or printed) 

 

 

 

 
NOTE:  ORS 479.300 states, in relevant part:  “No person shall remove or tamper with a properly functioning smoke alarm * * *.  This 

prohibition includes removal of working batteries.” 

 



 

 46796-38565 2 - Purchase Agreement and Escrow Instructions 2012-11-29.docx\KMB12/3/2012 

Exhibit D 

Assignment of Leases 



AIS-1106       4. I.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 12/11/2012

Length (in minutes): Consent Item  

Agenda Title: Amendment to City Manager Employment Agreement

Submitted By: Sandy Zodrow, City Management

Item Type: Motion Requested Meeting Type: Special Meeting

Public Hearing: No Publication Date: 

Information

ISSUE 

Should the City Council amend Section 10, Severance, of the City Manager's current Employment Agreement

regarding "six(6) months" to "seven(7) months"?

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

Recommend approval of the amendment of the City Manager's Employment Agreement from six (6) months to seven

(7) months

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

At the Tigard City Council meeting of November 27, 2012, Executive Session, Council directed staff to prepare an

amendment to the City Manager's current Employment Agreement for its approval. This amendment to the language in

Section 10, Severance, of the current agreement changes the both the lump sum cash payment and the health, welfare

and life insurance benefits from six (6) months to seven (7) months. 

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

N/A

COUNCIL GOALS, POLICIES, APPROVED MASTER PLANS

N/A

DATES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

The City Council discussed this matter at its November 27, 2012 meeting in Executive Session

Attachments

CM EA Amendment #3



1 

Amendment #3 
 

To City Manager Employment Agreement 
 
 
 
 
Effective Date:  December 11, 2012 
Between:  City of Tigard (the “City”) 
And:   Marty Wine (“Employee”) 
 
 
Section 10, Severance, of the Employment Agreement between the City of Tigard and Marty Wine is 
hereby amended and replaced to read as follows: All other terms and conditions of the Employment 
Agreement shall remain in effect.  

 
 
 
Section 10:  Severance 
 

In the event Employee is terminated by the City Council during such a time that Employee is willing 
and able to perform Employee’s duties under this Agreement, then in that event Employer agrees to 
pay Employee a lump sum cash payment equal to six (6) seven (7) months aggregate salary.  
Employer will also continue, at its expense, Employee’s health and welfare and life insurance 
benefits for 6 7 months, or until Employee is professionally reemployed, whichever comes first.  In 
the event Employee is terminated for gross negligence or misconduct that is deemed detrimental to 
the best interests of the City, Employer shall have no obligation to pay any of the severance 
payments or benefits provided in this paragraph. 

 

_________________________   ______________________________ 

Marty Wine, City Manager    Craig Dirksen, Mayor 

________________     ____________________ 

Date       Date 



AIS-1063       5.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 12/11/2012

Length (in minutes): 40 Minutes  

Agenda Title: Legislative Public Hearing - River Terrace Comprehensive Plan Amendment

Submitted By: Darren Wyss, Community Development

Item Type: 

Ordinance

Public Hearing - Legislative Meeting Type: 

Council

Business

Meeting -

Main

Public Hearing 

Newspaper Legal Ad Required?: Yes 
 

Public Hearing Publication

Date in Newspaper: 11/15/2012 

Information

ISSUE 

Shall city council approve the planning commission's recommendation (CPA2012-00002) to amend the Tigard

Comprehensive Plan map with land use designations for River Terrace and amend Tigard Comprehensive Plan Goal

14: Urbanization policies?

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

Staff recommends approval of the planning commission's recommendation (CPA2012-00002) to amend the Tigard

Comprehensive Plan map and Goal 14: Urbanization policies.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

The city has agreed via an intergovernmental agreement (IGA) with Washington County to refine its West Bull Mt.

Concept Plan into the River Terrace Community Plan. The community plan will put into place a means to implement

the vision of the concept plan through zoning, development code regulations and other measures that will make urban

development possible. The process will also include updates to utility, parks and transportation master plans, including

the financial strategies necessary to fund and maintain required infrastructure improvements.

The concept plan was created over the course of three years with the help of a stakeholder working group (SWG) and a

technical advisory committee (TAC). Project goals and principles guided the development of the land use, transportation

and parks framework maps. These maps represented the vision stakeholders agreed upon for the future development of

the area. They provide a variety of residential densities and housing types; disperse densities throughout the community;

provide appropriate amounts of commercial uses, parks, trails and open space; and outline a multi-modal network of

connected streets and walkable blocks. The SWG and TAC both voted to forward the concept plan to the Washington

County Planning Commission and Board of Commissioners for consideration and adoption. In November 2010, the

Planning Commission voted to recommend the Board adopt the concept plan (see Attachment 1). In December 2010,

the Board adopted the concept plan by Resolution and Order (see Attachment 2).

Since the conclusion of the concept plan, the city has annexed a portion of the area (Area 64) and petitions have been

filed by property owners to annex the remainder of the area within the urban growth boundary (Areas 63 and Roy

Rogers West). The city will complete the River Terrace Community Plan for all of these areas.

City staff has developed a work program to guide the project through completion. This will include a lot of technical

work to ensure the community plan meets the state and regional planning requirements, as well as a public involvement

plan to engage stakeholders in any necessary refinements to the concept plan as the process moves forward. Staff

anticipates completion of the River Terrace Community Plan in summer 2014.



anticipates completion of the River Terrace Community Plan in summer 2014.

The first recommendation is to adopt the concept plan recommended land uses (Exhibit A) into the Tigard

Comprehensive Plan. This action will set expectations for the community planning process, as well as allowing the city

to access a portion of the CET funds from Metro that were given to the city through the IGA with Washington

County. A number of policies will also be recommended for adoption to guide regulation of the River Terrace area

during and after completion of the community planning process (Exhibit B). These recommended land uses will be

further analyzed as part of the community planning process and if there are needed refinements, recommendations will

be brought back to planning commission and city council for adoption at the end of the process.

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

1. Adopt planning commission recommendation with changes

2. Not adopt planning commission recommendation and remand back to planning commission for additional work

3. Not adopt planning commission recommendation and direct staff accordingly

COUNCIL OR CCDA GOALS, POLICIES, MASTER PLANS

1. Take the Next Step on Major Projects

DATES OF PREVIOUS CONSIDERATION

Project Briefing - May 15, 2012

Project Briefing - September 18, 2012

Project Briefing - November 20, 2012

Fiscal Impact

Cost: $134,100

Budgeted (yes or no): Yes

Where Budgeted (department/program): CD

Additional Fiscal Notes:

Washington County transferred CET funds to the city for completing the community plan. Metro administers these

funds and will require the completion of tasks before releasing funds.

Attachments

Attachment 1

Attachment 2

Attachment 3 - CPA2012-00002 Ordinance

Exhibit A - CPA2012-00002 Land Uses

Exhibit B - CPA2012-00002 Policies

Exhibit C - CPA2012-00002 Findings













MINUTES 
 

WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

NOVEMBER 23, 2010 
 
 

CONVENED: 6:33 p.m. 
 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
Chairman Tom Brian (participated by telephone) 
Vice Chair Desari Strader 
Commissioner Dick Schouten 
Commissioner Roy Rogers 
Commissioner Andy Duyck 
 
STAFF: 
Robert Davis, County Administrator 
Paul Hathaway, Sr. Assistant County Counsel 
Andrew Singelakis, Director, LUT 
Brent Curtis, Planning Division Manager, LUT 
Joanne Rice, Principal Planner, LUT 
Paul Schaefer, Senior Planner, LUT 
Mike Dahlstrom, Program Educator, LUT 
Greg Miller, County Engineer, LUT 
Traci Shirley, Planning Assistant, LUT 
Chuck Schable, Audiovisual Technician 
Barbara Hejtmanek, Recording Secretary 
 
PRESS: 
Dana Tims, The Oregonian 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
November 2, 2010 
 
1. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
The Board moved item 1.i. from the Consent to the Regular Agenda. 
 
It was moved to adopt the Consent Agenda, as modified. 
 
Motion – Rogers 
2nd – Duyck 
Vote – 5-0 
 
 



 
CLEAN WATER SERVICES 
 
1.a. 
CWS MO 10-91 
Award a Two-Year Contract to OLIN Corporation for the Purchase of Sodium 
Hypochlorite (Approved Under Consent Agenda) 
 
1.b. 
CWS MO 10-92 
Award a Two-year Contract to Thatcher Company of Montana, Inc. for the Purchase of 
Sodium Bisulfite (Approved Under Consent Agenda) 
 
1.c. 
CWS MO 10-93 
Approve Fifth Amendment to Master Contract for Professional Services with Brown and 
Caldwell, Inc. for the Rock Creek Facility Stormwater Improvements Project No. 6392 
(CPO 9) (Approved Under Consent Agenda) 
 
1.d. 
CWS MO 10-94 
Approve a 36-Month Contract with Polydyne Inc. for the Purchase of Polymers and a 
Back-Up Contract with BASF Corporation (Approved Under Consent Agenda) 
 
1.e. 
CWS MO 10-95 
Approve Second Modification to Third Amendment to Master Contract with Stoel Rives, 
LLP for Legal Representation on the Contractors, Inc. Claim Involving the Durham 
Phase IV Project (Approved Under Consent Agenda) 
 
1.f. 
CWS MO 10-96 
Accept Construction of the Lower Tualatin Pump Station Project No. 6187 as Complete 
and Authorize Release of the Retainage Bond (Approved Under Consent Agenda) 
 
LAND USE AND TRANSPORTATION 
 
1.g. 
MO 10-363 
Approve Agreement with Beaverton for Transfer of Jurisdiction of a Section of 160th 
Avenue (Baseline Road to Jay Street) (CPO 6 & 7) (Approved Under Consent Agenda) 
 
 
 
 
 



 
1.h. 
RO 10-106 
Adopt U.S. 26: Glencoe Road Interchange Area Management Plan as Part of the 
Technical Appendix of the 2020 Transportation Plan (CPO 8) (Approved Under Consent 
Agenda) 
 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
1.i. 
MO 10-354 
Establish December Board of Commissioners Meeting Schedule (All CPOs) (Moved 
From Consent to Regular Agenda) 
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
 
1.j. 
MO 10-355 
Authorize Omnibus International Agreement with Several Oregon Counties for Disaster-
Related Emergency Assistance (Approved Under Consent Agenda) 
 
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
 
1.k. 
MO 10-356 
Approve Agreement with Tigard-Tualatin School District and Authorize Contract to 
Provide Services (Approved Under Consent Agenda) 
 
1.l. 
MO 10-357 
Grant Waiver From Request for Proposals Process and Approve Contracts to Provide 
Adult Mental Health Services (Approved Under Consent Agenda) 
 
1.m. 
MO 10-358 
Award Contract with CODA to Provide Outpatient Drug Court Substance Abuse 
Treatment Services for Adults and Families (Approved Under Consent Agenda) 
 
JUVENILE DEPARTMENT 
 
1.n. 
MO 10-359 
Authorize Grant Funding and Agreement with the State of Oregon for Juvenile Drug 
Court (Approved Under Consent Agenda) 
 
 



 
SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
 
1.o. 
MO 10-360 
Authorize Acceptance of Emergency Management Performance Grant (Approved Under 
Consent Agenda) 
 
SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
1.p. 
MO 10-361 
Accept Bid/Award Contract for Boiler and Chiller Replacement – ARRA Project 
(Approved Under Consent Agenda) 
 
1.q. 
MO 10-362 
Award Contract/Environmental Engineering Consulting Services (Approved Under 
Consent Agenda) 
 
SERVICE DISTRICT FOR LIGHTING NO. 1-A COUNTY SERVICE DISTRICT 
 
1.r. 
SDL RO 10-7 
Form Assessment Area, Authorize Maximum Annual Assessment and Impose a First 
Year Assessment for Washington Gardens Memory Care (CPO 4M) (Approved Under 
Consent Agenda) 
 
2. ORAL COMMUNICATION (2 MINUTE OPPORTUNITY) 
 
Fran Bates, 14880 NW Ridgetop Court, Beaverton, Oregon, stated that former 
Commissioner John Leeper has said that he was told (when on the Board) that there was 
adequate right-of-way along Bethany Boulevard to make a five-lane road without having 
to condemn or acquire any property.  He said that this evidently is inaccurate because 
current plans call for taking up to 30 properties or parts thereof to make this road happen.  
Mr. Bates then showed the Board a PowerPoint that depicted properties and how far back 
the right-of-way goes in various yards.   
 
Commissioner Duyck clarified that there is no current plan.  He assumed that Mr. Bates’ 
photographs show the maximum with the five lane scenario. 
 
Mr. Bates replied that three of the four options require taking the house depicted on one 
of the slides. 
 
Commissioner Schouten asked if all that is being shown will be taken. 
 



 
Mr. Bates responded in the affirmative, assuming that they have to take the right-of-way 
from the east side of the road. 
 
Vice Chair Strader asked if these pictures assume that there will be five lanes. 
 
Mr. Bates said that this assumes that three of the four options are implemented. 
 
Eudora Goganian, age 11, 2720 NW Forest Avenue, stated that children are glad that 
Bethany Boulevard will be improved but worry about the five lanes because it puts the 
needs of cars before the needs of people.  She said that children need to cross Bethany 
Boulevard to get to school and friends’ houses.  Ms. Goganian stated that a crosswalk 
with signal would be great but maintained that five lanes are not safe.  She remarked that 
three lanes are easier and present a shorter distance to cross.  Ms. Goganian said that 
three lanes would allow children to ride bikes and walk to school safely. 
 
Ms. Goganian stated that constructing five lanes would take land from peoples’ homes 
and back yards would be destroyed.  She was accompanied by a friend, Sydney, whose 
grandparents would lose grass, trees and the yard where she plays if the five lanes are 
built.  Ms. Goganian loves trees and said that building five lanes would destroy lots of 
large trees and replace them with noise and pollution.  She did not think it is fair to harm 
the lives and property of people who live in older, great neighborhoods.  Ms. Goganian 
said that it does not make sense to take away from peoples’ back yards to help 
neighborhoods that do not exist yet and to help cars get to the freeway one or two 
minutes faster.  She favored using the money that would have been spent on land for the 
five lanes on planting more trees with the three-lane plan.   
 
Ms. Goganian reported that her Mom will not let her ride her bike on a five lane road 
with painted bike lanes.  She suggested that with three lanes, trees could be planted 
between the bike lanes and the rest of the road—separating bikes, sidewalks and cars.  
Ms. Goganian said that people could then do errands without even having to drive.  She 
stated that she could walk with her Grandmother and Grandfather to restaurants on a safe 
three-lane road.   
 
Ms. Goganian concluded that five lanes are great for cars but not people.  She questioned 
whether cars or people should come first.  Ms. Goganian said that this is a chance to 
make a place better for people.  She submitted testimony, which may be found in the 
Meeting File. 
 
Audience applause was given to the speaker. 
 
Vice Chair Strader said that she would not let her 4-year-old daughter ride her bike on 
that segment of Bethany Boulevard now due to current public safety issues.  She agreed 
that there needs to be pedestrian/bike/car safety for all who travel the entirety of Bethany 
Boulevard.  Vice Chair Strader shared that she, too, likes trees. 
 



 
Darla Castagno, 15175 NW Perimeter Drive, Beaverton, Oregon, submitted written 
testimony, which may be found in the Meeting File.  She said that she has lived in Oak 
Hills for 40 years.  Ms. Castagno invited the Board to tour Oak Hills in order to come to 
the understanding that this is not a typical subdivision but rather a totally planned 
community.  She indicated that her submittal is from the State Historic Preservation 
Office regarding the National Register eligibility for Oak Hills.  Ms. Castagno indicated 
that her phone number is at the bottom of the page so that Board members can call her to 
schedule a tour.  
 
3. LAND USE AND TRANSPORTATION 
3.a. 
RO 10-105 
Consider the Recommended West Bull Mountain Concept Plan (CPO 4B, 4K) 
 
Joanne Rice stated that the purpose of the proposed Resolution and Order for West Bull 
Mountain is to adopt and memorialize the general land use and transportation framework 
for Area 63 and 64.  She reviewed that both of those areas were added to the Urban 
Growth Boundary in 2002.  Ms. Rice said that the Resolution and Order completes Phase 
I of the West Bull Mountain work plan and that the second phase to come is development 
of the Community Plan, its implementing regulations and the funding strategy.  She 
stated that part of that work will include identifying who will be the long-term water and 
parks provider and remarked that a great deal of work remains to be done.  Ms. Rice said 
that there will also be a great deal of additional transportation analysis that needs to be 
done to determine which improvements are funded.  She noted that in part of the concept 
plan documents, there is a list of the top ten needed improvements; she added that staff 
also acknowledges that there needs to be a full analysis of the other identified 
improvements to determine which actually get funded in the funding strategy.   
 
Ms. Rice informed the Board that this is a generalized concept plan and is not intended to 
ensure complete compliance with Metro’s functional plan and all of the statewide 
planning goals; this is the generalized framework for the land use and transportation 
components.  She clarified that the detailed level of findings and compliance will be 
made when the community plan is done in the next phase.  Ms. Rice stated that the 
Resolution and Order has been written in a way to make it very clear that this is not a 
legally binding document but rather is intended to guide the next phase of development.  
She said that relative to the maps and implementing strategies, there is a great deal of 
flexibility that needs to be provided in implementing the next stage—particularly with 
regard to parks and roads.  Ms. Rice stated that, for example, once a parks provider is 
identified, a parks master plan will have to be developed and this will provide more 
specificity in terms of where parks are located.   
 
Ms. Rice reported that changes have been made to the document since the Planning 
Commission hearing, such as to: 
 
 



 
 Note all of the parks in a hash pattern to indicate that those are not fixed 

locations 
 Note that implementation of the three maps (transportation, land use, and parks) 

is subject to all of the implementing strategies.  Information in the implementing 
strategies calls for further refinement of roads and parks with additional 
engineering.  Quite a bit of work will still be done in the next phase. 

 
Ms. Rice acknowledged receipt of one additional letter since the Board received its 
packet from John Botaitis, who is unable to be here tonight due to the weather.  She 
summarized his letter, which may be found in the Meeting File. 
 

 Mr. Botaitis lives in Meyers Farm.  161st Avenue goes through that development 
and connects into Area 63.  That is a street that will be extended down into the 
area.  Part of the concept plan includes draft language directing additional 
engineering in terms of how to deal with traffic control issues.  There is still 
more to come on that issue.   

 
Ms. Rice said that with respect to the next phase of work, staff has proposed that the 
County’s role in that work be sorted out in the 2011 work program for the Long Range 
Planning Division.   
 
Commissioner Schouten observed that the letter from John Botaitis talks about a petition, 
which is not attached. 
 
Paul Schaefer responded that several letters were submitted in the May timeframe to 
committees to address concerns of the road connections and density.  He clarified that it 
was not a formal petition with a lot of signatures but rather there were several letters.  Mr. 
Schaefer explained that Mr. Botaitis’ letter is a summary of those concerns with traffic 
and density.   
 
Commissioner Schouten recalled reading that the density proposed in this concept plan is 
just a little bit over the minimums required by Metro by just a couple of households per 
acre. 
 
Joanne Rice said that this is correct.  However, she stated that in Area 63, the actual 
density is affected by the steeper slopes there.  Ms. Rice said that this has a density of just 
under eight units an acre.  She stated that when you get into the flatter lands of Area 64, 
you pick up a little more density, which gives you an overall density range of a little more 
than 10 units per acre for both.  Ms. Rice explained that part of what the concept plan 
does in response to concerns raised by residents is much low density residential is 
provided all along the existing single family development in Bull Mountain.  She said 
that some of the area directly south of Meyers Farm is some of the steeper slope area.  
Ms. Rice stated that once the community plan is done, you could be looking at densities  
 
 



 
that might even be less than the six units an acre of Meyers Farm.  She reviewed that that 
is one of the things that the concept plan calls for, namely, to look at these steeper slope 
areas that possibly come in at lower densities than are currently in the area.  
 
Commissioner Schouten stated that these are average figures.  He said he has seen on the 
maps that slightly higher densities are away from established neighborhoods. 
 
Joanne Rice affirmed that this is correct. 
 
The public hearing was opened. 
 
Liz Newton, Assistant City Manager, City of Tigard, 13125 SW Hall Boulevard, Tigard, 
Oregon, told the Board that Mayor Dirksen would have liked to be here this evening but 
he is convening Tigard City Council tonight.  She submitted a letter and a red-lined 
Resolution and Order, both of which may be found in the Meeting File.  Ms. Newton 
stated that the City of Tigard participated on the West Bull Mountain concept plan TAC 
and has commented to staff throughout this process.  She said that a lot of issues that 
Tigard has raised concerns about have been addressed.   
 
Ms. Newton was not sure if the Board saw the letter which the City of Tigard submitted 
to the Planning Commission.  She related that some of Tigard’s concerns are around 
issues such as water, parks, traffic and governance—who will provide those services and 
funding for those services.  Ms. Newton now understood that that will be addressed in 
Phase II.  She stated that Tigard, along with the City of Beaverton, has raised issues 
throughout the process as to whether the plan is in compliance with Metro codes and 
statewide planning goals as a concept plan.   
 
Ms. Newton reported that the two issues that Tigard was really concerned about were that 
those goals and requirements are met and also what the future expectations of the public 
are around a concept plan.  She recalled that the Planning Commission recommended that 
the concept plan not be called a concept plan and that it clearly state that it is not legally 
binding.  Ms. Newton stated that the City of Tigard prepared a draft, red-lined version of 
the Resolution and Order that would suggest that the concept plan name be changed to 
the Urban Growth Plan Diagram, which was one of the terms used by County staff to 
help describe how the document actually would be served.  She referenced page 7 of the 
October 20, 2010 concept plan report and took exception to the statement that “A process 
was created by the County and the consultant team to develop the Community Plan.  This 
plan is being crafted in two phases:  Phase I (West Bull Mountain Concept Plan) and 
Phase II (Community Plan and implementing ordinances, including a finance plan 
developing both a land use plan and a funding plan) concurrently represent a new 
approach to planning for future urban development in unincorporated Washington 
County”.  Ms. Newton said that the phrase “for future urban development in 
unincorporated Washington County” seems contrary to Tigard with what was confirmed 
in the urban reserves process about the city’s role in providing services to those areas.  
She recommended that that be fleshed out as we move forward.  



 
Ms. Newton referenced page 14 under the Title XI requirements, where the report states 
“Title references are in italics.  Type I plan annexation to appropriate service provider 
districts for required urban services.”  She stated that Tigard believes it should read 
“Pursuant to 2007 Title XI document is provision for annexation to the district and to a 
city or any necessary service district to provide all required services.”   
 
Commissioner Rogers thanked Liz Newton for attending this afternoon’s Workesssion 
and tonight’s Board Meeting.  He shared that he had some concerns about how concrete 
these concepts were and was all for slowing the process down and trying to get some 
resolution among the various parties.  Commissioner Rogers said that based upon the way 
it is funded through Metro and based upon the Board having to pass some kind of 
Resolution and understanding that this is a very preliminary concept plan that can be 
amended, he is now comfortable with it.  He liked what Ms. Newton said tonight but 
noted that it is hard to modify things at the eleventh hour.  Commissioner Rogers hoped 
that Tigard would continue to participate in Phase II and that some things can then be 
corrected. 
 
Ms. Newton thanked Commissioner Rogers.  She reiterated that the letter to the Planning 
Commission provides a little more specificity about Tigard’s concerns as we move 
forward. 
 
Commissioner Schouten assumed that staff will respond to comments made by the City 
of Tigard.  He hoped that the Resolution and Order can specify that it is not a legally 
binding document and perhaps include some of the other suggested language. 
 
Joanne Rice replied that on advice of Counsel, the attachments to the Resolution and 
Order do make clear that the R&O is not legally binding.  She added that Counsel 
recommended that that not be stated in the Resolution and Order itself.  Ms. Rice said 
that relative to the term “document concept plan”, because that has been used throughout 
the planning process, staff decided not to rename it as the Planning Commission 
recommended.  She stated that staff made clear in the attached materials that it is a 
concept plan and explained that there is further work to be done.  Ms. Rice said that some 
of the statements referenced in the report with regard to the level of planning that the 
County is doing being above and beyond does not intend to say that this is the level of 
planning that the County will do in future urban reserves areas.  She noted that the Board 
has made this clear through the Urbanization Forum.  Ms. Rice clarified that that 
statement intends to refer only to Area 63 and 64 as well as North Bethany.  She said that 
the service district reference is to Clean Water Services and Tualatin Valley Fire and 
Rescue—indicating that they need to be annexed there.  Ms. Rice stated that in terms of 
who is going to be the ultimate service provider for water and parks, it may be the City of 
Tigard, and if that is the case, that is the direction that we will take in Phase II of the 
implementation. 
 
John Rankin, Attorney at Law, 26715 SW Baker Road, Sherwood, Oregon, represented 
eight property owners.  (Letter from Mr. Rankin may be found in the Meeting File.)  He  



 
represented approximately 100 acres of land inside Area 63—nearly half of the area in 
Area 63.  Mr. Rankin has been involved since near the beginning of the process and has 
submitted all kinds of iterations of plans because staff allegedly was not creating plans.  
He said that every time there was some discussion at TAC and SWG, he felt it was 
important to try to distill it into a drawing.  Mr. Rankin stated that a map he submitted is 
in the Planning Commission packet which is the final Neighbors of West Bull Mountain 
alternative concept plan.  He said that this was developed over a long period of time and 
with a lot of cooperation—particularly in the last half of the process from County staff.  
Mr. Rankin thanked Paul Schaefer, both Steve Kelleys, and Greg Miller for listening 
carefully to what he presented and for the work they did to try to implement that.  He 
encouraged the Board to encourage staff to get out on the ground every time they go 
through a process like this.  Mr. Rankin believed that when staff finally did this, they 
began to pick up some of his suggestions and concepts.  He asked the Board to look at the 
suggestions in his letter before approving the Resolution and Order tonight.   
 
Mr. Rankin emphasized that flexibility is a big issue for his clients:  flexibility as it 
relates to transportation and to location of parks.  He said that when you do a concept 
plan, it begins to solidify those elements.  Mr. Rankin stated that as those elements go 
forward in a community plan, things get further solidified.  He wanted to make sure that 
there is plenty of flexibility in the process.  Mr. Rankin had some ideas that he was not 
prepared to present tonight but said these will be helpful through the community planning 
process.  He asked that the Board include two more statements in the Resolution and 
Order: 
 

1. “It appearing to the Board that flexibility, particularly in the location and 
implementation of transportation and park facilities and areas of special concern, 
is necessary in implementing the Concept Plan during the community planning 
stage of the West Bull Mountain Community Planning process; and” 

 
Mr. Rankin was now informed that he was out of testimony time.  He asked the Board to 
ensure that flexibility will be part of this process.  (Refer to Meeting File for remainder of 
suggestions.) 
 
Vice Chair Strader was not sure where Mr. Rankin stands on this matter. 
 
Mr. Rankin replied that he supports this with the caveat that there be flexibility in the 
transportation and park locations setting.  He said that most of what he and his clients 
have suggested has been adopted.  However, Mr. Rankin stated that there are still areas 
where there are difficulties. 
 
Vice Chair Strader’s understanding was that this Resolution and Order provides the 
greatest flexibility that we could possibly have. 
 
Joanne Rice affirmed that this is correct.  She said that with streets, for example, staff 
refers to them as preferred route locations and that alignments would need to be changed  



 
to respond to environmental, topographical and geological restraints or additional 
engineering analysis.  Ms. Rice stated that the next phase will deal with what the actual 
zoning is and staff will look at where property lines are and topographical issues for some 
of those roads.  She believed that enough flexibility is written in such that we do not need 
to make any adjustments to the Resolution and Order.  Ms. Rice stated that several of Mr. 
Rankin’s recommendations are the types of things that would be addressed in the 
upcoming work program and not in the Resolution and Order. 
 
John Rankin asked Ms. Rice to provide him with notice of the work program when it 
goes before the Board because he would like to participate in that process. 
 
Commissioner Rogers commented that John Rankin’s Dad, Howard Rankin, was 
probably one of the premier bond counsels in the State of Oregon.  He spotted three 
things in John Rankin’s letter that have to do with process.  Commissioner Rogers asked 
him to elaborate. 
 
Mr. Rankin said that the process was difficult because there was one property owner on 
the SWG; he could not remember if a property owner was on the TAC.  He stated that he 
and his eight property owners spent thousands of dollars on engineering, planning, re-
mapping, etc to show that pretty pictures of curvy or linear roads would not work.  Mr. 
Rankin said that when he tried to present that information to the TAC or SWG, there was 
too short a time to testify.  He went on to say that the times to talk were at the beginning 
and end of the meeting.  Mr. Rankin said speakers would have to anticipate what was 
going to happen at the beginning of the meeting to present a plan that had significant 
elements different from the preferred plan.  He complained that they got to speak at the 
end, after a decision had been made.  Mr. Rankin wanted public comment to be allowed 
right after the agenda item is presented, followed by deliberation and the decision.   
 
Commissioner Rogers hoped that staff would look at the process to make sure it is very 
open and that there is the ability to challenge before decisions are made.   
 
Vice Chair Strader asked staff about TAC composition. 
 
Ms. Rice responded that there were two property owners on the SWG—one from Area 63 
and one from Area 64.  She said that staff will look at the process used and how 
adjustments can be made to it. 
 
John Weathers, 16399 SW Hoops Court, Tigard, Oregon, submitted a printout of a 
PowerPoint presentation, which may be found in the Meeting File.  He informed the 
Board that he lives in Scholls Country Estates, which is located right next to Area 64 and 
is composed of approximately 152 families.  Mr. Weathers said that after Planning staff 
told the neighborhood what was going on, neighbors put together a petition that 126 
families signed.  He stated that this petition led to key changes to the concept plan.  Mr. 
Weathers focused on the community park, which the preferred plan wished to place west 
of Roy Rogers Road.  He reported that after talking with the neighborhood, staff moved  



 
the park to a different location.  Mr. Weathers wanted the plan to contain flexibility.  He 
believed that the concept plan, as drafted, is clear that there is plenty of flexibility to 
move park locations.  Mr. Weathers referenced a letter from Perkins Coie on behalf of 
West Hills, asking to change the wording from “limited adjustments” to “reasonable 
adjustments”.  He was perplexed by this proposed change and not sure what problem it is 
trying to solve.  Mr. Weathers was aware that the community park is on West Hills 
property and that West Hills voted against this location as a SWG member.  He thought 
that the park is where it should be.  Mr. Weathers favored changing location of parks for 
only the right reasons.  He did not want compromises to result in another Bull Mountain 
development that does not have an adequate park system or park.  
 
Steve McCracken, 16412 SW Luke Lane, Tigard, Oregon, said that his family has lived 
here for over 16 years.  His concern regarding Luke Lane is that it not be a preferred pass 
through street as part of this proposal.  Mr. McCracken said that he has little sympathy 
for people who move into a neighborhood containing an airport and then complain about 
the noise.  Alternately, he has tremendous sympathy for people who move to quiet 
neighborhoods and then jurisdictions change the quietness and cul-de-sac features of the 
neighborhood.  Mr. McCracken said that he moved from another cul-de-sac to Luke 
Lane, expecting that it would remain the same while his family lived there.  He stated that 
every feature of Luke Lane suggests that it is a cul-de-sac but the plan is to punch 
through that street to access this new area.  Mr. McCracken said that certain roads in 
Scholls Country Estates are pending pass-through but they are straight.  He stated that his 
street has never had a sign indicating that it was pending pass-through.  Mr. McCracken 
requested that the Board drive to Luke Lane to see that it is a serene quiet neighborhood 
and that residents want to keep it that way. 
 
It was moved to adopt the concept plan and to authorize the Chair to sign the Resolution 
and Order to memorialize the action. 
 
Motion – Rogers 
2nd – Brian 
Vote – 5-0 
 
Commissioner Rogers came to tonight’s meeting really wanting to hear testimony 
because he was on the fence as to whether or not to move forward with this item.  Based 
upon the Worksession discussion and testimony tonight, he was prepared to move 
forward.   
 
Chairman Brian expressed appreciation for all of the comments offered tonight by the 
residents and property owners in the area.  He noted that a concern was expressed about 
how things tend to solidify over time and get very difficult to change.  In general, 
Chairman Brian agreed with that from his experience.  However, he said that when you 
look at the larger context of how we have operated in North Bethany after the concept 
was adopted, there have been a number of changes to the plan.  Chairman Brian stated 
that when you get into the details of the infrastructure; the size, scope and location; the  



 
financing and who is responsible—these things move around.  He underscored the staff 
report in that the concept plan is a concept and is further subject to a lot of work and a lot 
of citizen/owner participation.  Chairman Brian thought flexibility is good and pointed 
out that it must be based upon reasonable findings rather than whims.  He recalled that 
this is similar to where we were a year ago with North Bethany and defines what the 
work is from here on out.   
 
Chairman Brian disagreed with the idea of calling it a diagram because after thousands of 
dollars and two to three years of work, this is not just a diagram.  He observed that there 
are volumes of data, research, findings and analysis that have gotten us this far.  
Chairman Brian recognized that it is not perfect or final but reiterated that it would be 
demeaning to the process to call it a diagram when everyone thought they were working 
on a concept.  He supported leaving it as a concept plan, with various references in the 
report and record as to its non-binding nature. 
 
Commissioner Rogers, too, appreciated the testimony tonight.  He emphasized that this is 
a concept plan that we can change.  Commissioner Rogers said that we need to do some 
work with Tigard and Beaverton to make certain that we understand their concerns and 
implement as many of those as we can.  He stated that it is important to make sure that 
our process is very transparent and allows anyone to participate/testify.  Commissioner 
Rogers found it compelling that we do not move the park around like an afterthought 
when we have thoughtfully sited it.  He was not certain we can always not go down 
somebody’s street to open up new areas but favored taking a look at that situation.  
Commissioner Rogers said that if there are other avenues to access these new areas 
without going through what appears to be a cul-de-sac, that makes sense.  He was not 
saying we can do that but wanted to be open to that possibility.  Commissioner Rogers 
thanked all of the people who participated in this long process.  He noted that the Board 
has had both Bethany and Bull Mountain to work on and said that these were only a piece 
of this year’s work plan.  Commissioner Rogers hoped everyone would continue to 
participate as we go into Phase II. 
 
Commissioner Schouten wanted to hear from staff now. 
 
Joanne Rice informed the Board that relative to Luke Lane and the connections into the 
neighborhood to the east, access to Scholls Ferry Road has been proposed as a way to 
ensure that there will not be a lot of cut-through traffic going through that area.  She 
sympathized with Mr. McCracken because the street was built as a cul-de-sac but on 
paper when it was designed, it was to go through.  Ms. Rice said that this is something 
that staff will have to look at very carefully.  She stated that as part of the work program 
for the work that is coming up, staff will take to heart all of the comments that have been 
made—particularly about the public involvement process.  Ms. Rice said that staff will 
package all this information so that it is readily available to everyone so that when the 
next phase of work happens, all this work will be there as well as the record from this 
hearing to indicate the testimony that was provided and also comments from the Board. 
 



 
Commissioner Schouten recognized that people who live in existing neighborhoods have 
very specific concerns and appreciated them.  He said that we are at a very preliminary 
stage at this point.  In terms of cul-de-sacs, Commissioner Schouten commented that we 
have been getting away from those and do not want to build any more of them.  He stated 
that in some circumstances, we may want to eliminate some of them because they make it 
very difficult for people to be able to access places.  Commissioner Schouten pointed out 
that not everyone will be driving and cul-de-sacs make it much more difficult to get to 
places on foot or on bike.  He said that cul-de-sacs have caused situations where people 
have to drive a half mile to get a few hundred yards to some other point.  Commissioner 
Schouten stated that regarding mass transit, there are a lot of parts of the county where 
we would like to see better bus service because not everybody can afford to own a car, 
not everyone is old enough to drive a car, and some seniors cannot drive a car.  He spoke 
of the need for transit in our county and added that the county is actually underserved.  
Commissioner Schouten said that it is fairly doubtful that there will be any kind of transit 
in this neighborhood because there are a lot of other places with a pressing need but he 
did not want to preclude that at some point in time there could be bus service in this area.  
He understood that people living in existing neighborhoods have very specific needs and 
those will have to be addressed over time as we get into greater detail going beyond the 
concept plan. 
 
Chairman Brian stated that things have changed regionally over the last 10 or 20 years.  
He said that topics have been exhaustively discussed with lots of citizen participation 
discussions about what we want this region to look like over the next several decades.  
Chairman Brian stated that there is a general agreement that we have to use the land that 
is inside the Urban Growth Boundary to get more performance and density out of it.  He 
explained that we have to be sure that as we receive our growth, it does not push or force 
sprawl out into the farm and forest land.  Chairman Brian said that those who have been 
on the Board for many years have seen many fields developed.  He noted that it is not just 
the developers but governmental policies to get better land use performance out of our 
land to accommodate the growth without sprawling into farm and forest areas.  Chairman 
Brian said that it is always difficult when people face increased density, which is what 
happens when you live close in to an urban area.  He stated that it is difficult but is the 
reality; he did not think it is going away as a regional policy. 
 
Vice Chair Strader agreed with the Chairman’s comments regarding the similarities to 
North Bethany.  However, her caveat is that North Bethany did not have nearly the 
options that Bull Mountain has.  Having worked on North Bethany for the past five years, 
Vice Chair Strader would not wish a development on any of her colleagues in the region.  
She recognized that it is a very difficult process in this region to develop any kind of 
neighborhood because those people who have supported you for years feel that you 
should be with them, even when you have to make very tough decisions under very 
different criteria than those who live in the neighborhoods would have for themselves.  
Vice Chair Strader stated that for elected officials who develop healthy and sustainable 
neighborhoods, criteria are public safety, how to finance, how to develop a complete 
community with parks, good schools, access to transportation, public transportation, etc.   



 
She did not blame people who tell the Board that they do not want development in their 
neighborhoods.  Vice Chair Strader grew up in Hillsboro when its population was less 
than 10,000 and would love to go back to those days.  However, she pointed out that 
those days are long gone.  Vice Chair Strader clarified that this does not mean that she 
does not love what Hillsboro has become because it is a wonderful, vibrant community 
that has kept its agricultural community.  She foresaw a lot of change on the horizon:  she 
did not think North Bethany is done and Bull Mountain is a long way from being done.  
Vice Chair Strader said that it will take a lot of heavy lifting from community members 
and an understanding that this is not personal but rather that this is very much how public 
policy is developed.  She acknowledged that it is very messy but felt that as long as we 
keep it aboveboard and not so personalized, we can do what we did in North Bethany, 
namely, create another really good community in Bull Mountain.  Vice Chair Strader, 
who will leave the Board in January, wished her colleagues well in both of those 
neighborhoods because they are very important to the future of Washington County.    
 
3.b. 
RO 10-107 
Approve Policy for Mid-Block Pedestrian and Trail Crossings (All CPOs) 
 
Greg Miller stated that the purpose of this policy is to adopt a procedure to allow new 
pedestrian crossings to be established at mid-block locations in uncontrolled intersections 
on roads under county jurisdiction based upon an engineering study by the applicant and 
review and approval by the County Engineer.  He said that in the past, Washington 
County has approved pedestrian crossings only at road intersections with few exceptions.  
Mr. Miller explained that this was based on the belief that this was the only safe and 
practical system for drivers and pedestrians.  He said that now, conditions and public 
attitudes are changing:  new trails are being planned in many locations and pedestrian and 
bicycle facilities (including those trails) are essential to provide multi-modal access and 
mobility within a transportation system. Mr. Miller stated that ideally, pedestrian and trail 
crossings would occur at road intersections having traffic signals so that road crossings 
could be made safely with minimal additional improvements.  He recognized that many 
proposed trail crossings are in the middle of blocks between road intersections and 
significant crossing improvements may be needed for adequate safety.  Mr. Miller said 
that many existing roads have been designed primarily for vehicle movement and parallel 
pedestrian travel but not for substantial pedestrian crossings apart from road intersections.  
He stated that as a result, some of these new pedestrian crossings will require major 
capital improvements, given road width, high speeds and large volumes of traffic.  Mr. 
Miller remarked that each one is unique.   
 
Mr. Miller said that this policy authorizes the County Engineer to approve a modification 
or design exception under County Code Chapter 15.08 for the crossing, which would 
allow it to be constructed through an appropriate permit.  He stated that this procedure 
attempts to balance the needs of vehicles and pedestrian travel to allow new crossings to  
 
 



be established where all listed factors bearing on the safety of the crossing have been 
analyzed and where the crossing incorporates all reasonable, practicable and appropriate 
safety provisions.  Mr. Miller summarized that safety is number one.   
 
Commissioner Schouten acknowledged receipt of letters, such as from Tualatin Hills 
Park and Recreation District, and that staff made additional revisions.  He asked staff to 
elaborate on these. 
 
Greg Miller indicated that there were two significant changes: 
 

 One paragraph requires that if a crossing is proposed within 300 feet of a 
controlled intersection, the trail users would have to be diverted to the road 
intersection and use the signals there to cross the street.  THPRD said we needed 
to be a little bit more flexible about that rather than an absolute prohibition.  We 
added language where if the County Engineer decided that that crossing was not 
appropriate where proposed and needed to go to the nearest intersection, then the 
applicant could come back in with further information.  There would be a 
discussion and they could attempt to change the County Engineer’s mind.  
Failing that, they could propose a grade crossing, which is much more expensive 
but also safe.   

 The other significant change is in the last paragraph, where it talked about the 
possibility of an applicant wanting to appeal the decision of the County 
Engineer.  First step would be to discuss things with the County Engineer and 
attempt to reach a negotiated agreement.  If that failed, they would use the policy 
that is in County Code Chapter 15.08, which is part of the road standards to 
appeal a design exception to the road standards. 

 
Chairman Brian asked who, typically, would be the applicant.  He wondered if it would 
be the city, the park district, or some other entity. 
 
Mr. Miller responded that it could be any.  He said that most of the road crossings 
identified so far are THPRD trails but he added that there are a couple of real significant 
ones that will belong to the City of Hillsboro.  Mr. Miller suspected that other cities, as 
they develop their local community trails, will have similar issues and requests. 
 
Chairman Brian asked if private parties or private non-profits would be able to initiate the 
review also. 
 
Mr. Miller replied that anyone could initiate the application. 
 
It was moved to approve the revised Washington County Mid-Block Pedestrian Crossing 
Approval Process. 
 
Motion – Rogers 
2nd – Schouten 
Vote – 5-0 



 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MO 10-354 
Establish December Board of Commissioners Meeting Schedule 
 
This item was removed from the Consent Agenda and is now taken up for consideration. 
 
Commissioner Duyck proposed that the December 21, 2010 meeting—which was 
recommended to be cancelled—be changed to “pending”.  He explained that the Board 
does not know what is going to happen with any action that may need to be taken 
regarding reserves.  Commissioner Duyck said that if the Board needs to do something 
before the end of the year, he would like to have maximum flexibility to do that.  He 
indicated that there will be revised wording in the agenda item, as follows: 
 
December 7, 2010: 8:30 a.m. Worksession; 10:00 a.m. Board Meeting 
 
December 14, 2010: 4:00 p.m. Worksession; 6:30 p.m. Board Meeting 
 
December 21, 2010: Reserved as needed. 
 
December 28, 2010: Cancelled. 
 
Commissioner Duyck reiterated that this is for maximum flexibility and does not 
necessarily mean that we will have a meeting.  He said that this keeps the option open. 
 
Chairman Brian stated that this could even be a telephonic meeting. 
 
It was moved to approve the proposed changes to the December Board of Commissioners 
meeting schedule. 
 
Motion – Duyck 
2nd – Rogers 
Vote – 5-0 
 
4. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS (5 MINUTE OPPORTUNITY) 
 
None. 
 
5. BOARD ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Chairman Brian wished everyone a happy and safe Thanksgiving. 
 
Vice Chair Strader sent “Happy Thanksgiving” wishes to everyone in Washington 
County and the State of Oregon. 
 
 



 
Commissioner Schouten echoed the Thanksgiving wishes and reminded everyone that 
there will be no Board Meeting next Tuesday since it is a fifth Tuesday. 
 
6. ADJOURNMENT:  7:55 p.m. 
 
Motion – Rogers 
2nd – Schouten 
Vote – 5-0 
 
 
 
MINUTES APPROVED THIS ____ DAY _________________________ 2010 
 
 
 
_______________________________ ______________________________ 
RECORDING SECRETARY  CHAIRMAN 
 
 



 
ORDINANCE No. 12- 
Page 1 
 

CITY OF TIGARD, OREGON 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL 

ORDINANCE NO. 12-      
 
AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT CPA 2012-00002 TO 
AMEND THE TIGARD COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP TO INCLUDE LAND USE 
DESIGNATIONS FOR THE RIVER TERRACE COMMUNITY PLAN AREA BASED ON 
RECOMMENDED LAND USES FOUND IN WASHINGTON COUNTY’S WEST BULL MT. 
CONCEPT PLAN AND AMEND THE CURRENT TIGARD COMPREHENSIVE PLAN GOAL 14: 
URBANIZATION POLICIES. 
 
 
WHEREAS, Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted by Resolution and Order the West Bull 
Mt. Concept Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Tigard signed an intergovernmental agreement with Washington County to refine the 
concept plan into the River Terrace Community Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the River Terrace Community Plan will put into place a means to implement the vision of the 
concept plan through zoning, development code regulations and other measures that will make urban 
development possible; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Tigard was awarded grant monies as part of the intergovernmental agreement and the 
proposed amendment will allow access to funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city has proposed an amendment to the Tigard Comprehensive Plan Map to include land use 
designations for the River Terrace Community Plan area based on recommended land uses in the concept 
plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city has proposed an amendment to the Tigard Comprehensive Plan by updating policies 
corresponding to Statewide Planning Goal 14; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Tigard Planning Commission held a public hearing, which was noticed in accordance with 
city standards, on December 3, 2012, and recommended approval of the proposed CPA 2012-00002 by 
motion and with vote in support; and 
 
WHEREAS, on December 11, 2012, the Tigard City Council held a public hearing, which was noticed in 
accordance with city standards, to consider the Commission’s recommendation on CPA 2012-00002, hear 
public testimony, and apply applicable decision-making criteria; and 
 
WHEREAS, on December 11, 2012, the Tigard City Council adopted CPA 2012-00002 pursuant to the 
public hearing and its deliberations; and 
 



 
ORDINANCE No. 12- 
Page 2 
 

WHEREAS, Council’s decision to adopt CPA 2012-00002 was based on the findings and conclusions 
found in Exhibit “C” and the associated land use record which is incorporated herein by reference and is 
contained in land use file CPA 2012-00002. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF TIGARD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1: Tigard City Council amends the Tigard Comprehensive Plan Map to include land use 

designations for the River Terrace Community Plan area as shown in Exhibit “A”.  
 
SECTION 2: Tigard City Council amends Tigard Comprehensive Plan to include new text as shown in 

Exhibit “B”.  
 
SECTION 3: Tigard City Council adopts the findings and conclusions contained in Exhibit “C” in 

support of the Council’s action and to be the legislative basis for this ordinance.  
 
SECTION 4: This ordinance shall be effective 30 days after its passage by the Council, signature by the 

Mayor, and posting by the City Recorder. 
 
 
  
PASSED: By                                  vote of all Council members present after being read by number 

and title only, this            day of                                  , 2012. 
 
 
    
  Catherine Wheatley, City Recorder 
 
 
APPROVED: By Tigard City Council this             day of                                        , 2012. 
 
 
    
  Craig Dirksen, Mayor  
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
  
City Attorney 



FERRY

SCHOLLS

SW ROY ROGERS ROAD

SCHOLLS

SW

SW
   HARLEQUIN  DR

SW   SH ELDR
AK

E 
  W

AY

OLD

RO
AD

SW O'NEILL CT

SW

SW BECKY LANGESW LUKE LN
CT

SW WINTERGREEN STRO
S H

AK

SWCROM WELL CT
SW GLAZE CT

SW   ROCKROSE   LANESWGEARIN CT

SW
  1

61
ST

 P
L.

SW HOOPS CT S W DAHLIA CT

UPLANDS

SW

S W SNAPDRAGON LN

SW

BAKER LN

SW LEEDING LN

SW
 15

6T
H 

TE
RR

SW OLD ROSHAK RD

ST

SW MILAN LN

SW
TE

R
1 5

9T
H

SW MURRELET DR

SW

SW
RD

SW

BARROWS

RD

ME
NL

OR JENSHIRE

SW FERN ST

SW HORIZON BLVD

LN

SW SEAVIEW LANE

SW KLIPSAN CT

SW TUSCANY

ROAD

LANE

SW   HARLEQUIN   DRIVE

SW SORA CT

WAYCANVASBACK

CT

SW GOLDENEYE

SW

SW
 16

0T
H 

TE
R

BARROWS

TEAROSE WAY
SW BULRUSH LN

AV
E

15
7T

H
SW

SW YARROW

WAY

DR
IV

E

SW SUNDEW DRIVE

BRISTLECONE

WA
Y

SW WINTERGREEN ST

15
4T

H  A
VE SW ROUNDTREE

SW CATTAIL CT

SW KEERINS CT

SW  DEW BERRY  LANE

TUSCANY STSW

AV
E

FL
OR

EN
TIN

E

SW MILAN

ROSHAK
SW

ST
16

3R
D

SW
PL

SW
 16

2N
D 

TE
RR

AC
E

U P
LA

ND
S

DR
IV

E

SW
 16

3R
D TE

R

SW SW
VE

NE
ZIA

TE
RLORENZOLNSW

SU
NR

IS
E

SW

16
4T

H
SW AV

E PA LERMO
SW

SW

LN

DRIVE

DRIVE
NAHCOTTA

SW

SW KLIPSAN LANE

SW
SANDRIDGE

SW

SW 152 ND TERR
SW MAYVIEW WAY

WA
Y

SW
 B

RI
AN

NE

WAY

SW
  K

A M
ER

O N

LA
NE

FE
R N

SW
 17

5T
H A

VE

14
8T

H
AV

E

DRIVE

CREEKSHIRE

SW KRAF
T P

L

SW 
KR

AFT LOOP

SW
 1 4

7T
H 

P L

ST
REE

T

SW

SW
  1

53
RD

  T
ER

R

SW
S W

SW  FIRTREE  DR

SW

WAY

DR
SW

SW CATALINA DR

WA
Y

SW
 B

RI
AN

NESW
MA

YV
IE

W

SW

STAHL DR

SW

SW
   1

60
TH

   A
VE

NU
E

SW BRISTLECONE WAY

AD
MI

NI
ST

RA
TIO

N
PO

W
ER

BO
NN

EV
ILL

E

SW

ROSHAK RD

BULL MOUNTAIN RD

SW
 ROY ROGERS ROAD

15
8 T

H  A
VE

SW 147T H TERR

SW ROSHAK RD

SW RHUS CT

SW PEAK CT

SW
 15

7T
H PL

SW
 15

7T
H PL

SW COLONY PL

SW
 16

2N
D 

AV
E

SW COLONY PL

KOVEN CT

SW COLONY CT

SW
 15

0T
H A

VE

SW WOOD PL

AV
EN

UE

SW COLON Y DR

SW COLONY DR SW
 15

3R
D 

AV
E

SW
 G

RA
ND

VIEW LN

SW

 164TH AV

SW BULL MOUNTAIN RD

SW
 CHARDONNAY AVE

SW
 15

2N
D 

PL

SW
  1

61
ST

AV
E

BULL MOUNTAIN RD SWSW
 B

UL
L M

TN
 R

D
NEMARNIKDRSW 14

8T
H

ENNACT S.W.SW GARDNER CT

SW CRESTRIDGECTSW PLEASANTVIEW CT
PINOT CTSW

 R
A S

K  
T E

RR

JU
LIE

T  
TE

RR
AC

E

S W DEKALB ST

SW MOET CT
BURGUNDY ST

SW
 DO ZIE R W Y

144TH AVESW
 CHARD ON NAY AVE

CABERNET CT

CABERNET CT
SW

 15
0T

H A
VE

C AB ERNET DR

HAWK RIDG E ROAD

SW
 149TH PL

SW WOODHUE ST

SW
 14 7T H AVE

SW  S HO U E  D
R

SW ROSARIO LN

SW
 1

46
TH

 AV
E

SW TEWKESBURY

SW
 B

R O
O K

LE
T P

LA
CE

SW

SW
 JU

LIE
T T

E R
RA

C E

SW
 14

8T
H 

TE
R

SW SOPHIA LANE

SW
15

0T
H

AV
E

S W
 14

9 T
H 

TE
R

BURGUNDY C T
SW

SW PENNIE LN

SW POLLARD LN

SW COOPER LN

AV
E

 SW
 16

2N
D

SW

SW DEKALB ST

SW BRAY LN

SW
 14

4T
H 

TE
R

SW
 14

5T
H 

TE
R

SW

SW

SW WESTMINSTER DR

SW CHESTERFIELD L N

SW

AYNSLEY

SW BEEF BEND ROAD

SW BEEF BEND RD

SW BEEF BEND RD

SW
 14

7T
H 

AV
E

SW
 15

0T
H A

VE

SW JORDY CT

SW TREVOR LN

SW 1 46TH AVE

SW BEEF BEND RD

SW HUNTWOOD CT

SW
HU

NT
WO

OD
PL

HAZELTINE LN

SUNRISE LN

KILDEER CT

16
3R

D

KESSLER LN

Proposed Comprehensive Plan Designations
October 29, 2012 - CPA2012-00002

´
Urban Growth Boundary

Proposed Designations
Tigard Comp Plan

Low Density
Medium Density
High Density
Neighborhood Commercial
Open Space
Public Institution

Slopes

Community Plan Area
Tigard City Boundary

Taxlot Boundary

0 0.25 0.50.125
Miles



City of Tigard 
CPA2012-00002 

Proposed Tigard Comprehensive Plan Text Changes 
 
 

The City of Tigard proposes to amend the Goal 14: Urbanization chapter of its comprehensive plan 

to include the policies below.  The policies will be located under existing Tigard Comprehensive 

Plan Goal 14.3.  The policies are intended to provide guidance during the preparation and after 

adoption of the River Terrace Community Plan. 

 

 

5.  Metro brought areas known as Area 63, Area 64 and Roy Rogers West Area within the Urban 

Growth Boundary.  These areas are known as the River Terrace Community Planning area.  The 

City of Tigard shall be the designated service provider for the area. 

6. The City shall prepare and adopt a River Terrace Community Plan for the area.  The basis for the 

River Terrace Community Plan shall be the land use designations from the West Bull Mountain 

Concept Plan. Refinements to the West Bull Mountain Concept Plan shall be considered during the 

public planning process for the River Terrace Community Plan. 

7. The City shall identify appropriate urban zoning districts and regulations as part of the River 

Terrace Community Plan, which shall comply with the Statewide Planning Goals and the Metro 

Urban Growth Management Functional Plan. 

8. The City shall defer land use and zoning decisions within the area to Washington County, as 

outlined in the Intergovernmental Agreement dated April 24, 2012, until the River Terrace 

Community Plan is adopted. 

9.  If all areas are not annexed by the City by the time the River Terrace Community Plan is adopted, 

the City shall seek an amendment to the Intergovernmental Agreement of April 24, 2012 

transferring land use and zoning responsibility for the River Terrace Community Planning area, 

including unincorporated areas, to the City.   

10.  Once the River Terrace Community Plan is adopted, and upon annexation to the City, urban 

zoning districts shall be adopted for these areas.  If unincorporated areas remain, rural zoning shall 

be retained for these areas. 

11. The City shall prepare a public facilities plan and an infrastructure financing plan as part of the 

River Terrace Community Plan. 



12. No application of City zoning or development shall be approved by the city within the River 

Terrace Community Plan Area until such time as a full analysis under the Transportation Planning 

Rule (TPR) (OAR 660-012-0060), which shall include a transportation funding strategy prepared in 

coordination with Washington County, has been completed and approved for the River Terrace 

Community Plan Area by the City.  The funding strategy should identify transportation 

improvements proposed to resolve transportation system impacts generated by development of the 

River Terrace Community Area, the responsible party for constructing improvements, their 

associated cost estimates and public and/or private funding sources, including sources that may be 

specified by any applicable memoranda of understanding or development agreement.  If the funding 

strategy includes transportation Supplemental Development Charges, it should identify the process 

and timing for their approval and implementation. 

 



 
 

                                          

STAFF REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION   
CPA 2012-00002                                                PAGE 1 OF 17  

    Agenda Item: 
                                                                             Hearing Date:  December 3, 2012   Time:  7:00 PM 

 

 
STAFF REPORT TO THE 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

FOR THE CITY OF TIGARD, OREGON 
       

                                                                                                                    120 DAYS = N/A      

                                                                                                                                                
SECTION I. APPLICATION SUMMARY 
 
FILE NAME:            ADOPT WEST BULL MT. CONCEPT PLAN RECOMMENDED 

LAND USES AND ASSOCIATED POLICIES 
 
FILE NO.: Comprehensive Plan Amendment (CPA) CPA2012-00002 
 
PROPOSAL:  To amend the current Tigard Comprehensive Plan Map to include map 

designations for the River Terrace Community Plan area based on 
recommended land uses found in Washington County’s West Bull Mt. 
Concept Plan; to amend the current Tigard Comprehensive Plan Goal 14: 
Urbanization goals, policies, and recommended action measures. 

 
APPLICANT: City of Tigard 

13125 SW Hall Boulevard 
Tigard, OR  97223 

OWNER: N/A 

 
LOCATION: River Terrace Community Plan Area 
 
 
APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA: 
 Community Development Code Chapters 18.380 and 18.390; 

Comprehensive Plan Goals 1, 2, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 ,12, 13, and 14; Metro 
Functional Plan Title 11; and Statewide Planning Goals 1, 2, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 
10, 11, 12, 13, and 14. 

 
 
 
SECTION II. STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends the Planning Commission finds this request to meet the necessary approval 
criteria and RECOMMENDS the Tigard City Council amends the Tigard Comprehensive Plan text 

and map as determined through the public hearing process. 

 
 
 



 
 

                                          

STAFF REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION   
CPA 2012-00002                                                PAGE 2 OF 17  

SECTION III. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Project History 
The city has agreed via an intergovernmental agreement (IGA) with Washington County to refine 
its West Bull Mt. Concept Plan into the River Terrace Community Plan. The community plan will 
put into place a means to implement the vision of the concept plan through zoning, development 
code regulations and other measures that will make urban development possible. The process will 
also include updates to utility, parks and transportation master plans, including the financial 
strategies necessary to fund and maintain required infrastructure improvements. 
 
The concept plan was created over the course of three years with the help of a stakeholder working 
group (SWG) and a technical advisory committee (TAC).  Project goals and principles guided the 
development of the land use, transportation and parks framework maps. These maps represented 
the vision stakeholders agreed upon for the future development of the area. They provide a variety 
of residential densities and housing types; disperse densities throughout the community; provide 
appropriate amounts of commercial uses, parks, trails and open space; and outline a multi-modal 
network of connected streets and walkable blocks. The SWG and TAC both voted to forward the 
concept plan to the Washington County Planning Commission and Board of Commissioners for 
consideration and adoption. In November 2010, the Planning Commission voted to recommend 
the Board adopt the concept plan. In December 2010, the Board adopted the concept plan by 
Resolution and Order. 
 
Since the conclusion of the concept plan, the city has annexed a portion of the area (Area 64) and 
petitions have been filed by property owners to annex the remainder of the area within the urban 
growth boundary (Areas 63 and Roy Rogers West). The city will complete the River Terrace 
Community Plan for all of these areas. 
 
City staff has developed a work program to guide the project through completion. This will include 
a lot of technical work to ensure the community plan meets the state and regional planning 
requirements, as well as a public involvement plan to engage stakeholders in any necessary 
refinements to the concept plan as the process moves forward. Staff anticipates completion of the 
River Terrace Community Plan in summer 2014. 
 
The first recommendation is to adopt the concept plan recommended land uses (Exhibit A) into 
the Tigard Comprehensive Plan. This action will set expectations for the community planning 
process, as well as allowing the city to access a portion of the CET funds from Metro that were 
given to the city through the IGA with Washington County. A number of policies will also be 
recommended for adoption to guide regulation of the River Terrace area during and after 
completion of the community planning process (Exhibit A). These recommended land uses will be 
further analyzed as part of the community planning process and if there are needed refinements, 
recommendations will be brought back to planning commission and city council for adoption at the 
end of the process. 
 
Proposal Description  
The primary intent of the amendment is to ensure the City’s Comprehensive Plan remains a 
viable tool for decision-makers.  By adopting the amendment, the City will set expectations for 
the River Terrace Community Plan process and start the transformation from vision to zoning 
and regulations for the area.  
 

 



 
 

                                          

STAFF REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION   
CPA 2012-00002                                                PAGE 3 OF 17  

SECTION IV.   SUMMARY OF REPORT  
 Applicable criteria, Commission findings and conclusions  

 • Tigard Community Development Code  
   o Chapter 18.380  
   o Chapter 18.390  

 • Applicable Comprehensive Plan Policies  
   o Chapter 1: Citizen Involvement 
   o Chapter 2: Land Use Planning 
   o Chapter 5: Natural Resources and Historic Areas 
   o Chapter 6: Environmental Quality 
   o Chapter 7: Hazards 
   o Chapter 8: Parks, Recreation, Trails, and Open Space 
   o Chapter 9: Economic Development 
   o Chapter 10: Housing 
   o Chapter 11: Public Facilities and Services 
   o Chapter 12: Transportation 
   o Chapter 13: Energy Conservation  
   o Chapter 14: Urbanization 

 • Metro Urban Growth Management Functional Plan Title 11 
 • Statewide Planning Goals  

           o Goals 1, 2, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, and 14. 
 
 City Department and outside agency comments  
 

SECTION V.    APPLICABLE CRITERIA AND COMMISSION FINDINGS 
 
 
CITY OF TIGARD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE (TITLE 18) 
 
Chapter 18.380: Zoning Map and Text Amendments 
Chapter 18.380.020 Legislative Amendments to the Title and Map 
A. Legislative amendments. Legislative zoning map and text amendments shall be 
undertaken by means of a Type IV procedure, as governed by Section 18.309.060G 
 
Findings: The amendment to the Tigard Comprehensive Plan establishes policies to be applied 
generally throughout the River Terrace Community Plan Area; and therefore, the application is 
being processed as a Type IV procedure, Legislative Amendment, as governed by Section 
18.390.060G. 
 
 
Chapter 18.390:  Decision-Making Procedures 
Chapter 18.390.020. Description of Decision-Making Procedures 
B.4. Type IV Procedure. Type IV procedures apply to legislative matters. Legislative 
matters involve the creation, revision, or large-scale implementation of public policy. 
Type IV matters are considered initially by the Planning Commission with final decisions 
made by the City Council. 
  
Findings: The amendment to the Tigard Comprehensive Plan establishes policies to be applied 
generally throughout the City of Tigard. Therefore was reviewed under the Type IV procedure as 
detailed in Section 18.390.060.G. In accordance with this section, the amendment was initially 
considered by the Planning Commission with City Council making the final decision. 
 
Chapter 18.390.060.G. Decision-making considerations. The recommendation by the 
Commission and the decision by the Council shall be based on consideration of the 



 
 

                                          

STAFF REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION   
CPA 2012-00002                                                PAGE 4 OF 17  

following factors: 
1. The Statewide Planning Goals and Guidelines adopted under Oregon Revised 

Statutes Chapter 197; 
2. Any federal or state statutes or regulations found applicable; 
3. Any applicable Metro regulations; 
4. Any applicable comprehensive plan policies; and 
5. Any applicable provisions of the City’s implementing ordinances. 
 
Findings: The Commission reviewed applicable Statewide Planning Goals, Metro Urban Growth 
Management Functional Plan, the Tigard Community Development Code, and the Tigard 
Comprehensive Plan. As indicated pursuant to the Commission’s findings and conclusions found 
within this staff report the amendment is consistent with this criterion. 
 
CONCLUSION: Based on the analysis above, the Commission finds that the proposed 
amendment satisfies the applicable review criteria within the Tigard Community Development 
Code. 
 
 
 
CITY OF TIGARD COMPREHENSIVE PLAN POLICIES: 

 
General Findings  
 
Finding:  The City’s Comprehensive Plan was adopted by the Tigard City Council in 1983, and 
acknowledged as being in conformance with the Statewide Planning Goals by the Land 
Conservation and Development Department (LCDC) on October 11, 1984. LCDC re-
acknowledged the plan’s compliance with the statewide planning goals through the Periodic Review 
process.   
 
Finding:   The Commission finds that the following Comprehensive Plan goals and policies apply 
to the amendment and the amendment satisfies the applicable goals and policies for the reasons 
stated below. During the course of public hearings, the Community Development Department and 
the Planning Commission provided all interested parties opportunities to identify, either orally or in 
writing, any other Comprehensive Plan goals or policies that might apply to the amendment.  No 
additional provisions were identified. 
 
 
 
 
Chapter 1: Citizen Involvement 
 
Goal 1.1 Provide citizens, affected agencies, and other jurisdictions the opportunity to 
participate in all phases of the planning process. 
 
Policy 2. The City shall define and publicize an appropriate role for citizens in each phase 
of the land use planning process. 
 
Findings: The proposal has complied with all notification requirements pursuant to Chapter 
18.390.060 of the Tigard Community Development Code.  This staff report was also available 
seven days in advance of the hearing pursuant to Chapter 18.390.070.E.b of the Tigard Community 
Development Code. 
 



 
 

                                          

STAFF REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION   
CPA 2012-00002                                                PAGE 5 OF 17  

As part of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment process, public notice of the Planning 
Commission and City Council public hearings was sent to the interested party list, River Terrace 
property owners and property owners within 500 ft. of River Terrace and published in the 
November 15, 2012 issue of The Times. The notice invited public input and included the phone 
number of a contact person to answer questions. The notice also included the address of the City’s 
webpage where the entire draft of the proposed amendment could be viewed. 
 
Policy 3. The City shall establish special citizen advisory boards and committees to provide 
input to the City Council, Planning Commission, and City staff. 
 
Findings:  The West Bull Mt. Concept Planning recommendations were endorsed by both the 
project’s steering committee and technical advisory committee. These groups included community 
stakeholders, property owners and jurisdictional partners. 
 
Policy 5. The opportunities for citizen involvement provided by the City shall be 
appropriate to the scale of the planning effort and shall involve a broad cross-section of the 
community. 
 
Findings: As outlined above, the community was given notice and opportunity to get information 
and get testify. 
 
Goal 1.2 Ensure all citizens have access to: 

A. opportunities to communicate directly to the City; and 
B. information on issues in an understandable form. 

 
Policy 1. The City shall ensure pertinent information is readily accessible to the community 
and presented in such a manner that even technical information is easy to understand. 
 
Findings: Information regarding the topics included in this Comprehensive Plan Amendment was 
available in multiple locations in an understandable format for the duration of the process. This 
included paper and electronic copies that were available in the permit center and also on the 
website. 
 
Policy 2. The City shall utilize such communication methods as mailings, posters, 
newsletters, the internet, and any other available media to promote citizen involvement and 
continue to evaluate the effectiveness of methods used. 
 
Findings: Information was distributed throughout the process via the City’s website and direct 
mailings to property owners in the River Terrace area and all property owners within 500 ft. of the 
area. 
 
Policy 5. The City shall seek citizen participation and input through collaboration with 
community organizations, interest groups, and individuals in addition to City sponsored 
boards and committees. 
 
Findings: The West Bull Mt. Concept Planning recommendations were endorsed by both the 
project’s steering committee and technical advisory committee. These groups included community 
stakeholders, property owners and jurisdictional partners. 
 
 



 
 

                                          

STAFF REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION   
CPA 2012-00002                                                PAGE 6 OF 17  

Chapter 2: Land Use Planning 
 
Goal 2.1 Maintain an up-to-date Comprehensive Plan, implementing regulations and action 
plans as the legislative basis of Tigard’s land use planning program. 
 
Policy 1: The City’s land use program shall establish a clear policy direction, comply with 
state and regional requirements, and serve its citizens’ own interests. 
 
Findings: The amendment refines the general policy direction related to Tigard Comprehensive 
Plan Goal 14: Urbanization for completion of the community plan and subsequent development 
of the River Terrace Area. The policy statements are clear and serve the interests of the citizens. 
The city coordinated the development of the proposed polices with the Oregon Department of 
Transportation, the Department of Land Conservation and Development, and Metro to ensure 
compliance with state and regional requirements. 
  
Policy 2: The City’s land use regulations, related plans, and implementing actions shall be 
consistent with and implement its Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Findings: The amendment refines the general policy direction related to Tigard Comprehensive 
Plan Goal 14: Urbanization for completion of the community plan and subsequent development 
of the River Terrace Area. It also applies comprehensive plan designations to the River Terrace 
Area that are based on the West Bull Mt. Concept Plan recommended land uses. Both will be 
used to guide the application of Tigard zoning and regulations to the area that will be consistent 
with the comprehensive plan. 
 
Policy 3. The City shall coordinate the adoption, amendment, and implementation of its 
land use program with other potentially affected jurisdictions and agencies. 
 
Findings: The City sent out request for comments on the proposed amendment to all potentially 
affected jurisdictions and agencies. All were given 14 days to respond. Any comments that were 
received are addressed in Section VII: Outside Agency Comments of this Staff Report. 
Additionally, Metro, the Oregon Department of Transportation, and the Department of Land 
Conservation and Development staff provided input throughout the development of the 
proposed amendment. 
 
Policy 20. The City shall periodically review and if necessary update its Comprehensive 
Plan and regulatory maps and implementing measures to ensure they are current and 
responsive to community needs, provide reliable information, and conform to applicable 
state law, administrative rules, and regional requirements. 
 
Findings: The proposed amendment will update the Tigard Comprehensive Plan map and 
policies to prepare for the future development of the River Terrace Area. The area has been 
brought into the urban growth boundary and a concept plan completed. The concept plan was a 
collaboration of many stakeholders, regulatory agencies, and local jurisdictions. The amendment 
will set the stage for the transformation of the concept plan into a community plan where the 
application of zoning and regulations will take place. The community plan will provide reliable 
information to make findings against applicable laws and requirements. Findings of conformance 
to applicable state and regional requirements for this amendment can be found in Section V of 
this Staff Report. 
 



 
 

                                          

STAFF REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION   
CPA 2012-00002                                                PAGE 7 OF 17  

Chapter 5: Natural Resources and Historic Areas 
 
Goal 5.1 Protect natural resources and the environmental and ecological functions they 
provide and, to the extent feasible, restore natural resources to create naturally functioning 
systems and high levels of biodiversity. 
 
Findings: As discussed in the findings made for Statewide Planning Goal 5, the amendment does 
not alter the City’s acknowledged Goal 5 inventories or land use programs. No changes will occur 
to current Natural Resource protections as the result of adopting the proposed amendment. The 
amendment does not conflict with goals and policies of this chapter of the Tigard Comprehensive 
Plan.  
 

Chapter 6: Environmental Quality 
 
Goal 6.1 Reduce air pollution and improve air quality in the community and region. 
 
Policy 3: The City shall promote land use patterns, which reduce dependency on the 
automobile, are compatible with existing neighborhoods, and increase opportunities for 
walking, biking, and /or public transit. 
 
Findings: The proposed amendment designates comprehensive plan land uses based on the 
recommended land uses found in the concept plan. The concept plan was completed using a 
principle of transportation choices and connectivity. The concept plan provided for a broad 
range of connected infrastructure that allowed convenient access for pedestrians, cyclists, drivers, 
and transit riders. It also recommended a neighborhood commercial area that is accessible by bike 
or foot from the neighborhoods adjacent to and within the planning area. Giving residents a 
variety of choices will promote the reduction of vehicle miles traveled. No transportation 
amendments are proposed at this time, but will be addressed during the community planning 
process.  
 

Chapter 7: Hazards 

 
Goal 7.2 Protect people and property from flood, landslide, earthquake, wildfire, and severe 
weather hazards.  
 
Findings: The adoption of the proposed amendment has no impact on City policies or programs 
related to hazards.  The community plan will address hazards through the application of zoning 
and code regulations. 

 

Chapter 8: Parks, Recreation, Trails, and Open Space 

 
Goal 8.1 Provide a wide variety of high quality park and open spaces for all residents, 
including both: 

a. developed areas with facilities for active recreation; and 
b. undeveloped areas for nature-oriented recreation and the protection and 

enhancement of valuable natural resources within the parks and open space 
system.  



 
 

                                          

STAFF REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION   
CPA 2012-00002                                                PAGE 8 OF 17  

 
Goal 8.2 Create a citywide network of interconnected on- and off-road pedestrian and 
bicycle trails.  
 
Findings: The adoption of the proposed amendment has no impact on City policies or programs 
related to parks, recreation, trails, and open space.  The comprehensive plan map will have open 
space designations added with the amendment, but the city has no zoning to identify properties 
for these uses. Recommended locations will be finalized through the community planning 
process and address needed parks, trails, and open space. The Tigard Parks System Master Plan 
will be updated as part of the process and guide future city facilities. 

 

Chapter 9: Economic Development 

 
Goal 9.3 Make Tigard a prosperous and desirable place to live and do business.  
 
Findings: The proposed amendment designates five acres of the River Terrace area as 
neighborhood commercial on the Tigard Comprehensive Plan map.  The concept plan intended 
this commercial area to serve as a retail, mixed-use gathering place for the neighborhoods in close 
proximity. The overall vision of the concept plan is to create a network of multi-modal 
transportation improvement to promote walking and biking through the neighborhoods to access 
the commercial area. The concept plan stakeholders recommended this approach as opposed to 
auto-oriented commercial development to make the area more desirable and livable. 
 

Chapter 10: Housing 

 
Goal 10.1 Provide opportunities for a variety of housing types to meet the diverse housing 
needs of current and future City residents.  
 
Findings: The proposed amendment designates the majority of land within the River Terrace area 
as residential on the Tigard Comprehensive Plan map, divided into low, medium, and high 
density. The range of comprehensive plan designations will allow for a variety of housing types 
on different sized lots to meet the housing needs of future residents in the area. This diversity will 
also allow the city to comply with Metro Title 11 requirement of 10 units/net developable acre. 
Tigard zoning and regulations will be applied to the area during the community planning process 
based on the proposed comprehensive plan designations. 
 
Chapter 11: Public Facilities and Services 
 
Goal 11.1 Develop and maintain a stormwater system that protects development, water 
resources, and wildlife habitat.  
 
Findings: The adoption of the proposed amendment has no impact on City policies or programs 
related to stormwater.  However, the concept plan process outlined the necessary infrastructure 
needed to accommodate the recommended land uses. The community plan will analyze the 
findings of the concept plan and update stormwater needs and cost estimates as necessary. The 
Tigard Public Facility Plan will then be updated accordingly. 
 
 



 
 

                                          

STAFF REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION   
CPA 2012-00002                                                PAGE 9 OF 17  

Goal 11.2 Secure a reliable, high quality, water supply to meet the existing and future needs 
of the community.  
 
Findings: The adoption of the proposed amendment has no impact on City policies or programs 
related to its water distribution.  However, the concept plan process outlined the necessary 
infrastructure needed to accommodate the recommended land uses. The Tigard Water Master 
Plan also accounted for the recommended land uses in the River Terrace area when calculating 
future need. The community plan will analyze the findings of the concept plan and update water 
infrastructure needs and cost estimates as necessary. The Tigard Public Facility Plan will then be 
updated accordingly. 
 
 
Goal 11.3 Develop and maintain a wastewater collection system that meets the existing and 
future needs of the community.  
 
Findings: The adoption of the proposed amendment has no impact on City policies or programs 
related to wastewater collection.  However, the concept plan process outlined the necessary 
infrastructure needed to accommodate the recommended land uses. Clean Water Services is 
currently updating its regional collection model and these results will be incorporated into the 
community planning process. The community plan will analyze the findings of the concept plan 
and update water infrastructure needs and cost estimates as necessary. The Tigard Public Facility 
Plan will then be updated accordingly. 
 

Chapter 12: Transportation 

 
Goal 12.1 Develop mutually supportive land use and transportation plans to enhance the 
livability of the community.  
 
Goal 12.2 Develop and maintain a transportation system for the efficient movement of 
people and goods.  
 
Goal 12.3 Provide and accessible, multi-modal transportation system that meets the 
mobility needs of the community. 
 
Findings: The proposed amendment is consistent with these goals. The comprehensive land use 
designations were developed through the concept planning process, which took into account the 
transportation impacts of the recommended land uses. Although no transportation improvements 
are proposed to be adopted at this time, the community planning process will analyze and refine 
the transportation proposals to support the zoning applied in the process. The concept plan was 
also completed using a principle of transportation choices and connectivity. The concept plan 
provided for a broad range of connected infrastructure that allowed convenient access for 
pedestrians, cyclists, drivers, and transit riders. The community planning process will incorporate 
findings and infrastructure needs into the Tigard 2035 Transportation System Plan and address 
the State’s Transportation Planning Rule as required. The Tigard Public Facility Plan will then be 
updated accordingly. 
 

 

 



 
 

                                          

STAFF REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION   
CPA 2012-00002                                                PAGE 10 OF 17  

Chapter 13: Energy Conservation 
 
Goal 13.1 Reduce energy consumption.  
 
Policy 1: The City shall promote the reduction of energy consumption associated with 
vehicle miles traveled through: 

A. land use patterns that reduce dependency on the automobile; 
B. public transit that is reliable, connected, and efficient; and 
C. bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure that is safe and well connected. 

 
Findings: The proposed amendment designates comprehensive plan land uses based on the 
recommended land uses found in the concept plan. The concept plan was completed using a 
principle of transportation choices and connectivity. The concept plan provided for a broad 
range of connected infrastructure that allowed convenient access for pedestrians, cyclists, drivers, 
and transit riders. It also recommended a neighborhood commercial area that is accessible by bike 
or foot from the neighborhoods adjacent to and within the planning area. Giving residents a 
variety of choices will promote the reduction of vehicle miles traveled. No transportation 
amendments are proposed at this time, but will be addressed during the community planning 
process.  
 

Chapter 14: Urbanization 
 
Goal 14.1 Provide and/or coordinate the full range of urban level services to lands and 
citizens within the Tigard City Limits.  
 
Findings: The proposed amendment adopts the recommended land uses from the concept plan 
into the Tigard Comprehensive Plan map. This is the first step of the process to plan for the 
provision of urban level services to the River Terrace area, which will be served by the city of 
Tigard. This amendment does not address the full range of services needed for the area, this will 
take place during the community planning process. The result will be an updated public facility 
plan and an infrastructure financing strategy for the future development of the area.  
 
Goal 14.2 Promote Tigard citizens’ interests in urban growth boundary expansion and other 
regional and state growth management decisions.  
 
Findings: The proposed amendment is consistent with this policy as this is the first step in 
completing the River Terrace Community Plan for areas brought within the urban growth 
boundary. The city will be the service provider for the area and completing the community plan is 
in Tigard citizens’ interest. 
 
CONCLUSION: Based on the analysis above, the Commission finds that the proposed 
amendment satisfies the applicable goals and policies contained in the City of Tigard 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 
METRO URBAN GROWTH MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONAL PLAN TITLE 11 
 
Findings: The Regional Framework Plan calls for long-range planning to ensure that areas 
brought into the UGB are urbanized efficiently and become or contribute to mixed-use, walkable, 
transit friendly communities. It is the purpose of Title 11 to guide such long-range planning for 



 
 

                                          

STAFF REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION   
CPA 2012-00002                                                PAGE 11 OF 17  

urban reserves and areas added to the UGB. It is also the purpose of Title 11 to provide interim 
protection for areas added to the UGB until city or county amendments to land use regulations to 
allow urbanization become applicable to the areas. 

 
The proposed amendment will update the Tigard Comprehensive Plan map and policies to 
prepare for the future development of the River Terrace Area. The area has been brought into 
the urban growth boundary (Areas 63 and 64 in 2002; Roy Rogers West in 2011) and a concept 
plan completed. The concept plan was a collaboration of many stakeholders, regulatory agencies, 
and local jurisdictions. The amendment will set the stage for the transformation of the concept 
plan into a community plan where the application of zoning and regulations will take place. The 
community plan will provide reliable information to make findings against all requirements of 
Title 11. 
 
The concept plan made findings against Title 11 (those in place in 2007) and found the work to 
be in compliance related to requirements for a concept plan. This included the requirement of 
average residential densities of at least 10 units per net residential acre. The concept plan averaged 
10.7 units per net residential acre in Areas 63 and 64 (216 acres and 2,311units). The 2011 urban 
growth boundary expansion included in this proposed amendment (Roy Rogers West) is subject 
to updated Title 11 rules. The new rules require a zoned capacity for a number and type of 
housing unit for new areas added to the UGB. Roy Rogers West required zoned capacity for a 
minimum of 479 dwelling units dispersed in the area or adjoining Areas 63 and 64.  The proposed 
land uses will achieve the target through application of various city zoning districts that meet the 
criteria for low and medium density residential designations (1 to 12 units/acre). The flexibility 
afforded the city during the community planning process will ensure compliance with Title 11. 
 
The proposed amendment also meets the requirements for sufficient commercial services, 
inventory of and protection plan for natural resources, and a conceptual school plan. Each of the 
three is shown with a Tigard Comprehensive Plan map designation. The commercial area will 
provide basic services for the area. The open spaces coincide with Clean Water Services setback 
requirements and the school district owns the property designated as public institution and 
anticipates the development of a school once enough homes have been built to support it. 
  
The proposed amendment also sets policy direction consistent with Title 11 for interim 
protection of areas added to the UGB. The city will not allow urban level development of the 
area until the community plan is complete and compliance with all regional and state 
requirements are confirmed. 
 
The proposed amendment is a first step to set expectations for the community planning process. 
The concept plan found compliance with Title 11 requirements and the community plan will be 
required to do the same.  The city worked with Metro, the Oregon Department of Transportation 
and Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development staffs to ensure their concerns 
were addressed for the proposed amendments. They were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on all work leading up to the document proposed for adoption. 
 
The proposed amendment (CPA2012-00002) adopts the West Bull Mt. Concept Plan 
recommended land uses into the Tigard Comprehensive Plan map and adds policies to prepare 
for the future development of the River Terrace Area. The area has been brought into the urban 
growth boundary and a concept plan completed. It will set the stage for the transformation of the 
concept plan into a community plan where the application of zoning and regulations will take 



 
 

                                          

STAFF REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION   
CPA 2012-00002                                                PAGE 12 OF 17  

place. The community plan will provide reliable information to make final findings against 
applicable laws and requirements. The proposed amendment is consistent Title 11. 
 
CONCLUSION: Based on the analysis above, the Commission finds that the proposed 
amendment is consistent with the Metro Urban Growth Management Functional Plan Title 11. 
 
 
THE STATEWIDE PLANNING GOALS AND GUIDELINES ADOPTED UNDER 
OREGON REVISED STATUTES CHAPTER 197 
 
Statewide Planning Goal 1 – Citizen Involvement: 
This goal outlines the citizen involvement requirement for adoption of Comprehensive 
Plans and changes to the Comprehensive Plan and implementing documents.  
 
Findings: This goal was met as the proposal has complied with all notification requirements 
pursuant to Chapter 18.390.060 of the Tigard Community Development Code.  This staff report 
was also available seven days in advance of the hearing pursuant to Chapter 18.390.070.E.b of the 
Tigard Community Development Code. 
 
As part of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment process, public notice of the Planning 
Commission and City Council public hearings was sent to the interested parties list, property 
owners in the area and within 500 ft. and published in the November 15, 2012 issue of The Times 
(in accordance with Tigard Development Code Chapter 18.390). The notice invited public input 
and included the phone number of a contact person to answer questions. The notice also included 
the address of the City’s webpage where the entire draft of the text changes could be viewed. 
 
 
Statewide Planning Goal 2 – Land Use Planning: 
This goal outlines the land use planning process and policy framework.  The 
Comprehensive Plan was acknowledged by DLCD as being consistent with the statewide 
planning goals.   
 
Findings: The amendment to the Tigard Comprehensive Plan is being undertaken to update the 
City’s acknowledged Comprehensive Plan in a manner consistent with current conditions and 
citizen values.  The amendment to the Tigard Comprehensive Plan is being processed as a Type 
IV procedure, which requires any applicable statewide planning goals, federal or state statutes or 
regulations, Metro regulations, comprehensive plan policies, and City's implementing ordinances, 
be addressed as part of the decision-making process. All noticing requirements have been met.  
All applicable review criteria have been addressed within this staff report; therefore, the 
requirements of Goal 2 have been met. 
 
Statewide Planning Goal 5 – Natural Resources  
This goal requires the inventory and protection of natural resources, open spaces, historic 
areas and sites. 
 
Findings: The City is currently in compliance with the State’s Goal 5 program and Metro’s Title 
13: Nature in Neighborhoods program, which implements Goal 5. The amendment does not 
alter the City’s acknowledged Goal 5 inventories or land use programs. No changes will occur to 
current natural resource protections. As a result, the amendment to the Tigard Comprehensive 
Plan is in compliance with Goal 5 process requirements. 
 
 



 
 

                                          

STAFF REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION   
CPA 2012-00002                                                PAGE 13 OF 17  

Statewide Planning Goal 6: Air, Water, and Land Resources Quality 
To maintain and improve the quality of the air, water, and land resources of the state. 
 
Findings: The City is currently in compliance with Metro’s Title 3: Water Quality and Flood 
Management program, which implements Goal 6. The amendment does not alter the City’s 
acknowledged land use programs regarding water quality and flood management protections. As 
a result, the amendment to the Tigard Comprehensive Plan is in compliance with Goal 6.  
 
Statewide Planning Goal 7 – Areas Subject to Natural Hazards 
To protect people and property from natural hazards.  
 
Findings: The City is currently in compliance with Metro’s Title 3: Water Quality and Flood 
Management program, which implements Goal 7. The amendment does not alter the City’s 
acknowledged land use programs regarding water quality and flood management protections. The 
City is currently a participant in the National Flood Insurance Program administered by the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency. The amendment does not alter the City’s participation. 
As a result, the amendment to the Tigard Comprehensive Plan is in compliance with Goal 7.  
 
Statewide Planning Goal 8 – Recreational Needs  
This goal requires the satisfaction of the recreational needs of the citizens of the state and 
visitors and, where appropriate, to provide for the siting of necessary recreational facilities 
including destination resorts. 
 
Findings: The City is currently in compliance with Statewide Planning Goal 8. The amendment 
does not alter the City’s acknowledged Goal 8 policies or land use programs. As a result, the 
amendment to the Tigard Comprehensive Plan is in compliance with Goal 8. 
 
Statewide Planning Goal 9: Economic Development 
To provide adequate opportunities throughout the state for a variety of economic 
activities vital to the health, welfare, and prosperity of Oregon’s citizens. 
 
Findings: The City is currently in compliance with Goal 9 and Metro’s Title 4: Industrial and 
Other Employment Areas through its acknowledged Comprehensive Plan. The amendment does 
not alter the City’s acknowledged Goal 9 policies or land use programs. As a result, the 
amendment to the Tigard Comprehensive Plan is in compliance with Goal 9.  
 
Statewide Planning Goal 10: Housing 
To provide adequate housing for the needs of the community, region and state.  
 
Findings: The City is currently in compliance with Goal 10 and the Metropolitan Housing Rule 
(OAR 660-007/Division 7), and Metro’s Title 1: Housing Capacity, and Title 7: Housing Choice. 
The City is currently under periodic review and performing a Goal 10 analysis, which includes the 
River Terrace area. The adoption of the amendment does not alter the City’s compliance with 
Goal 10 as the addition of the recommended land uses in the River Terrace area is consistent 
with state and regional housing requirements. The amendment to the Comprehensive Plan is in 
compliance with Goal 10. 
 
Statewide Planning Goal 11: Public Facilities and Services 
To plan and develop a timely, orderly and efficient arrangement of public facilities and 
services to serve as a framework for urban and rural development. 
 



 
 

                                          

STAFF REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION   
CPA 2012-00002                                                PAGE 14 OF 17  

Findings: The City is currently in compliance with Goal 11 through its acknowledged 
Comprehensive Plan.  This includes an adopted Public Facility Plan as required by Oregon 
Revised Statute 197.712 and Oregon Administrative Rule 660-011. The amendment does not 
alter the City’s acknowledged Goal 11 policies or plans. However, as part of the River Terrace 
Community Plan process, the Public Facility Plan will be updated to account for the 
recommended land uses and future development of the area, including a financing strategy. As a 
result, the amendment to the Tigard Comprehensive Plan is in compliance with Goal 11. 
 
Statewide Planning Goal 12: Transportation 
To provide and encourage a safe, convenient, and economic transportation system. 
 
Findings: The City is currently in compliance with Goal 12 and Metro’s Regional Transportation 
Plan through its acknowledged Comprehensive Plan and Transportation System Plan as required 
by Oregon Administrative Rule 660-012 (Transportation Planning Rule).  The amendment adopts 
the recommended land uses from the West Bull Mt. Concept Plan into the Tigard 
Comprehensive Plan map. The amendment also includes a policy to not allow development of 
the area until a full TPR analysis is complete. The River Terrace Community Plan process will 
make findings against the TPR based on the land uses proposed. As a result, the amendment to 
the Tigard Comprehensive Plan is in compliance with Goal 12. 
  
Statewide Planning Goal 13: Energy Conservation 
Land and uses developed on the land shall be managed and controlled so as to maximize 
the conservation of all forms of energy, based on sound economic principles. 
 
Findings: The City is currently in compliance with Goal 13 through its acknowledged 
Comprehensive Plan. The amendment does not alter the City’s compliance with Goal 13. As a 
result, the amendment to the Tigard Comprehensive Plan is in compliance with Goal 13. 
 
Statewide Planning Goal 14: Urbanization 
To provide for an orderly and efficient transition form rural to urban land use, to 
accommodate urban population and urban employment inside urban growth boundaries, 
to ensure efficient use of land, and to provide for livable communities. 
 
Findings: The City is currently in compliance with Goal 14 and Metro’s Title 11: Planning for 
New Urban Areas through its acknowledged Comprehensive Plan and land use regulations. The 
City also has a signed Urban Planning Area Agreement and Urban Services Agreement as 
required by ORS 195.065 and ORS 197.  
 
The proposed amendment will update the Tigard Comprehensive Plan map and policies to 
prepare for the future development of the River Terrace Area. The area has been brought into 
the urban growth boundary (Areas 63 and 64 in 2002; Roy Rogers West in 2011) and a concept 
plan completed. The concept plan was a collaboration of many stakeholders, regulatory agencies, 
and local jurisdictions. The amendment will set the stage for the transformation of the concept 
plan into a community plan where the application of zoning and regulations will take place. The 
community plan will provide reliable information to make findings against all requirements of 
Title 11. 
 
The proposed amendment is a first step to set expectations for the community planning process. 
The concept plan found compliance with Title 11 requirements and the community plan will be 
required to do the same.  The city worked with Metro, the Oregon Department of Transportation 
and Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development staffs to ensure their concerns 



 
 

                                          

STAFF REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION   
CPA 2012-00002                                                PAGE 15 OF 17  

were addressed for the proposed amendments. They were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on all work leading up to the document proposed for adoption. 
 
The adoption of the proposed amendment (CPA2012-00002) does not alter the City’s 
compliance with Goal 14. The amendment is consistent with this goal. 
 
CONCLUSION: Based on the analysis above, the Commission finds that the proposed 
amendment is consistent with the applicable Statewide Planning Goals. 
 
 
SECTION VI.    ADDITIONAL CITY STAFF COMMENTS  
 
The City of Tigard’s Community Development Department, Administrative Department, 
Finance Department, Public Works Department, and Police Department have had an 
opportunity to review this proposal and have no objections. 
 
CONCLUSION: Based on no comment from City staff, staff finds the proposed amendment 
does not interfere with the best interests of the City. 
 
 

SECTION VII.    OUTSIDE AGENCY COMMENTS 
 
The following agencies/jurisdictions had an opportunity to review this proposal and did not 
respond: 
 
City of King City 
City of Tualatin 
Clean Water Services 
Metro Land Use and Planning 
Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development  
Oregon Department of Transportation, Region 1 
Oregon Department of Transportation, Region 1, District 2A 
Tualatin Hill Parks and Recreation District 
Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue 
Tualatin Valley Water District 
 
The following agencies/jurisdictions had an opportunity to review this proposal and sent in 
comments that are found as Attachments 1 and 2: 
 
City of Beaverton  
Washington County, Department of Land Use and Transportation 
 
Findings: Washington County was supportive of the proposed amendment and recommended 
also adopting other elements of the West Bull Mt. Concept Plan, such as parks, trails and street 
classifications. The city is proposing this amendment as a first step in completing the required 
community plan for the area. The aforementioned elements will be reviewed and refined as 
necessary during the process and incorporated into the respective city master plans. The 
proposed amendment is in compliance with state and regional requirements. Updated master 
plans will be adopted during the community planning process and will ensure continued 
compliance with state and regional requirements. Staff recommends no changes to the proposed 
amendment based on the Washington County comments. 



 
 

                                          

STAFF REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION   
CPA 2012-00002                                                PAGE 16 OF 17  

 
The city of Beaverton recommended adding policies that addressed the importance of 
coordination among the two cities and other agency partners and developing cooperative 
agreements for phasing of improvements along the boundary of River Terrace and South Cooper 
Mountain community plan areas. The city of Tigard acknowledges the importance of 
coordination during the planning process and has been in frequent discussions with agency 
partners. It is important and inherent in any large planning process. Tigard has convened the 
concept plan technical advisory committee to ensure information is being shared throughout the 
planning process. Tigard has also met with Beaverton staff a number of times and will continue 
to do so throughout the process.  
 
The city of Tigard has acknowledged the importance of coordination by several adopted policies 
currently in the Tigard Comprehensive Plan. Some examples include Policy 2.1.3, Policy 5.1.4, 
Policy 6.2.2, Policy 7.1.3, Policy 11.1.2, Policy 11.3.2, Policy 12.5.1 and Policy 12.5.3.  
 
Tigard is in full support of coordination of planning efforts. The city’s River Terrace Community 
Plan work program has included the importance of coordination, as has the Tigard 
Comprehensive Plan. Staff recommends no changes to the proposed amendment based on the 
Washington County comments. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: Based on responses from outside agencies listed above, the Commission finds 
the proposed amendment meets all requirements of these agencies and is consistent with the best 
interests of the City. 
 
 
 
SECTION VIII.     CONCLUSION 
 
The proposed changes comply with the applicable Statewide Planning Goals, applicable regional, 
state and federal regulations, the Tigard Comprehensive Plan, and applicable provisions of the 
City’s implementing ordinances. 
 
Therefore, Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval of the 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment to the Tigard City Council as determined through the public 
hearing process. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
ATTACHMENT 1: CITY OF BEAVERTON COMMENTS 
 
ATTACHMENT 2: WASHINGTON COUNTY COMMENTS 
 
EXHIBIT A: PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE TIGARD COMPREHENSIVE 

PLAN.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 











AIS-1022       6.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 12/11/2012

Length (in minutes): 60 Minutes  

Agenda Title: Legislative Public Hearing for Downtown Connectivity Plan Code Amendments

Submitted By: Sean Farrelly, Community Development

Item Type: Public Hearing - Legislative Meeting Type: Council Business Meeting - Main

Public Hearing: Yes Publication Date: 11/22/2012 

Information

ISSUE 

The purpose of the legislative public hearing is to receive a brief staff report, listen to public testimony and consider the

Downtown Connectivity Plan Code Amendments.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

Staff recommends Council support the Planning Commission's recommendation to adopt the proposed comprehensive

plan and development code amendments, as amended.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

The Tigard Downtown Improvement Plan (TDIP) found one of the major constraints for the development of

Downtown to be the lack of connectivity which impedes pedestrian, bicycle and vehicle circulation in the Downtown.

To address this, the city produced, with stakeholder input, the Tigard Downtown Conceptual Connectivity Plan

(Connectivity Plan). The intent of the Connectivity Plan is to establish a framework for improved multi-modal

connectivity and circulation in Downtown Tigard. 

There are three objectives in the proposals for new downtown connections: 

• Connectivity: Foster the creation of smaller block structures, consistent with the walkable urban village envisioned by

the Tigard Downtown Improvement Plan. 

• Circulation: Create efficient routes into and around the Downtown. 

• Capacity: Create parallel streets to accommodate the demand created by new Downtown development. 

The Plan was originally developed by a consultant team who worked with city staff and a technical advisory team of

public agency representatives. Tigard City Council, Planning Commission, the City Center Advisory Commission, and

the Tigard Transportation Advisory Committee reviewed and provided input to the plan. 

Implementation 

The Connectivity Plan will be implemented through amendments to the Tigard Development Code (TDC) and the City

of Tigard 2035 Transportation System Plan (TSP). The proposed amendments address the future connectivity

improvements and the new downtown street cross sections called for in the Connectivity Plan. The intent of these

proposed amendments is to provide the city with some tools for implementing its vision for downtown Tigard while

recognizing that improvements will likely be done incrementally over 10 to 20 years or longer as individual properties

redevelop. 

The Staff Report to the City Council includes Exhibits A-D with the proposed amendments to the Transportation

System Plan (part of the Comprehensive Plan) and three chapters of the Tigard Development Code.

• Exhibit A: Amendments to the Transportation System Plan 

The TSP amendments consist of maps of the proposed locations of new streets superimposed on an aerial map of

Downtown so that it is clear where future streets are expected to go and a new street classification map to show how

much right-of-way is needed. 

The future street connection alignments of the Connectivity Plan were refined after meetings with property owners and

other stakeholders. Wherever possible, alignments were adjusted to minimize the impacts to property owners, while still

achieving the desired connections. 



achieving the desired connections. 

• Exhibit B: Amendments to 18.370 Variances and Adjustments 

These amendments address adjustments to the connectivity requirements. The process provides some flexibility for

property owners and the city, for example, when application of the connectivity standards would preclude reasonable

economic use of the site or would result in an adverse impact on natural features such as wetlands, bodies of water,

significant habitat areas, steep slopes, or existing mature trees.

• Exhibit C: Amendments to 18.610 610 Tigard Downtown District Development and Design Standards

These amendments consist of a purpose, and applicability and connectivity standards. Unless a future street is also

added to the city's Capital Improvement Program, it will likely only get built when there is new development or major

redevelopment (e.g., redevelopment valued at more than 60% of total current value) on an affected property. At the

time of development, applicants will be required to dedicate right-of-way and construct the portion of the street that is

on their property. In some circumstances, a public easement, instead of right-of-way could be dedicated. In all cases, the

city will work to ensure that the required improvements are "roughly proportional" to the impacts of the development. 

For smaller projects (e.g. redevelopment valued at less than 60% of total current value), the applicant will only be

required to keep the future alignment clear of buildings. Surface parking, landscaping, temporary structures, driveways

and similar types of development could be allowed within the areas where new connections are planned. The applicant

could also be asked to sign a non-remonstrance to any future Local Improvement District (LID) to help pay for the

identified street or alley improvement.

• Exhibit D: Amendments to 18.810 Street and Utility Improvement Standards

These amendments add special downtown street cross sections which provide an enhanced pedestrian environment.

These cross sections apply to existing streets as well as future street connections and will be applied when the city

improves a street or when a private developer has to make full- or half-street improvements as a part of their

development. 

The new street classifications and cross sections with the recommended right-of-way widths, sidewalk, vehicle and bike

lanes were developed based on the present and potential contexts of the streets, i.e. the narrowest streets are proposed

for areas that are likely to develop with primarily residential uses.

Public Involvement

Since the original development of the Connectivity Plan, the City Center Advisory Commission reviewed the plan over

several months, endorsing it in fall 2010. Starting in November 2011, Angelo Planning Group was engaged to develop

proposed development and comprehensive plan code language. Small group meetings were held with potentially

affected property owners in March 2012. Work sessions were held with the City Center Advisory Commission and

Planning Commission. A public open house was held on July 19, 2012. Feedback from these meetings was incorporated

into the code language and proposed street map.

Council was briefed on the proposed amendments on September 18, 2012. At the meeting four changes to the

proposed maps/code were suggested that were carried forward to the Planning Commission public hearing.

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on the amendments on October 15, 2012. All property owners in the

downtown MU-CBD district were notified by mail.

Three property owners (or their representative) testified at the meeting:

Alexander Craghead, chair of the City Center Advisory Commission and a representative of owners of 12205 SW Hall,

testified in favor of the amendments.

Cecilia Thompson, owner of 8610 SW Scoffins St. (an apartment complex) testified in opposition to the amendments

because the proposed connectivity map shows a pedestrian path could be required if her property were to redevelop.

Russ Little, owner of 12020 SW Main (Woodcraft), testified in opposition to the amendments. He expressed concern

about the proposed connectivity map because he felt his property would be overly impacted by two proposed

connections. 

The Planning Commission recommended three changes to the proposed amendments: 

-Additional code language that specifies if an existing development is destroyed as a result of fire or other cause beyond



the control of the owner, the rebuilding of it shall not be considered a major redevelopment for the purposes of street

connectivity.

-Revising Figure 5-14B. Connectivity Projects Detail Sheet: Map 1 to realign one of the proposed connections across

the Woodcraft property.

-One change to the language about the ADA accessibility of pedestrian paths was also suggested. Staff proposes to

make a reference to an existing standard in the development code.

The Commission also supported the four changes carried forward from the Council workshop.

With these changes, the Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend the proposed code amendments be

approved.

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

The Council may approve, approve with modifications, deny or adopt an alternative to an application for the legislative

change or remand to the Commission for rehearing and reconsideration.

COUNCIL GOALS, POLICIES, APPROVED MASTER PLANS

Tigard Downtown Improvement Plan

DATES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

September 18, 2012

Attachments

Ordinance with Exhibit A

Staff Report to the City Council

Staff Report - EXHIBIT A

Staff Report - EXHIBIT A1.: Planning Commission recommended changes to Exhibit A

Staff Report - EXHIBIT B

Staff Report - EXHIBIT C

Staff Report - EXHIBIT D

Staff Report - EXHIBIT E.: Traffic Analysis

Staff Report - EXHIBIT F.: Citizen Comments 

Staff Report - EXHIBIT G.: Agency Comments 

Staff Report - EXHIBIT H: October 15, 2012 Planning Commission Minutes 

Presentation Slides



ORDINANCE No. 12-       
Page 1 

CITY OF TIGARD, OREGON 
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL 

ORDINANCE NO. 12- 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT CPA 2012-00001 AND  
DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENT DCA 2012-00002 TO AMEND THE CITY OF TIGARD 2035 
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN AND TIGARD DEVELOPMENT CODE CHAPTERS 18.370, 18.610,  
AND 18.810 TO IMPLEMENT STREET CONNECTIVITY AND DESIGN STANDARDS FROM THE  
DOWNTOWN TIGARD CONCEPTUAL CONNECTIVITY PLAN 
 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant, the City of Tigard, has requested approval of amendments to the Tigard 2035 
Transportation System Plan and the Tigard Community Development Code to implement street 
connectivity and design standards from the Tigard Downtown Conceptual Connectivity Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, notice was provided to the Department of Land Conservation and Development 35 days prior to 
the first scheduled public hearing; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Tigard Planning Commission held a public hearing on October 15, 2012 which was noticed 
in accordance with City standards, and recommended with a unanimous vote that Council approve the 
proposed code amendment, as amended; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Tigard City Council held a public hearing on December 11, 2012 to consider the proposed 
amendment, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Tigard City Council has considered applicable Statewide Planning Goals and Guidelines 
adopted under Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 197; any federal or state statutes or regulations found 
applicable; any applicable Metro regulations; any applicable Comprehensive Plan policies; and any applicable 
provisions of the City’s implementing ordinances; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Tigard City Council has found the following to be the applicable review criteria: Community 
Development Code Chapters 18.380 and 18.390; Comprehensive Plan Goals 1, Citizen Involvement; 2, Land 
Use Planning; 9, Economic Development; 11, Public Facilities and Services; 12, Transportation; 13, Energy 
Conservation; and 15, Special Planning Areas: Downtown;  Metro Urban Growth Management Functional Plan 
Title 6; Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan Titles 1, 2, and 5; Oregon Administrative Rules Chapter 
660, Division 12; Statewide Planning Goals 1, 2, 9, 11, 12, and 13; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Tigard City Council has determined that the proposed comprehensive plan and development 
code amendments are consistent with the applicable review criteria and approves the request as being in the 
best interest of the City of Tigard.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF TIGARD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1: The specific text amendments attached as “EXHIBIT A” to this Ordinance is hereby 

approved and adopted by the City Council 
 
SECTION 2: The findings in the November 26, 2012 staff report to the City Council and the Minutes of 

the October 15, 2012 Planning Commission hearing are hereby adopted in explanation of 
the Council’s decision. 

 



ORDINANCE No. 12-       
Page 2 

SECTION 3: This ordinance shall be effective 30 days after its passage by the council, signature by the 
mayor, and posting by the city recorder. 

 
PASSED: By                                  vote of all council members present after being read by number 

and title only, this            day of                                  , 2012. 
 
 
    
  Catherine Wheatley, City Recorder 
 
 
APPROVED: By Tigard City Council this             day of                                        , 2012. 
 
 
    
  Craig Dirksen, Mayor  
 
Approved as to form: 
 
  
City Attorney 
 
  
Date 
 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to 2035 Transportation System Plan Volume 1 of 3 PAGE 1 OF 4 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

EXHIBIT A 
 

DRAFT Amendments to 2035 Transportation System Plan Volume 1 of 3 

 
Proposed amendments are shown as follows: 

 Proposed new text is shown in double-underline. 
 Existing text proposed to be deleted is shown in strike-through. 

 
 
 
Functional Classifications (page 48) 
The functional classification of a roadway defines the primary role in terms of providing mobility and 
access. An individual street’s classification directs the design and management of the roadway, including 
right of way needs, the number of travel lanes and other cross-section elements, and access management 
standards. Figure 5-2 shows the functional classification for each roadway in Tigard.  Within the 
Downtown Mixed Use Central Business District, the functional classification is further refined by the 
street character types shown on Figure 5-2A.  The character types are implemented through special street 
design standards.  In addition, Figure 5-2A identifies future roadways which are intended to provide an 
enhanced network of pedestrian-friendly streets in the Downtown area.   

sean
Text Box



a

a

HALL BLVD

MAIN ST

PACIFIC HWY

BURNHAM ST

CENTER ST

TIGARD ST

HILL ST

SCOFFINS ST
COMMERCIAL ST

LINCOLN AVE

MAPLEWOOD DR

ASH DR

ASH AVE

95
TH

 AV
E GREENBURG RD

91
ST

 AV
E

92N
D AVE

TIG
AR

D 
TC

  

HILL CT

96
TH

 PL

FREWING CT

ELECTRIC ST

ASH AVE

COMMERCIAL ST

ASH DR

CENTER ST

ASH AV
E

0 500 1,000250 Feet

Downtown Street Character Types*
Upper Hall Boulevard**
Main Street Green Street
Downtown Mixed Use 1 (Collector)
Downtown Mixed Use 2 (Neighborhood)
Downtown Mixed Use 3 (Upper Burnham)
Downtown Mixed Use 4 (Lower Burnham)
Urban Residential
Alley: Business
* Dashed lines indicate proposed streets
Other Streets
Railroads ´

** Hall Boulevard is currently an ODOT facility.  ODOT’s
design standards may supersede these standards as long
as it is an ODOT facility.

Figure 5-2a
Downtown Street Character

Types



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to 2035 Transportation System Plan Volume 1 of 3 PAGE 3 OF 4 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

 
Street Design Standards (Cross Sections) (page 52) 
Roadways in Tigard are the primary means of mobility for residents, serving the majority of trips over 
multiple modes. Pedestrians, bicyclists, public transit, and motorists all use public roads for the vast 
majority of trips. Therefore, it is increasingly important to plan, design, and build new roadways in a 
manner that improves multi-modal access and mobility. 
 
The City of Tigard street design standards ensure that all new streets are constructed as “complete streets” 
and include facilities for pedestrians and bicycles and also provide drainage and landscaping where 
appropriate. Because they are reviewed and updated periodically, the City of Tigard’s street design 
standards are located in the city’s Community Development Code section 18.800 Chapter 18.810 Street 
and Utility Improvement Standards.   
 
Special Areas: Downtown (page 95) 
 
The City of Tigard is committed to creating a downtown that is active, has a compact urban form, and 
provides multi-modal access and circulation. Public investments and planning activities for downtown are 
intended to provide a catalyst for economic development. Significant growth in downtown is planned for 
both employment and housing uses.  
 
Downtown is primarily located south of Pacific Highway between Hall Boulevard and Fanno Creek but 
also extends north of the Pacific Highway near Greenburg Road and Hall Boulevard. Pacific Highway 
and Hall Boulevard are the primary access routes to the downtown area. Pacific Highway currently 
experiences significant peak hour congestion and queuing which also impacts travel on Hall Boulevard. 
The Pacific Highway viaduct over the railroad tracks creates a grade separation between Pacific Highway 
and Main Street and limits both access and visibility to the Downtown from the highway.  
 
Downtown Tigard has a transit center which is served by TriMet Routes 12, 45, 64, 76, and 78 connecting 
it to the Beaverton Transit Center, Sherwood, Lake Oswego, Tualatin, and downtown Portland. The 
Tigard Transit Center is also served by WES Commuter Rail. The existing transit service available to 
Downtown Tigard, combined with future plans to enhance WES service and provide high capacity transit 
along the Pacific Highway corridor, position Downtown to have transit service that can support increased 
employment and residential growth in the area despite existing congestion along Pacific Highway. 
 
Although Pacific Highway and Hall Boulevard have sidewalks and bicycle lanes (with the exception of a 
few gaps in the sidewalk system on Hall Boulevard), the lack of local and collector street connectivity and 
existing roadway geometry within the downtown area do not create a very desirable environment for 
pedestrians and bicyclists to travel within the downtown.  
 
At the broadest level, options for improving access to the downtown area fall into the following 
categories: 

 Improve local and collector roadway connectivity to and within Downtown. 

 Provide better facilities for alternative modes (transit, bicycles, pedestrians, etc.). 

 Enhance intersection capacity on Pacific Highway to increase the ability to cross and access 
Pacific Highway from Walnut Street, Greenburg Road, and Hall Boulevard. 

In order to address these issues the City prepared a Downtown Connectivity and Circulation Plan which 
identified a more complete system of streets and pathways to improve multi-modal access to, from and 

sean
Text Box



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to 2035 Transportation System Plan Volume 1 of 3 PAGE 4 OF 4 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

within the Downtown Mixed Use Central Business District.   Through this effort the following 
transportation facility design principles were recognized as being of particular importance within the 
downtown: 

 Maximize efficiency and ease of access for all transportation modes and for emergency services. 
(This principle can be realized, in part, by determining appropriate access spacing and by 
avoiding off-set intersections.) 

 Enhance accessibility for people of all ages and abilities. (Strategies for achieving this objective 
include keeping block sizes relatively small and providing bike and pedestrian facilities.) 

 Create a network with a diversity of human-scaled street types that support urban places and 
integrate with blocks/buildings. 

 Link with city, regional, and national transportation networks. (Achieving this end requires 
careful integration of this plan with Tigard’s TSP and with other local and regional planning 
efforts.) 

 Ensure the economic viability of the blocks that result from the implementation of the new street 
grid. 

In addition, a number of connectivity and circulation improvements, including new road and pathway 
connections within and adjacent to the downtown area were identified.  These improvements are intended 
to foster creation of smaller block sizes, efficient routes into and within downtown, and new streets to 
accommodate and encourage downtown development as well as to solve some existing connectivity 
issues, such as access across railroad tracks 

Infrastructure Investment  
Figure 5-14 shows the additional multi-modal improvement projects related to the Downtown area which 
include Main Street streetscape improvements, a mixed-use trail along the rail corridor, and Ash Street 
extensions east across the railroad tracks and west and north to Pacific Highway. Specific project 
considerations can be found in Technical Memorandum #5 in the Volume 3 Technical Appendix. 
 
Connectivity Requirements 
In addition to the projects shown on Figure 5-14, the Downtown Connectivity and Circulation Plan 
identified a more complete system of streets and pathways to improve multi-modal access to, from and 
within the Downtown Mixed Use Central Business District.   These improvements are shown on Figures 
5-14A through 5-14I and are subject to the connectivity requirements below.   If an alternate alignment is 
subsequently been approved by the City, the alternate alignment shall supersede the alignment shown on 
Maps 5-14B – Figure 5-14I. 
 
 
 
 

sean
Text Box



6

8

4

7

5

3

1

2

HA
LL

 B
LV

D

MAIN ST

PACIFIC HWY

BURNHAM ST

CENTER ST

SCOFFINS ST

COMMERCIAL ST

HILL ST

LINCOLN AVE

TIGARD ST

ASH AVE

GARDEN PL

MAPLEWOOD DR

ELECTRIC ST

COMMERCIAL ST

ASH AVE

0 500 1,000250 Feet

Project Maps Index

Existing Streets

Railroads

Taxlots

´
Figure 5-14A.  Connectivity Projects Index Map



Change 5 

sean
Text Box



SCOFFINS ST

MAIN ST

ASH AVE

COMMERCIAL ST

TIGARD TC  

0 100 20050
Feet

F

Street Character Type

Downtown Mixed Use 1 (Collector)

Downtown Mixed Use 2 (Local)

Urban Residential (52'-56')

Alley (20')

Future Connectivity Alignment Area

Required bike/pedestrian connections

Existing Streets

Taxlots

1 inch = 150 feet

Figure 5-14C.  Connectivity Projects Detail Sheet: Map 2

Note: The width of the Future Connectivity Alignment Area is equal to the upper end of the right-of-way
range listed for the street character type.



Conceptual connection to be 
coordinated if significant changes to 
viaduct are proposed. 

Change 1 

sean
Text Box



HALL BLVD

ASH AVE

SCOFFINS ST

COMMERCIAL ST

HUNZIKER ST

0 100 20050
Feet

F

Street Character Type

Downtown Mixed Use 1 (Collector)

Downtown Mixed Use 2 (Local)

Urban Residential (52'-56')

Alley (20')

Future Connectivity Alignment Area

Required bike/pedestrian connections

Existing Streets

Taxlots

1 inch = 150 feet

Figure 5-14E.  Connectivity Projects Detail Sheet: Map 4

Note: The width of the Future Connectivity Alignment Area is equal to the upper end of the right-of-way
range listed for the street character type.



ASH AVE

BURNHAM ST

COMMERCIAL ST

TIGARD TC  

ASH AVE

0 100 20050
Feet

F

Street Character Type

Downtown Mixed Use 1 (Collector)

Downtown Mixed Use 2 (Local)

Urban Residential (52'-56')

Alley (20')

Future Connectivity Alignment Area

Required bike/pedestrian connections

Existing Streets

Taxlots

1 inch = 150 feet

Figure 5-14F.  Connectivity Projects Detail Sheet: Map 5

Note: The width of the Future Connectivity Alignment Area is equal to the upper end of the right-of-way
range listed for the street character type.



Change 2 

sean
Text Box

sean
Text Box
Change to Figure 5-14F.



ASH AVE

BURNHAM ST

0 100 20050
Feet

F

Street Character Type

Downtown Mixed Use 1 (Collector)

Downtown Mixed Use 2 (Local)

Urban Residential (52'-56')

Alley (20')

Future Connectivity Alignment Area

Required bike/pedestrian connections

Existing Streets

Taxlots

1 inch = 150 feet

Figure 5-14G.  Connectivity Projects Detail Sheet: Map 6

Note: The width of the Future Connectivity Alignment Area is equal to the upper end of the right-of-way
range listed for the street character type.



BURNHAM STASH AVE

0 100 20050
Feet

F

Street Character Type

Downtown Mixed Use 1 (Collector)

Downtown Mixed Use 2 (Local)

Urban Residential (52'-56')

Alley (20')

Future Connectivity Alignment Area

Required bike/pedestrian connections

Existing Streets

Taxlots

1 inch = 150 feet

Figure 5-14H.  Connectivity Projects Detail Sheet: Map 7

Note: The width of the Future Connectivity Alignment Area is equal to the upper end of the right-of-way
range listed for the street character type.



Change 3 

  

sean
Text Box



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to the TDC Chapter 18.370 Variances and Adjustments PAGE 1 OF 6 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

EXHIBIT B 
 

DRAFT Amendments to the TDC Chapter 18.370 Variances and Adjustments 
 

Proposed amendments are shown as follows: 

 Proposed new text is shown in double-underline. 

 Existing text proposed to be deleted is shown in strike-through. 

 Proposed language added at Planning Commission hearing in red 
underline 

 

 
 
18.370.020 Adjustments 

 

A. Purpose. The purpose of this section is to establish two classes of special variances: 

 

1. “Development adjustments” which allow modest variation from required development 

standards within proscribed limits. Because such adjustments are granted using “clear and 

objective standards,” these can be granted by means of a Type I procedure, as opposed to the 

more stringent standards of approval and procedure for variances. 

 

2. “Special adjustments” which are variances from development standards which have their own 

approval criteria as opposed to the standard approval criteria for variances contained in Section 

18.370.020.C. 

 

B. Development adjustments. 

 

1. The following development adjustments will be granted by means of a Type I procedure, as 

governed by Section 18.390.030, using approval criteria contained in Subsection B2 below: 

a. Front yard setbacks. Up to a 25% reduction of the dimensional standards for the front 

yard setback required in the base zone. Setback of garages may not be reduced by this 

provision. 

b. Interior setbacks. Up to a 20% reduction of the dimensional standards for the side and 

rear yard setbacks required in the base zone. 

c. Lot coverage. Up to 5% increase of the maximum lot coverage required in the base 

zone. 

 

2. Approval criteria. A development adjustment shall be granted if there is a demonstration of 

compliance with all of the applicable standards: 

a. A demonstration that the adjustment requested is the least required to achieve the 

desired effect; 

b. The adjustment will result in the preservation of trees, if trees are present in the 

development area; 

c. The adjustment will not impede adequate emergency access to the site; 

d. There is not a reasonable alternative to the adjustment which achieves the desired 

effect. 

 

sean
Text Box



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to the TDC Chapter 18.370 Variances and Adjustments PAGE 2 OF 6 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

C. Special adjustments. 

 

1. Adjustments to development standards within subdivisions (Chapter 18.430). The Director 

shall consider the application for adjustment at the same time he/she considers the preliminary 

plat. An adjustment may be approved, approved with conditions, or denied provided the Director 

finds: 

a. There are special circumstances or conditions affecting the property which are unusual 

and peculiar to the land as compared to other lands similarly situated; 

b. The adjustment is necessary for the proper design or function of the subdivision; 

c. The granting of the adjustment will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, and 

welfare or injurious to the rights of other owners of property; and 

d. The adjustment is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial 

property right because of an extraordinary hardship which would result from strict 

compliance with the regulations of this title. 

 

2. Adjustment to minimum residential density requirements (Chapter 18.510). The Director is 

authorized to grant an adjustment to the minimum residential density requirements in Section 

18.510.040, by means of a Type I procedure, as governed by Section 18.390.030 as follows: 

a. For development on an infill site as follows: 

(1) In the R-25 zone, sites of .75 acre or smaller. 

(2) In the R-40 zone, sites of .75 acre or smaller. 

b. For development on sites larger than those contained in 1 above, if the applicant can 

demonstrate by means of detailed site plan that the site is so constrained that the 

proportional share of the required minimum density cannot be provided and still meet all 

of the development standards in the underlying zone. 

c. To be granted an adjustment in either Subsections a or b above, the applicant must 

demonstrate that the maximum number of residential units are being provided while 

complying with all applicable development standards in the underlying zone. There is 

nothing in this section which precludes an applicant for applying to a variance to these 

standards, as governed by Section 18.370.010. 

 

3. For adjustments to density requirements in Washington Square Regional Center, the standards 

of Section 18.630.020.E apply. 

 

4. For Modifications to dimensional and minimum density requirements for developments within 

the Washington Square Regional Center that include or abut designated Water Resource overlay 

areas, the standards of Section 18.630.020.F apply. 

 

5. Adjustment to access and egress standards (Chapter 18.705). 

a. In all zoning districts where access and egress drives cannot be readily designed to 

conform to Code standards within a particular parcel, access with an adjoining property 

shall be considered. If access in conjunction with another parcel cannot reasonably be 

achieved, the Director may grant an adjustment to the access requirements of Chapter 

18.705 through a Type II procedure, as governed in Section 18.390.030, using approval 

criteria contained in Subsection 2b below. 

b. The Director may approve, approve with conditions, or deny a request for an 

adjustment from the access requirements contained in Chapter 18.705, based on the 

following criteria: 

(1) It is not possible to share access; 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to the TDC Chapter 18.370 Variances and Adjustments PAGE 3 OF 6 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

(2) There are no other alternative access points on the street in question or from 

another street; 

(3) The access separation requirements cannot be met; 

(4) The request is the minimum adjustment required to provide adequate access; 

(5) The approved access or access approved with conditions will result in a safe 

access; and 

(6) The visual clearance requirements of Chapter 18.795 will be met. 

 

6. Adjustments to landscaping requirements (Chapter 18.745). 

a. Adjustment to use of existing trees as street trees. By means of a Type I procedure, as 

governed by Section 18.390.030, the Director shall approve, approve with conditions, or 

deny a request for the use of existing trees to meet the street tree requirements in Section 

18.745.030 providing there has been no cutting and filling around the tree during 

construction which may lead to its loss, unless the following can be demonstrated: 

(1) The ground within the drip-line is altered merely for drainage purposes; and 

(2) It can be shown that the cut or fill will not damage the roots and will not 

cause the tree to die. 

b. Adjustment for street tree requirements. By means of a Type I procedure, as governed 

by Section 18.390.030, the Director shall approve, approve with conditions, or deny a 

request for the adjustments to the street tree requirements in Section 18.745.030, based on 

the following approval criteria: 

(1) If the location of a proposed tree would cause potential problems with 

existing utility lines; 

(2) If the tree would cause visual clearance problems; or 

(3) If there is not adequate space in which to plant street trees. 

 

7. Adjustments to parking standards (Chapter 18.765). 

a. Reduction from minimum parking requirements. By means of a Type II procedure, as 

governed by Section 18.390.040, the Director may authorize up to a 20% reduction in the 

total minimum vehicle parking spaces required in Section 18.765.070.H when an 

applicant for a development permit can demonstrate in a parking study prepared by a 

traffic consultant or in parking data from comparable sites that: 

(1) Use of transit, demand management programs, and/or special characteristics 

of the customer, client employee or resident population will reduce expected 

vehicle use and parking space demand for this development, as compared to 

standards Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) vehicle trip generation rates 

and minimum city parking requirements, and 

(2) A reduction in parking will not have an adverse impact on adjacent uses. 

b. Reductions in minimum parking requirements in new developments for transit 

improvements. The Director may authorize up to a 20% reduction in the total minimum 

vehicle parking spaces required in Section 18.765.070.H by means of a Type II 

procedure, as governed by Section 18.390.040, when the applicant: 

(1) Incorporates transit-related facilities such as bus stops and pull-outs, bus 

shelters, transit-oriented developments and other transit-related development; and 

(2) Documents operational characteristics indicating the number of transit users, 

or number of non-auto users for a particular facility. 

c. Reductions in minimum parking requirements in existing developments for transit 

improvements. The Director may authorize up to a 10% reduction in the total minimum 

vehicle parking spaces required in Section 18.765.070.H at a conversion ratio of one 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to the TDC Chapter 18.370 Variances and Adjustments PAGE 4 OF 6 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

space per 100 square feet of transit facility by means of a Type I procedure as governed 

by Section 18.390.030, when the applicant: 

(1) Incorporates transit-related facilities such as bus stops and pull-outs, bus 

shelters, transit-oriented developments and other transit-related development; and 

(2) Meets the following requirements: 

(a) A transit facility must be located adjacent to a street with transit 

service. The facility should be located between the building and front 

property line, within 20 feet of an existing transit stop, or the facility may 

include a new transit stop if approved by Tri-Met. 

(b) A transit facility shall include a covered waiting or sitting area. 

d. Increases in the maximum parking requirements. The Director may approve off-street 

parking in excess of the maximum allowed parking spaces in Section 18.765.070G by 

means of a Type II procedure, as governed by Section 18.390.040, when the applicant 

can demonstrate that all of the following criteria are met: 

(1) The individual characteristics of the use at that location requires more parking 

than is generally required for a use of this type and intensity; 

(2) The need for additional parking cannot be reasonably met through provision 

of on-street parking or shared parking with adjacent or nearby uses; and 

(3) The site plan shall indicate how the additional parking can be redeveloped to 

more intensive transit-supportive use in the future. 

e. Reduction in required bicycle parking. The Director may approve a reduction of 

required bicycle parking per Section 18.765.050.E by means of Type II procedure, as 

governed by Section 18.390.040, if the applicant can demonstrate that the proposed use 

by its nature would be reasonably anticipated to generate a lesser need for bicycle 

parking. 

f. Use of alternative parking garage layout. By means of a Type II procedure, as governed 

by Section 18.390.040, the Director may approve an alternative design of parking garage 

which differs from the dimensional standards contained in Figure 18.765.2 when it can be 

shown that 1) the proposed structure meets design guidelines of the Urban Land 

Institute's (ULI) Dimension of Parking, Current Edition; or 2) a similar structure 

functions efficiently using proposed modified layout, circulation and dimensions. 

g. Reduction in length of stacking lane. By means of a Type I procedure, as governed by 

18.390.030, the Director may allow a reduction in the amount of vehicle stacking area 

required in Section 18.765.040.D.2 if such a reduction is deemed appropriate after 

analysis of the size and location of the development, limited services available and other 

pertinent factors. 

 

8. Adjustments to sign code (Chapter 18.780). 

a. By means of a Type II procedure, as governed by Section 18.390.040, the Director 

shall approve, approve with conditions, or deny a request for an adjustment to the sign 

code based on findings that at least one of the following criteria are satisfied: 

(1) The proposed adjustment to the height limits in the sign code is necessary to 

make the sign visible from the street because of the topography of the site, and/or 

a conforming building or sign on an adjacent property would limit the view of a 

sign erected on the site in conformance with Chapter 18.780, Signs; 

(2) A second freestanding sign is necessary to adequately identify a second 

entrance to a business or premises that is oriented towards a different street 

frontage; 

(3) Up to an additional 25% of sign area or height may be permitted when it is 

determined that the increase will not deter from the purpose of Chapter 18.780, 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to the TDC Chapter 18.370 Variances and Adjustments PAGE 5 OF 6 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

Signs. This increase should be judged according to specific needs and 

circumstances which necessitate additional area to make the sign sufficiently 

legible. The increase(s) shall not conflict with any other non-dimensional 

standards or restrictions of this chapter; 

(4) The proposed sign is consistent with the criteria set forth in Section 

18.780.130.G; 

(5) The proposed exception for a second freestanding sign on an interior lot 

which is zoned commercial or industrial is appropriate because all of the 

following apply: 

(a) The combined height of both signs shall not exceed 150% of the sign 

height normally allowed for one freestanding sign in the same zoning 

district; however, 

neither shall exceed the height normally allowed in the same zoning 

district; 

(b) Neither sign will pose a vision clearance problem or will project into 

the public right-of-way; and 

(c) Total combined sign area for both signs shall not exceed 150% of 

what is normally allowed for one freestanding sign in the same zoning 

district; however, neither shall exceed the height normally allowed in the 

same zoning district. 

b. In addition to the criteria in Subsection a above, the Director shall review all of the 

existing or proposed signage for the development and its relationship to the intent and 

purpose of Chapter 18.780, Signs. As a condition of approval of the adjustment, the 

Director may require: 

(1) Removal or alteration of nonconforming signs to achieve compliance with the 

standards contained in Chapter 18.780, Signs; 

(2) Removal or alteration of conforming signs to establish a consistent sign 

design 

throughout the development; and 

(3) Application for sign permits for signs erected without permits or removal of 

such illegal signs. 

 

9. Adjustments to setbacks to reduce tree removal (Chapter 18.790). By means of a Type I 

procedure, as governed by Section 18.390.030, the Director may grant a modification from 

applicable setback requirements of this Code for the purpose of preserving a tree or trees on the 

site of proposed development. Such modification may reduce the required setback by up to 50%, 

but shall not be more than is necessary for the preservation of trees on the site. The setback 

modification described in this section shall supersede any special setback requirements or 

exceptions set out elsewhere in this title, including but not limited to Chapter 18.730, except 

Section 18.730.040. 

 

10. Adjustments to wireless communication facilities (Chapter 18.798). 

a. By means of a Type II procedure, as governed by Section 18.390.040, the Director 

shall approve, approve with conditions, or deny a request for an adjustment to the 

requirement that a wireless communication tower be set back at least the height of the 

tower from any off-site residence based on findings that at the following criteria are 

satisfied: 

(1) The proposed location of the tower complies with the setback requirements 

for the underlying zone in which the property is located; 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to the TDC Chapter 18.370 Variances and Adjustments PAGE 6 OF 6 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

(2) A structural engineer certifies that the tower is designed to collapse within 

itself; 

(3) Because of topography, vegetation, building orientation and/or other factor, a 

site closer to an off-site residence will equally or better reduce the visual impacts 

associated with the tower upon the off-site residence. 

b. By means of a Type I procedure, as governed by Section 18.390.030, the Director shall 

approve, approve with conditions, or deny a request for an adjustment to the requirement 

that a wireless communication tower be located 2,000 feet from another tower in a 

residential zone or 500 feet from another tower in a non-residential zone based on 

findings that the following criteria are satisfied: 

(1) The applicant has fully complied with the collocation protocol as provided in 

Section 18.798.080; and 

(2) A registered radio engineer certifies that a more distant location is not 

technically feasible and/or sites at a more appropriate location are not available; 

or 

(3) A location closer than the required separation will reduce visual or other 

impacts on surrounding uses better than sites beyond the required separation. 

 

11. Adjustments for street improvement requirements (Chapter 18.810). By means of a 

Type II procedure, as governed by Section 18.390.040, the Director shall approve, 

approve with conditions, or deny a request for an adjustment to the street improvement 

requirements, based on findings that the following criterion is satisfied: Strict application 

of the standards will result in an unacceptably adverse impact on existing development, 

on the proposed development, or on natural features such as wetlands, bodies of water, 

significant habitat areas, steep slopes or existing mature trees. In approving an adjustment 

to the standards, the Director shall determine that the potential adverse impacts exceed 

the public benefits of strict application of the standards. (Ord. 06-20) 

 

12. Adjustments to Downtown Connectivity Standards (Chapter 18.610.025). This 

adjustment applies to the location of required connections; adjustments to the design of 

the required improvement are subject to 18.370.020.C.11.  By means of a Type II 

procedure, as governed by Section 18.390.040, the Director shall approve, approve with 

conditions, or deny a request for an adjustment to the connectivity standards, based on 

findings that the following criteria are satisfied:  

 

a. Granting the adjustment will equally or better meet downtown design principles 

outlined in the Transportation System Plan; 

 

b. Application of the Downtown Connectivity Standards would preclude all reasonable 

economic use of the site; 

 

c. Any adjustment of the street and pedestrian connectivity improvement designations 

will, at a minimum, preserve the potential for a future connectivity improvements; 

and 

 

d. Granting the adjustment would not result in an adverse impact on natural features 

such as wetlands, bodies of water, significant habitat areas, steep slopes, or existing 

mature trees. 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 1 OF 7 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

EXHIBIT C 
 

DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District 
Development and Design Standards 

 
Proposed amendments are shown as follows: 

 Proposed new text is shown in double-underline. 

 Existing text proposed to be deleted is shown in strike-through. 

 Proposed language added at Planning Commission hearing in red 
underline. 

 

 
 

Sections: 

 

18.610.010 Purpose and Procedures 

18.610.015 Pre-Existing Uses and Developments within the Downtown District 

18.610.020 Building and Site Development Standards 

18.610.025 Street Connectivity 

18.610.030 Building and Site Design Standards 

18.610.035 Additional Standards 

18.610.040 Special Requirements for Development Bordering Urban Plaza 

18.610.045 Exceptions to Standards 

18.610.050 Building and Site Design Objectives (to be used with Track 3 Approval Process) 

18.610.055 Signs 

18.610.060 Off-Street Parking and Loading Requirements 

 

18.610.010 Purpose and Procedures 

 

A. Purpose. The objectives of the Tigard Downtown Development and Design Standards are to 

implement the Comprehensive Plan, Tigard Downtown Improvement Plan, and Urban Renewal Plan 

and ensure the quality, attractiveness, and special character of the Downtown. The regulations are 

intended to: 

 

1. Facilitate the development of an urban village by promoting the development of a higher density, 

economically viable, and aesthetically pleasing pedestrian-oriented downtown where people can 

live, work, play and shop for their daily needs without relying on the automobile. The quality and 

scale of the downtown urban environment shall foster social interaction and community 

celebration. 

 

2. Encourage the integration of natural features and the open space system into Downtown by 

promoting development sensitive to natural resource protection and enhancement; addressing the 

relationship to Fanno Creek Park; and promoting opportunities for the creation of public art and 

use of sustainable design. 

 

sean
Text Box



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 2 OF 7 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

3. Enhance the street level as an inviting place for pedestrians by guiding the design of the building 

“walls” that frame the right-of-way (the “public realm”) to contribute to a safe, high quality 

pedestrian-oriented streetscape. Building features will be visually interesting and human-scaled, 

such as storefront windows, detailed façades, art and landscaping. The impact of parking on the 

pedestrian system will also be limited. The downtown streetscape shall be developed at a human 

scale and closely connected to the natural environment through linkages to Fanno Creek open 

space and design attention to trees and landscapes. 

 

4. Promote Tigard’s Downtown as a desirable place to live and do business. Promote development 

of high-quality high density housing and employment opportunities in the Downtown. 

 

5. Provide a clear and concise guide for developers and builders by employing greater use of 

graphics to explain community goals and desired urban form to applicants, residents and 

administrators. 

 

B. Conflicting standards. The following standards and land use regulations apply to all development 

within the Downtown Mixed Use Central Business District. With the exception of public facility and 

street requirements, if a design standard found in this section conflicts with another standard in the 

Development Code, the standards in this section shall govern, even if less restrictive than other areas 

of the code. 

 

C. Applicability. 

 

1. New buildings and redevelopment: All applicable Design Standards apply to new buildings and 

related site improvements. 

 

2. Expansion, modification and site improvements to existing development: An addition, expansion, 

enlargement, modification, and/or site improvements associated with such lawfully preexisting 

uses and structures shall be allowed, provided the application for such proposed project moves 

toward compliance with the applicable Development Code standards. Only those Downtown 

Building and Site Design Standards applicable to the proposed expansion, modification or site 

improvements to the existing development shall be applicable. 

 

3. Design standards do not apply to the following projects: 

 

a. Maintenance and repair of a building, structure, or site in a manner that is consistent with 

previous approvals and/or necessary for safety; 

 

b. Projects undertaken to bring an existing development into compliance with the Americans 

with Disabilities Act; 

 

c. Exterior painting; 

 

d. Any exterior project that doesn’t require a building permit; 

 

e. Interior remodeling; 

 

f. Temporary structures/uses (as defined in Chapter 18.785); 

 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 3 OF 7 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

g. Any project involving a pre-existing single-family residential building or duplex (that is not 

being or already been converted to a nonresidential use). 

 

D. Downtown design review approval process. 

… 

 

E. Procedures. 

… 

 

F. Downtown design review submittal requirements. 

… 

G. Approval period.  

… 

 

H. Extension.  

… 

 

I. Phased development. 

 

1. If the development of a site takes more than one year, the applicant shall submit a phased 

development time schedule for approval by the Director. In no case shall the total time period for 

all phases be greater than seven years without reapplying for design review. 

 

2. The criteria for approving a phased development proposal is that all of the following are satisfied: 

 

a. The public facilities are constructed in conjunction with or prior to each phase; 

 

b. The development and occupancy of any phase is not dependent on the use of temporary 

public facilities. A temporary public facility is any facility not constructed to the applicable 

City or district standard; 

 

c. The phased development shall not result in requiring the City or other property owners to 

construct public facilities that were required as part of the approved development proposal; 

and 

 

d. The Director’s decision may be appealed as provided by Section 18.390.040.G. No notice 

need be given of the Director’s decision. 

 

J. Bonding and assurances. 

 

1. Performance Bonds for Public Improvements. On all projects where public improvements are 

required the Director shall require a bond in an amount not greater than 100% or other adequate 

assurances as a condition of approval of the plan in order to ensure the completed project is in 

conformance with the approved plan; and 

2. Release of Performance Bonds. The bond shall be released when the Director finds the completed 

project conforms to the approved plan and all conditions of approval are satisfied. 

 

3. Completion of Landscape Installation. Landscaping shall be installed prior to issuance of 

occupancy permits, unless security equal to the cost of the landscaping as determined by the 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 4 OF 7 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

Director is filed with the City Recorder assuring such installation within six months after 

occupancy: 

 

a. Security may consist of a faithful performance bond payable to the City, cash, certified check 

or such other assurance of completion approved by the City Attorney; and 

 

b. If the installation of the landscaping is not completed within the six-month period, the 

security may be used by the City to complete the installation. 

 

K. Business tax filing.  

… 

 

18.610.015 Pre-Existing Uses and Developments within the Downtown District 

 

A. Applicability. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 18.760.040 (Criteria for Nonconforming 

Situations), land uses and associated development in the MU-CBD District that were lawfully in 

existence at the time of adoption of these standards may continue as lawful uses and developments. 

 

1. Land uses and associated development that were in existence at the time of the adoption of the 

MU-CBD District and Chapter 18.610 may continue on the property. Additions, expansions, or 

enlargements to such uses or developments, shall be limited to the property area of said use or 

development lawfully in existence at the time of adoption of this ordinance, January 26, 2010. 

 

2. If a pre-existing structure or use is destroyed by fire, earthquake or other act of God, or otherwise 

abandoned then the use will retain its pre-existing status under this provision so long as it is 

substantially reestablished within one year of the date of the loss. The new structure would have 

to conform to the code. 

 

B. Standards for projects involving existing single-family and duplex dwellings. 

 

1. Existing single-family buildings and duplexes used for residential purposes are exempt from the 

standards. 

 

2. For projects involving preexisting housing units used for nonresidential uses the applicable 

standards are: Section 18.610.020, Building and Site Development Standards, including the 

applicable sub-area from Map 610.A; Section 18.610.030, Building Design Standards for 

Nonresidential Buildings and Section 18.610.035, Additional Standards. 

 

C. Existing nonconforming industrial structures. Existing nonconforming industrial structures at the 

following locations may continue to be utilized for I-P Industrial uses after the nonconforming use 

limit of six months: Map 2S 1 2AA tax lot 4700, Map 2S 1 2AC tax lots 100 and 202, Map 2 1 2AD 

tax lot 1203, Map 2S 1 2DB tax lot 100, and Map 2S 1 2DA tax lot 300. (Ord. 10-02 § 2) 

 

18.610.020 Building and Site Development Standards 

 

A. Sub-areas.  

… 

 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 5 OF 7 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

B. Development standards. Development standards apply to all new development in the MU-CBD zone, 

including developments utilizing the Track 3 approval process. Variances or adjustments may be 

granted if the criteria found in Chapter 18.370 is satisfied. 

 

1. Development Standards Matrix. See Table 18.610.1 and Map 18.610.A. 

 

Table 18.610.1 

MU-CBD Development Standards Matrix 
1, 2, 3

 
    

STANDARD  SUB-AREAS  

 Main Street 

(MS) 

99W/Hall Corridor 

(99H) 

Scoffins/Commercial 

(SC) 

Fanno/Burnham 

(FB) 

Front setback     

Minimum 0 ft. 0/5 ft. 

(5 ft. for frontage 

on 99W) 

0 ft. 0 ft. 

Maximum 10 ft. 25 ft. 20 ft. 20 ft. 

     

Side facing street on corner and through lots    

Minimum 0 ft. 0 ft. 0 ft. 0 ft. 

Maximum 10 ft. N/A N/A N/A 

Sideyard     

Minimum/maximum N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Rear setback     

Minimum 0 ft. 5 ft. 5 ft. 5 ft. 

Maximum N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Building height     

Minimum 20 ft. 20 ft. 20 ft. 20 ft. 

Maximum (stories/feet) 3 stories (45 ft.) 3 stories (45 ft.) 6 stories (80 ft.) 6 stories (80 ft.)7 

Ground floor height minimum 15 ft. 15 ft. None None 

Site coverage maximum 100% 90% 90% 80% 

Minimum landscaping4 0%5 10% 10% 20% 

Minimum building frontage 50% 50% 50% 50% 

Residential density (units per acre)     

Minimum8 25 25 25 15 

Maximum 50 50 506 506 

     

1 This table does not apply to existing development. All new buildings in the district must meet these development standards, 

including projects using the Track 3 approval process. 

2 For standards for development surrounding the future public plaza see Section 18.610.040, Special Requirements for 

Development Bordering Urban Plaza. 

3 See also Section 18.610.045, Exceptions to Standards in the MU-CBD zone. 

4 In the MU-CBD zone, required landscaping can be provided on roofs or within the right-of-way where the applicant is 

required to provide landscaping as part of a street improvement in accordance with Section 18.610.075. 

5 Landscaping/screening requirements for parking lots must be met. 

6 Station Area Overlay permits a maximum of 80 units per acre (see Map 18.610A). 

7 3 stories/45 feet within 200 feet of Fanno Creek Park boundary (see Map 610.A) or within 50 feet of low or medium density 

residential district. 

8 Minimum density applies to residential-only development (not mixed use). 

 

 

2. Parking Location. … 

 

3. Rooftop Features/Equipment Screening. … 

 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 6 OF 7 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

4. Other Exterior Mechanical Equipment. … 

 

18.610.025 Street Connectivity  

Section to be reserved until completion of Downtown Circulation Plan. (Ord. 10-02 § 2) 

 

A. Purpose Statement.  The purpose of this section is to implement the City of Tigard 2035 

Transportation System Plan which describes a more complete system of streets and pathways to 

improve multi-modal access to, from and within the Downtown Mixed Use Central Business 

District.  The standards in this section are intended to execute connectivity improvement projects 

that will foster creation of smaller block sizes, efficient routes into and within downtown, and 

new streets to accommodate and encourage downtown development.  The standards are also 

intended to solve some existing connectivity issues, such as access across railroad tracks.  

 

B. Applicability.  The connectivity standards in this section apply only to those properties with 

designated streets or alleys as shown on Figures 5-14A through 5-14I of the City of Tigard 2035 

Transportation System Plan.  Development on properties with designated streets or alleys is 

subject to the connectivity requirements below.   

 

C. Required New Street and Alley Connections.  Required new street and alley connections shall be 

provided as follows.   

 

1. New development and major redevelopment.  For new development and for major 

redevelopment valued at more than 60% of its total current value as assessed by the 

Washington County assessor, the applicant shall comply with subsections (a) and (b), below.  

 

(a) Dedicate the required right-of-way.  The applicant shall dedicate the amount of right-of-

way necessary to construct the required street or alley consistent with the designated 

street cross-section.   

 

i. As an alternative, the City Engineer may approve the dedication of a public easement 

in lieu of a portion of the public right-of-way in accordance with TDC 18.810.030.C. 

 

(b) Construct the required improvements.  The applicant shall construct the full street or alley 

improvements as shown in the designated street cross-section.   

 

2. All other projects.  For projects other than new development and major redevelopment, the 

applicant shall comply with sections (a) and (b) below: 

 

(a) Preserve the potential for a future connectivity improvement.  No new buildings shall be 

located within the area identified as future street or alley alignment.  Surface parking, 

landscaping, temporary structures, driveways and similar types of development are 

allowed within the future alignment.   

 

(b) Sign a non-remonstrance to future Local Improvement District (LID).  The property 

owner shall sign a non-remonstrance agreement for formation of a future LID to pay for 

the identified street or alley improvement. 

 

D. Required New Pedestrian Pathway.  For new development and for major redevelopment valued at 

more than 60% of its total current value as assessed by the Washington County assessor that is 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 7 OF 7 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

within the area designated for required multi-use pathway, the applicant shall comply with 

subsection (1) below: 

 

1. Provide multi-use pathway on public easements or right-of-ways through the block in a 

manner which ensures that connections through the block are provided at least every 330 feet.  

The required pathway shall provide direct connection through the block and be ADA 

accessible. subject to the requirements of 18.810.110. 

 

E.  Adjustments to the connectivity standards are subject to TDC 18.370.020. 

 

F. Replacement of a pre-existing structure that is destroyed by fire, earthquake or other cause 

beyond the control of the owner, shall not be considered a major redevelopment for the purposes 

of 18.610.025.C and  of 18.610.025.D. 
 

 

18.610.030 Building and Site Design Standards 

… 

 

18.610.035 Additional Standards 

… 

 

18.610.040 Special Requirements for Development Bordering Urban Plaza 

… 

 

18.610.045 Exceptions to Standards 

A. Exceptions to setback requirements. … 

 

B. Exceptions to parking requirements. … 

 

C. Exceptions for private or shared outdoor area. … 

 

D. Exceptions to landscaping requirements. … 

 

18.610.050 Building and Site Design Objectives (to be used with Track 3 Approval Process) 

… 

 

18.610.055 Signs 

… 

 

18.610.060 Off-Street Parking and Loading Requirements 

… 

 

 



DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT  
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.810 Street and Utility Improvement Standards PAGE 1 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

EXHIBIT D 
 

DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.810 Street and Utility Improvement Standards 
 

Proposed amendments are shown as follows: 
 Proposed new text is shown in double-underline. 
 Existing text proposed to be deleted is shown in strike-through. 

 
 
 
Sections: 
 
18.810.010 Purpose 
18.810.020 General Provisions 
18.810.030 Streets 
18.810.040 Blocks 
18.810.050 Easements 
18.810.060 Lots 
18.810.070 Sidewalks 
18.810.080 Public Use Areas 
18.810.090 Sanitary Sewers 
18.810.100 Storm Drainage 
18.810.110 Bikeways and Pedestrian Pathways 
18.810.120 Utilities 
18.810.130 Cash or Bond Required 
18.810.140 Monuments—Replacement Required. 
18.810.150 Installation Prerequisite 
18.810.160 Installation Conformation  
18.810.170 Plan Check 
18.810.180 Notice to City  
18.810.190 City Inspection of Improvements 
18.810.200 Engineer’s Written Certification Required 
18.810.210 Completion Requirements 
 
18.810.010 Purpose 
 
A. Purpose. The purpose of this chapter is to provide construction standards for the implementation of public 

and private facilities and utilities such as streets, sewers, and drainage. 
 
18.810.020 General Provisions 
 
A. When standards apply. Unless otherwise provided, construction, reconstruction or repair of streets, 

sidewalks, curbs and other public improvements shall occur in accordance with the standards of this title. 
No development may occur and no land use application may be approved unless the public facilities related 
to development comply with the public facility requirements established in this section and adequate public 
facilities are available. Applicants may be required to dedicate land and build required public improvements 
only when the required exaction is directly related to and roughly proportional to the impact of the 
development. 

 

sean
Text Box



DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT  
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.810 Street and Utility Improvement Standards PAGE 2 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

B. Standard specifications. The city engineer shall establish standard specifications consistent with the 
application of engineering principles. 

 
C. Chapter 7.40 applies. The provision of Chapter 7.40 of the Tigard Municipal Code shall apply to this 

chapter.  
 
D. Adjustments. Adjustments to the provisions in this chapter related to street improvements may be granted by 

means of a Type II procedure, as governed by Section 18.390.040, using approval criteria in Section 
18.370.020.C.11 18.370.030.C.9. (Ord. 99-22) 

 
E. Except as provided in Section 18.810.030.S, as used in this chapter, the term “streets” shall mean “public 

streets” unless an adjustment under Section 18.810.020.D is allowed. (Ord. 99-22) 
 
18.810.030 Streets 
 
A. Improvements.  
 

1. No development shall occur unless the development has frontage or approved access to a public street. 
 

2. No development shall occur unless streets within the development meet the standards of this chapter. 
 

3. No development shall occur unless the streets adjacent to the development meet the standards of this 
chapter, provided, however, that a development may be approved if the adjacent street does not meet the 
standards but half-street improvements meeting the standards of this title are constructed adjacent to the 
development. 

 
 4 Any new street or additional street width planned as a portion of an existing street shall meet the 

standards of this chapter.  
 
 5. If the city could and would otherwise require the applicant to provide street improvements, the city 

engineer may accept a future improvements guarantee in lieu of street improvements if one or more of 
the following conditions exist: 

 
  a. A partial improvement is not feasible due to the inability to achieve proper design standards; 

 
  b. A partial improvement may create a potential safety hazard to motorists or pedestrians; 

 
  c. Due to the nature of existing development on adjacent properties it is unlikely that street 

improvements would be extended in the foreseeable future and the improvement associated with the 
project under review does not, by itself, provide a significant improvement to street safety or 
capacity; 
 

  d. The improvement would be in conflict with an adopted capital improvement plan; 
 

  e. The improvement is associated with an approved land partition on property zoned residential and 
the proposed land partition does not create any new streets; or 

 
  f. Additional planning work is required to define the appropriate design standards for the street and the 

application is for a project which would contribute only a minor portion of the anticipated future 
traffic on the street. 

 
 6. The standards of this chapter include the standard specifications adopted by the city engineer pursuant 



DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT  
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.810 Street and Utility Improvement Standards PAGE 3 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

to Section 18.810.020.B. 
 
 7. The approval authority may approve adjustments to the standards of this chapter if compliance with the 

standards would result in an adverse impact on natural features such as wetlands, bodies of water, 
significant habitat areas, steep slopes, or existing mature trees. The approval authority may also approve 
adjustments to the standards of this chapter if compliance with the standards would have a substantial 
adverse impact on existing development or would preclude development on the property where the 
development is proposed. In approving an adjustment to the standards, the approval authority shall 
balance the benefit of the adjustment with the impact on the public interest represented by the standards. 
In evaluating the impact on the public interest, the approval authority shall consider the criteria listed in 
Section 18.810.030.E.1. An adjustment to the standards may not be granted if the adjustment would risk 
public safety. 

 
B. Creation of rights-of-way for streets and related purposes. Rights-of-way shall be created through the 

approval of a final subdivision plat or major partition; however, the council may approve the creation of a 
street by acceptance of a deed, provided that such street is deemed essential by the council for the purpose 
of general traffic circulation. 

 
1. The council may approve the creation of a street by deed of dedication without full compliance with the 

regulations applicable to subdivisions or major partitions if any one or more of the following conditions 
are found by the council to be present: 

 
  a. Establishment of a street is initiated by the council and is found to be essential for the purpose of 

general traffic circulation, and partitioning or subdivision of land has an incidental effect rather than 
being the primary objective in establishing the road or street for public use; or 

 
  b. The tract in which the road or street is to be dedicated is an isolated ownership of one acre or less 

and such dedication is recommended by the commission to the council based on a finding that the 
proposal is not an attempt to evade the provisions of this title governing the control of subdivisions 
or major partitions. 

 
  c.  The street is located within the Downtown Mixed Use Central Business District and has been 

identified on Figures 5-14A through 5-14I of the City of Tigard 2035 Transportation System Plan as 
a required connectivity improvement. 

 
2. With each application for approval of a road or street right-of-way not in full compliance with the 

regulations applicable to the standards, the proposed dedication shall be made a condition of subdivision 
and major partition approval. 

 
  a. The applicant shall submit such additional information and justification as may be necessary to 

enable the commission in its review to determine whether or not a recommendation for approval by 
the council shall be made. 

 
  b. The recommendation, if any, shall be based upon a finding that the proposal is not in conflict with 

the purpose of this title. 
 
  c. The commission in submitting the proposal with a recommendation to the council may attach 

conditions which are necessary to preserve the standards of this title. 
 
 3. All deeds of dedication shall be in a form prescribed by the city and shall name “the public” as grantee. 

 
C. Creation of access easements. … 



DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT  
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.810 Street and Utility Improvement Standards PAGE 4 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

  
D. Street location, width and grade. Except as noted below, the location, width and grade of all streets shall 

conform to an approved street plan and shall be considered in their relation to existing and planned streets, 
to topographic conditions, to public convenience and safety, and in their appropriate relation to the proposed 
use of the land to be served by such streets: 

 
 1. Street grades shall be approved by the city engineer in accordance with subsection N below; and 
 
 2. Where the location of a street is not shown in an approved street plan, the arrangement of streets in a 

development shall either: 
 
  a. Provide for the continuation or appropriate projection of existing streets in the surrounding areas, or 
 
  b. Conform to a plan adopted by the commission, if it is impractical to conform to existing street 

patterns because of particular topographical or other existing conditions of the land. Such a plan 
shall be based on the type of land use to be served, the volume of traffic, the capacity of adjoining 
streets and the need for public convenience and safety. 

 
E. Minimum rights-of-way and street widths. Unless otherwise indicated on an approved street plan, or as 

needed to continue an existing improved street or within the Downtown District, street right-of-way and 
roadway widths shall not be less than the minimum width described below. Where a range is indicated, the 
width shall be determined by the decision-making authority based upon anticipated average daily traffic 
(ADT) on the new street segment. (The City Council may adopt by resolution, design standards for street 
construction and other public improvements. The design standards will provide guidance for determining 
improvement requirements within the specified ranges.) These are presented in Table 18.810.1. 

 
 1. The decision-making body shall make its decision about desired right-of-way width and pavement width 

of the various street types within the subdivision or development after consideration of the following: 
 
  a. The type of road as set forth in the comprehensive plan transportation chapter - functional street 

classification. 
 
  b. Anticipated traffic generation. 
 
  c. On-street parking needs. 
 
  d. Sidewalk and bikeway requirements. 
  e. Requirements for placement of utilities. 
 
  f. Street lighting. 
 
  g. Drainage and slope impacts. 
 
  h. Street tree location. 
 
  i. Planting and landscape areas. 
 
  j. Safety and comfort for motorists, bicyclists, and pedestrians. 
 
  k. Access needs for emergency vehicles. 
 



DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT  
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.810 Street and Utility Improvement Standards PAGE 5 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

Table 18.810.1 
Minimum Widths for Street Characteristics and Downtown Street Character Types 

Type of Street 
Right-of-

Way 
Width  

Paved 
Width  

Number of 
Lanes 

Min. 
Lane 

Width 

On-street 
Parking Width Bike Lane Width  Sidewalk Width  

Landscape 
Strip Width 
(exclusive of 

curb)

Median 
Width 

Arterial 64′—128′ Varies 
2—7 

(Refer to 
TSP)

12′ N/A 
6′ (New Streets) 

5′—6′ (Existing Streets)

8′ (Res. & Ind. Zones)

10′ (Comm. Zones) 5′ 12′ (1) 

Collector 58′—96′ Varies 
2—5 

(Refer to 
TSP) 

11′ 8′ (4) 
6′ (New Streets) (5) 

5′—6′ (Existing Streets) 
(5)

6′ (Res. & Ind. Zones)

8′ (Comm. Zones) 
5′ 12′ (1) 

Neighborhood Route 50′—58′ 28′—36′ 2 10′ 8′ 5′—6′ 5′—6′ (2) 5′ N/A 
Local: 
Industrial/Commercial 

 
50′ 

 
36′ 2   N/A 5′—6′ (2) 5′

 
N/A 

Local: Residential 
 Under 1500 ADT 
 Under 500 ADT 
 Under 200 ADT  

 
54′/50′ (3) 

50′/46′ (3) 

46′/42′ (3) 

 
32′/28′ (3) 
28′/24′ (3) 
24′/20′ (3) 

2 
2 
2

 
 

8′ (both sides) 
8′ (one side) 
(No Parking)

N/A 
N/A 
N/A

5′—6′ (2) 5′ 
N/A 

Cul-de-sac bulbs in 
Industrial and 
Commercial Zones 

50′ radius 42′ radius N/A N/A  N/A   N/A 

Cul-de-sac bulbs in 
Residential Zones 47′ radius 40′ radius N/A N/A  N/A  N/A N/A 

Upper Hall Boulevard(6) 94’ 64’ 3 11’ 8’ 6’ 10.5' 4’ 14’ 
Main Street Green Street TBD(7) TBD(7) TBD(7) TBD(7) TBD(7) TBD(7) TBD(7) TBD(7) TBD(7) 
Downtown Mixed Use 1 
– Downtown Collector 66’-70’ 46’ 2 10’ 8’ 5’ 6-8’ 4’ N/A 

Downtown Mixed Use 2 
– Downtown 
Neighborhood 

58’-62’ 38’ 2 11’ 8’ N/A 6-8’ 4’ N/A 

Downtown Mixed Use 3 
– Upper Burnham 62’-74’ 38’ 2 11’ 8’ N/A 6-8’ 5.5-9.5’ N/A 

Downtown Mixed Use 4 
– Lower Burnham 68’-72’ 48’ 2 10’ 8’ N/A 6-8’ 4’ 12’ 



DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT  
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.810 Street and Utility Improvement Standards PAGE 6 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

Downtown – Urban 
Residential 52’-56’ 32’ 1 18’ 7’ N/A 6-8’ 4’ N/A 

Alley: Residential 16′ 16′ N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Alley: Business 20′ 20′ N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

 

1 Medians required for five- and seven-lane roadways. They are optional for three-lane roadways. 
2 Sidewalk widths for these streets shall be five feet with landscape strip; six feet if against curb (if permitted in accordance with Section 18.810.070.C). 
3 “Skinny street” roadway widths are permitted where cross section and review criteria are met. Refer to corresponding cross sections (Figures 18.810.3, 18.810.4 and 18.810.5) for details and conditions. 
4 Parking is allowed on collectors within the Downtown Urban Renewal District. 
5 Bicycle lane requirements on collectors within the Downtown Urban Renewal District shall be determined by the city engineer. 
6 SW Hall Boulevard is currently an ODOT facility.  The 2035 Tigard Transportation System Plan recommends that a corridor plan be completed for the SW Hall Boulevard Corridor The street character standards 
for Upper Hall Boulevard shall not be considered final until the corridor plan is complete.  
7 Main Street Green Street standards are currently being developed through a separate process. 

 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 7 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

Figure 18.810.1 
Arterials Sample Cross Sections 
 
 

 
 
(Ord. 02-33) 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 8 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

Figure 18.810.2 
Collector Sample Cross Sections (1) 
 
 

 
 
1 Parking is allowed on collectors within the Downtown Urban Renewal District. Bike lane requirements 
on these same collecters shall be determined by the city engineer.  
 
(Ord. 09-09 § 3 (Exh. B); Ord. 02-33) 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 9 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

Figure 18.810.3 
Neighborhood Routes Sample Cross Sections 
 

 
(Ord. 02-33) 
 
Figure 18.810.4 
Local Residential Streets - <1,500 vpd 
 

 A. Standard (sample) 
 
 

 
 

 B. Skinny Street Option (criteria)
 

 
Criteria: 
 Traffic flow plan must be submitted and 

approved. 
 Not appropriate for streets serving more than 

1,000 vpd. 
 No parking permitted within 30 feet of an 

intersection. 
 Appropriate adjacent to single-family 

detached development only. 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 10 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

 

(Ord. 02-33) 
 
Figure 18.810.5 
Local Residential Streets < 500 vpd 
 
 A. Standard (sample) 
 

 
 
 

 B. Skinny Street Option (criteria)
 

 
 
Criteria: 
 Traffic flow plan must be submitted and 

approved. 
 Not appropriate for streets serving more than 

500 vpd. 
 No parking permitted within 30 feet of an 

intersection. 
 Appropriate adjacent to single-family detached 

development only. 
 Must provide a minimum of one off-street 

parking space for every 20 feet of restricted 
street frontage. 

 
(Ord. 02-33) 
 
Figure 18.810.6 
Local Residential Street < 200 vpd 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 11 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

 
 A. Standard (sample) 
 

 
 
 

 B. Skinny Street Option (criteria)
 

 
 
Criteria: 
 Must provide a minimum of one off-street 

parking space for every 20 feet of restricted 
street frontage. 

 No parking permitted within 30 feet of an 
intersection. 

 
(Ord.02-33) 
 
 
Figure 18.810.7 
Upper Hall Boulevard  
 

 
Note: SW Hall Boulevard is currently an ODOT facility.  The 2035 Tigard Transportation System Plan 
recommends that a corridor plan be completed for the SW Hall Boulevard Corridor The street character 
standards for Upper Hall Boulevard shall not be considered final until the corridor plan is complete. 
 
 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 12 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

Figure 18.810.8 
Downtown Mixed Use 1 – Downtown Collector 
 

 
 
Figure 18.810.9 
Downtown Mixed Use 2 – Downtown Neighborhood 
 

 
 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 13 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

Figure 18.810.10 
Downtown Mixed Use 3 – Upper Burnham 
 

 
 
Figure 18.810.11 
Downtown Mixed Use 4 – Lower Burnham 
 

 
 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 14 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

Figure 18.810.12 
Downtown – Urban Residential 
 

 
 
Figure 18.810.12 
Alley: Business 
 

 
Note: Permeable pavers are optional. 
 
 
F. Future street plan and extension of streets.  
… 
 
G. Street spacing and access management. 
… 
 
H. Street alignment and connections.  
 
 1. Full street connections with spacing of no more than 530 feet between connections is required 

except where prevented by barriers such as topography, railroads, freeways, pre-existing 
developments, lease provisions, easements, covenants or other restrictions existing prior to May 
1, 1995 which preclude street connections. A full street connection may also be exempted due to 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 15 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

a regulated water feature if regulations would not permit construction. 
 
 2. All local, neighborhood routes and collector streets which abut a development site shall be 

extended within the site to provide through circulation when not precluded by environmental or 
topographical constraints, existing development patterns or strict adherence to other standards in 
this code. A street connection or extension is considered precluded when it is not possible to 
redesign or reconfigure the street pattern to provide required extensions. Land is considered 
topographically constrained if the slope is greater than 15% for a distance of 250 feet or more. In 
the case of environmental or topographical constraints, the mere presence of a constraint is not 
sufficient to show that a street connection is not possible. The applicant must show why the 
constraint precludes some reasonable street connection. 

 
 3. Proposed street or street extensions shall be located to provide direct access to existing or planned 

transit stops, commercial services, and other neighborhood facilities, such as schools, shopping 
areas and parks. 

 
 4. All developments should provide an internal network of connecting streets that provide short, 

direct travel routes and minimize travel distances within the development. 
 
I. Intersection angles. … 
 
J. Existing rights-of-way. Whenever existing rights-of-way adjacent to or within a tract are of less than 

standard width, additional rights-of-way shall be provided at the time of subdivision or development. 
 
K. Partial street improvements. Partial street improvements resulting in a pavement width of less than 20 

feet, while generally not acceptable, may be approved where essential to reasonable development 
when in conformity with the other requirements of these regulations, and when it will be practical to 
require the improvement of the other half when the adjoining property developed. 

 
L. Culs-de-sacs. … 
 
M. Street names. … 
 
N. Grades and curves. 
… 
 
O. Curbs, curb cuts, ramps, and driveway approaches. … 
 
P. Streets adjacent to railroad right-of-way.  … 
 
Q. Access to arterials and collectors. … 
 
R. Alleys, public or private.  
 
 1. Alleys shall be no less than 20 feet in width. In commercial and industrial districts, alleys shall be 

provided unless other permanent provisions for access to off-street parking and loading facilities 
are made. 

 
 2. While alley intersections and sharp changes in alignment shall be avoided, the corners of 

necessary alley intersections shall have a radius of not less than 12 feet. 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 16 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

 
S. Survey monuments. … 
 
T. Private streets. 
… 
 
U. Railroad crossings. Where an adjacent development results in a need to install or improve a railroad 

crossing, the cost for such improvements may be a condition of development approval, or another 
equitable means of cost distribution shall be determined by the public works director and approved by 
the commission. 

 
V. Street signs. … 
 
W. Mailboxes. … 
 
X. Traffic signals. … 
 
Y. Street light standards. … 
 
Z. Street name signs. … 
 
AA. Street cross-sections. … 
 
BB.  Traffic calming. … 
 
CC.  Traffic study. … 
 
18.810.040 Blocks 
A. Block design. The length, width and shape of blocks shall be designed with due regard to providing 

adequate building sites for the use contemplated, consideration of needs for convenient access, 
circulation, control and safety of street traffic and recognition of limitations and opportunities of 
topography. 

 
B. Sizes. 
 
 1. The perimeter of blocks formed by streets shall not exceed 2,000 feet measured along the 

centerline of the streets except: 
 
  a. Where street location is precluded by natural topography, wetlands, significant habitat areas 

or bodies of water, or pre-existing development; or 
 
  b. For blocks adjacent to arterial streets, limited access highways, collectors or railroads. 
 
  c. For nonresidential blocks in which internal public circulation provides equivalent access. 
 

2. Bicycle and pedestrian connections on public easements or right-of-ways shall be provided when 
full street connection is exempted by subsection B.1 of this section. Spacing between 
connections shall be no more than 330 feet, except where precluded by environmental or 
topographical constraints, existing development patterns, or strict adherence to other standards in 
the code. (Ord. 06-20; Ord. 02-33) 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 17 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

 
18.810.050 Easements 
… 
 
18.810.060  Lots 
… 
 
18.810.070  Sidewalks 
 
A. Sidewalks. All industrial streets and private streets shall have sidewalks meeting city standards along 

at least one side of the street. All other streets shall have sidewalks meeting city standards along both 
sides of the street. A development may be approved if an adjoining street has sidewalks on the side 
adjoining the development, even if no sidewalk exists on the other side of the street. 

 
B. Requirement of developers.  
 1. As part of any development proposal, or change in use resulting in an additional 1,000 vehicle 

trips or more per day, an applicant shall be required to identify direct, safe (1.25 x the straight line 
distance) pedestrian routes within 1/2 mile of their site to all transit facilities and neighborhood 
activity centers (schools, parks, libraries, etc.). In addition, the developer may be required to 
participate in the removal of any gaps in the pedestrian system off-site if justified by the 
development. 

 
 2. If there is an existing sidewalk on the same side of the street as the development within 300 feet 

of a development site in either direction, the sidewalk shall be extended from the site to meet the 
existing sidewalk, subject to rough proportionality (even if the sidewalk does not serve a 
neighborhood activity center). 

 
C. Planter strip requirements. A planter strip separation of at least five feet between the curb and the 

sidewalk shall be required in the design of streets, except where the following conditions exist: there 
is inadequate right-of-way; the curbside sidewalks already exist on predominant portions of the street; 
it would conflict with the utilities; there are significant natural features (large trees, water features, 
significant habitat areas, etc.) that would be destroyed if the sidewalk were located as required; or 
where there are existing structures in close proximity to the street (15 feet or less); or where the 
standards in Table 18.810.1 specify otherwise. Additional consideration for exempting the planter 
strip requirement may be given on a case-by-case basis if a property abuts more than one street 
frontage. 

 
D.  Sidewalks in Central Business District. In the Central Business District, sidewalks shall be 10 feet in 

width, and: 
 
 1.  All sidewalks shall provide a continuous unobstructed path; and 
 
 2.  The width of curbside sidewalks shall be measured from the back of the curb. 

 
E. Maintenance. … 
 
F. Application for permit and inspection. … 
 
G. Council initiation of construction. … (Ord. 06-20; Ord. 02-33; Ord. 99-22) 
 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 18 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

 
18.810.080 Public Use Areas 
… 
 
18.810.090 Sanitary Sewers 
… 
 
18.810.100 Storm Drainage 
… 
 
18.810.110 Bikeways and Pedestrian Pathways 
 

A. Bikeway extension. 
 

1. As a standard, bike lanes shall be required along all arterial and collector routes and where 
identified on the city’s adopted bicycle plan in the transportation system plan (TSP). Bike lane 
requirements along collectors within the Downtown Urban Renewal District shall be determined 
by the city engineer unless specified in Table 18.810.1. 
 

2. Developments adjoining proposed bikeways identified on the city’s adopted pedestrian/bikeway 
plan shall include provisions for the future extension of such bikeways through the dedication of 
easements or rights-of-way, provided such dedication is directly related to and roughly 
proportional to the impact of the development. 
 

3. Any new street improvement project shall include bicycle lanes as required in this document and 
on the adopted bicycle plan. 

 
B. Cost of construction. Development permits issued for planned unit developments, conditional use 

permits, subdivisions and other developments which will principally benefit from such bikeways shall 
be conditioned to include the cost or construction of bikeway improvements in an amount roughly 
proportional to the impact of the development. 

 
C. Minimum width.  
 
 1. The minimum width for bikeways within the roadway is five feet per bicycle travel lane. 
 
 2. The minimum width for multi-use paths separated from the road and classified as regional or 

community trails in the Greenway Trail System Master Plan is 10 feet. The width may be 
reduced to eight feet if there are environmental or other constraints. 

 
 3. The minimum width for off-street paths classified as neighborhood trails, according to the 

Greenway Trail System Master Plan, is three feet. 
 
 4. Design standards for bike and pedestrian-ways shall be determined by the city engineer. (Ord. 

11-04 §2; Ord. 09-09 § 3; Ord. 02-33; Ord. 99-22) 
 
18.810.120 Utilities 
… 
 
18.810.130 Cash or Bond Required 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 19 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

… 
 
18.810.140 Monuments—Replacement Required. 
… 
 
18.810.150 Installation Prerequisite 
… 
 
18.810.160 Installation Conformation  
… 
 
18.810.170 Plan Check 
… 
 
18.810.180 Notice to City 
… 
18.810.190 City Inspection of Improvements 
… 
 
18.810.200 Engineer’s Written Certification Required 
… 
 
18.810.210 Completion Requirements (To be completed.) ■ 
 
 





























































 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to 2035 Transportation System Plan Volume 1 of 3 PAGE 1 OF 4 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

EXHIBIT A 
 

DRAFT Amendments to 2035 Transportation System Plan Volume 1 of 3 

 
Proposed amendments are shown as follows: 

 Proposed new text is shown in double-underline. 
 Existing text proposed to be deleted is shown in strike-through. 

 
 
 
Functional Classifications (page 48) 
The functional classification of a roadway defines the primary role in terms of providing mobility and 
access. An individual street’s classification directs the design and management of the roadway, including 
right of way needs, the number of travel lanes and other cross-section elements, and access management 
standards. Figure 5-2 shows the functional classification for each roadway in Tigard.  Within the 
Downtown Mixed Use Central Business District, the functional classification is further refined by the 
street character types shown on Figure 5-2A.  The character types are implemented through special street 
design standards.  In addition, Figure 5-2A identifies future roadways which are intended to provide an 
enhanced network of pedestrian-friendly streets in the Downtown area.   



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to 2035 Transportation System Plan Volume 1 of 3 PAGE 2 OF 4 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to 2035 Transportation System Plan Volume 1 of 3 PAGE 3 OF 4 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

 
Street Design Standards (Cross Sections) (page 52) 
Roadways in Tigard are the primary means of mobility for residents, serving the majority of trips over 
multiple modes. Pedestrians, bicyclists, public transit, and motorists all use public roads for the vast 
majority of trips. Therefore, it is increasingly important to plan, design, and build new roadways in a 
manner that improves multi-modal access and mobility. 
 
The City of Tigard street design standards ensure that all new streets are constructed as “complete streets” 
and include facilities for pedestrians and bicycles and also provide drainage and landscaping where 
appropriate. Because they are reviewed and updated periodically, the City of Tigard’s street design 
standards are located in the city’s Community Development Code section 18.800 Chapter 18.810 Street 
and Utility Improvement Standards.   
 
Special Areas: Downtown (page 95) 
 
The City of Tigard is committed to creating a downtown that is active, has a compact urban form, and 
provides multi-modal access and circulation. Public investments and planning activities for downtown are 
intended to provide a catalyst for economic development. Significant growth in downtown is planned for 
both employment and housing uses.  
 
Downtown is primarily located south of Pacific Highway between Hall Boulevard and Fanno Creek but 
also extends north of the Pacific Highway near Greenburg Road and Hall Boulevard. Pacific Highway 
and Hall Boulevard are the primary access routes to the downtown area. Pacific Highway currently 
experiences significant peak hour congestion and queuing which also impacts travel on Hall Boulevard. 
The Pacific Highway viaduct over the railroad tracks creates a grade separation between Pacific Highway 
and Main Street and limits both access and visibility to the Downtown from the highway.  
 
Downtown Tigard has a transit center which is served by TriMet Routes 12, 45, 64, 76, and 78 connecting 
it to the Beaverton Transit Center, Sherwood, Lake Oswego, Tualatin, and downtown Portland. The 
Tigard Transit Center is also served by WES Commuter Rail. The existing transit service available to 
Downtown Tigard, combined with future plans to enhance WES service and provide high capacity transit 
along the Pacific Highway corridor, position Downtown to have transit service that can support increased 
employment and residential growth in the area despite existing congestion along Pacific Highway. 
 
Although Pacific Highway and Hall Boulevard have sidewalks and bicycle lanes (with the exception of a 
few gaps in the sidewalk system on Hall Boulevard), the lack of local and collector street connectivity and 
existing roadway geometry within the downtown area do not create a very desirable environment for 
pedestrians and bicyclists to travel within the downtown.  
 
At the broadest level, options for improving access to the downtown area fall into the following 
categories: 

 Improve local and collector roadway connectivity to and within Downtown. 

 Provide better facilities for alternative modes (transit, bicycles, pedestrians, etc.). 

 Enhance intersection capacity on Pacific Highway to increase the ability to cross and access 
Pacific Highway from Walnut Street, Greenburg Road, and Hall Boulevard. 

In order to address these issues the City prepared a Downtown Connectivity and Circulation Plan which 
identified a more complete system of streets and pathways to improve multi-modal access to, from and 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to 2035 Transportation System Plan Volume 1 of 3 PAGE 4 OF 4 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

within the Downtown Mixed Use Central Business District.   Through this effort the following 
transportation facility design principles were recognized as being of particular importance within the 
downtown: 

 Maximize efficiency and ease of access for all transportation modes and for emergency services. 
(This principle can be realized, in part, by determining appropriate access spacing and by 
avoiding off-set intersections.) 

 Enhance accessibility for people of all ages and abilities. (Strategies for achieving this objective 
include keeping block sizes relatively small and providing bike and pedestrian facilities.) 

 Create a network with a diversity of human-scaled street types that support urban places and 
integrate with blocks/buildings. 

 Link with city, regional, and national transportation networks. (Achieving this end requires 
careful integration of this plan with Tigard’s TSP and with other local and regional planning 
efforts.) 

 Ensure the economic viability of the blocks that result from the implementation of the new street 
grid. 

In addition, a number of connectivity and circulation improvements, including new road and pathway 
connections within and adjacent to the downtown area were identified.  These improvements are intended 
to foster creation of smaller block sizes, efficient routes into and within downtown, and new streets to 
accommodate and encourage downtown development as well as to solve some existing connectivity 
issues, such as access across railroad tracks 

Infrastructure Investment  
Figure 5-14 shows the additional multi-modal improvement projects related to the Downtown area which 
include Main Street streetscape improvements, a mixed-use trail along the rail corridor, and Ash Street 
extensions east across the railroad tracks and west and north to Pacific Highway. Specific project 
considerations can be found in Technical Memorandum #5 in the Volume 3 Technical Appendix. 
 
Connectivity Requirements 
In addition to the projects shown on Figure 5-14, the Downtown Connectivity and Circulation Plan 
identified a more complete system of streets and pathways to improve multi-modal access to, from and 
within the Downtown Mixed Use Central Business District.   These improvements are shown on Figures 
5-14A through 5-14I and are subject to the connectivity requirements below.   If an alternate alignment is 
subsequently been approved by the City, the alternate alignment shall supersede the alignment shown on 
Maps 5-14B – Figure 5-14I. 
 
 
 
 



6

8

4

7

5

3

1

2

HA
LL

 B
LV

D

MAIN ST

PACIFIC HWY

BURNHAM ST

CENTER ST

SCOFFINS ST

COMMERCIAL ST

HILL ST

LINCOLN AVE

TIGARD ST

ASH AVE

GARDEN PL

MAPLEWOOD DR

ELECTRIC ST

COMMERCIAL ST

ASH AVE

0 500 1,000250 Feet

Project Maps Index

Existing Streets

Railroads

Taxlots

´
Figure 5-14A.  Connectivity Projects Index Map



HA
LL

 B
LV

DSCOFFINS ST

MAIN ST

GA
RD

EN
 PL

KNOLL DR

ASH AVE
0 100 20050

Feet

F

Street Character Type

Downtown Mixed Use 1 (Collector)

Downtown Mixed Use 2 (Local)

Urban Residential (52'-56')

Alley (20')

Future Connectivity Alignment Area

Required bike/pedestrian connections

Existing Streets

Taxlots

1 inch = 150 feet

Figure 5-14B.  Connectivity Projects Detail Sheet: Map 1

Note: The width of the Future Connectivity Alignment Area is equal to the upper end of the right-of-way
range listed for the street character type.



SCOFFINS ST

MAIN ST

ASH AVE

COMMERCIAL ST

TIGARD TC  

0 100 20050
Feet

F

Street Character Type

Downtown Mixed Use 1 (Collector)

Downtown Mixed Use 2 (Local)

Urban Residential (52'-56')

Alley (20')

Future Connectivity Alignment Area

Required bike/pedestrian connections

Existing Streets

Taxlots

1 inch = 150 feet

Figure 5-14C.  Connectivity Projects Detail Sheet: Map 2

Note: The width of the Future Connectivity Alignment Area is equal to the upper end of the right-of-way
range listed for the street character type.



MAIN ST

PACIFIC HWY

TIGARD ST

COMMERCIAL ST

BURNHAM ST

ELECTRIC ST
TIG

AR
D 

TC
  

COMMERCIAL ST

0 100 20050
Feet

F

Street Character Type

Downtown Mixed Use 1 (Collector)

Downtown Mixed Use 2 (Local)

Urban Residential (52'-56')

Alley (20')

Future Connectivity Alignment Area

Required bike/pedestrian connections

Existing Streets

Taxlots

1 inch = 150 feet

Figure 5-14D.  Connectivity Projects Detail Sheet: Map 3

Note: The width of the Future Connectivity Alignment Area is equal to the upper end of the right-of-way
range listed for the street character type.



HALL BLVD

ASH AVE

SCOFFINS ST

COMMERCIAL ST

HUNZIKER ST

0 100 20050
Feet

F

Street Character Type

Downtown Mixed Use 1 (Collector)

Downtown Mixed Use 2 (Local)

Urban Residential (52'-56')

Alley (20')

Future Connectivity Alignment Area

Required bike/pedestrian connections

Existing Streets

Taxlots

1 inch = 150 feet

Figure 5-14E.  Connectivity Projects Detail Sheet: Map 4

Note: The width of the Future Connectivity Alignment Area is equal to the upper end of the right-of-way
range listed for the street character type.



ASH AVE

BURNHAM ST

COMMERCIAL ST

TIGARD TC  

ASH AVE

0 100 20050
Feet

F

Street Character Type

Downtown Mixed Use 1 (Collector)

Downtown Mixed Use 2 (Local)

Urban Residential (52'-56')

Alley (20')

Future Connectivity Alignment Area

Required bike/pedestrian connections

Existing Streets

Taxlots

1 inch = 150 feet

Figure 5-14F.  Connectivity Projects Detail Sheet: Map 5

Note: The width of the Future Connectivity Alignment Area is equal to the upper end of the right-of-way
range listed for the street character type.



ASH AVE

BURNHAM ST

0 100 20050
Feet

F

Street Character Type

Downtown Mixed Use 1 (Collector)

Downtown Mixed Use 2 (Local)

Urban Residential (52'-56')

Alley (20')

Future Connectivity Alignment Area

Required bike/pedestrian connections

Existing Streets

Taxlots

1 inch = 150 feet

Figure 5-14G.  Connectivity Projects Detail Sheet: Map 6

Note: The width of the Future Connectivity Alignment Area is equal to the upper end of the right-of-way
range listed for the street character type.



BURNHAM STASH AVE

0 100 20050
Feet

F

Street Character Type

Downtown Mixed Use 1 (Collector)

Downtown Mixed Use 2 (Local)

Urban Residential (52'-56')

Alley (20')

Future Connectivity Alignment Area

Required bike/pedestrian connections

Existing Streets

Taxlots

1 inch = 150 feet

Figure 5-14H.  Connectivity Projects Detail Sheet: Map 7

Note: The width of the Future Connectivity Alignment Area is equal to the upper end of the right-of-way
range listed for the street character type.



HA
LL

 B
LV

D

BURNHAM ST

0 100 20050
Feet

F

Street Character Type

Downtown Mixed Use 1 (Collector)

Downtown Mixed Use 2 (Local)

Urban Residential (52'-56')

Alley (20')

Future Connectivity Alignment Area

Required bike/pedestrian connections

Existing Streets

Taxlots

1 inch = 150 feet

Figure 5-14I.  Connectivity Projects Detail Sheet: Map 8

Note: The width of the Future Connectivity Alignment Area is equal to the upper end of the right-of-way
range listed for the street character type.



!!TC

¬«99W

HALL BLVD

MAIN ST

BURNHAM ST

COMMERCIAL ST
SCOFFINS ST

ASH AVE

ASH AVE

0 500 1,000250 Feet

Downtown Street Character Types*
Upper Hall Boulevard**
Main Street Green Street
Downtown Mixed Use 1 (Collector)
Downtown Mixed Use 2 (Neighborhood)
Downtown Mixed Use 3 (Upper Burnham)
Downtown Mixed Use 4 (Lower Burnham)
Urban Residential
Alley: Business
* Dashed lines indicate proposed streets
Block subject to bike/ped connectivity requirements
MU-CBD Zone Boundary
Taxlots

´

** Hall Boulevard is currently an ODOT facility.  ODOT’s design standards
may supersede these standards as long as it is an ODOT facility.

sean
Callout
See change 1

sean
Callout
See change 2

sean
Callout
See change 3

sean
Callout
See change 4

sean
Callout
See change 5

sean
Text Box
Changes recommended at October 15, 2012 Planning Commission public hearing



Conceptual connection to be 
coordinated if significant changes to 
viaduct are proposed. 

Change 1 



Change 2 



Change 3 

  



Allow flexible 
design standards 
for the street 
near Fanno 
Creek park. 
Reduced ROW, 
pervious pavers. 

Change 4 

sean
Text Box
(addressed in 18.370)



Change 5 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to the TDC Chapter 18.370 Variances and Adjustments PAGE 1 OF 6 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

EXHIBIT B 
 

DRAFT Amendments to the TDC Chapter 18.370 Variances and Adjustments 
 

Proposed amendments are shown as follows: 

 Proposed new text is shown in double-underline. 

 Existing text proposed to be deleted is shown in strike-through. 

 Proposed language added at Planning Commission hearing in red 
underline 

 

 
 
18.370.020 Adjustments 

 

A. Purpose. The purpose of this section is to establish two classes of special variances: 

 

1. “Development adjustments” which allow modest variation from required development 

standards within proscribed limits. Because such adjustments are granted using “clear and 

objective standards,” these can be granted by means of a Type I procedure, as opposed to the 

more stringent standards of approval and procedure for variances. 

 

2. “Special adjustments” which are variances from development standards which have their own 

approval criteria as opposed to the standard approval criteria for variances contained in Section 

18.370.020.C. 

 

B. Development adjustments. 

 

1. The following development adjustments will be granted by means of a Type I procedure, as 

governed by Section 18.390.030, using approval criteria contained in Subsection B2 below: 

a. Front yard setbacks. Up to a 25% reduction of the dimensional standards for the front 

yard setback required in the base zone. Setback of garages may not be reduced by this 

provision. 

b. Interior setbacks. Up to a 20% reduction of the dimensional standards for the side and 

rear yard setbacks required in the base zone. 

c. Lot coverage. Up to 5% increase of the maximum lot coverage required in the base 

zone. 

 

2. Approval criteria. A development adjustment shall be granted if there is a demonstration of 

compliance with all of the applicable standards: 

a. A demonstration that the adjustment requested is the least required to achieve the 

desired effect; 

b. The adjustment will result in the preservation of trees, if trees are present in the 

development area; 

c. The adjustment will not impede adequate emergency access to the site; 

d. There is not a reasonable alternative to the adjustment which achieves the desired 

effect. 

 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to the TDC Chapter 18.370 Variances and Adjustments PAGE 2 OF 6 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

C. Special adjustments. 

 

1. Adjustments to development standards within subdivisions (Chapter 18.430). The Director 

shall consider the application for adjustment at the same time he/she considers the preliminary 

plat. An adjustment may be approved, approved with conditions, or denied provided the Director 

finds: 

a. There are special circumstances or conditions affecting the property which are unusual 

and peculiar to the land as compared to other lands similarly situated; 

b. The adjustment is necessary for the proper design or function of the subdivision; 

c. The granting of the adjustment will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, and 

welfare or injurious to the rights of other owners of property; and 

d. The adjustment is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial 

property right because of an extraordinary hardship which would result from strict 

compliance with the regulations of this title. 

 

2. Adjustment to minimum residential density requirements (Chapter 18.510). The Director is 

authorized to grant an adjustment to the minimum residential density requirements in Section 

18.510.040, by means of a Type I procedure, as governed by Section 18.390.030 as follows: 

a. For development on an infill site as follows: 

(1) In the R-25 zone, sites of .75 acre or smaller. 

(2) In the R-40 zone, sites of .75 acre or smaller. 

b. For development on sites larger than those contained in 1 above, if the applicant can 

demonstrate by means of detailed site plan that the site is so constrained that the 

proportional share of the required minimum density cannot be provided and still meet all 

of the development standards in the underlying zone. 

c. To be granted an adjustment in either Subsections a or b above, the applicant must 

demonstrate that the maximum number of residential units are being provided while 

complying with all applicable development standards in the underlying zone. There is 

nothing in this section which precludes an applicant for applying to a variance to these 

standards, as governed by Section 18.370.010. 

 

3. For adjustments to density requirements in Washington Square Regional Center, the standards 

of Section 18.630.020.E apply. 

 

4. For Modifications to dimensional and minimum density requirements for developments within 

the Washington Square Regional Center that include or abut designated Water Resource overlay 

areas, the standards of Section 18.630.020.F apply. 

 

5. Adjustment to access and egress standards (Chapter 18.705). 

a. In all zoning districts where access and egress drives cannot be readily designed to 

conform to Code standards within a particular parcel, access with an adjoining property 

shall be considered. If access in conjunction with another parcel cannot reasonably be 

achieved, the Director may grant an adjustment to the access requirements of Chapter 

18.705 through a Type II procedure, as governed in Section 18.390.030, using approval 

criteria contained in Subsection 2b below. 

b. The Director may approve, approve with conditions, or deny a request for an 

adjustment from the access requirements contained in Chapter 18.705, based on the 

following criteria: 

(1) It is not possible to share access; 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to the TDC Chapter 18.370 Variances and Adjustments PAGE 3 OF 6 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

(2) There are no other alternative access points on the street in question or from 

another street; 

(3) The access separation requirements cannot be met; 

(4) The request is the minimum adjustment required to provide adequate access; 

(5) The approved access or access approved with conditions will result in a safe 

access; and 

(6) The visual clearance requirements of Chapter 18.795 will be met. 

 

6. Adjustments to landscaping requirements (Chapter 18.745). 

a. Adjustment to use of existing trees as street trees. By means of a Type I procedure, as 

governed by Section 18.390.030, the Director shall approve, approve with conditions, or 

deny a request for the use of existing trees to meet the street tree requirements in Section 

18.745.030 providing there has been no cutting and filling around the tree during 

construction which may lead to its loss, unless the following can be demonstrated: 

(1) The ground within the drip-line is altered merely for drainage purposes; and 

(2) It can be shown that the cut or fill will not damage the roots and will not 

cause the tree to die. 

b. Adjustment for street tree requirements. By means of a Type I procedure, as governed 

by Section 18.390.030, the Director shall approve, approve with conditions, or deny a 

request for the adjustments to the street tree requirements in Section 18.745.030, based on 

the following approval criteria: 

(1) If the location of a proposed tree would cause potential problems with 

existing utility lines; 

(2) If the tree would cause visual clearance problems; or 

(3) If there is not adequate space in which to plant street trees. 

 

7. Adjustments to parking standards (Chapter 18.765). 

a. Reduction from minimum parking requirements. By means of a Type II procedure, as 

governed by Section 18.390.040, the Director may authorize up to a 20% reduction in the 

total minimum vehicle parking spaces required in Section 18.765.070.H when an 

applicant for a development permit can demonstrate in a parking study prepared by a 

traffic consultant or in parking data from comparable sites that: 

(1) Use of transit, demand management programs, and/or special characteristics 

of the customer, client employee or resident population will reduce expected 

vehicle use and parking space demand for this development, as compared to 

standards Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) vehicle trip generation rates 

and minimum city parking requirements, and 

(2) A reduction in parking will not have an adverse impact on adjacent uses. 

b. Reductions in minimum parking requirements in new developments for transit 

improvements. The Director may authorize up to a 20% reduction in the total minimum 

vehicle parking spaces required in Section 18.765.070.H by means of a Type II 

procedure, as governed by Section 18.390.040, when the applicant: 

(1) Incorporates transit-related facilities such as bus stops and pull-outs, bus 

shelters, transit-oriented developments and other transit-related development; and 

(2) Documents operational characteristics indicating the number of transit users, 

or number of non-auto users for a particular facility. 

c. Reductions in minimum parking requirements in existing developments for transit 

improvements. The Director may authorize up to a 10% reduction in the total minimum 

vehicle parking spaces required in Section 18.765.070.H at a conversion ratio of one 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to the TDC Chapter 18.370 Variances and Adjustments PAGE 4 OF 6 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

space per 100 square feet of transit facility by means of a Type I procedure as governed 

by Section 18.390.030, when the applicant: 

(1) Incorporates transit-related facilities such as bus stops and pull-outs, bus 

shelters, transit-oriented developments and other transit-related development; and 

(2) Meets the following requirements: 

(a) A transit facility must be located adjacent to a street with transit 

service. The facility should be located between the building and front 

property line, within 20 feet of an existing transit stop, or the facility may 

include a new transit stop if approved by Tri-Met. 

(b) A transit facility shall include a covered waiting or sitting area. 

d. Increases in the maximum parking requirements. The Director may approve off-street 

parking in excess of the maximum allowed parking spaces in Section 18.765.070G by 

means of a Type II procedure, as governed by Section 18.390.040, when the applicant 

can demonstrate that all of the following criteria are met: 

(1) The individual characteristics of the use at that location requires more parking 

than is generally required for a use of this type and intensity; 

(2) The need for additional parking cannot be reasonably met through provision 

of on-street parking or shared parking with adjacent or nearby uses; and 

(3) The site plan shall indicate how the additional parking can be redeveloped to 

more intensive transit-supportive use in the future. 

e. Reduction in required bicycle parking. The Director may approve a reduction of 

required bicycle parking per Section 18.765.050.E by means of Type II procedure, as 

governed by Section 18.390.040, if the applicant can demonstrate that the proposed use 

by its nature would be reasonably anticipated to generate a lesser need for bicycle 

parking. 

f. Use of alternative parking garage layout. By means of a Type II procedure, as governed 

by Section 18.390.040, the Director may approve an alternative design of parking garage 

which differs from the dimensional standards contained in Figure 18.765.2 when it can be 

shown that 1) the proposed structure meets design guidelines of the Urban Land 

Institute's (ULI) Dimension of Parking, Current Edition; or 2) a similar structure 

functions efficiently using proposed modified layout, circulation and dimensions. 

g. Reduction in length of stacking lane. By means of a Type I procedure, as governed by 

18.390.030, the Director may allow a reduction in the amount of vehicle stacking area 

required in Section 18.765.040.D.2 if such a reduction is deemed appropriate after 

analysis of the size and location of the development, limited services available and other 

pertinent factors. 

 

8. Adjustments to sign code (Chapter 18.780). 

a. By means of a Type II procedure, as governed by Section 18.390.040, the Director 

shall approve, approve with conditions, or deny a request for an adjustment to the sign 

code based on findings that at least one of the following criteria are satisfied: 

(1) The proposed adjustment to the height limits in the sign code is necessary to 

make the sign visible from the street because of the topography of the site, and/or 

a conforming building or sign on an adjacent property would limit the view of a 

sign erected on the site in conformance with Chapter 18.780, Signs; 

(2) A second freestanding sign is necessary to adequately identify a second 

entrance to a business or premises that is oriented towards a different street 

frontage; 

(3) Up to an additional 25% of sign area or height may be permitted when it is 

determined that the increase will not deter from the purpose of Chapter 18.780, 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to the TDC Chapter 18.370 Variances and Adjustments PAGE 5 OF 6 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

Signs. This increase should be judged according to specific needs and 

circumstances which necessitate additional area to make the sign sufficiently 

legible. The increase(s) shall not conflict with any other non-dimensional 

standards or restrictions of this chapter; 

(4) The proposed sign is consistent with the criteria set forth in Section 

18.780.130.G; 

(5) The proposed exception for a second freestanding sign on an interior lot 

which is zoned commercial or industrial is appropriate because all of the 

following apply: 

(a) The combined height of both signs shall not exceed 150% of the sign 

height normally allowed for one freestanding sign in the same zoning 

district; however, 

neither shall exceed the height normally allowed in the same zoning 

district; 

(b) Neither sign will pose a vision clearance problem or will project into 

the public right-of-way; and 

(c) Total combined sign area for both signs shall not exceed 150% of 

what is normally allowed for one freestanding sign in the same zoning 

district; however, neither shall exceed the height normally allowed in the 

same zoning district. 

b. In addition to the criteria in Subsection a above, the Director shall review all of the 

existing or proposed signage for the development and its relationship to the intent and 

purpose of Chapter 18.780, Signs. As a condition of approval of the adjustment, the 

Director may require: 

(1) Removal or alteration of nonconforming signs to achieve compliance with the 

standards contained in Chapter 18.780, Signs; 

(2) Removal or alteration of conforming signs to establish a consistent sign 

design 

throughout the development; and 

(3) Application for sign permits for signs erected without permits or removal of 

such illegal signs. 

 

9. Adjustments to setbacks to reduce tree removal (Chapter 18.790). By means of a Type I 

procedure, as governed by Section 18.390.030, the Director may grant a modification from 

applicable setback requirements of this Code for the purpose of preserving a tree or trees on the 

site of proposed development. Such modification may reduce the required setback by up to 50%, 

but shall not be more than is necessary for the preservation of trees on the site. The setback 

modification described in this section shall supersede any special setback requirements or 

exceptions set out elsewhere in this title, including but not limited to Chapter 18.730, except 

Section 18.730.040. 

 

10. Adjustments to wireless communication facilities (Chapter 18.798). 

a. By means of a Type II procedure, as governed by Section 18.390.040, the Director 

shall approve, approve with conditions, or deny a request for an adjustment to the 

requirement that a wireless communication tower be set back at least the height of the 

tower from any off-site residence based on findings that at the following criteria are 

satisfied: 

(1) The proposed location of the tower complies with the setback requirements 

for the underlying zone in which the property is located; 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to the TDC Chapter 18.370 Variances and Adjustments PAGE 6 OF 6 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

(2) A structural engineer certifies that the tower is designed to collapse within 

itself; 

(3) Because of topography, vegetation, building orientation and/or other factor, a 

site closer to an off-site residence will equally or better reduce the visual impacts 

associated with the tower upon the off-site residence. 

b. By means of a Type I procedure, as governed by Section 18.390.030, the Director shall 

approve, approve with conditions, or deny a request for an adjustment to the requirement 

that a wireless communication tower be located 2,000 feet from another tower in a 

residential zone or 500 feet from another tower in a non-residential zone based on 

findings that the following criteria are satisfied: 

(1) The applicant has fully complied with the collocation protocol as provided in 

Section 18.798.080; and 

(2) A registered radio engineer certifies that a more distant location is not 

technically feasible and/or sites at a more appropriate location are not available; 

or 

(3) A location closer than the required separation will reduce visual or other 

impacts on surrounding uses better than sites beyond the required separation. 

 

11. Adjustments for street improvement requirements (Chapter 18.810). By means of a 

Type II procedure, as governed by Section 18.390.040, the Director shall approve, 

approve with conditions, or deny a request for an adjustment to the street improvement 

requirements, based on findings that the following criterion is satisfied: Strict application 

of the standards will result in an unacceptably adverse impact on existing development, 

on the proposed development, or on natural features such as wetlands, bodies of water, 

significant habitat areas, steep slopes or existing mature trees. In approving an adjustment 

to the standards, the Director shall determine that the potential adverse impacts exceed 

the public benefits of strict application of the standards. (Ord. 06-20) 

 

12. Adjustments to Downtown Connectivity Standards (Chapter 18.610.025). This 

adjustment applies to the location of required connections; adjustments to the design of 

the required improvement are subject to 18.370.020.C.11.  By means of a Type II 

procedure, as governed by Section 18.390.040, the Director shall approve, approve with 

conditions, or deny a request for an adjustment to the connectivity standards, based on 

findings that the following criteria are satisfied:  

 

a. Granting the adjustment will equally or better meet downtown design principles 

outlined in the Transportation System Plan; 

 

b. Application of the Downtown Connectivity Standards would preclude all reasonable 

economic use of the site; 

 

c. Any adjustment of the street and pedestrian connectivity improvement designations 

will, at a minimum, preserve the potential for a future connectivity improvements; 

and 

 

d. Granting the adjustment would not result in an adverse impact on natural features 

such as wetlands, bodies of water, significant habitat areas, steep slopes, or existing 

mature trees. 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 1 OF 7 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

EXHIBIT C 
 

DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District 
Development and Design Standards 

 
Proposed amendments are shown as follows: 

 Proposed new text is shown in double-underline. 

 Existing text proposed to be deleted is shown in strike-through. 

 Proposed language added at Planning Commission hearing in red 
underline. 

 

 
 

Sections: 

 

18.610.010 Purpose and Procedures 

18.610.015 Pre-Existing Uses and Developments within the Downtown District 

18.610.020 Building and Site Development Standards 

18.610.025 Street Connectivity 

18.610.030 Building and Site Design Standards 

18.610.035 Additional Standards 

18.610.040 Special Requirements for Development Bordering Urban Plaza 

18.610.045 Exceptions to Standards 

18.610.050 Building and Site Design Objectives (to be used with Track 3 Approval Process) 

18.610.055 Signs 

18.610.060 Off-Street Parking and Loading Requirements 

 

18.610.010 Purpose and Procedures 

 

A. Purpose. The objectives of the Tigard Downtown Development and Design Standards are to 

implement the Comprehensive Plan, Tigard Downtown Improvement Plan, and Urban Renewal Plan 

and ensure the quality, attractiveness, and special character of the Downtown. The regulations are 

intended to: 

 

1. Facilitate the development of an urban village by promoting the development of a higher density, 

economically viable, and aesthetically pleasing pedestrian-oriented downtown where people can 

live, work, play and shop for their daily needs without relying on the automobile. The quality and 

scale of the downtown urban environment shall foster social interaction and community 

celebration. 

 

2. Encourage the integration of natural features and the open space system into Downtown by 

promoting development sensitive to natural resource protection and enhancement; addressing the 

relationship to Fanno Creek Park; and promoting opportunities for the creation of public art and 

use of sustainable design. 

 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 2 OF 7 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

3. Enhance the street level as an inviting place for pedestrians by guiding the design of the building 

“walls” that frame the right-of-way (the “public realm”) to contribute to a safe, high quality 

pedestrian-oriented streetscape. Building features will be visually interesting and human-scaled, 

such as storefront windows, detailed façades, art and landscaping. The impact of parking on the 

pedestrian system will also be limited. The downtown streetscape shall be developed at a human 

scale and closely connected to the natural environment through linkages to Fanno Creek open 

space and design attention to trees and landscapes. 

 

4. Promote Tigard’s Downtown as a desirable place to live and do business. Promote development 

of high-quality high density housing and employment opportunities in the Downtown. 

 

5. Provide a clear and concise guide for developers and builders by employing greater use of 

graphics to explain community goals and desired urban form to applicants, residents and 

administrators. 

 

B. Conflicting standards. The following standards and land use regulations apply to all development 

within the Downtown Mixed Use Central Business District. With the exception of public facility and 

street requirements, if a design standard found in this section conflicts with another standard in the 

Development Code, the standards in this section shall govern, even if less restrictive than other areas 

of the code. 

 

C. Applicability. 

 

1. New buildings and redevelopment: All applicable Design Standards apply to new buildings and 

related site improvements. 

 

2. Expansion, modification and site improvements to existing development: An addition, expansion, 

enlargement, modification, and/or site improvements associated with such lawfully preexisting 

uses and structures shall be allowed, provided the application for such proposed project moves 

toward compliance with the applicable Development Code standards. Only those Downtown 

Building and Site Design Standards applicable to the proposed expansion, modification or site 

improvements to the existing development shall be applicable. 

 

3. Design standards do not apply to the following projects: 

 

a. Maintenance and repair of a building, structure, or site in a manner that is consistent with 

previous approvals and/or necessary for safety; 

 

b. Projects undertaken to bring an existing development into compliance with the Americans 

with Disabilities Act; 

 

c. Exterior painting; 

 

d. Any exterior project that doesn’t require a building permit; 

 

e. Interior remodeling; 

 

f. Temporary structures/uses (as defined in Chapter 18.785); 

 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 3 OF 7 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

g. Any project involving a pre-existing single-family residential building or duplex (that is not 

being or already been converted to a nonresidential use). 

 

D. Downtown design review approval process. 

… 

 

E. Procedures. 

… 

 

F. Downtown design review submittal requirements. 

… 

G. Approval period.  

… 

 

H. Extension.  

… 

 

I. Phased development. 

 

1. If the development of a site takes more than one year, the applicant shall submit a phased 

development time schedule for approval by the Director. In no case shall the total time period for 

all phases be greater than seven years without reapplying for design review. 

 

2. The criteria for approving a phased development proposal is that all of the following are satisfied: 

 

a. The public facilities are constructed in conjunction with or prior to each phase; 

 

b. The development and occupancy of any phase is not dependent on the use of temporary 

public facilities. A temporary public facility is any facility not constructed to the applicable 

City or district standard; 

 

c. The phased development shall not result in requiring the City or other property owners to 

construct public facilities that were required as part of the approved development proposal; 

and 

 

d. The Director’s decision may be appealed as provided by Section 18.390.040.G. No notice 

need be given of the Director’s decision. 

 

J. Bonding and assurances. 

 

1. Performance Bonds for Public Improvements. On all projects where public improvements are 

required the Director shall require a bond in an amount not greater than 100% or other adequate 

assurances as a condition of approval of the plan in order to ensure the completed project is in 

conformance with the approved plan; and 

2. Release of Performance Bonds. The bond shall be released when the Director finds the completed 

project conforms to the approved plan and all conditions of approval are satisfied. 

 

3. Completion of Landscape Installation. Landscaping shall be installed prior to issuance of 

occupancy permits, unless security equal to the cost of the landscaping as determined by the 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 4 OF 7 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

Director is filed with the City Recorder assuring such installation within six months after 

occupancy: 

 

a. Security may consist of a faithful performance bond payable to the City, cash, certified check 

or such other assurance of completion approved by the City Attorney; and 

 

b. If the installation of the landscaping is not completed within the six-month period, the 

security may be used by the City to complete the installation. 

 

K. Business tax filing.  

… 

 

18.610.015 Pre-Existing Uses and Developments within the Downtown District 

 

A. Applicability. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 18.760.040 (Criteria for Nonconforming 

Situations), land uses and associated development in the MU-CBD District that were lawfully in 

existence at the time of adoption of these standards may continue as lawful uses and developments. 

 

1. Land uses and associated development that were in existence at the time of the adoption of the 

MU-CBD District and Chapter 18.610 may continue on the property. Additions, expansions, or 

enlargements to such uses or developments, shall be limited to the property area of said use or 

development lawfully in existence at the time of adoption of this ordinance, January 26, 2010. 

 

2. If a pre-existing structure or use is destroyed by fire, earthquake or other act of God, or otherwise 

abandoned then the use will retain its pre-existing status under this provision so long as it is 

substantially reestablished within one year of the date of the loss. The new structure would have 

to conform to the code. 

 

B. Standards for projects involving existing single-family and duplex dwellings. 

 

1. Existing single-family buildings and duplexes used for residential purposes are exempt from the 

standards. 

 

2. For projects involving preexisting housing units used for nonresidential uses the applicable 

standards are: Section 18.610.020, Building and Site Development Standards, including the 

applicable sub-area from Map 610.A; Section 18.610.030, Building Design Standards for 

Nonresidential Buildings and Section 18.610.035, Additional Standards. 

 

C. Existing nonconforming industrial structures. Existing nonconforming industrial structures at the 

following locations may continue to be utilized for I-P Industrial uses after the nonconforming use 

limit of six months: Map 2S 1 2AA tax lot 4700, Map 2S 1 2AC tax lots 100 and 202, Map 2 1 2AD 

tax lot 1203, Map 2S 1 2DB tax lot 100, and Map 2S 1 2DA tax lot 300. (Ord. 10-02 § 2) 

 

18.610.020 Building and Site Development Standards 

 

A. Sub-areas.  

… 

 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 5 OF 7 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

B. Development standards. Development standards apply to all new development in the MU-CBD zone, 

including developments utilizing the Track 3 approval process. Variances or adjustments may be 

granted if the criteria found in Chapter 18.370 is satisfied. 

 

1. Development Standards Matrix. See Table 18.610.1 and Map 18.610.A. 

 

Table 18.610.1 

MU-CBD Development Standards Matrix 
1, 2, 3

 
    

STANDARD  SUB-AREAS  

 Main Street 

(MS) 

99W/Hall Corridor 

(99H) 

Scoffins/Commercial 

(SC) 

Fanno/Burnham 

(FB) 

Front setback     

Minimum 0 ft. 0/5 ft. 

(5 ft. for frontage 

on 99W) 

0 ft. 0 ft. 

Maximum 10 ft. 25 ft. 20 ft. 20 ft. 

     

Side facing street on corner and through lots    

Minimum 0 ft. 0 ft. 0 ft. 0 ft. 

Maximum 10 ft. N/A N/A N/A 

Sideyard     

Minimum/maximum N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Rear setback     

Minimum 0 ft. 5 ft. 5 ft. 5 ft. 

Maximum N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Building height     

Minimum 20 ft. 20 ft. 20 ft. 20 ft. 

Maximum (stories/feet) 3 stories (45 ft.) 3 stories (45 ft.) 6 stories (80 ft.) 6 stories (80 ft.)7 

Ground floor height minimum 15 ft. 15 ft. None None 

Site coverage maximum 100% 90% 90% 80% 

Minimum landscaping4 0%5 10% 10% 20% 

Minimum building frontage 50% 50% 50% 50% 

Residential density (units per acre)     

Minimum8 25 25 25 15 

Maximum 50 50 506 506 

     

1 This table does not apply to existing development. All new buildings in the district must meet these development standards, 

including projects using the Track 3 approval process. 

2 For standards for development surrounding the future public plaza see Section 18.610.040, Special Requirements for 

Development Bordering Urban Plaza. 

3 See also Section 18.610.045, Exceptions to Standards in the MU-CBD zone. 

4 In the MU-CBD zone, required landscaping can be provided on roofs or within the right-of-way where the applicant is 

required to provide landscaping as part of a street improvement in accordance with Section 18.610.075. 

5 Landscaping/screening requirements for parking lots must be met. 

6 Station Area Overlay permits a maximum of 80 units per acre (see Map 18.610A). 

7 3 stories/45 feet within 200 feet of Fanno Creek Park boundary (see Map 610.A) or within 50 feet of low or medium density 

residential district. 

8 Minimum density applies to residential-only development (not mixed use). 

 

 

2. Parking Location. … 

 

3. Rooftop Features/Equipment Screening. … 

 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 6 OF 7 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

4. Other Exterior Mechanical Equipment. … 

 

18.610.025 Street Connectivity  

Section to be reserved until completion of Downtown Circulation Plan. (Ord. 10-02 § 2) 

 

A. Purpose Statement.  The purpose of this section is to implement the City of Tigard 2035 

Transportation System Plan which describes a more complete system of streets and pathways to 

improve multi-modal access to, from and within the Downtown Mixed Use Central Business 

District.  The standards in this section are intended to execute connectivity improvement projects 

that will foster creation of smaller block sizes, efficient routes into and within downtown, and 

new streets to accommodate and encourage downtown development.  The standards are also 

intended to solve some existing connectivity issues, such as access across railroad tracks.  

 

B. Applicability.  The connectivity standards in this section apply only to those properties with 

designated streets or alleys as shown on Figures 5-14A through 5-14I of the City of Tigard 2035 

Transportation System Plan.  Development on properties with designated streets or alleys is 

subject to the connectivity requirements below.   

 

C. Required New Street and Alley Connections.  Required new street and alley connections shall be 

provided as follows.   

 

1. New development and major redevelopment.  For new development and for major 

redevelopment valued at more than 60% of its total current value as assessed by the 

Washington County assessor, the applicant shall comply with subsections (a) and (b), below.  

 

(a) Dedicate the required right-of-way.  The applicant shall dedicate the amount of right-of-

way necessary to construct the required street or alley consistent with the designated 

street cross-section.   

 

i. As an alternative, the City Engineer may approve the dedication of a public easement 

in lieu of a portion of the public right-of-way in accordance with TDC 18.810.030.C. 

 

(b) Construct the required improvements.  The applicant shall construct the full street or alley 

improvements as shown in the designated street cross-section.   

 

2. All other projects.  For projects other than new development and major redevelopment, the 

applicant shall comply with sections (a) and (b) below: 

 

(a) Preserve the potential for a future connectivity improvement.  No new buildings shall be 

located within the area identified as future street or alley alignment.  Surface parking, 

landscaping, temporary structures, driveways and similar types of development are 

allowed within the future alignment.   

 

(b) Sign a non-remonstrance to future Local Improvement District (LID).  The property 

owner shall sign a non-remonstrance agreement for formation of a future LID to pay for 

the identified street or alley improvement. 

 

D. Required New Pedestrian Pathway.  For new development and for major redevelopment valued at 

more than 60% of its total current value as assessed by the Washington County assessor that is 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 7 OF 7 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

within the area designated for required multi-use pathway, the applicant shall comply with 

subsection (1) below: 

 

1. Provide multi-use pathway on public easements or right-of-ways through the block in a 

manner which ensures that connections through the block are provided at least every 330 feet.  

The required pathway shall provide direct connection through the block and be ADA 

accessible. subject to the requirements of 18.810.110. 

 

E.  Adjustments to the connectivity standards are subject to TDC 18.370.020. 

 

F. Replacement of a pre-existing structure that is destroyed by fire, earthquake or other cause 

beyond the control of the owner, shall not be considered a major redevelopment for the purposes 

of 18.610.025.C and  of 18.610.025.D. 
 

 

18.610.030 Building and Site Design Standards 

… 

 

18.610.035 Additional Standards 

… 

 

18.610.040 Special Requirements for Development Bordering Urban Plaza 

… 

 

18.610.045 Exceptions to Standards 

A. Exceptions to setback requirements. … 

 

B. Exceptions to parking requirements. … 

 

C. Exceptions for private or shared outdoor area. … 

 

D. Exceptions to landscaping requirements. … 

 

18.610.050 Building and Site Design Objectives (to be used with Track 3 Approval Process) 

… 

 

18.610.055 Signs 

… 

 

18.610.060 Off-Street Parking and Loading Requirements 

… 

 

 



DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT  
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.810 Street and Utility Improvement Standards PAGE 1 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

EXHIBIT D 
 

DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.810 Street and Utility Improvement Standards 
 

Proposed amendments are shown as follows: 
 Proposed new text is shown in double-underline. 
 Existing text proposed to be deleted is shown in strike-through. 

 
 
 
Sections: 
 
18.810.010 Purpose 
18.810.020 General Provisions 
18.810.030 Streets 
18.810.040 Blocks 
18.810.050 Easements 
18.810.060 Lots 
18.810.070 Sidewalks 
18.810.080 Public Use Areas 
18.810.090 Sanitary Sewers 
18.810.100 Storm Drainage 
18.810.110 Bikeways and Pedestrian Pathways 
18.810.120 Utilities 
18.810.130 Cash or Bond Required 
18.810.140 Monuments—Replacement Required. 
18.810.150 Installation Prerequisite 
18.810.160 Installation Conformation  
18.810.170 Plan Check 
18.810.180 Notice to City  
18.810.190 City Inspection of Improvements 
18.810.200 Engineer’s Written Certification Required 
18.810.210 Completion Requirements 
 
18.810.010 Purpose 
 
A. Purpose. The purpose of this chapter is to provide construction standards for the implementation of public 

and private facilities and utilities such as streets, sewers, and drainage. 
 
18.810.020 General Provisions 
 
A. When standards apply. Unless otherwise provided, construction, reconstruction or repair of streets, 

sidewalks, curbs and other public improvements shall occur in accordance with the standards of this title. 
No development may occur and no land use application may be approved unless the public facilities related 
to development comply with the public facility requirements established in this section and adequate public 
facilities are available. Applicants may be required to dedicate land and build required public improvements 
only when the required exaction is directly related to and roughly proportional to the impact of the 
development. 

 



DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT  
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.810 Street and Utility Improvement Standards PAGE 2 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

B. Standard specifications. The city engineer shall establish standard specifications consistent with the 
application of engineering principles. 

 
C. Chapter 7.40 applies. The provision of Chapter 7.40 of the Tigard Municipal Code shall apply to this 

chapter.  
 
D. Adjustments. Adjustments to the provisions in this chapter related to street improvements may be granted by 

means of a Type II procedure, as governed by Section 18.390.040, using approval criteria in Section 
18.370.020.C.11 18.370.030.C.9. (Ord. 99-22) 

 
E. Except as provided in Section 18.810.030.S, as used in this chapter, the term “streets” shall mean “public 

streets” unless an adjustment under Section 18.810.020.D is allowed. (Ord. 99-22) 
 
18.810.030 Streets 
 
A. Improvements.  
 

1. No development shall occur unless the development has frontage or approved access to a public street. 
 

2. No development shall occur unless streets within the development meet the standards of this chapter. 
 

3. No development shall occur unless the streets adjacent to the development meet the standards of this 
chapter, provided, however, that a development may be approved if the adjacent street does not meet the 
standards but half-street improvements meeting the standards of this title are constructed adjacent to the 
development. 

 
 4 Any new street or additional street width planned as a portion of an existing street shall meet the 

standards of this chapter.  
 
 5. If the city could and would otherwise require the applicant to provide street improvements, the city 

engineer may accept a future improvements guarantee in lieu of street improvements if one or more of 
the following conditions exist: 

 
  a. A partial improvement is not feasible due to the inability to achieve proper design standards; 

 
  b. A partial improvement may create a potential safety hazard to motorists or pedestrians; 

 
  c. Due to the nature of existing development on adjacent properties it is unlikely that street 

improvements would be extended in the foreseeable future and the improvement associated with the 
project under review does not, by itself, provide a significant improvement to street safety or 
capacity; 
 

  d. The improvement would be in conflict with an adopted capital improvement plan; 
 

  e. The improvement is associated with an approved land partition on property zoned residential and 
the proposed land partition does not create any new streets; or 

 
  f. Additional planning work is required to define the appropriate design standards for the street and the 

application is for a project which would contribute only a minor portion of the anticipated future 
traffic on the street. 

 
 6. The standards of this chapter include the standard specifications adopted by the city engineer pursuant 



DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT  
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.810 Street and Utility Improvement Standards PAGE 3 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

to Section 18.810.020.B. 
 
 7. The approval authority may approve adjustments to the standards of this chapter if compliance with the 

standards would result in an adverse impact on natural features such as wetlands, bodies of water, 
significant habitat areas, steep slopes, or existing mature trees. The approval authority may also approve 
adjustments to the standards of this chapter if compliance with the standards would have a substantial 
adverse impact on existing development or would preclude development on the property where the 
development is proposed. In approving an adjustment to the standards, the approval authority shall 
balance the benefit of the adjustment with the impact on the public interest represented by the standards. 
In evaluating the impact on the public interest, the approval authority shall consider the criteria listed in 
Section 18.810.030.E.1. An adjustment to the standards may not be granted if the adjustment would risk 
public safety. 

 
B. Creation of rights-of-way for streets and related purposes. Rights-of-way shall be created through the 

approval of a final subdivision plat or major partition; however, the council may approve the creation of a 
street by acceptance of a deed, provided that such street is deemed essential by the council for the purpose 
of general traffic circulation. 

 
1. The council may approve the creation of a street by deed of dedication without full compliance with the 

regulations applicable to subdivisions or major partitions if any one or more of the following conditions 
are found by the council to be present: 

 
  a. Establishment of a street is initiated by the council and is found to be essential for the purpose of 

general traffic circulation, and partitioning or subdivision of land has an incidental effect rather than 
being the primary objective in establishing the road or street for public use; or 

 
  b. The tract in which the road or street is to be dedicated is an isolated ownership of one acre or less 

and such dedication is recommended by the commission to the council based on a finding that the 
proposal is not an attempt to evade the provisions of this title governing the control of subdivisions 
or major partitions. 

 
  c.  The street is located within the Downtown Mixed Use Central Business District and has been 

identified on Figures 5-14A through 5-14I of the City of Tigard 2035 Transportation System Plan as 
a required connectivity improvement. 

 
2. With each application for approval of a road or street right-of-way not in full compliance with the 

regulations applicable to the standards, the proposed dedication shall be made a condition of subdivision 
and major partition approval. 

 
  a. The applicant shall submit such additional information and justification as may be necessary to 

enable the commission in its review to determine whether or not a recommendation for approval by 
the council shall be made. 

 
  b. The recommendation, if any, shall be based upon a finding that the proposal is not in conflict with 

the purpose of this title. 
 
  c. The commission in submitting the proposal with a recommendation to the council may attach 

conditions which are necessary to preserve the standards of this title. 
 
 3. All deeds of dedication shall be in a form prescribed by the city and shall name “the public” as grantee. 

 
C. Creation of access easements. … 



DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT  
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.810 Street and Utility Improvement Standards PAGE 4 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

  
D. Street location, width and grade. Except as noted below, the location, width and grade of all streets shall 

conform to an approved street plan and shall be considered in their relation to existing and planned streets, 
to topographic conditions, to public convenience and safety, and in their appropriate relation to the proposed 
use of the land to be served by such streets: 

 
 1. Street grades shall be approved by the city engineer in accordance with subsection N below; and 
 
 2. Where the location of a street is not shown in an approved street plan, the arrangement of streets in a 

development shall either: 
 
  a. Provide for the continuation or appropriate projection of existing streets in the surrounding areas, or 
 
  b. Conform to a plan adopted by the commission, if it is impractical to conform to existing street 

patterns because of particular topographical or other existing conditions of the land. Such a plan 
shall be based on the type of land use to be served, the volume of traffic, the capacity of adjoining 
streets and the need for public convenience and safety. 

 
E. Minimum rights-of-way and street widths. Unless otherwise indicated on an approved street plan, or as 

needed to continue an existing improved street or within the Downtown District, street right-of-way and 
roadway widths shall not be less than the minimum width described below. Where a range is indicated, the 
width shall be determined by the decision-making authority based upon anticipated average daily traffic 
(ADT) on the new street segment. (The City Council may adopt by resolution, design standards for street 
construction and other public improvements. The design standards will provide guidance for determining 
improvement requirements within the specified ranges.) These are presented in Table 18.810.1. 

 
 1. The decision-making body shall make its decision about desired right-of-way width and pavement width 

of the various street types within the subdivision or development after consideration of the following: 
 
  a. The type of road as set forth in the comprehensive plan transportation chapter - functional street 

classification. 
 
  b. Anticipated traffic generation. 
 
  c. On-street parking needs. 
 
  d. Sidewalk and bikeway requirements. 
  e. Requirements for placement of utilities. 
 
  f. Street lighting. 
 
  g. Drainage and slope impacts. 
 
  h. Street tree location. 
 
  i. Planting and landscape areas. 
 
  j. Safety and comfort for motorists, bicyclists, and pedestrians. 
 
  k. Access needs for emergency vehicles. 
 



DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT  
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.810 Street and Utility Improvement Standards PAGE 5 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

Table 18.810.1 
Minimum Widths for Street Characteristics and Downtown Street Character Types 

Type of Street 
Right-of-

Way 
Width  

Paved 
Width  

Number of 
Lanes 

Min. 
Lane 

Width 

On-street 
Parking Width Bike Lane Width  Sidewalk Width  

Landscape 
Strip Width 
(exclusive of 

curb)

Median 
Width 

Arterial 64′—128′ Varies 
2—7 

(Refer to 
TSP)

12′ N/A 
6′ (New Streets) 

5′—6′ (Existing Streets)

8′ (Res. & Ind. Zones)

10′ (Comm. Zones) 5′ 12′ (1) 

Collector 58′—96′ Varies 
2—5 

(Refer to 
TSP) 

11′ 8′ (4) 
6′ (New Streets) (5) 

5′—6′ (Existing Streets) 
(5)

6′ (Res. & Ind. Zones)

8′ (Comm. Zones) 
5′ 12′ (1) 

Neighborhood Route 50′—58′ 28′—36′ 2 10′ 8′ 5′—6′ 5′—6′ (2) 5′ N/A 
Local: 
Industrial/Commercial 

 
50′ 

 
36′ 2   N/A 5′—6′ (2) 5′

 
N/A 

Local: Residential 
 Under 1500 ADT 
 Under 500 ADT 
 Under 200 ADT  

 
54′/50′ (3) 

50′/46′ (3) 

46′/42′ (3) 

 
32′/28′ (3) 
28′/24′ (3) 
24′/20′ (3) 

2 
2 
2

 
 

8′ (both sides) 
8′ (one side) 
(No Parking)

N/A 
N/A 
N/A

5′—6′ (2) 5′ 
N/A 

Cul-de-sac bulbs in 
Industrial and 
Commercial Zones 

50′ radius 42′ radius N/A N/A  N/A   N/A 

Cul-de-sac bulbs in 
Residential Zones 47′ radius 40′ radius N/A N/A  N/A  N/A N/A 

Upper Hall Boulevard(6) 94’ 64’ 3 11’ 8’ 6’ 10.5' 4’ 14’ 
Main Street Green Street TBD(7) TBD(7) TBD(7) TBD(7) TBD(7) TBD(7) TBD(7) TBD(7) TBD(7) 
Downtown Mixed Use 1 
– Downtown Collector 66’-70’ 46’ 2 10’ 8’ 5’ 6-8’ 4’ N/A 

Downtown Mixed Use 2 
– Downtown 
Neighborhood 

58’-62’ 38’ 2 11’ 8’ N/A 6-8’ 4’ N/A 

Downtown Mixed Use 3 
– Upper Burnham 62’-74’ 38’ 2 11’ 8’ N/A 6-8’ 5.5-9.5’ N/A 

Downtown Mixed Use 4 
– Lower Burnham 68’-72’ 48’ 2 10’ 8’ N/A 6-8’ 4’ 12’ 



DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT  
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.810 Street and Utility Improvement Standards PAGE 6 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

Downtown – Urban 
Residential 52’-56’ 32’ 1 18’ 7’ N/A 6-8’ 4’ N/A 

Alley: Residential 16′ 16′ N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Alley: Business 20′ 20′ N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

 

1 Medians required for five- and seven-lane roadways. They are optional for three-lane roadways. 
2 Sidewalk widths for these streets shall be five feet with landscape strip; six feet if against curb (if permitted in accordance with Section 18.810.070.C). 
3 “Skinny street” roadway widths are permitted where cross section and review criteria are met. Refer to corresponding cross sections (Figures 18.810.3, 18.810.4 and 18.810.5) for details and conditions. 
4 Parking is allowed on collectors within the Downtown Urban Renewal District. 
5 Bicycle lane requirements on collectors within the Downtown Urban Renewal District shall be determined by the city engineer. 
6 SW Hall Boulevard is currently an ODOT facility.  The 2035 Tigard Transportation System Plan recommends that a corridor plan be completed for the SW Hall Boulevard Corridor The street character standards 
for Upper Hall Boulevard shall not be considered final until the corridor plan is complete.  
7 Main Street Green Street standards are currently being developed through a separate process. 

 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 7 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

Figure 18.810.1 
Arterials Sample Cross Sections 
 
 

 
 
(Ord. 02-33) 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 8 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

Figure 18.810.2 
Collector Sample Cross Sections (1) 
 
 

 
 
1 Parking is allowed on collectors within the Downtown Urban Renewal District. Bike lane requirements 
on these same collecters shall be determined by the city engineer.  
 
(Ord. 09-09 § 3 (Exh. B); Ord. 02-33) 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 9 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

Figure 18.810.3 
Neighborhood Routes Sample Cross Sections 
 

 
(Ord. 02-33) 
 
Figure 18.810.4 
Local Residential Streets - <1,500 vpd 
 

 A. Standard (sample) 
 
 

 
 

 B. Skinny Street Option (criteria)
 

 
Criteria: 
 Traffic flow plan must be submitted and 

approved. 
 Not appropriate for streets serving more than 

1,000 vpd. 
 No parking permitted within 30 feet of an 

intersection. 
 Appropriate adjacent to single-family 

detached development only. 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 10 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

 

(Ord. 02-33) 
 
Figure 18.810.5 
Local Residential Streets < 500 vpd 
 
 A. Standard (sample) 
 

 
 
 

 B. Skinny Street Option (criteria)
 

 
 
Criteria: 
 Traffic flow plan must be submitted and 

approved. 
 Not appropriate for streets serving more than 

500 vpd. 
 No parking permitted within 30 feet of an 

intersection. 
 Appropriate adjacent to single-family detached 

development only. 
 Must provide a minimum of one off-street 

parking space for every 20 feet of restricted 
street frontage. 

 
(Ord. 02-33) 
 
Figure 18.810.6 
Local Residential Street < 200 vpd 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 11 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

 
 A. Standard (sample) 
 

 
 
 

 B. Skinny Street Option (criteria)
 

 
 
Criteria: 
 Must provide a minimum of one off-street 

parking space for every 20 feet of restricted 
street frontage. 

 No parking permitted within 30 feet of an 
intersection. 

 
(Ord.02-33) 
 
 
Figure 18.810.7 
Upper Hall Boulevard  
 

 
Note: SW Hall Boulevard is currently an ODOT facility.  The 2035 Tigard Transportation System Plan 
recommends that a corridor plan be completed for the SW Hall Boulevard Corridor The street character 
standards for Upper Hall Boulevard shall not be considered final until the corridor plan is complete. 
 
 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 12 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

Figure 18.810.8 
Downtown Mixed Use 1 – Downtown Collector 
 

 
 
Figure 18.810.9 
Downtown Mixed Use 2 – Downtown Neighborhood 
 

 
 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 13 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

Figure 18.810.10 
Downtown Mixed Use 3 – Upper Burnham 
 

 
 
Figure 18.810.11 
Downtown Mixed Use 4 – Lower Burnham 
 

 
 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 14 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

Figure 18.810.12 
Downtown – Urban Residential 
 

 
 
Figure 18.810.12 
Alley: Business 
 

 
Note: Permeable pavers are optional. 
 
 
F. Future street plan and extension of streets.  
… 
 
G. Street spacing and access management. 
… 
 
H. Street alignment and connections.  
 
 1. Full street connections with spacing of no more than 530 feet between connections is required 

except where prevented by barriers such as topography, railroads, freeways, pre-existing 
developments, lease provisions, easements, covenants or other restrictions existing prior to May 
1, 1995 which preclude street connections. A full street connection may also be exempted due to 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 15 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

a regulated water feature if regulations would not permit construction. 
 
 2. All local, neighborhood routes and collector streets which abut a development site shall be 

extended within the site to provide through circulation when not precluded by environmental or 
topographical constraints, existing development patterns or strict adherence to other standards in 
this code. A street connection or extension is considered precluded when it is not possible to 
redesign or reconfigure the street pattern to provide required extensions. Land is considered 
topographically constrained if the slope is greater than 15% for a distance of 250 feet or more. In 
the case of environmental or topographical constraints, the mere presence of a constraint is not 
sufficient to show that a street connection is not possible. The applicant must show why the 
constraint precludes some reasonable street connection. 

 
 3. Proposed street or street extensions shall be located to provide direct access to existing or planned 

transit stops, commercial services, and other neighborhood facilities, such as schools, shopping 
areas and parks. 

 
 4. All developments should provide an internal network of connecting streets that provide short, 

direct travel routes and minimize travel distances within the development. 
 
I. Intersection angles. … 
 
J. Existing rights-of-way. Whenever existing rights-of-way adjacent to or within a tract are of less than 

standard width, additional rights-of-way shall be provided at the time of subdivision or development. 
 
K. Partial street improvements. Partial street improvements resulting in a pavement width of less than 20 

feet, while generally not acceptable, may be approved where essential to reasonable development 
when in conformity with the other requirements of these regulations, and when it will be practical to 
require the improvement of the other half when the adjoining property developed. 

 
L. Culs-de-sacs. … 
 
M. Street names. … 
 
N. Grades and curves. 
… 
 
O. Curbs, curb cuts, ramps, and driveway approaches. … 
 
P. Streets adjacent to railroad right-of-way.  … 
 
Q. Access to arterials and collectors. … 
 
R. Alleys, public or private.  
 
 1. Alleys shall be no less than 20 feet in width. In commercial and industrial districts, alleys shall be 

provided unless other permanent provisions for access to off-street parking and loading facilities 
are made. 

 
 2. While alley intersections and sharp changes in alignment shall be avoided, the corners of 

necessary alley intersections shall have a radius of not less than 12 feet. 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 16 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

 
S. Survey monuments. … 
 
T. Private streets. 
… 
 
U. Railroad crossings. Where an adjacent development results in a need to install or improve a railroad 

crossing, the cost for such improvements may be a condition of development approval, or another 
equitable means of cost distribution shall be determined by the public works director and approved by 
the commission. 

 
V. Street signs. … 
 
W. Mailboxes. … 
 
X. Traffic signals. … 
 
Y. Street light standards. … 
 
Z. Street name signs. … 
 
AA. Street cross-sections. … 
 
BB.  Traffic calming. … 
 
CC.  Traffic study. … 
 
18.810.040 Blocks 
A. Block design. The length, width and shape of blocks shall be designed with due regard to providing 

adequate building sites for the use contemplated, consideration of needs for convenient access, 
circulation, control and safety of street traffic and recognition of limitations and opportunities of 
topography. 

 
B. Sizes. 
 
 1. The perimeter of blocks formed by streets shall not exceed 2,000 feet measured along the 

centerline of the streets except: 
 
  a. Where street location is precluded by natural topography, wetlands, significant habitat areas 

or bodies of water, or pre-existing development; or 
 
  b. For blocks adjacent to arterial streets, limited access highways, collectors or railroads. 
 
  c. For nonresidential blocks in which internal public circulation provides equivalent access. 
 

2. Bicycle and pedestrian connections on public easements or right-of-ways shall be provided when 
full street connection is exempted by subsection B.1 of this section. Spacing between 
connections shall be no more than 330 feet, except where precluded by environmental or 
topographical constraints, existing development patterns, or strict adherence to other standards in 
the code. (Ord. 06-20; Ord. 02-33) 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 17 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

 
18.810.050 Easements 
… 
 
18.810.060  Lots 
… 
 
18.810.070  Sidewalks 
 
A. Sidewalks. All industrial streets and private streets shall have sidewalks meeting city standards along 

at least one side of the street. All other streets shall have sidewalks meeting city standards along both 
sides of the street. A development may be approved if an adjoining street has sidewalks on the side 
adjoining the development, even if no sidewalk exists on the other side of the street. 

 
B. Requirement of developers.  
 1. As part of any development proposal, or change in use resulting in an additional 1,000 vehicle 

trips or more per day, an applicant shall be required to identify direct, safe (1.25 x the straight line 
distance) pedestrian routes within 1/2 mile of their site to all transit facilities and neighborhood 
activity centers (schools, parks, libraries, etc.). In addition, the developer may be required to 
participate in the removal of any gaps in the pedestrian system off-site if justified by the 
development. 

 
 2. If there is an existing sidewalk on the same side of the street as the development within 300 feet 

of a development site in either direction, the sidewalk shall be extended from the site to meet the 
existing sidewalk, subject to rough proportionality (even if the sidewalk does not serve a 
neighborhood activity center). 

 
C. Planter strip requirements. A planter strip separation of at least five feet between the curb and the 

sidewalk shall be required in the design of streets, except where the following conditions exist: there 
is inadequate right-of-way; the curbside sidewalks already exist on predominant portions of the street; 
it would conflict with the utilities; there are significant natural features (large trees, water features, 
significant habitat areas, etc.) that would be destroyed if the sidewalk were located as required; or 
where there are existing structures in close proximity to the street (15 feet or less); or where the 
standards in Table 18.810.1 specify otherwise. Additional consideration for exempting the planter 
strip requirement may be given on a case-by-case basis if a property abuts more than one street 
frontage. 

 
D.  Sidewalks in Central Business District. In the Central Business District, sidewalks shall be 10 feet in 

width, and: 
 
 1.  All sidewalks shall provide a continuous unobstructed path; and 
 
 2.  The width of curbside sidewalks shall be measured from the back of the curb. 

 
E. Maintenance. … 
 
F. Application for permit and inspection. … 
 
G. Council initiation of construction. … (Ord. 06-20; Ord. 02-33; Ord. 99-22) 
 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 18 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

 
18.810.080 Public Use Areas 
… 
 
18.810.090 Sanitary Sewers 
… 
 
18.810.100 Storm Drainage 
… 
 
18.810.110 Bikeways and Pedestrian Pathways 
 

A. Bikeway extension. 
 

1. As a standard, bike lanes shall be required along all arterial and collector routes and where 
identified on the city’s adopted bicycle plan in the transportation system plan (TSP). Bike lane 
requirements along collectors within the Downtown Urban Renewal District shall be determined 
by the city engineer unless specified in Table 18.810.1. 
 

2. Developments adjoining proposed bikeways identified on the city’s adopted pedestrian/bikeway 
plan shall include provisions for the future extension of such bikeways through the dedication of 
easements or rights-of-way, provided such dedication is directly related to and roughly 
proportional to the impact of the development. 
 

3. Any new street improvement project shall include bicycle lanes as required in this document and 
on the adopted bicycle plan. 

 
B. Cost of construction. Development permits issued for planned unit developments, conditional use 

permits, subdivisions and other developments which will principally benefit from such bikeways shall 
be conditioned to include the cost or construction of bikeway improvements in an amount roughly 
proportional to the impact of the development. 

 
C. Minimum width.  
 
 1. The minimum width for bikeways within the roadway is five feet per bicycle travel lane. 
 
 2. The minimum width for multi-use paths separated from the road and classified as regional or 

community trails in the Greenway Trail System Master Plan is 10 feet. The width may be 
reduced to eight feet if there are environmental or other constraints. 

 
 3. The minimum width for off-street paths classified as neighborhood trails, according to the 

Greenway Trail System Master Plan, is three feet. 
 
 4. Design standards for bike and pedestrian-ways shall be determined by the city engineer. (Ord. 

11-04 §2; Ord. 09-09 § 3; Ord. 02-33; Ord. 99-22) 
 
18.810.120 Utilities 
… 
 
18.810.130 Cash or Bond Required 



 
DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS PROJECT 
DRAFT Amendments to TDC Chapter 18.610 Tigard Downtown District Dev. & Design Stds PAGE 19 OF 19 

CPA 2012-00001/DCA 2012-00002 

… 
 
18.810.140 Monuments—Replacement Required. 
… 
 
18.810.150 Installation Prerequisite 
… 
 
18.810.160 Installation Conformation  
… 
 
18.810.170 Plan Check 
… 
 
18.810.180 Notice to City 
… 
18.810.190 City Inspection of Improvements 
… 
 
18.810.200 Engineer’s Written Certification Required 
… 
 
18.810.210 Completion Requirements (To be completed.) ■ 
 
 



EXHIBIT E - Kittelson and Associates traffic analysis conducted as part of the 

development of the Downtown Conceptual Circulation Plan 



dOwnTOwn CIRCULATIOn PLAn - APPEndIX - 3 AUgUsT 2010 33

 

 
 

MEMORANDUM
 

Date: December 22, 2009  Project #: 10170.0 

To: Matt Arnold 
SERA Architects 

From: Elizabeth Wemple, PE, Jamie Parks and Michael Houston 
Project: Downtown Tigard Circulation Plan 
Subject: Horizon Year Transportation Circulation 
 

As requested by SERA Architects, Kittelson & Associates, Inc.  (KAI) has performed a year 2050 
estimate of trip generation, distribution and traffic analysis for Tigard, Oregon. This analysis was 
conducted to support the City of Tigard Downtown Circulation Plan. The study area is roughly 
bounded by Highway 99W to the northwest, Hall Boulevard to the east, and Fanno Creek to the 
south and west. The area approximately corresponds to Metro’s Town Center designation. 

METHODOLOGY

Year 2050 estimates for the total development areas in downtown Tigard were provided by City 
staff.  Downtown  Tigard  is  expected  to  experience  high  residential,  retail,  and  office  growth 
between  now  and  the  horizon  year  of  2050.  Table  1  summarizes  the  expected  extent  of  total 
development in downtown Tigard in 2050. As shown, over 1 million square feet of retail, 532,000 
square feet of office, and roughly 3,260 dwelling units are anticipated for downtown Tigard. 

Table 1 Year 2050 Total Downtown Build-Out 

Sub-Area
Summary 

Highway 99W- 
Hall Boulevard 

Main Street-
Center Street 

Scoffins Street-
Commercial 

Street 

Fanno Creek-
Burnham

Street 

Station Area 
Overlay

Totals 

Retail Area (sf) 376,500 366,625 305,250 271,700 none 1,320,075 

Office Area (sf) 230,000 52,000 50,000 200,000 none 532,000 

Dwelling Units 667 117 958 824 695 3,260

 

Trip Generation and Mode Reduction 

Based on the anticipated development in the study area, future person trips were estimated using 
the Trip Generation Manual, 8th Edition. This standard resource was published by  the  Institute of 
Transportation Engineers (ITE). 

In  the year 2050,  it  is expected  that a significant portion of  the  travel  in and out of downtown 
Tigard will occur using non‐auto modes. The Metro Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) includes 

FILENAME: H:\PROJFILE\10170PDX\REPORT\FINAL\10170 MEMO FINAL.DOC 

appendix  b :  transportat ion assessment

sean
Typewritten Text



TIgARd, OREgOn34

Downtown Tigard Circulation Plan Project #: 10170.0 
December 22, 2009 Page 2 

a  target  for  the  maximum  percentage  of  single‐occupant  vehicle  (SOV)  trips  for  downtown 
Tigard. The  target  is  between  45  and  55 percent.  Similarly,  the City  of Tigard has  a desirable 
maximum SOV of 40 percent in this part of town. Both are year 2035 targets. For this analysis, we 
estimated that thirty percent of the person trips in and out of downtown will use non‐automobile 
transportation (i.e., transit, bicycle, or walk) in 2050. This anticipates that in addition to the non‐
automobile trips, approximately 20 to 30 percent of all trips will occur by carpooling. 

Table  2  summarizes  the  estimated  trip  generation  of  the  expected development  in downtown 
Tigard, taking into consideration the anticipated reduction in vehicle trips. 

Table 2 Year 2050 Downtown Trip Generation Summary 

Weekday PM Peak Hour 
Land Use ITE

Code Size
Daily 

Weekday 
Trips Total In Out

Retail Area (sf) 820 1,320,075 sf 58,640 5,510 2,650 2,860 

Office Area (sf) 710 532,000 sf 5,855 795 135 660

Dwelling Units 230 3,259 units 18,935 1,695 1,135 560

Subtotal 83,430 8,000 3,920 4,080 

 30% Non-Auto Mode Reduction (25,030) (2,400) (1,175) (1,225) 

Total 58,400 5,600 2,745 2,855

 

As shown  in the table, downtown Tigard is expected to generate 58,400 daily trips, where 5,600 
will occur during the p.m. peak hour. Of the peak hour trips, 2,745 are anticipated to be entering 
the  downtown while  2,855  are  expected  to  be  exiting.  The  anticipated  retail  development  in 
downtown is expected to have the largest portion of trips between the three land uses. 

Trip Distribution 

To  estimate  the  number  of  vehicle  trips  on  the  proposed  downtown  Tigard  transportation 
network developed by SERA Architects,  the  trips shown  in Table 2 were assigned  to  the  future 
roadway network. The trip distribution for each of the arterials in the immediate area was based 
on  estimates  developed  using  Metro’s  regional  travel  demand  model.  Table  3  shows  the 
estimated trip distribution to the arterials. 

 

Kittelson & Associates, Inc. Portland, Oregon 



dOwnTOwn CIRCULATIOn PLAn - APPEndIX - 3 AUgUsT 2010 35

Downtown Tigard Circulation Plan Project #: 10170.0 
December 22, 2009 Page 3 

Table 3 Downtown Trip Distribution 

Roadway Direction Total Percent

In 140
Hall Boulevard—North 

Out 145
5%

In 550
Highway 99W—East 

Out 570
20%

In 550
Hunziker Boulevard 

Out 570
20%

In 270
Hall Boulevard—South 

Out 285
10%

In 275
Highway 99W—West 

Out 285
10%

In 140
Ash Avenue—South 

Out 145
5%

In 550
Greenburg Road 

Out 570
20%

In 270
Garden Place 

Out 285
10%

In 2,745
Total 

Out 2,855
100%

 

As  shown  in  the  table,  the  roadways  that  are  expected  to  carry  the  highest  proportion  of 
downtown trips are Highway 99W to the east, Hunziker Boulevard, and Greenburg Road. 

Vehicle  trips were  assigned  onto  the  future  roadway  network  according  to  the  distributions 
shown  in  Table  3.  In  addition,  background  traffic  (i.e.  regional  traffic  without  an  origin  or 
destination within downtown) was  included  in  the estimate. Background  traffic was estimated 
using demand estimates from Metro’s 2035 regional travel model. It was assumed that the areas 
adjacent to downtown Tigard would be primarily built‐out by 2035 and that little growth would 
occur  in these areas between 2035 and 2050. For this reason, no adjustment factor was added to 
the 2035 background volumes.  

Figure 1 shows the assigned 2050 peak‐hour trips (background plus trips originating/destined for 
downtown  Tigard)  on  each  link  of  the  roadway  network.  Average  daily  volumes would  be 
approximately 10 times the peak‐hour volumes shown in Figure 1. 

 

Kittelson & Associates, Inc. Portland, Oregon 

appendix  b :  transportat ion assessment



TIgARd, OREgOn36



dOwnTOwn CIRCULATIOn PLAn - APPEndIX - 3 AUgUsT 2010 37

Downtown Tigard Circulation Plan Project #: 10170.0 
December 22, 2009 Page 5 

ROADWAY CHARACTER 

SERA Architects provided a street character classification map  for  the  future roadway network. 
The  following  roadway  characteristics  correspond  to  the  character  classifications  provided  by 
SERA: 

• Upper Hall Boulevard:  Three‐lane  cross‐section, with  bike  lanes  for  cyclists. Assumed 
planning‐level capacity is 20,000 vehicles per day. 

• Downtown Mixed Use  1  – Downtown Collector with median: Two‐lane  cross‐section 
with  a median  for  turn  lanes  at  intersections,  and  bike  lanes. Assumed  planning‐level 
capacity is 15,000 vehicles per day. 

• Downtown Mixed Use 2 – Downtown Collector: Two‐lane cross‐section with bike lanes 
for cyclists. Assumed planning‐level capacity is 8,000 vehicles per day. 

• Downtown Mixed Use 3 – Downtown Local: Two‐lane cross‐section with no bike lanes. 
Assumed planning‐level capacity is 7,000 vehicles per day. 

• Downtown Mixed Use 4 – Upper Burnham: Two‐lane  cross‐section with no bike  lanes 
similar  to  the  Downtown Mixed  Use  3,  but  wider  sidewalks  are  provided.  Assumed 
planning‐level capacity is 7,000 vehicles per day. 

• Downtown Mixed Use  5  – Lower Burnham: Two‐lane  cross‐section with  a  continuous 
left‐turn  lane and no bike  lanes. Assumed planning‐level capacity  is 12,000 vehicles per 
day. 

• Urban Green Street 1: Two‐lane cross‐section similar to the Downtown Mixed Use 2, but 
with permeable pavers for parking. No bike lanes are provided. Assumed planning‐level 
capacity is 7,000 vehicles per day. 

• Urban Green Street 2: Narrow two‐lane cross‐section with permeable pavers for parking. 
Assumed planning‐level capacity is 2,000 vehicles per day. 

• Urban Residential: Narrow  two‐lane  cross‐section. Assumed planning‐level  capacity  is 
2,000 vehicles per day. 

• Alley:  Narrow  roadway,  usually  with  several  access  points.  Alleys  are  assumed  to 
provide local access only and have no specific planning‐level capacity.  

In  addition,  bike  lanes  are  recommended  if  traffic  volumes  exceed  3,000  vehicles  per  day  on 
roadways,  particularly  those with  bicycle  and multi  use  pathway  connections.  Based  on  the 
characteristics described above, the volumes shown in Figure 1 were compared to the thresholds 
for  each  of  the  character  classifications  shown  in  the  proposed  downtown  street  network 
provided by SERA. The projected volumes and roadway cross‐sections were found to match the 
characteristic of the proposed street network. 

Kittelson & Associates, Inc. Portland, Oregon 

appendix  b :  transportat ion assessment



TIgARd, OREgOn38

Downtown Tigard Circulation Plan Project #: 10170.0 
December 22, 2009 Page 6 

HALL BOULEVARD/GARDEN PLACE TRAFFIC OPERATIONS 

The traffic operations at the Hall Boulevard/Garden Place intersection were estimated under year 
2050 p.m. peak hour traffic conditions. Turning movements at the intersection were based upon 
the link volumes shown in Figure 1. The graphic on the next page illustrates the turning volumes 
and lane configurations assumed at the intersection. 

100 1,050 50

50 50

150 200

250

Hall Boulevard/ 
Garden Place 

100

200 950 150

 
The intersection was evaluated using critical movement analysis (CMA), a standard procedure for 
estimating planning‐level intersection operations. The lane configurations shown above result in 
intersection operations that are estimated to exceed the available capacity by roughly 15 percent 
in the year 2050. It was found that the primary capacity constraint is the through volumes on Hall 
Boulevard, and additional  lanes on Garden Place, such as exclusive  turn  lanes,  result  in only a 
slight  improvement  to  intersection operations. Additional north and  southbound  lanes on Hall 
Boulevard  bring  the  intersection  significantly  under  capacity. However, while  the  forecasted 
traffic volumes at the intersection are expected to slightly exceed the available capacity with the 
lane  configurations  shown  above,  it  results  in  the  future  congestion  expected  in  a  downtown 
setting. 

CONCLUSION

Based  on  the  findings  described  above,  each  of  the  character  classifications  shown  in  the 
proposed downtown  street network provided by SERA match  closely  to  the anticipated  traffic 
volumes in downtown Tigard. 

While  the  traffic operations at  the Hall Boulevard/Garden Place  intersection were estimated  to 
exceed  the  available  planning‐level  capacity  in  the  future  year,  no  additional  changes  are 
recommended to the roadway character classification of either roadway. Therefore it is likely that 
there will  be  peak  period  congestion  and/or  queuing  in  the  vicinity  of  this  intersection.    The 
likelihood is that the congestion will be limited to peak commuting or shopping periods, and that 
off peak the intersection would operate with limited congestion.  

We trust this memorandum summarizes the analysis and results for the future traffic circulation 
in  Downtown  Tigard.  Please  don’t  hesitate  to  contact  us  at  (503)  228‐5230  if  you  have  any 
questions. 

Kittelson & Associates, Inc. Portland, Oregon 



EXHIBIT F: Citizen Comments 

 

                        F.1. Gary and Judy Craghead 

                        F.2. Fraternal Order of Eagles 

                        F.3 .J. Ronald and Cecilia Thompson 

                        F.4. Abbas Nikzad 

                        F.5. Luella Paddack (e-mail) 

 



sean
Typewritten Text

sean
Typewritten Text
F.1.





sean
Typewritten Text
F.2.



sean
Typewritten Text
F.3.





sean
Typewritten Text
F.4.



sean
Typewritten Text
F.5.





EXHIBIT G: Agency Comments 

 

                        G.1. ODOT  (e-mail) 

                        G.2. Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue   

                        G.3. Portland & Western Railroad  

                        G.4. TriMet (e-mail) 

 



sean
Typewritten Text
G.1



sean
Typewritten Text
G.2.



sean
Typewritten Text
G.3.



sean
Typewritten Text
G.4.



I:\LRPLN\Planning Commission\2012 Packets\101512 - Briefing RT - PH DCA2012-00001 & PH CPA2012-00001\tpc 101512 minutes.docx             Page 1 of 10 

 

CITY OF TIGARD 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

Meeting Minutes 
October 15, 2012 

CALL TO ORDER   
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
President Walsh called the meeting to order at 7:06 p.m. The meeting was held in the Tigard 
Civic Center, Town Hall, at 13125 SW Hall Blvd. 
    
ROLL CALL 

 
Present: President Walsh  
 Vice President Anderson 
 Commissioner Doherty  
 Commissioner Fitzgerald 
 Commissioner Muldoon 
 Commissioner Rogers 
 Commissioner Schmidt 
 Commissioner Shavey 
   
Absent: Commissioner Ryan; Alt. Commissioner Miller; Alt. Commissioner 

Armstrong 
 
Staff Present: Tom McGuire, Interim Community Development Director; Doreen 

Laughlin, Executive Assistant; Sean Farrelly, Redevelopment Project 
Manager; Marissa Daniels, Associate Planner; Gary Pagenstecher, 
Associate Planner  

 
COMMUNICATIONS    
 
This agenda item was moved by President Walsh to the end of the meeting. 
 
CONSIDER MINUTES 
 
June 4, 2012 Meeting Minutes: President Walsh asked if there were any additions, 
deletions, or corrections to the June 4 minutes; there being none, Walsh declared the 
minutes approved as submitted.  
 
WORKSHOP – RIVER TERRACE COMMUNITY PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 
PLAN 
 
Associate Planner Marissa Daniels gave an update on the public involvement plan for River 
Terrace.  She covered the following three items and then opened it up for discussion: 

 The Planning Commission’s role as Tigard’s state recognized Committee for Citizen 

Involvement.  

 Details about the River Terrace Community Plan. 



I:\LRPLN\Planning Commission\2012 Packets\101512 - Briefing RT - PH DCA2012-00001 & PH CPA2012-00001\tpc 101512 minutes.docx             Page 2 of 10 

 

 Described the contents of the public involvement plan. 

She advised the commissioners that Sr. Planner, Darren Wyss, would be back in November 
to give a comprehensive overview of the project.  She noted that there would be Stakeholder 
Working Group (SWG) meetings and that a Planning Commission member would be invited 
to participate in that. The committee will act as an advisory body to staff and provide a 
venue for citizen involvement opportunities in planning for River Terrace. The first message 
was sent through the “listserv” the previous week. Daniels noted that one of the benefits of 
following from Washington County is that they passed to Tigard a list of over a 100 contacts 
for this project. She added that the commissioners were welcome to join that listserv online 
at the City website and noted that the first kick-off meeting for the project would be held 
Wednesday, October 24th near the general River Terrace area – at Deer Creek Elementary 
School. She invited the Commissioners to attend and left postcards at the podium for them 
to pick up if they wanted more information on that and wanted to attend. 
 
Questions from the Commissioners of Daniels 
What is the role of the River Terrace Community Plan as a whole?  You’ll review items of the plan as 
they come through the legislative adoption process. There’s a schedule on the draft (Exhibit 
A). You can see there that different topics will come through at different times to the 
Commission before the final adoption of the plan. Staff will keep the Commission updated 
and engaged throughout so that they will be prepared for that process at those different 
points. 
 
Questions of Interim CD Director, Tom McGuire 
Referring to the current staff issues - where does this project fit in your priorities – with everything else you 
have going on with planning staff right now? This project is one of the Council’s goals for this year 
and one of their top priorities. We have Darren Wyss as the project manager and he will be 
moving this forward. In addition, we hired a local land use consultant, John Spencer, who 
will primarily help to manage the long range projects and assist me. So this project will move 
forward. Darren will be here in November to update the Commission on the processes and 
where this is going. 
 
At this point, President Walsh took a quick poll of the audience and noted that a majority of 
the people present were there for the Connectivity Agenda item. He decided to change the 
agenda order and moved the public hearing on connectivity to the next order of business. 
 
President Walsh opened the public hearing: 
 
PUBLIC HEARING - CPA2012-00001/DCA2012-00002  

TIGARD DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN CODE AMENDMENTS 

REQUEST: To amend the City of Tigard 2035 Transportation System Plan to add 
background and figures and to amend the Tigard Development Code (Title 18) Chapters 
18.370, 18.610 and 18.810 to implement new street connections. The complete text of the 
currently proposed amendments can be viewed on the city’s website at http://www.tigard-

or.gov/connectivity LOCATION:  Downtown District.  ZONE:  MU-CBD. 

http://www.tigard-or.gov/connectivity
http://www.tigard-or.gov/connectivity


I:\LRPLN\Planning Commission\2012 Packets\101512 - Briefing RT - PH DCA2012-00001 & PH CPA2012-00001\tpc 101512 minutes.docx             Page 3 of 10 

 

STAFF REPORT 
Sean Farrelly, Redevelopment Project Manager introduced himself and also introduced 
Cathy Corliss who was there as a consultant with Angelo Planning Group and had worked 
on developing some of the code language for this amendment. Farrelly went over a 
PowerPoint presentation regarding the Tigard Downtown Improvement Plan (Exhibit B). 
He turned the presentation regarding the proposed amendments to Chapter 18.610 over to 
Ms. Corliss.    
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION  
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission find that this request for a Comp Plan 
Amendment and Development Code Amendments meets the necessary approval criteria 
according to the findings found in Section IV of the staff report. Staff recommends approval 
of CPA2012-00001 and DCA2012-00002. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
TESTIMONY IN FAVOR – Alexander Craghead – 12205 SW Hall Blvd Tigard 97223 
Mr. Craghead is the chair of the City Center Advisory Commission (CCAC) and present on 
behalf of the CCAC. He noted they had reviewed this quite thoroughly over several 
meetings (and stated that that was an understatement). He said tonight’s amendments 
represent an accumulation of over five years of effort on behalf of the CCAC to carve the 
future transportation systems for downtown Tigard. The CCAC believes this plan achieves 
connectivity goals and that the right amount of flexibility is built into the plan. He had 
participated in the outreach of the property owners and heard the various concerns. He said 
he saw response from staff addressing those concerns while still achieving the goals. In 
closing, Craghead said the CCAC recommends the Planning Commission approve these 
amendments. 
 
TESTIMONY IN OPPOSITION  
 
Cecilia Thompson – 1847 N. 150 E Centerville, UT  
She and her husband own a 67 unit apartment building in the area. They are concerned 
about the safety and security of the tenants if they have to have paths going through the 
area. They do not want to provide pedestrian and bike paths through the property. She said 
this is private property. If the plan goes through, she believes the property would be worth 
less. She said she’s not heard any complaints from the tenants regarding connectivity and 
requests that her whole lot be exempt from this. She’s against paying for someone else’s pipe 
dream.  
 
Russ Little – PO Box 1006 Tualatin, OR 97062 
He is one of the property owners in the Rite Aid center. His property currently houses 
“Woodcraft.”  He said he bought the property because he’d decided to stay in Tigard and 
support the community. He’s concerned that dividing his property into three pieces would 
decrease the value of his property.  
 



I:\LRPLN\Planning Commission\2012 Packets\101512 - Briefing RT - PH DCA2012-00001 & PH CPA2012-00001\tpc 101512 minutes.docx             Page 4 of 10 

 

David Wilson 12375 SW Hall Blvd. Tigard 97223 – Spoke in favor of the Scoffins 
collector. He said you should actually call it the Hunziker collector because it would be part 
of Hunziker. He believes it would reduce some of the cross traffic in front of Rite Aid and 
Woodcrafters.  
 
Owen Snyder 15400 SW Alderbrook Drive, Tigard 
Mr. Snyder stated he owns some properties in the Scoffins realignment in area map #4 
where it shows the connector being made with Hunziker. He had the following clarification 
question: During that realignment, you’re abandoning the previous intersection - what is the intended use of 
the existing street? Farrelly answered him. “No final decision has been made because we 
haven’t “pulled the trigger” on that street - but a possible idea is that when that property is 
purchased from the owner of that apartment building – we’d essentially have to purchase the 
entire property and that abandoned ROW could be consolidated with the remaining 
property to present a parcel big enough to redevelop. So there’s no other particular usage intended 
at this time?  Nothing definite has been decided, but a good viable option would be to swap 
that ROW with that property owner to have a parcel that can be redeveloped. 
 
CLOSED PUBLIC TESTIMONY  
 
President Walsh then opened the meeting up for questions by the commissioners.  
 
One of the commissioners commented that, if it goes through, she would like to see that 
there will be some sort of help from the City for the owners of businesses to plan for 
redevelopment. She believes the owners have some legitimate concerns.  Cathy Corliss said 
that all property owners would have to agree on whether the connections through the Rite-
Aid block takes place. She thinks there’s a way to designate those that are not quite the same 
as the way we would do in the viaduct.    
 
There were some questions regarding the near term redevelopment problems that could be 
created. The hope was that flexibility is built in of what could be done. Farrelly noted this is 
a discretionary process and that there is flexibility for line adjustments. There was a question 
of CCAC Chair Craghead as to whether he believes there is flexibility built into the plan. 
Craghead said what the CCAC is looking for is clarity because a lot of developers are not 
going to want to come in and develop if there’s not a transportation plan in place – because 
they’d not know where those roads would be – and that’s a problem – not a benefit. In this 
case, he can see the property owner’s concern and he noted there appears to be no concern 
about having flexibility.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
DELIBERATIONS 
President Walsh asked the commissioners their thoughts on this. 
 
Commissioner Doherty noted that this is not a connectivity plan that has just been thrown 
together. She mentioned that Chair Craghead had noted the five years of planning and 
discussions that had gone on. She is confident the City would work with the people who 



I:\LRPLN\Planning Commission\2012 Packets\101512 - Briefing RT - PH DCA2012-00001 & PH CPA2012-00001\tpc 101512 minutes.docx             Page 5 of 10 

 

brought up concerns down the road if, indeed, it gets to the point that the connectivity 
would affect the apartment building or others. She said “I would support this because it has 
had a tremendous amount of input. But again… I would want the City to work with people 
who have issues.” 
Commissioner Shavey believes this vision is a pretty strong picture of what can and may 
very well happen in downtown and thinks the Commission should make this 
recommendation to Council. 
Commissioner Muldoon recommends a change on the Rite-Aid block – simply list the end 
points and let that connectivity be determined as the redevelopment happens.  
Commissioner Anderson believes this is a good plan overall. There are no priorities listed 
on the streets and, if there were, he believes the two pieces that were talked about tonight 
would be low priority and probably among the last to be implemented. He believes that 
certainly the ones on Main Street and connecting some of the alleys are obvious and should 
be written in stone. He thinks putting end points would be good – let the developer work 
with the City to determine the street lines. 
Commissioner Rogers is generally happy with this but is a bit concerned about the 
Woodcraft building. He thinks it affects that particular owner on two sides of their building 
– it seems like we’re picking on one particular landowner.  
Commissioner Schmidt would hate to burden any property owner with a condition like 
that that would affect their current value – much less what it would be 20 or 30 years down 
the road.  
Commissioner Fitzgerald appreciates the 5 years of work getting to this point. She thinks 
this could energize Tigard and put it on the path to having a really livable downtown 
community. She has two exceptions: she would like a piece of language to be readjusted a 
little differently. She would also like Tom McGuire to be a little more specific on how the 
code language could be addressed. That code language piece would help the Woodcraft 
property and Mrs. Thompson’s (apartment) property pretty easily without affecting the 
overall draft. 
President Walsh likes the plan overall but has near term concerns. Are we creating a 
burden for the existing landowners? He hopes there is flexibility and thinks there is. He 
would like to see a softer line across the Rite Aid area and not having as defined a pathway 
as now and he also has concerns in that large block where the Thompson property is.  
 
President Walsh said he would reopen the hearing so he can hear from Tom McGuire and 
get some guidance on how to do that. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING REOPENED 
President Walsh asked Tom McGuire “Is it possible to amend the language and pass this tonight – 
move it forward? That’s the wish of the group.” 
McGuire said it’s going to be a challenge to have the exact language as an amendment 
tonight.  
 
President Walsh suggested that they take a recess from this hearing so McGuire and Cathy 
Corliss can get together and talk about this while the next public hearing takes place. They 
would then bring it back to the Commissioners – at which time they would reopen the 



I:\LRPLN\Planning Commission\2012 Packets\101512 - Briefing RT - PH DCA2012-00001 & PH CPA2012-00001\tpc 101512 minutes.docx             Page 6 of 10 

 

hearing. McGuire and the Commissioners agreed this was a good idea. President Walsh also 
decided that they would take a six minute break before the next public hearing. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED (to be reopened following the next public hearing.) 
 
SIX MINUTE RECESS 
 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR PROJECTIONS OPENED 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – DCA2012-00001 PROJECTIONS INTO REQUIRED 
YARDS 
REQUEST:  Amend Chapter 18.730.050.D of the Community Development Code to 
allow, in the R-12 Zone, bay windows and pop outs with floor area to project into required 
side yards by one foot provided they do not:  a) exceed 12 feet in length, b) contain over 
30% of the dwelling unit side elevation square footage, and c) the width of the approved side 
yard is not reduced to less than 3 feet. LOCATION:  Citywide.  ZONE:  R-12. 
 
QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING STATEMENTS 
President Walsh read the required statements and procedural items from the quasi-judicial 
hearing guide. There were no challenges of the commissioners for bias or conflict of interest.  
Ex-parte contacts: None. Site visitations: None; No challenges of the jurisdiction of the 
commission; no conflicts of interest. 
 
STAFF REPORT 
Gary Pagenstecher, Associate Planner, presented the staff report. [The staff report is available one 
week before the hearing.] 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS: 

As demonstrated in the application and the findings in the staff report, the proposed 
amendment complies with the applicable state planning goals, City Comprehensive Plan 
goals and policies, and the city’s implementing ordinances.  
 
The code amendment anticipates narrow lot subdivisions in the R-12 zone while maintaining 
the detached character of the majority of Tigard’s neighborhoods. According to the 2011 
BLI there are 30 lots over 10,000 square feet in size totaling 35.46 acres. The West Bull Mt. 
Community Plan designates approximately 70 gross acres as medium density residential, 
which includes the R-7, 12, and 25 zones, some portion of which will likely be zoned R-12 
under the River Terrace planning process.  
 
 The Exceptions to Development Standards chapter already allows projections into required 
yards. However, the proposed amendment would dramatically expand the potential impact 
of those projections from minor architectural features to up to 30% of the side elevation. 
Whereas these impacts may be acceptable to buyers of new homes on narrow lots, the 
impact to existing residents on adjacent properties may be perceived as more adverse. To 
limit potential adverse impacts, staff recommends projections be limited to yards interior to 
the subdivision. 
 



I:\LRPLN\Planning Commission\2012 Packets\101512 - Briefing RT - PH DCA2012-00001 & PH CPA2012-00001\tpc 101512 minutes.docx             Page 7 of 10 

 

The purpose of the Exceptions to Development Standards is to provide more flexible 
setback standards designed to allow for the maximum use of land and to allow for a varied 
building layout pattern while ensuring there will be adequate open space, light, air and 
distance between buildings to protect public health and safety. The 2011 Oregon Residential 
Specialty Code requires a minimum fire separation distance of three feet from the property 
line. The proposed code amendment would limit projections with floor area into required 
yards to this minimum. 
 

Staff recommends the following amended language (page 6, staff report): 
 

5. In the R-12 Zone, bay windows and pop outs projections with floor area may 

project into required interior side and street side yards by one foot provided they do 

not:  a) exceed 12 feet in length, b) contain over 30% of the dwelling unit side 

elevation square footage, and c) the width of the approved interior side yard is not 

reduced to less than 3 feet. 

 
APPLICANT TESTIMONY  – Ryan O’Brien – 1862 NE Estate Drive, Hillsboro, OR 
believes R12 is the zone where it’s really needed; however, he said the City of Hillsboro 
allows it in all zones. It helps the interior of the houses look much better. Also – the 
elevations of street side corner lots look a lot better with the pop-outs and bay windows.  
 
O’Brien mentioned that Mark Dane was planning on being there to testify on behalf of this, 
but his wife became ill and he couldn’t make it. He will submit his testimony of support in 
writing at a later time. 
 
QUESTIONS/COMMENTS 
Would this add sales value to these designs? $10 or $15 thousand I’d imagine. 
President Walsh added that he believed the application package was outstanding and that it 
was very helpful to the commissioners.  
 
TESTIMONY IN FAVOR 
Katie Patterson, 2005 NW 119th, Portland 97029 – represents two different builders, Sage 
Built Homes and Greenwood Homes. Ms. Patterson stated that Sage Built has an ownership 
at the Everett Terrace Subdivision which is 14 lots on 96th and Greenburg – right across 
from the Everett Homes Subdivision of Solera, and that Solera did build with these popouts 
even though they were not technically approved - and all of those houses were approved by 
the City of Tigard. She stated that she thinks the standard has already been set and that this 
is something that aesthetically looked fine. Ms. Patterson is in favor in large part because she 
believes that what looks to be a very small change (1 foot) on the outside of the house, can 
make a huge difference with regard to livability on the inside. She stated that areas like dining 
rooms may have a 6 – 8 foot table that can’t typically fit a smaller room - so the pop outs 
can make a big difference in that regard. The interior really makes a difference. 
 
TESTIMONY IN OPPOSITION - None 
TESTIMONY CLOSED 



I:\LRPLN\Planning Commission\2012 Packets\101512 - Briefing RT - PH DCA2012-00001 & PH CPA2012-00001\tpc 101512 minutes.docx             Page 8 of 10 

 

MOTION 
 
The following motion was made by Commissioner Muldoon, seconded by Commissioner 
Shavey. 
“I move that the Planning Commission forward a recommendation of approval to the 
City Council for application DCA2012-00001 and adoption of the findings and 
conditions of approval contained in the staff report and based on the testimony 
received tonight.” 
  
The motion CARRIED on a recorded vote; the Commission voted as follows: 
 
AYES: Commissioner Anderson; Commissioner Doherty; 

Commissioner Fitzgerald; Commissioner Muldoon; 
Commissioner Rogers; Commissioner Schmidt; Commissioner 
Shavey, and President Walsh  

NAYS: None. 
ABSTAINERS: None. 
ABSENT: Commissioner Ryan 
 
PUBLIC HEARING REOPENED AT 9:37pm 
Tom McGuire, Sean Farrelly, and Cathy Corliss had been discussing possible solutions to the 
issues the Commission had wanted them to talk about. Farrelly addressed the Rite-Aid 
property solution; the solution being a redrawing of the line to be more curved so the 
property would be affected on one side only.  
 
There was lengthy discussion about the other issues which President Walsh summarized at 
the end as follows: 

 The ADA issue… a no brainer – needs to be addressed as specified by staff. 

 Come up with a different concept for the line in front of Rite-Aid and how it finishes 
off on the far side around the Woodcraft property. 

 Staff will draft some language and add it so that it would handle any catastrophic 
event without creating a need for automatically enacting the “over 60%” threshold.  

 Leave the pedestrian/bicycle access alone. Leave as is. 
 
The commissioners agreed and President Walsh said “So now we need a motion.” 
 
At this point, Sean Farrelly reminded the Commission that they would also need to address 
the things that had come up at the Council workshop that had been outlined in his 
PowerPoint presentation. Farrelly reminded them of the four suggestions:  

• An alley along the park and ride that connects to new street through Public Works 
(don’t connect to Hall) 

• For Tigard/Burnham connection, straighten out. Put into a different classification 
(desired connection if the viaduct is reconstructed).  



I:\LRPLN\Planning Commission\2012 Packets\101512 - Briefing RT - PH DCA2012-00001 & PH CPA2012-00001\tpc 101512 minutes.docx             Page 9 of 10 

 

• Footnote to allow flexible design standards for the street near Fanno Creek park. 
Reduced ROW, pervious pavers. (This would have to be fleshed out at Council – the 
question would be are you, in concept, okay with that suggestion.) 

• Curve new street that goes through City Hall and Verizon.  
Farrelly said – in concept – if the Commission is comfortable with those suggestions – they 
would be fleshed out at Council. 
 
None of the Commissioners had issue with those suggestions so they were ready to make a 
motion. 
 

MOTION 
The following motion was made by Commissioner Muldoon, seconded by Commissioner 
Fitzgerald:  
 
“I move the Planning Commission forward a recommendation of approval to the 
City Council of application CPA2012-00001 & DCA2012-00002 as amended with four 
amendments: first, where staff will add catastrophic event language addressing fire 
and similar issues; second, that the line in the designated property [Woodcraft] be 
adjusted as projected by staff; third, that the ADA language be addressed as specified 
by staff; and last, that four adjustments be fleshed out with staff with the Council and 
that would otherwise be approved as contained in the staff report and based on the 
testimony provided tonight.” 
 
The motion CARRIED on a recorded vote; the Commission voted as follows: 
 
AYES: Commissioner Anderson; Commissioner Doherty; 

Commissioner Fitzgerald; Commissioner Muldoon; 
Commissioner Rogers; Commissioner Schmidt; Commissioner 
Shavey, and President Walsh  

NAYS: None. 
ABSTAINERS: None. 
ABSENT: Commissioner Ryan 
 
President Walsh asked staff to send an email out to the Commission when the language is 
drafted. This will go to City Council on December 11th.  
  
CLOSED PUBLIC HEARING ON DOWNTOWN CONNECTIVITY PLAN 
CODE AMENDMENT PROJECT 
 
COMMUNICATIONS  
 
There was a brief report by Vice President Anderson on his meeting with the Tigard 
Population and Housing Review committee. The first meeting included a consultant who 
talked about what our housing is today in Tigard and what we need to do and address. 





DRAFT 10/8/12 

community. This includes a series of community open houses throughout the process, as 
well as a citizen advisory committee and technical advisory committee.  
 
In addition to land use, the City Council will need to approve a River Terrace financial plan 
which will help pay for the construction of required new infrastructure and its operations and 
maintenance. This may include changes to development charges for parks, storm water 
management, sanitary sewers, water, and transportation improvements. It will also be 
important to address whether or not other special assessments will be needed for land use 
and building permits, as well as utility rates to ultimately recoup the investment the city 
makes in completing the community plan. 
 
Schedule 

 

Project Phases 

 Project Kickoff 
 Council acceptance/adoption of the WBMCP 
 CCI approval of the Public Involvement Plan 
 Get the word out 
 Launch Stakeholder Working Group and Technical Advisory Committee 

 Launch Tasks 
 Assessment and Collaboration 
 Plan Preparation  

 Adoption Process 

General Timeframe - River Terrace Community Plan

Task 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr

Public Involvement/TAC/SWG

Adopt WBMCP

Goal 5 Natural Resources

Parks Master Plan & SDC Update

Water Master Plan Update

Sanitary Sewer Plan Update

Stormwater Master Plan Update

Comp Plan/Zoning Maps and Regulations

Transportation System Plan Update

Public Facility Plan Update

Infrastructure Financing Strategy

Community Meeting Stakeholder Working Group Meeting City Council Hearing

Technical Advisory Committee Meeting Planning Commission Hearing

2012 2013 2014

EXHIBIT A

Doreen
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A



C I T Y  O F  T I G A R D  
R e s p e c t  a n d  C a r e   |   D o  t h e  R i g h t  T h i n g   |   G e t  i t  D o n e  

Downtown Connectivity Plan 
Code Amendments 

CPA 2012-00001 
DCA2012-00002 

October 15, 2012 Planning Commission Public Hearing 

EXHIBIT B

Doreen
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



Area: 
Tigard Downtown Urban 
Renewal District (193 acres) 
 
Existing conditions : 
Limited connections  
and connectivity 

Existing 
Conditions 

2 



Tigard Downtown Improvement Plan  

3 



Conceptual Connectivity  
 Plan Objectives 

 • Connectivity: Foster the creation of smaller 
block structures, consistent with the 
walkable urban village envisioned by the 
Tigard Downtown Improvement Plan. 

• Circulation: Create efficient routes into and 
around the Downtown. 

• Capacity: Create parallel streets to 
accommodate the demand created by new 
Downtown development. 

 
 4 



Implementation of the Plan 
• Proposed code requirements to implement 

vision: 
– Recognize that improvements will likely be 

done incrementally over 50 years or longer as 
individual properties redevelop   

– Provide as much flexibility as possible while 
still ensuring that connections get made  

• Two elements – new connections and new 
cross-sections  

 

5 



Proposed Amendments:  
CPA 2012-00001 
DCA2012-00002 

 
– Transportation System Plan to add background 

and figures 
– TDC 18.370 to add adjustments to the 

connectivity requirements 
– TDC 18.610 to add purpose, applicability and 

connectivity standards 
– TDC 18.810 to add new downtown cross-sections 

6 



TSP Amendments:  
Proposed New Streets 

7 

Detailed maps showing 
the future streets are 
proposed to be added to 
the TSP so that it is clear 
where future streets are 
expected to go and how 
much right-of-way is 
needed  



8 

TSP Amendments 



9 

TSP Amendments 



10 

TSP Amendments 



11 



12 

TSP Amendments 



13 

TSP Amendments 



14 

TSP Amendments 



15 

TSP Amendments 



16 

TSP Amendments 



Proposed Street  
Character Types 

17 



Proposed Amendments to Chapter 18.810 
(Street and Utility Improvement Standards) 

  
• Special street character and cross sections with 

enhanced streetscape design 
– For existing streets as well as future street 

connections 
– Applied when the city improves a street or when 

a private developer has to make full- or half-
street improvements as a part of their 
development 

 

18 



Proposed Amendments to Chapter 18.810:  
New Cross-Sections 

Current 
• Scoffins Street is a Collector 

Future  
• Scoffins Street is  with Downtown 

Mixed Use 1 Character Type 

19 



20 

Street Character 18.810 

 

SW Hall Blvd. is currently an ODOT facility. The 2035 Tigard Transportation System 
Plan recommends that a corridor plan be completed for the SW Hall Blvd. Corridor 
The street character standards for Upper Hall Boulevard shall not be considered final 
until the corridor plan is complete. 



21 

Street Character 18.810 

 



22 

Street Character 18.810 



23 

Street Character 18.810 

 



24 

18.810 

 

Street Character 



Proposed Amendments to  
Chapter 18.610  

(Tigard Downtown District Development & 
Design Standards)  

 
• New Section 18.610.025 (Connectivity) 
• References TSP connectivity maps 
• Establishes three sets of standards: 

– New Development and Major Redevelopment 
– All other projects 
– Pedestrian Pathways 

 



Proposed Amendments to  
Chapter 18.610  

New Development and Major Redevelopment 
– Major Redevelopment = valued at more than 60% of its 

total current value as assessed by the Washington County 
assessor 

• Dedicate the required right-of-way (or dedicate a 
public easement if approved by City Engineer) 

• Construct the required improvements 
• Changes to landscaping requirement in Table 

18.610.1 to allow applicant to count landscaping that 
was part of a required street improvement 



Proposed Amendments to  
Chapter 18.610  

All Other Projects  
– Redevelopment = project valued at 60% or less than its total current 

value as assessed by the Washington County assessor 

• Preserve the potential for a future connectivity improvement 
– No new buildings within future alignment  
– Surface parking, landscaping, temporary structures, driveways and 

similar types of development are allowed 

• Sign a non-remonstrance to future Local Improvement District 
(LID) 
 



Proposed Amendments to  
Chapter 18.610  

• For new development and major 
redevelopment within the area 
designated for required multi-use 
pathway 

• Provide multi-use pathway on public 
easements or right-of-ways which 
ensures connections through the block 
at least every 330 feet 

• Pathways:  
– Direct connection  
– ADA accessible 

Required New Pedestrian Pathway 



Proposed Amendments to  
Chapter 18.370  

Adjustments to Connectivity Standards  
• Type II procedure 
• Criteria:  

– Equally or better meet downtown design principles outlined in the TSP 
– Applying the standards would preclude all reasonable economic use of 

the site 
– Potential for a future connection is preserved 
– No adverse impact on natural features such as wetlands, bodies of 

water, significant habitat areas, steep slopes, or existing mature trees 



Rough Proportionality  
 

18.810.020 General Provisions 
A. When standards apply. Unless otherwise provided, 

construction, reconstruction or repair of streets, sidewalks, 
curbs and other public improvements shall occur in 
accordance with the standards of this title. No development 
may occur and no land use application may be approved 
unless the public facilities related to development comply 
with the public facility requirements established in this 
section and adequate public facilities are available. Applicants 
may be required to dedicate land and build required public 
improvements only when the required exaction is directly 
related to and roughly proportional to the impact of the 
development. 



Public Involvement 
• Project Website 
• CCAC Principles 
• Technical Advisory Committee 
• Open House 
• CCAC review over several meetings 
• City Council, Planning Commission, and Tigard 

Transportation Advisory Committee workshops 
• Property owners meetings 
• 2nd Open House 

 
31 



Citizen Comments 

• Five written comments: 
    One supportive, two neutral, two opposed 
• Eight phone / in person contacts- asked 

questions about how it would effect them. 
One made a specific suggestion to delete a 
proposed connection. 
 

32 



Agency Comments 

• TVF&R and TriMet supportive 
• ODOT comments response in staff report 

33 



Council Workshop Feedback 
• Alley along the park and ride that connects to 

new street through Public Works (don’t connect 
to Hall) 

• For Tigard/Burnham connection, straighten out. 
Put into a different classification (desired 
connection if the viaduct is reconstructed).  

• Footnote to allow flexible design standards for 
the street near Fanno Creek park. Reduced ROW, 
pervious pavers. 

• Curve new street that goes through City Hall and 
Verizon. 
 

34 



35 



36 

Conceptual connection to be 
coordinated if significant changes to 
viaduct are proposed. 



37 

Allow flexible 
design standards 
for the street 
near Fanno 
Creek park. 
Reduced ROW, 
pervious pavers. 



38 

TSP Amendments 



Findings: 
 
As found in the staff report, the proposed 
amendments meet the necessary approval criteria 
from the:  
• Tigard Development Code 
• Tigard Comprehensive Plan 
• Metro Urban Growth Management Functional Plan 
• Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 
• Oregon Administrative Rules 
• Statewide Planning Goals 

 
   

39 



Staff Recommendation: 
 

Staff recommends Planning Commission 
recommend approval of the code 
amendments to Council 
 
   

40 



C I T Y  O F  T I G A R D  
R e s p e c t  a n d  C a r e   |   D o  t h e  R i g h t  T h i n g   |   G e t  i t  D o n e  

Downtown Connectivity Plan 
Code Amendments 

CPA 2012-00001 
DCA2012-00002 

December 11, 2012 City Council Public Hearing 



Area: 
Tigard Downtown  
Urban Renewal District  
(193 acres) 
 
Existing conditions : 
Limited connections  
and connectivity 

Existing 
Conditions 

2 



Tigard Downtown Improvement Plan  

3 



Conceptual Connectivity  
 Plan Objectives 

 • Connectivity: Foster the creation of smaller block 
structures, consistent with the walkable urban 
village envisioned by the Tigard Downtown 
Improvement Plan. 

• Circulation: Create efficient routes into and 
around the Downtown. 

• Capacity: Create parallel streets to accommodate 
the demand created by new Downtown 
development. 

 
 4 



Implementation of the Plan 
• Proposed code requirements to implement 

vision: 
– Recognize that improvements will likely be 

done incrementally over 50 years or longer 
as individual properties redevelop   

– Provide as much flexibility as possible while 
still ensuring that connections get made  

• Two elements – new connections and new 
cross-sections  

 

5 



Proposed Amendments:  
CPA 2012-00001 
DCA2012-00002 

 – Transportation System Plan to add background and 
figures 

– TDC 18.370 to add adjustments to the connectivity 
requirements 

– TDC 18.610 to add purpose, applicability and 
connectivity standards 

– TDC 18.810 to add new downtown cross-sections 

6 



TSP Amendments:  
Proposed New Streets 

7 

Detailed maps showing 
the future streets are 
proposed to be added to 
the TSP so that it is clear 
where future streets are 
expected to go and how 
much right-of-way is 
needed  



8 

TSP Amendments 



9 

TSP Amendments 



10 

TSP Amendments 



11 

TSP Amendments 



12 

TSP Amendments 



13 

TSP Amendments 



14 

TSP Amendments 



15 

TSP Amendments 



16 

TSP Amendments 



Proposed Street  
Character Types 

17 



Proposed Amendments to Chapter 18.810 
(Street and Utility Improvement Standards) 

  
• Special street character and cross sections with 

enhanced streetscape design 
– For existing streets as well as future street 

connections 
– Applied when the city improves a street or  

when a private developer has to make full-        
or half-street improvements as a part of their 
development 

 

18 



Proposed Amendments to Chapter 18.810:  
New Cross-Sections 

Current 
• Scoffins Street is a Collector 

Future  
• Scoffins Street is  with Downtown 

Mixed Use 1 Character Type 

19 



20 

Street Character 

SW Hall Blvd. is currently an ODOT facility. The 2035 Tigard Transportation System 
Plan recommends that a corridor plan be completed for the SW Hall Blvd. Corridor 
The street character standards for Upper Hall Boulevard shall not be considered final 
until the corridor plan is complete. 



21 

Street Character 



22 

Street Character 



23 

Street Character 



24 

Street Character 



Proposed Amendments to  
Chapter 18.610  

(Tigard Downtown District Development  &           
Design Standards)  

 
• New Section 18.610.025 (Connectivity) 
• References TSP connectivity maps 
• Establishes three sets of standards: 

– New Development and Major Redevelopment 
– All other projects 
– Pedestrian Pathways 

 



Proposed Amendments to  
Chapter 18.610  

New Development and Major Redevelopment 
– Major Redevelopment = valued at more than 60% 

of its total current value as assessed by the 
Washington County assessor 

• Dedicate the required right-of-way (or dedicate a 
public easement if approved by City Engineer) 

• Construct the required improvements 
• Changes to landscaping requirement in Table 

18.610.1   to allow applicant to count landscaping 
that was part of a required street improvement 



Proposed Amendments to  
Chapter 18.610  

All Other Projects  
– Redevelopment = project valued at 60% or less than its total 

current value as assessed by the Washington County assessor 

• Preserve the potential for a future connectivity 
improvement 
– No new buildings within future alignment  
– Surface parking, landscaping, temporary structures, driveways 

and similar types of development are allowed 

• Sign a non-remonstrance to future Local Improvement 
District (LID) 
 



Proposed Amendments to  
Chapter 18.610  

• For new development and major 
redevelopment within the area 
designated for required multi-use 
pathway 

• Provide multi-use pathway on public 
easements or right-of-ways which 
ensures connections through the 
block at least every 330 feet 

• Pathways:  
– Direct connection  
 

Required New Pedestrian Pathway 



Proposed Amendments to  
Chapter 18.370  

Adjustments to Connectivity Standards  
• Type II procedure 
• Criteria:  

– Equally or better meet downtown design principles outlined in 
the TSP 

– Applying the standards would preclude all reasonable 
economic use of the site 

– Potential for a future connection is preserved 
– No adverse impact on natural features such as wetlands, 

bodies of water, significant habitat areas, steep slopes, or 
existing mature trees 



Rough Proportionality  
 18.810.020 General Provisions 

A. When standards apply. Unless otherwise provided, 
construction, reconstruction or repair of streets, 
sidewalks, curbs and other public improvements shall 
occur in accordance with the standards of this title. No 
development may occur and no land use application 
may be approved unless the public facilities related to 
development comply with the public facility 
requirements established in this section and adequate 
public facilities are available. Applicants may be 
required to dedicate land and build required public 
improvements only when the required exaction is 
directly related to and roughly proportional to the 
impact of the development. 



Public Involvement 
• Project Website 
• CCAC Principles 
• Technical Advisory Committee 
• Open House 
• CCAC review over several meetings 
• City Council, Planning Commission, and 

Tigard Transportation Advisory Committee 
workshops 

• Property owners meetings 
• 2nd Open House 

 
31 



Citizen Comments 

• Five written comments: 
    One supportive, two neutral, two opposed 
• Eight phone / in person contacts- asked 

questions about how it would effect them. 
One made a specific suggestion to delete a 
proposed connection. 

 
 

32 



Agency Comments 

• TVF&R and TriMet supportive 
• ODOT comments response in staff report 

33 



Planning Commissions Hearing 
October 15, 2012 

• Three citizens testified (one in support, 
two opposed) 

• PC recommended changes in response to 
hearing and citizen testimony  

• Unanimously recommended approval to 
Council approval  

34 



Planning Commission 
Recommended Changes  

 
• Additional code language that specifies if an 

existing development is destroyed as a result of 
fire or other cause beyond the control of the 
owner, the rebuilding of it shall not be 
considered a major redevelopment for the 
purposes of street connectivity. 

 

35 



36 

Planning Commission recommended changes  



Findings: 
 
As found in the staff report, the proposed 
amendments meet the necessary approval 
criteria from the:  
• Tigard Development Code 
• Tigard Comprehensive Plan 
• Metro Urban Growth Management Functional 

Plan 
• Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 
• Oregon Administrative Rules 
• Statewide Planning Goals 

 
   

37 



Staff Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council 
concur with the Planning Commission and 
approve the code amendments.  
 
   

38 



AIS-1116       . A.             

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 12/11/2012

Length (in minutes):  

Agenda Title: Proposal by Councilor Wilson to Name the Summer Creek Property as Dirksen Nature Park

Submitted By: Cathy Wheatley, Administrative Services

Item Type: Resolution Meeting Type: Council Business Meeting - Main

Public Hearing: No Publication Date: 

Information

ISSUE 

During the Non-Agenda segment of the December 11, 2012, City Council Meeting Councilor Wilson proposed that the

Summer Creek Property be named the "Dirksen Nature Park" in honor of Tigard Mayor Craig Dirksen.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

N/A

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

Members of the Tigard City Council present adopted Resolution No. 12-52 to name the Summer Creek Property the

"Dirksen Nature Park" as proposed by Councilor Wilson.  The adopted resolution is attached.

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

N/A

COUNCIL GOALS, POLICIES, APPROVED MASTER PLANS

N/A

DATES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

N/A

Attachments

Resolution No. 12-52




	Agenda
	Item03  Human Rights Week Proclamation
	Item03_Att1_Human Rights Week

	Item04_A  Approve City Council Meeting Minutes
	Item04_A_Att1_Council Minutes for September 25, 2012
	Item04_A_Att2_Council-CCDA Minutes for October 2, 2012

	Item04_B  Receive and File_  Election Results, Council Calendar and Council Tentative Agenda
	Item04_B_Att1_November 6, 2012, City of Tigard General Election Results Report and Precinct Map
	Cover Letter - Canvass of Votes for City of Tigard November 6, 2012, General Election
	City of Tigard Mayor
	City of Tigard - Two Council Positions
	City of Tigard - Ballot Measure 34-203 - Vote Required to Use Certain Funds for Light Rail Construction
	Washington County - November 6, 2012, General Election Results Summary Report
	Washington County - November 6, 2012, Voter Turnout Report
	City of Tigard Precinct Map

	Item04_B_Att2_Three-Month Council Calendar
	Item04_B_Att3_Tentative Agenda

	Item04_C  Appoint Budget Committee Members
	Item04_C_Att1_Resolution
	Item04_C_Att2_Committee bios

	Item04_D  Audit committee
	Item04_D_Att1_Resolution
	Item04_D_Att2_Audit Committee Bio

	Item04_E  Reappoint Matthew Muldoon and Appoint Timothy L. Gaschke and Brian K Feeney as Voting Members to the Planning Commission
	Item04_E_Att1_Resolution
	Item04_E_Att2_PC Biographical Information

	Item04_F  Appoint Laura Fisher, Tamera Slack and Paul Miller as Voting Members and Carine Arendes and Hemendra Mathur as Alternates to the CCAC
	Item04_F_Att1_Resolution 
	Item04_F_Att2_CCAC Biographies

	Item04_G  Appoint Jennifer Stanfield, Donald Schmidt, Evelyn Murphy Mark Bogert and George Hetu to the Tigard Transportation Advisory Committee
	Item04_G_Att1_Resolution
	Item04_G_Att2_Bios

	Item04_H  Rankin Property Purchase
	Item04_H_Att1_Resolution Rankin Property
	Item04_H_Att2_Purchase Agreement and Post-Closing Occupancy Agreement

	Item04_I  Amendment to City Manager Employment Agreement
	Item04_I_Att1_CM EA Amendment _3
	Amendment #3
	Section 10:  Severance

	Item05  Legislative Public Hearing - River Terrace Comprehensive Plan Amendment
	Item05_Att1_Attachment 1 - Washington County Planning Commission Minutes - November 3, 2010
	Item05_Att2_Attachment 2 - Washington County Board of Commissioners - November 23, 2010
	Item05_Att3_Attachment 3 - CPA2012-00002 Ordinance
	Item05_Att4_Exhibit A - CPA2012-00002 Land Uses
	Item05_Att5_Exhibit B - CPA2012-00002 Policies
	Item05_Att6_Exhibit C - CPA2012-00002 Findings

	Item06  Legislative Public Hearing for Downtown Connectivity Plan Code Amendments
	Item06_Att01_Ordinance with Exhibit A
	Ordinance.Exhibit.A.pdf
	Ordinance.Exhibit.A.pdf
	A1.Changes to Exhibit A
	revEXHIBIT B Amendments to TDC 18 370_110512
	revEXHIBIT C Amendments to TDC 18.610
	EXHIBIT D Amendments to TDC 18.810


	Item06_Att02_Staff Report to the City Council
	Item06_Att03_Staff Report - EXHIBIT A
	Item06_Att04_Staff Report - EXHIBIT A1._ Planning Commission  recommended changes to Exhibit A
	Item06_Att05_Staff Report - EXHIBIT B
	Item06_Att06_Staff Report - EXHIBIT C
	Item06_Att07_Staff Report - EXHIBIT D
	Item06_Att08_Staff Report - EXHIBIT E._ Traffic Analysis
	Item06_Att09_Staff Report - EXHIBIT F._ Citizen Comments 
	Item06_Att10_Staff Report - EXHIBIT G._ Agency Comments 
	Item06_Att11_Staff Report - EXHIBIT H_ October 15, 2012 Planning Commission Minutes  
	Item 06 - Att12 - Presentation Slides
	Item 8 A - Name the Summer Creek Property as Dirksen Nature Park 
	Resolution No. 12-52





